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The franchise that we offer is to operate as our area representative within a designated territory to solicit, screen,
recruit, train, and support V/O Med Spa franchisees within a designated territory (the “Area Representative
Business” or “Franchised Business”).

The initialtotal investment necessary to begin operation of a V/O Med Spa Area Representative Business ranges
between-$89is $78,250 to $1,675:256-:099.000. This includes $ t be paid to the
franchisor or its affiliate for the-arearepresentativefee-affiliates

Thls dlsclosure document summarizes certain provisions ¢ agreementAsea

epresentativeAgreement and other information in plain En cument and all
accompanying agreements carefully. You must receive this disclo dar- days before
you sign a binding agreement with, or make any payment to, the : nection with the
proposed franchise sale. Note, however, that no government ag ition contained

in this document.

You may wish to receive your disclosure document in another foiiu uiat 15 1ore conveuew 11 you. To discuss
the availability of disclosures in different forms, contact Ryan Rose, Chief-Exeeutive-OfficerPresident, VIO
F%aﬂehas%@-reapFRANCHlSE GROUP, LLC, 3991 North Jefferson Street, Medina, Ohio 44256, (440) 238-
689

The terms of your contract will govern your franchise relationship. Do not rely on the disclosure document alone
to understand your contract. Read your entire contract carefully. Show your contract and this disclosure
document to an advisor, like a lawyer or an accountant.

Buying a franchise is a complex investment. The information in this disclosure document can help you make up
your mind. More information on franchising, such as “4 Consumer’s Guide to Buying a Franchise,” which can
help you understand how to use this disclosure document, is available from the Federal Trade Commission. You
can contact the FTC at 1-877-FTC-HELP or by writing to the FTC at 600 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW,
Washington, B-€-DC 20580. You can also visit the FTC’s home page at www.ftc.gov for additional information.
Call your state agency or visit your public library for other sources of information on franchising.

There may also be laws on franchising in your state. Ask your state agencies about them.
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How to Use This Franchise Disclosure Document

Here are some questions you may be asking about buying a franchise and tips on how to find
more information:

QUESTION

WHERE TO FIND INFORMATION

How much can I earn?

Item 19 may give you information about outlet sales,
costs, profits or losses. You should also try to obtain
this information from others, like current and former
franchisees. You can find their names and contact
information in Item 20 or Exhibits EH and GI.

How much will I need to invest?

Items 5 and 6 list fees you will be paying to the
franchisor or at the franchisor’s direction. Item 7 lists
the initial investment to open. Item 8 describes the
suppliers you must use.

Does the franchisor have the
financial ability to provide
support to my business?

Item 21 or Exhibit D includes financial statements.
Review these statements carefully.

Is the franchise system stable,
growing, or shrinking?

Item 20 summarizes the recent history of the number of
company-owned and franchised outlets.

Will my business be the only
VIOV/O Med Spa Area
Representative business in my
area?

Item 12 and the “territory” provisions in the franchise
agreement describe whether the franchisor and other
franchisees can compete with you.

Does the franchisor have a
troubled legal history?

Items 3 and 4 tell you whether the franchisor or its
management have been involved in material litigation
or bankruptcy proceedings.

What’s it like to be a V/O Med
Spa Area Representative
franchisee?

Item 20 or Exhibits EH and GI list current and former
franchisees. You can contact them to ask about their
experiences.

What else should I know?

These questions are only a few things you should look
for. Review all 23 Items and all Exhibits in this
disclosure document to better understand this franchise
opportunity. See the table of contents.
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What You Need to Know Abeutabout Franchising Generally

Continuing responsibility to pay fees.. You may have to pay royalties and other fees even if
you are losing money.

Business model can change. The franchisearca representative agreement may allow the
franchisor to change its manuals and business model without your consent. These changes may
require you to make additional investments in your franehisefranchised business or may harm
your franehisefranchised business.

Supplier restrictions.. You may have to buy or lease items from the franchisor or a limited
group of suppliers the franchisor designates. These items may be more expensive than similar
items you could buy on your own.

Operating restrictions. The franchisearea representative agreement may prohibit you from
operating a similar business during the term of the—franehise-your area representative
agreement. There are usually other restrictions. _Some examples may include controlling_or
approving your location, your access to customers, what you sell, how you market, and your
hours of operation.

Competition from franchisor. Even if the franehisearea representative agreement grants you
a territory, the franchisor may have the right to compete with you in your territory.

Renewal. Your franchisearea representative agreement may not permit you to renew._Even if
it does, you may have to sign a new agreement with different terms and conditions in order to
continue to operate your franchise-businessFranchised Business.

When vour franchise ends. The franchisearea representative agreement may prohibit you
from operating a similar business or soliciting customers after the term of your franehisearea
representative agreement ends even if you still have obligations to your landlord or other
creditors.

Some States Require Registration

Your state may have a franchise laws-or other law; that requires franchisors to
register before offering or selling franchises in the state._ Registration does not mean that the
state recommends the franchise or has verified the information in this deeument—Fo—find
eutFranchise Disclosure Document. To determine if your state has a registration requirement,
or to contact your state, use the agency information in Exhibit A.
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Your state also may have laws that require special disclosures or amendments be
made to your franehisearea representative agreement. If so, you should check the State Specific
Addenda. See Please see the Table of Contents for the location of the State Specific Addenda.

il
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Special Risks to Consider About 7his Franchise
Certain states require that the following risk(s) be highlighted:

(1) Out-of-State Dispute Resolution. The franchise agreement and multi-unit
development agreement require you to resolve disputes with the franchisor by
mediation, arbitration, and/or litigation only in Ohio. Out-of-state mediation,
arbitration, or litigation may force you to accept a less favorable settlement for disputes.
It may also cost more to mediate, arbitrate, or litigate with the franchisor in Ohio than
in your own state.

(2) Spousal Liability. Your spouse must sign a document that makes your spouse liable
for all your financial obligations under the franchise agreement even though your
spouse has no ownership interest in the franchise. This guarantee will place both you
and your spouse’s marital and personal assets, perhaps including your house, at risk if
your franchise fails.

(3) Short Operating History. The franchisor is at an early stage of development and has
limited operating history. This franchise is likely to be a riskier investment than a
franchise in a system with a longer operating history.

(4) Financial Support. The franchisor’s financial condition as reflected in its financial
statements (see Item 21), calls into question the franchisor’s financial ability to provide
services and support to you.

(5) Sales Performance Required. You must maintain minimum sales performance levels.

Your inability to maintain these levels may result in loss of any territorial rights you
are granted, termination of your franchise, and loss of your investment.

Certain states may require other risks to be highlighted. Check the “State Specific Addenda”
(if any) to see whether your state requires other risks to be highlighted.

iv
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NOTICE REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF MICHIGAN

THE STATE OF MICHIGAN PROHIBITS CERTAIN UNFAIR PROVISIONS THAT ARE
SOMETIMES IN FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS. IF ANY OF THE FOLLOWING PROVISIONS ARE
IN THESE FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS, THE PROVISIONS ARE VOID AND CANNOT BE
ENFORCED AGAINST YOU.

The Michigan Franchise Law states in Sec. 445.1527, Sec.27 that each of the following provisions is void and
unenforceable if contained in any documents relating to a franchise:

(a) A prohibition on the right of a franchisee to join an association of franchisees.

(b) A requirement that a franchisee assent to a release, assignment, novation, waiver, or estoppel; which deprives
a franchisee of rights and protections; provided in this act. This shall not preclude a franchisee, after entering
into a franchise agreement, from settling any and all claims.

(c) A provision that permits a franchisor to terminate a franchise prior to the expiration of its term except for
good cause. Good cause shall include the failure of the franchisee to comply with any lawful provision of
the franchise agreement and to cure such failure after being given written notice thereof and a reasonable
opportunity, which in no event need be more than 30 days, to cure such failure.

(d) A provision that permits a franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise without fairly compensating the
franchisee by repurchase or other means for the fair market value at the time of expiration of the
franchisee’sfranchisee's inventory, supplies, equipment, fixtures, and furnishings. Personalized materials
which have no value to the franchisor and inventory, supplies, equipment, fixtures, and furnishings not
reasonably required in the conduct of the franchise business are not subject to compensation. This subsection
applies only if: (i) the term of the franchise is less than five years and (ii) the franchisee is prohibited by the
franchise or other agreement from continuing to conduct substantially the same business under another
trademark, service mark, trade name, logotype, advertising, or other commercial symbol in the same area
subsequent to the expiration of the franchise or the franchisee does not receive at least six months advance
notice of franchiser’sfranchisor's intent not to renew the franchise.

(e) A provision that permits the franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise on terms generally available to other
franchisees of the same class or type under similar circumstances. This section does not require a renewal
provision.

(f) A provision requiring that arbitration or litigation be conducted outside this state. This shall not preclude the
franchisee from entering into an agreement, at the time of arbitration, to conduct arbitration at a location
outside this state.

(g) A provision which permits a franchisor to refuse to permit a transfer of ownership of a franchise, except for
good cause. This subdivision does not prevent a franchisor from exercising a right of first refusal to purchase
the franchise. Good cause shall include, but is not limited to:

(i) The failure of the proposed transferee to meet the franchiser’sfranchisor's then current reasonable
qualifications or standards.

(i1) The fact that the proposed transferee is a competitor of the franchisor or sub-franchisor.

(iii) The unwillingness of the proposed transferee to agree in writing to comply with all lawful
obligations.
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(iv) The failure of the franchisee or proposed transferee to pay any sums owing to the franchisor or to
cure any default in the franchise agreement existing at the time of the proposed transfer.

(h) A provision that requires the franchisee to resell to the franchisor items that are not uniquely identified with
the franchisor. This subdivision does not prohibit a provision that grants to a franchisor a right of first refusal
to purchase the assets of a franchise on the same terms and conditions as a bona fide third party willing and
able to purchase those assets, nor does this subdivision prohibit a provision that grants the franchisor the
right to acquire the assets of a franchise for the market or appraised value of such assets if the franchisee has
breached the lawful provisions of the franchise agreement and has failed to cure the breach in the manner
provided in subdivision (c).

(i) A provision which permits the franchisor to directly or indirectly convey, assign, or otherwise transfer its
obligations to fulfill contractual obligations to the franchisee unless provision has been made for providing
the required contractual services.

If the franchiser’sfranchisor's most recent financial statements are unaudited and show a net worth of less than
$100,000.00, the franchisee may request the franchisor to arrange for the escrow of initial investment and other
funds paid by the franchisee until the obligations, if any, of the franchisor to provide real estate, improvements,
equipment, inventory, training or other items included in the franchise offering are fulfilled. At the option of the
franchisor, a surety bond may be provided in place of escrow.

THE FACT THAT THERE IS A NOTICE OF THIS OFFERING ON FILE WITH THE ATTORNEY
GENERAL DOES NOT CONSTITUTE APPROVAL, RECOMMENDATION, OR ENDORSEMENT BY
THE ATTORNEY GENERAL.

Any questions regarding this notice should be directed to:

State of Michigan
Department of Attorney General
CONSUMER PROTECTION DIVISION
Attention: Antitrust & Franchise
G. Mennen Williams Building, 1st Floor
525 West Ottawa Street
Lansing, Michigan 48909
Telephone Number: (517) 373-7117
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ITEM1
1 THE FRANCHISOR AND ANY PARENTS, PREDECESSORS AND AFFILIATES

VIO Eranehise-GroupFRANCHISE GROUP, LLC, the franchisor of the Eranchised BusinessV/O Med Spa
franchise system, is referred to in this Fraﬂehrs%Drselesur%DeemneﬂH—thefranchlse disclosure document

(this “Disclosure Document”) as “we™;,” “us”,” or “our” as the context requires. A franchisee is referred to
in this Disclosure Document as “you” and “your” as the context requires. If you are a corporation,
partnership or other legal entity (a “Corporate Entity”), our Eranchise—Agreementarea representative
agreement will also apply to your individual owners, shareholders, members, officers, directors and other

principals.

The Franchisor

We are an Ohio Hmnited-liability-companyLimited Liability Company established on January 30, 2018;-ane
our-prineipal. Our business address is 3991 North Jefferson Street, Medina, Ohio 44256. We conduct
business under our corporate name VIO FEranehise-GroupFRANCHISE GROUP, LLC and under the
VHOV/O Med Spa trade name. Our business is operating the V/O Med Spa franchise system and granting
franchises to third parties like you to develop and operate an Area Representative Business. Under a
separate Diselosure-Doecumentdisclosure document, we also offer qualified individuals the right to develop
and operate an-individual unit V/O Med Spa leeationfranchise(the~Spateeationfranchises (each a “Unit

Franchise”). We began offering franchises on September 10, 2018;-and-other. Other than as discussed
above, we are not in any other business, we have not conducted business in any other line of business, and
we have not offered or sold franchises in any other line of business We do not have any predecessors Our

leea%ed—a{%ggl—Neﬁh—Jeﬁfersen—S&eet—Medma—Qm%é—Our regrstered agents for service of process
are disclosed in Exhibit B of this Disclosure Document.

The Franchised Business

The Franchised Business, also referred to as an Area Representative Business, provides for yeurthe
development and operation of a business where you (referred to as our “Area Representative™) solicit,
screen, recruit, train, and support V/O Med Spa individual-unit SpatecationFranchisesfranchises (each
referred to as a “Unit Franchise™) within a designated territory (referred to as your “Area Representative
Territory™);”) and you perform-etherparticipate in sales, training, support, and administrative obligations
subject to our instruction, direction, and the requirements of our System (defined below). This Disclosure
Document only relates to your Area Representative Business. Yeou-mustalse-Separately, you should review
and evaluate and-review-our separatefranchise disclosure document for individual-unit-SpateecationUnit

Franchises— (our “Unit Franchise Disclosure Document”).

Our-Separate and apart from this Disclosure Document, under our Unit Franchise Disclosure Document
and our franchise agreement for Unit Franchises (our “Unit Franchise Agreement”) we license a system
(the “System”) relates-tofor the development and operation of yeur-AreaRepresentative Business-and-the
elevelepmem—epc—raﬂen—suﬁﬁeﬁ—and—%alesUmt Franchrscs comprrscd of Hﬂ-l—tV/O Med Spa Focation

aﬂd—epera%%&sp&%pa—)%r&%pmﬂdesprowd retall skrncare cosrnetlc health and wellness medrcal spa

products and services that include facials, chemical skin peels, neurotoxin injectables, injectable dermal
fillers, skin rejuvenation and tightening (e.g., microneedling, radio frequency microneedling, intense pulsed
light therapy, plasma fibroblast, etc.) body contouring (e.g., high-intensity focused electromagnetic
stimulation, cryolipolysis, etc.), platelet-rich plasma therapy treatments, facial and body lifting and smooth
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threads, wellness therapy (e.g., bioidentical hormone replacement therapy, IV hydration therapy, nutrition
supplement injections, sexual wellness, etc.), light therapy, and other cosmetic med1ca1 spa and spa related
services and retail products - :

Sewrees—efthat we authorlze the “A roved Products and Services” Each Unlt Franchlse is develo ed
and operated by a franchisee (each, a “Unit Franchisee™) within a designated territory (a “Unit Franchise
Designated Territory”) and from a retail location designated, licensed, and approved by us.

The System is presently identified by the V/O Med Spa trademark, and other trademarks, service-marks
logotypes, and commercial symbols as we designate, modify and adopt from time to time for use in the
System and as may or may not be registered with the United States Patent and Trademark Office
(collectively referred to as the “Licensed Marks”). Unit Franchisees are required to develop and operate
their V/O Med Spa in conformity with the specifications, procedures, and requirements that we designate
in our confidential operations manual and other proprietary manuals that we may designate and, as we may,
supplement and modify from time to time (collectively, the “Manuals”). The System also includes our
specifications, criteria, and requirements respecting the development and operation of your Area
Representative Business as designated by us, as specified in the Manuals, and as we may supplement and
modify from time to time.

Area Representative AgreementSpatoecationFranchisethat Ownsand Operates-a-Spa-Management

Vio
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You may enter into an Area Representative Agreement in the form attached to this Disclosure Document
as Exhibit E (the “Area Representative Agreement”) to develop and operate an area—representative
businessArea Representative Business within your designated Area Representative Territory. -As an area

representative, subject to the terms of your Area Representative Agreement-and-duringthe-termof-your

AreaRepresentative-Agreement, you will receive frem—usthe following compensation eemprised-ofi(a)
50%-of the netinitial-franchise fees paid-to-us-and-received by-us-astefrom us:

Franchise Fee Compensation — For each SpateeationUnit Franchise that is-autherized-by-us-to-locate
and-establish-their-Spawe authorize and approve for development and operation within your designated
Area Representative Territory during the initial term of your Area Representative Agreement{the-Area
Representative, we will pay to you a one-time payment / amount equal to 50% of the initial net franchise
fee that is unconditionally paid to us and received by us (the “AR Franchise Fee?)—and—(b)}
Compensation”). You will not receive any Franchise Fee Compensation for Unit Franchises developed
within your Area Representative Territory after the initial term of you Area Representative Agreement;
and

Royalty Compensation — For each Unit Franchise that is developed and first opened within your Area
Representative Territory during the initial term of your Area Representative Agreement, we will pay to
you 33% of the net royalty fees paid to us by each respeetive-Spa—teeationUnit Franchise with an
authorized V/O Med Spa lecation—inlocated within your designated-Area Representative Territory
during the initial term of your Area Representative Agreement and, if applicable, the renewal term of
your Area Representative Agreement (the “Area—RepresentativeRoyalty—Fee”) AR Royalty
Compensation”). For each Unit Franchise located and operating within your Area Representative
Territory but that was developed and/or first opened within your Area Representative Territory prior to
the initial term of your Area Representative Agreement, the AR Royalty Compensation will be equal
to 33% of the net royalty fees paid to us by each by such pre-existing Unit Franchise during the initial
term of your Area Representative Agreement and, if applicable, the renewal term of your Area
Representative Agreement. You will not receive any Royalty Compensation for Unit Franchises
developed within your Area Representative Territory after the initial term of you Area Representative

Agreement.

The AreaRepresentativeAR Franchise Fee Compensation is a one-time fee and is calculated based on the
net “initial franchise fee;” less brokerage commissions, escrow, and/er deferral obligations that are imposed
on, paid, or owed by us. The AreaRepresentativeAR Royalty Feerelatesto-Compensation is calculated
based on net royalty fees paid to us and-received-by-us-from authorized franchisees of SpateeationUnit

Franchises with Spa-LecationFranchises-V/O Med Spas located within your Area Representative Territory
and-. The AR Royalty Compensation does not relate-te-include and is not calculated based on any other

fees paid to us from franehisees-Unit Franchisees including, but-nettimited—towithout limitation, brand
development fund fees, renewal fees, transfer fees, training fees, late—charges;-interest fees, audit fees,
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attorneys—fees—testingattorney fees, or any other feefees paid to us or our affiliates: by Unit Franchisees.
You are solely respensibleliable for and shall dlrectly pay all b;eker—ag%aﬂd—e%herbroker fees—ewed—te
brekers, referral fees, lead generation 3 al sou aning
feesfees, and other franchise sales expenses related to the sale of Un1t Franchlses in Vour Area

Representative Territory (“Franchise Sales Expenses”). Franchise Sales Expenses will be paid by you
direetly-out-offrom your AreaRepresentative AR Franchlse Eees;AreaRepresentativeFee Compensation,
AR Royalty EeesCompensation, and other seureces—available—tefunds that you invest in your Area
Representative Business.

As an area representative yous

As-an-AreaRepresentative—you—willnet-_are not be authorized to sign any documents on our behalf or
relating-toon behalf of the System. You will refer all qualified prespeetsfranchisee candidates to us and we
may, in our sole and absolute discretion, eheesedetermine whether or not te-sign-a-we approve or disapprove
of each respective franchisee candidate. If we reject a franchisee candidate or elect to not enter into a Unit
Franchise Agreement with yeurprespeet;n-which-easea franchisee candidate, you will not receive aeany
compensation. As an Area-Representativearea representative, as to your Area Representative Territory and
Spa—LeeaﬁeﬂUnit Franchisees located within your Area Representative Territory, you will have the
following on-going responsibilities, all subject to our then current System standards, specifications, and
requirements: (a) to solicit-and, screen—prospective—{franchisees—to—ensure—they, and recruit franchisee
candidates that meet our minimum—qualifications and requirements; (b) to refer qualified franchisee
candidates to us; (¢) to provide franchisees with site selection assistance; (d) to provide franchisees with
construction and pre-opening assistance; (e) to provide franchisees with suppertand-epeningassistanee; (€}
provide—initial-training; (f) to provide franchisees;{(d)-providesiteselection—suppert{e)-provide—_with
marketing and sales support—te—; (g) provide franchisees:—(H)—provide— with operational support and
guidaneeassistance; (h) to franchisees:{g)-conduct on-geingsite inspections-of-all-franchisees; (i) to ensure
conduct recurring performance and quality control assessments and instruction; and (j) to monitor and
malntam franchlsee relatlons and operatlons in comphance w1th eur—sfaﬂéafds—aﬂd—&x}—pfeﬂd%eemmﬂal
m & h A R . any th_e
System requlrements as desuznate by us and as may be modlﬁed by us from time to tlme As an Area
Representative you will be responsible for diselosing-eur-complying with all applicable laws, rules, and
regulations related to the offer and sale of franchlses 1ncludmg the proper dlsclosure of our Unlt Franchlse
Dlsclosure Document neh : AW Ws-an :

peitfefm—mspee&eﬂs—fer—aﬂ—Spa—Leea&eﬂ—Fm&ekﬂses—m— the dlsclosure and reglstratlon of your Area

Representative Territory-atleastonee-permonth—activities as a franchise seller, and adherence to all laws,
rules and regulations related to the offer and sale of franchises.

Our Parents and Affiliates

VIO Holdings, LLC

Our parent company is VIO Holdings, LLC (our “Parent Company”), an Ohio limited liability compan
established on August 4, 2020. Our Parent Company maintains a principal business address at 3991 North
Jefferson Street, Medina, Ohio 44256. Our Parent Company has not in the past and does not now offer

franchises in any lines of business.

VIO Med Spa Strongsville, LLC

Our affiliate VIO Med Spa Strongsville, LLC, is an Ohio limited liability company established on January
30, 2018, and is the successor company to our affiliate Skin Deep Laser Spa, LLC d/b/a Skin Deep Medi
Spa. On October 1, 2018, this affiliate acquired the business of our affiliate Skin Deep Laser Spa, LLC and
is now the owner and operator of our spa located at 13461 Pearl Road, Strongsville, Ohio 44136 from which
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this affiliate utilizes the System in its operation V/O Med Spa. You will not conduct business directly with
this affiliate. This affiliate has not in the past and does not now offer franchises in any lines of business.

VIO Distribution, LLC

Our affiliate VIO Distribution, LLC is an Ohio limited liability company established on January 25, 2019.
This affiliates principal business address is 3991 North Jefferson Street, Medina, Ohio 44256. This affiliate
is an approved and, in many instances, exclusive supplier, of the approved products, supplies and fixtures
required for the development and operation of Spa Location Franchises. You will directly conduct business
with this affiliate. This affiliate has not in the past and does not now offer franchises in any lines of business.

VIO Management Group, LLC
Our affiliate VIO Management Group, LLC is an Ohio limited liability company established on February

1,2019. This affiliates principal business address is 3991 North Jefferson Street, Medina, Ohio 44256. This
affiliate is an approved supplier of management and operational support services for V/O Med Spas. You
may directly conduct business with this affiliate. This affiliate has not in the past and does not now offer
franchises in any lines of business.

Market and Competition

The general market for the services and products offered by the Franchised Business typically includes

well-capitalized individuals interested in investing in, establishing, and operating a franchised spa. The
franchise industry is competitive and you will be competing with other spa franchises and other franchise
investment opportunities engaged in the offer and sale of franchises. The market for the services that you
will offer are not seasonal, are well established, and are very highly competitive.

Industry Specific Laws

Franchise

You will be subject to federal and state specific franchise rules and regulations regarding the offer and sale
of franchises, the disclosure of a franchise disclosure document, state specific franchise and business
opportunity registration requirements and franchise seller disclosures and registration requirements. In
certain states, as an area representative, you may be required to register as a franchise broker. You must
carefully review the franchise regulation and laws that will govern your operation of the Area
Representative Business and the offer of sale of franchises within your Area Representative Territory.

Below is a summary of industry specific laws that apply to Spa Location Franchises. You should carefully
review with a lawyer these industry specific laws and their application within your Area Representative
Territory and the impact that they will have on Spa Location Franchises located within your Area
Representative Territory.

General

Federal, state, and local jurisdictions have laws, rules, and regulations that may apply to the development
and operation of Spa Location Franchises, including: rules and regulations related to health and safety; flow
of funds; licensing of cosmetic professionals including aestheticians and estheticians; licensing and
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requirements as to the ordering, supply, and administration of procedures and services; ownership and
control of Spa Location Franchise; construction, zoning, health and safety requirements; employee
practices; equal access for the disabled including, requirements imposed by The Americans with
Disabilities Act of 1990; and numerous others that may affect the operation, construction and location
requirements of Spa Location Franchises within your Area Representative Territory. Key aspects of the
healthcare regulatory rules and regulations are outlined below for your reference; however, you should
investigate and evaluate how all regulations and requirements specific to your Area Representative
Territory, including but not limited to those listed above and below, apply and impact your operations and
the operations franchisees of Spa Location Franchises within your Area Representative Territory.

Stark

The federal physician self-referral prohibition (42 U.S.C. § 1395nn, “Stark™) generally prohibits a physician
from making referrals for Designated Health Services (“DHS”) (as defined by Stark and includes inpatient
services) payable by Medicare or Medicaid, in whole or in part and whether as a primary or secondary
payer, to an entity with whom the referring physician (or an immediate family member) has a financial
relationship. Recognizing the existence of several common, legitimate financial arrangements, Stark
however created exceptions to this general prohibition allowing a financial arrangement between a
physician (or immediate family member) and entity furnishing DHS if the arrangement meets all of the
requirements of a specific exception. Failure to meet one element of an exception will cause the
arrangement to violate Stark (unless another exception applies).

A “physician” includes a Doctor of Medicine or Osteopathy, Doctor of Dental Surgery or Dental Medicine,
Doctor of Podiatric Medicine, a Doctor of Optometry, or a chiropractor but does not include physician
assistants, nurse practitioners, or other mid-level licensed non-physician providers. A “referral” includes a
request by a physician for an item or service for which payment may be made under Medicare or Medicaid,
arequest for a consultation with another physician, the performance or ordering of any test or procedure by
that consulting physician, the request or establishment of a plan of care by a physician that includes a DHS,
and the certifying or recertifying of the need for any DHS for which payment may be made under Medicare
or Medicaid. A “financial relationship” under Stark includes any direct or indirect “ownership or investment
interest” in an entity or direct or indirect “compensation arrangement” with an entity. At this time, Spa will
not accept any patients paid by Medicare, Medicaid, TRICARE or other federally funded government
programs. Accordingly, Stark would not be implicated with respect to any physician (or immediate family
member) becoming an owner of a Spa. States often incorporate Stark framework into their own rules which
are payor indifferent (as discussed below). Accordingly, it is important to review and be familiar with the
Stark’s impact on your Spa Location Franchise.

Federal Anti-Kickback Statute

The Federal Anti-Kickback Statute regulations (42 U.S.C. §1320a-7b) as written apply only those medical
practices that provide care to patients that are federal program patients under Medicare, Medicaid, and
TRICARE. Although the Federal Anti-Kickback Statute is not directly applicable, on its own, to your Spa
Location Franchise, i.e., since, under no circumstance, may the Spa or any Spa operated in connection with
your Spa Location Franchise, provides services or products that are reimbursed by or paid for by a third
party payer such as a health insurance company or the United States government, states often incorporate
the federal Anti-Kickback framework into their own rules which are payor indifferent (as discussed below),
i.e. they may apply to your Spa Location Franchise and the Spa operated in connection with your Spa
Location Franchise even though the services and products offered and provided by your Spa and/or Spa
Location Franchise are not reimbursed or paid for by a third party payer. Accordingly, it is important to
review and be familiar with the Federal Anti-Kickback Statute’s impact on your Spa Location Franchise
and the rules within your state.
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The Federal Anti-Kickback Statute prohibits any person from knowingly and willfully soliciting, receiving,
offering or paying any remuneration (including any kickback, bribe, or rebate) directly or indirectly, overtly
or covertly, in cash or in kind, to any person, in return for or to induce such person to do either of the
following: (1) refer an individual to a person for the furnishing or arranging for the furnishing of an item or
service for which payment may be made in whole or in part under Medicare, Medicaid, TRICARE or other
federal health care programs (as defined by 42 U.S.C. §1320a-7b(f)); or (2) purchase, lease, order or arrange
for or recommend the purchasing, leasing or ordering of any good, facility, service or item for which
payment may be made in whole or in part under any Medicare, Medicaid, TRICARE or other Federal health
care programs (as defined by 42 U.S.C. §1320a-7b(f)). The Federal Anti-Kickback Statute has been broadly
interpreted to cover any arrangement where one purpose of the remuneration was to obtain money for the
referral of services or to induce further referrals. Furthermore, remuneration is more than just payment of
funds and has been interpreted to include anything of value.

The Office of Inspector General (“OIG”) enacted “safe harbors” to protect those transactions it deemed not
likely to result in abuse of the Medicare program. Transactions that satisfy every element of a particular
safe harbor are not considered violations and would not be grounds for prosecution. However, failure of a
financial arrangement to meet every element of a safe harbor does not make the financial arrangement
illegal, per se, but instead heightens the potential that the arrangement may be scrutinized by the OIG.
Accordingly, when an arrangement does not fit squarely within a safe harbor, the arrangement should be
structured to meet as many of the elements of the safe harbor as possible and the parties to the arrangement
should incorporate safeguards, where possible, to limit the likelihood of the arrangement improperly
influencing referrals. One of the most important safeguards is to ensure the compensation paid to all
providers at the Spa Location Franchise (regardless of whether it is an actual spa or the management
company operating Spas) under the arrangement is consistent with fair market value. As an example, you
cannot compensate a provider extra based on provision of patients to the Spa Location Franchise.

Another important aspect of compliance with the Federal Anti-Kickback Statute is that all arrangements
and policies implemented must be compliant in both form and substance. In other words, the sample
Management Agreement that will be provided to the Spa Management Business managing independently
owned Spas will be written in a way that strives to be compliant with as many aspects of certain safe harbors
as possible. However, if the actual day-to-day operations of the Spa Location Franchise do not follow the
procedures outlined in the Management Agreement, there will not be protection from scrutiny.

Federal Travel Act

Federal prosecutors have recently used the Travel Act to transform violations of state bribery laws into
violations of federal law. The Travel Act generally provides that it is a federal felony to engage in interstate
commerce with the intent to promote or carry on any unlawful activity — which includes violation of a state
bribery law. State bribery statutes include not only those prohibiting commercial bribery, but also those
addressing illegal remuneration regarding improper payments in connection with referral for services. No
assurances can be given that federal prosecutors would not use the Travel Act in connection with the model.

State Anti-Kickback

As mentioned above, states often develop their own anti-kickback provisions that are payor indifferent and
therefore not restricted to only services provided to federal program patients. Additionally, states
incorporate the same safe harbors and protections as the Federal Anti-Kickback Statute, so arrangements
protected under the federal level will also be protected at the state level. It is important to have a healthcare
attorney evaluate the state’s anti-kickback regulations applicable to your Spa Location Franchise.

State Laws and Regulations:
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Disclosure Law

Many states require that physicians make a proper disclosure to their patients regarding their affiliation
with a person or entity if they will receive, directly or indirectly, remuneration for securing or soliciting
the patient. These regulations are typically payor indifferent. It is important to have a healthcare
attorney evaluate the state disclosure regulations applicable to the state your Spa Location Franchise
will be operating.

Commercial Bribery Statute
Many states have a payor indifferent commercial bribery statute. Typically, a person commits an

offense if he or she intentionally or knowingly solicits, accepts, or agrees to accept any benefit from
another person on agreement or understanding that the benefit will influence the conduct of the
fiduciary in relation to the affairs of his beneficiary.” A “fiduciary” may include a physician, nurse
practitioner, physician assistant, or other medical provider. It is important to have a healthcare attorney
evaluate the state’s commercial bribery statute applicable to the state your Spa Location Franchise will
be operating.

CPOM Doctrine

State laws and regulations will vary greatly from state to state so it is critical that each Spa Location
Franchise evaluate the specific laws and regulations applicable to the geographic area it is operating in.
In conducting this evaluation, there are three foundation areas that should be focused on and
understood: (1) ownership, (2) diagnosis and treatment, and (3) delegation and supervision. These
regulations apply both to Spa Location Franchise being operated as a Spa and a Spa Management
Business.

(1) Ownership — Many states have a single law or collection of laws providing restrictions on
ownership and control of medical practices by lay persons or corporations commonly referred to as
the corporate practice of medicine doctrine (“CPOM?”). The idea behind CPOM is to prevent financial
and business interests from interfering with independent medical judgement. A state’s CPOM
doctrine can include a wide range of restrictions such as prohibiting a lay person or corporation from
employing a physician to practice medicine and collecting the professional fees, restricting the
ownership percentage of a practice that can be owned by a physician or non-physician provider such
as a nurse practitioner, or lay person, and restricting who can serve in management positions of a
practice. These ownership and control restrictions within the state your Spa Location Franchise is
located can serve as a determining factor in choosing to own and operate a Spa or Spa Management
Business. Additionally, the CPOM restrictions can affect the way flow of funds need to occur within
your franchise structure, especially if operating as a Spa Management Business, as funds need to
follow a specific route from professionals to lay persons. These flow of funds concerns can be
addressed in the Management Agreement, as applicable. Whether your Spa Location Franchise is
operated as a Spa or as a Spa Management Business, under no circumstance shall a lay person
(including you as an owner if unlicensed) administer, control, influence, or direct the supervision,
administration, delivery or performance of medical or other services requiring an Authorized Care
Provider.

(2) Diagnosis and Treatment — A variety of Authorized Care Providers can be employed by the Spa
Location Franchise, or the Spa practice entity being managed, such as physicians, nurse practitioners,
physician assistants, registered nurses, and/or estheticians. However, state regulations and oversight
boards determine how much power and ability each license grants the holder regarding certain
procedures. It is critical that state law be determined for which Authorized Care Provider can conduct
a primary patient evaluation and diagnosis, develop the treatment plan, as well as who can perform
the procedure. Generally, only a physician, nurse practitioner (subject to proper supervision), or
physician assistant (subject to proper supervision) may conduct the initial evaluation and diagnosis.
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Varying power and practice scopes are granted to non-physician providers, like nurse practitioners,
depending on the state the licensed is issued and services performed. State laws, medical boards,
nursing boards, board of cosmetology and other regulatory agencies will need to be analyzed to
determine what procedures and policies need to be implemented through the creation of standard
operating procedures for the Spa Location Franchise. The concept of form and substance will be vital
to compliance as the operations of the Spa Location Franchise need to follow and adhere to the
standard operating procedures as written.

(3) Delegation and Supervision — Following the primary consultation of a patient, analysis will need
to be conducted regarding which Authorized Care Providers and can be delegated procedures and
administer the treatment plan. States will vary on regulations such as medical director qualifications,
NP and PA ability to practice independently, nurse and esthetician supervision and medical records
review. Further distinctions will need to be made between medical and non-medical treatments.
Based on the applicable delegation needed and requirements of the jurisdiction, delegation and
supervision agreements may need to be prepared and entered into between the physician and non-
physician providers, or other supervisor roles as outlined by the state. These agreements often are
required in instances where prescriptive authority is being delegated by one party to another, which
can be integral to the operation of the Spa.

Health Insurance Portability and Acco ty )
HIPAA laws, rules and regulations impose strict requirements as to safeguarding and maintaining the
privacy of personal information and data collected and stored in medical records. You must assume that the
operations of a Spa, and the offer, sale, and performance of the Approved Spa Products and Services are
subject to HIPAA’s stringent privacy requirements. Although we provide a sample HIPAA business
associate agreement (the “HIPAA Associate Agreement”) you must consult with your own attorney to
ensure that this agreement complies with HIPAA and other applicable laws, rules and regulations. You
must consult with your own lawyer to determine the activities of your Spa Location Franchise may or may
not engage in and the safeguards and measures that your Spa Location Franchise and the underlying Spa
must engage in to comply with HIPAA requirements.

Advertising and Promotion

There are extensive federal, state and local laws, rules and regulations that regulate the type of marketing
that you may or may not make as to the products and services offered by a Spa, the results that a Spa
customer may or may not achieve, and whether or not the Approved Spa Products and Services are
authorized, cleared and/or approved by any government agency or authority, and the Authorized Care
Provider(s) that may or may not be administering, supervising and/or performing the Approved Spa
Products and Services. You must consult with your own lawyer to ensure that the marketing and promotion
of your Spa Location Franchise, its services, and the underlying Spa complies with all applicable laws, rules
and regulations.

General Business Laws

You will also be subject to federal and state laws and regulations that apply to businesses generally,
including rules and regulations involving employment practices, wage and hour laws, immigration and
employment laws. You must review federal minimum wage and overtime laws, as well as similar laws
within your state to ensure compliance with labor and wage laws currently in existence and those that may
later be adopted. You should consult with your attorney concerning these and other local laws, rules and
regulations that may affect the operation of your Spa Location Franchise.

Summary
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You will be subject to federal and state specific franchise laws, rules, and regulations related to the offer
and sale of franchises, the issuance and disclosure of a franchise disclosure document, state specific
franchise and business opportunity registration requirements, and franchise seller disclosures and
registration requirements. In certain states, as an area representative, you may be required to register as a
franchise broker. You must carefully review the franchise regulations and laws that will govern your
operation of the Area Representative Business and the offer of sale of franchises within your Area
Representative Territory.

ITEM 2

2 BUSINESS EXPERIENCE

Ryan Rose, Chief Executive Officer

Since July 2020 and continuing to date, Ryan Rose as served as our Chief Executive Officer. Since October
2016 and continuing to date, Ryan Rose has served as President and Chief Executive Officer of Romeo’s
Pizza Franchise LLC, a Medina, Ohio based pizza restaurant franchise system.

Ryan Rao, Chief Development Officer

Since 2018 and continuing to date, Ryan Rao has served as our Chief Development Officer. Since June
2020 and continuing to date, Ryan Rao has served as the Chief Franchising Officer of Romeo’s Pizza
Franchise LLC, a Medina, Ohio based pizza restaurant franchise system. Sinee August 2017-and-continuing

5 © S P S

Christina McCrossin, Chief Operating Officer

Since September 2023 and continuing to date, Christina McCrossin has served as our Chief Operating
Officer. From May 2023 to September 2023, Christina McCrossin served as our Chief Administrative
Officer. From February 2019 to March 2023, Christina McCrossin served as Chief Operating Officer of
Retina Associates of Cleveland located in Beachwood, Ohio.

Randi McCale, Chief of Staff
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Since April 2022 and continuing to date, Randi McCale has served as our Chief of Staff. From September
2020 to April 2022, Randi McCale served as our Director of Spa and Clinical Operations. From July 2011
to August 2020, Randi McCale served as Director of Operations for Ferrell-Whited Physical Therapy
Services LLC, -located in Medina, Ohio.

Jessica Desosa, Franchise Business Consultant

Since February 2023 and continuing to date, Jessica De Sosa has served as our Franchise Business
Consultant. Jessica served as a Medical Esthetician and Sales Consultant with Ideal Image from 2019 to
2020 and was promoted to National Client Support Specialist in 2020 then National Client Service Manager
in 2022.

Anna Perrin, Director of Marketing

Since September 2022 and continuing to date, Anna Perrin has served as our Director of Marketing. From

June 2021 to August 2022, Anna Perrin served as Director of Client Experience for Katalyst Group Inc.

located in North Kansas Clty, Missouri. Ffem—Deeembe%—Z—te—DeeembeﬁQ%@%mm—Peﬁm—sewed—m
o Rag ugustfrom 2018 to December 2020, at TITLE

Nicole Acosta, Fechnoelogy-SpeeiatistDirector of Strategic Integration
Since December 2019 and contlnulng to date, Nicole Acosta has served as aour Busmess Analyst and

Talia Valline, Director VP of Fraining-andEdueationCorporate Stores

Since October 2022 and continuing to date, Talia Valline has served as our Director of Training and
Education—fer-eurSystest.. From July 2022 to October 2022, Talia Valline served as aour Corporate
Trainer/Franchise Business Consultant-fer-eusSystem. From July 2021 to July 2022, Talia Valline served
as a Spa Manager of our affiliate owned V/O Med Spa located in Strongsville, Ohio. From October 2018

to May 2020, Taha Valhne served asa Reglonal Manager for PsychBC a—na&eﬂal—neﬂveﬂeef—eu{vpaﬂem

Kimberly Maze, Director of Project Development

Since June 2022 and continuing to date, Kimberly Maze has served as Project Manager of the V/O Med
Spa location in Medina, Ohio. From April 2013 to October 2021, Kimberly Maze served as Franchise
Business Consultant and Brand Manager at Regis Corporation located in Minneapolis, Minnesota.

AreaRepresentatives
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ITEM 3
3 LITIGATION

No litigation is required to be disclosed in this Item.

ITEM 4
4 BANKRUPTCY

No bankruptcy infermation-is required to be disclosed in this Item.———

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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ITEM 5
5 INITIAL FEES

When you sign an Area Representative Agreement you mustwill pay to us a non-refundable area
representative fee (the “Area Representative Fee”) in an amount ranging from $50,000 to $1,000,000. The
Area Representative Fee is fully earned by us upon payment.

The amount of the Area Representative Fee is determinedcalculated based on our determination as—te-the
size—of your Area Representative Territory and the number of Spa—teeationUnit Franchises that we
de51gnate for potential development within your Area Representative Terrltory The Area Representatlve
Fee is $10,000 for each Spa—teeationUnit Franchise that we

designate for potential development within your Area Representative Territory- and for each Unit Franchise
that has been developed and, as of the date of your Area Representative Agreement is open and in operation
within the Area Representative Territory. The minimum number of SpateeationUnit Franchises that we
may designate for potential development under an Area Representatlve Agreement 1s ﬁve and the
maximum number i y o v W y

m%em—leﬁthis@iseleﬁﬁ%Dee&meﬂ%of Umt Franchlses that we may de51gnate for potennal development

under an Area Representative Agreement is 100.

The Area Representative Fee that-you-must-pay-te-us-is in addition to the initial fees that you will ineurpay
to us at the time of signing the Franchise Agreement for your first Spa-lecationUnit Franchise;alse-referred
te-as-a-PHot Leeation; to be developed and operated by you in your Area Representative Territory. If at the

time of signing your Area Representative Agreement you pay the Area Representative Fee in full and. you
agree to the development of not less than 15 Unit Franchises within your Area Representative Territory, we
will waive the initial franchise fee for the first Unit Franchise to be developed, owned, and operated by you
within the Area Representative Territory. We do not offer Spa—LeeationUnit Franchises under this
Disclosure Document. Spa—teeationUnit Franchises are offered under our SpateecationFranchise EFDD-
TheTFerms-of-the-Unit Franchise Disclosure Document. The terms of the Unit Franchise Agreement for
your Spa—teeationUnit Franchise and other disclosures as to your individual-unit-Spa—leeationUnit
Franchise isare separately disclosed in our SpateeationUnit Franchise EBBDisclosure Document and not
this Disclosure Document.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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ITEM 6

6 OTHER FEES
Type of Fee Amount Due Date Remarks
(Nete )
Local Marketing Minimum $1,000 per | Menthly;as Novmustspend-nolessthanS=000-pee
Expenditures month-minimum neurred by vou month-on-the locabmarketing ofFvour-Arca
and-fiegotiatec Represen att > B ksm.iss.im . PrOmOHon e
. f S S
Monthly and-is-subjectto-our-approval.
Must be spent each month on pre-approved
marketing within your area representative
territory.

. ’ e
S

AdditionalSupplemen
tal Training:

Our then current

When invoiced

training fee

and prior to

Applies to additional training for new
managers, replacement managers, and

(Management) currently¥easies: training supplemental training programs-There-is-a
Currently; $800 per two-day-minimum-for-assistanee that we may
trainer;person per day | Osn-demand designate.
plus expenses

Additional Our then current On-demandWhen | Applies to additional training for rew

Supplemental training fee, invoiced and prior | managers;replacement-managersSpa field

Training: currentlyVasies: to training consultants and supplemental training

(Field Consultant) Currently; $800 per programs—TFhere-is-a-two-day-minimum-for
trainer;person per day assistanee- that we may designate.
plus expenses

Insurance Amount of premiums | On-demandPrior B e

Interest-Charges 18%perannumfrem | to opening charges. interest and payments duc to-us [rom
due-date FOus

You must purchase and maintain insurance
coverage that we designate

Review-and-Audit Actual costs On demandreceipt | You must pay to us the costs that we incur in

of invoice reviewing and auditing your records if the
review and/or audit performed by us results
in a finding that you failed to comply with the
terms of your Area Representative
Agreement.

CollectionCosts-and | Actual fees, costs, and | On demand Ineludesfees-For costs and expenses incurred

AttorreyFees expenses by us—melad—l-ng—kegal—dem&nds in collecting

fees due to us, and-h

Collections breaeh/or to enforce the terms of the Area
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Type of Fee Amount Due Date Remarks
Note+)
Representative Agreements-ineluding-attorney
Coes . e, .
Interest Charges 18% per annum from | On demand Applies to paymentpast due payments of all
NSE Check FEee-of due date fees, charges, interest and payments due from
Fared-eetronie Sto-ofamountor-S50: you to us.
e
st L
Non-Compliance EeesAmount of fees, Within14-daysef | You must pay and reimburse us for all costs,
costs; and expenses ourinveiceAs fees; and expenses that we incur as-a
that we incur in invoiced restltarising out of, or in-eennection
e e s withrelated to, your breach of the Area
non-performance of Representative Agreement. IneludesIncluding
oblisations-under-the legal, mediation, and arbitration fees,
B e expenses, and costs that we incur.
Ao t
Transfer $25,000 On demandPrier Due-upen-approval;Payable if we approve
e theyour transfer-
transfer request.
Renewal $25,000 On demand Due-upen-renewal;Payable if we approve
renewal-
of your Area Representative Agreement.
You will be required to sign our then current
Area Representative Agreement.
17
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Explanatory Note to Item 6

The above table describes fees and payments that you must pay to us or our affiliates, or which we or our

affiliates may impose or collect on behalf of a third party. All fees are uniformly imposed for all franchises

offered under this Disclosure Document, are recurring, are not refundable, and are payable to us, unless

otherwise specified.

ITEM 7
7 ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT

YOUR ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT

Type of Expenditure Amount Method of ‘When Due To Whom Payment is
Payment Made
Area Representative Fee $50,000 — $1,000,000 | Lump sum WhenSigning of Us
(Note 1) Area
Representative
Agreement-is
e
$2.500—$5.000 e As-ineurred Landlerd
(Note2)
Leasehold Improvements $2,000—$30 - $25,000 | Varieskwsap | Prior to openingAs | Contractors,
(Note 32) sum incurred suppliers, and/or
Landlord
Furniture, Fixtures and $2,600—84500 - Lump As incurred Suppliers
Equipment $5,000 sumAs
-(Note 43) billed
Lease Deposits N4 $0 - $5.000 Lump sum | Varies Landlord
Computer, Software and $250 - $2,600— As As incurred Suppliers;us-or-our
Point of Sales System ™) | $4.000500 arrangedbill affiliate
ed
Note6)
Insurance Deposits $750—$2.50081.000 - | As VariesAs-ineurred | Insurers
(Note 76) $3.000 arrangedbill
ed
Travel for Initial Training - ;500$5,000 | As As-ineurredBefore | Airlines, hotels,
(Note 87) - $15.000 arrangedincu | opening restaurants
rred
Professional Fees $4,500—5.000 - As As-ineurredBefore | Attorneys; and
(Note 98) $15,000 arrangedbill | opening accountants;-advisers
ed
Business Licenses and $500 - $1,000 As As-ineurredBefore | Government
Permits arrangedincu | opening
(Note 109) @
18
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Type of Expenditure Amount Method of When Due To Whom Payment is
Payment Made
Office Supplies $1.000 - $2,.500—$750 | As As-ineurredBefore | Third party
NoteHh) arrangedbill | opening
ed
Additional Funds — Three $15,000 — $25,000 As As-ineurredBefore | Us;
Months arrangedincu | opening employeesEmployees,
-(Note $2)10) rred suppliers, landlord,
utility suppliers

TOTAL ESTIMATI: $89878,250 — $1,675.250——

Total Estimate Mote 31D €099.000 - Area Representative Agreement Oaky) only

TOTAL ESTIMATE $1,031,003—008.202 - $2,404:482

Total Estimate Note 412 (344,612 Area Representative Agreement Plusplus One Spa-LecationUnit Franchise)

Explanatory Notes to Item 7

< : 141 %)

Note 1: Area Representative Fee — The Area Representative Fee is calculated based on the number of Spa
LoeationUnit Franchises authorized and—designated—for potential development under your Area
Representative Agreement. The minimum number of SpateeationUnit Franchises that we may designate
for potential development under an Area Representatlve Agreement is ﬁve and the maximum number is
100 y h § e

i iewilh y i initial Rent: The Area Representatlve
Fee is $10 000 per SpaJ:eeaﬁeﬂUnlt Franchrse authorlzed by us for potentral establishmentdevelopment
within the Area Representative Territory. The Area Representative Fee is fully deseribed-inttemS-ef this
Diselosure Document-earned by us upon payment from you and is not refundable. There-are-no-refunds
uﬂderWe do not ﬁnance any e%heﬁeﬁemﬂs&anees—mehﬂdmg—rﬁyeu—breaekﬁ&h%&ea%ep{esemﬁwe

portion of your initial fees.

Neote-3:+Leasehold Improvements — This estimate is for the cost to configure and build-out ef-an office for

the eperationadministrative operations of the Franchisedyour Area Representative Business. We have based
our estimates on the assumption that the typical square footage for an office faeility-will range from 300
to 500 square feet, and that the office facility will already be in a suitable condition for your effice-facility

and-will require-only-minor-leasehold-improvementsArea Representative Business. Subject to our approval
19
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and depending on the office space that may be available within a Unit Franchise owned and operated by you.
we may authorize you to operate your Area Representative Business from an office located on-site at your

V/O Med Spa.

Note 4: Lease Deposits — Three Months — You must operate your Area Representative Business from an

administrative office that we approve comprising approximately 300 to 500 square feet of administrative
office space. Subject to our approval and suitable office facilities, your administrative office may be located

within a V/O Med Spa that you own, control, and that is located within your Area Representative Territory.

This estimate is for your initial lease deposit and estimated three months of lease payments. This estimate
does not include the purchase of real property.

Note 5: Computer, Software and Point of Sales System — You will be required to purchase a netebeek

computer for the eperationsoperation of the Franchised Business. You may be required to use certain software
or-CRM-system-as part of the Franchised Business. Additional information about the POS—and-computer
systems-aresystem is disclosed in Item 11 of this Disclosure Document.

Nete7-Insurance Deposits — You are required to maintain certain insurance
the-Franchised Businesscoverage. Your actual payments for insurance and the timing of those payments
w111 be determmed based on your agreement w1th your insurance company and agent %ee%ke#yeﬁf

eevenag%may—b&s&gmﬁeam%y—mef%er—less—fh%eu%esﬂmat%Thls estlmate is for the cost of an 1n1t1al

deposit in order to obtain the minimum required insurance and we estimate this deposit to be equal to the

amount of three months of monthly insurance premium payments.

Note 87: Travel and-Lodging—Prior-tofor Initial Training — You must complete our pre-opening training
program before opening and commencing the operations of the Franchised Business-you-must-complete.
We do not charge a fee for our pre-opening mmal trammg—pfeglaam This estlmate is for %heestlmated travel—
feed— and lodging expenses y v

Note 98: Professional Fees — Fhese-estimates-areThis estimate is for costs associated with the engagement
of professionals such as attorneys—and, accountants with—thestart-up—of—the Franchised Business—We
recommend-that-you-seek-the-assistance-of professional-and other advisors when-evaluating-this-franchise
eppeﬁuﬂﬁy—&us—&seleswe—l;eeumeﬁt—%d—t-he— 0 review your Area Representatlve Agreement—l-t—}s—alse

obli gatlons and respon51b111t1es

Note 4+09: Business Licenses and Permits — You must apply for, obtain; and maintain all required permits
and licenses necessary to operate the EranehisedArea Representative Business. The licenses will vary
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w1th1n Wthh you onerate and the 1ocat10n of your Area Representative Bus1ness Denendmg on the location

of your Area Representative Business you may be required to register as a franchise seller with a state

franchise regulator.

Nete+2Note 10: Additional Funds — This is an estimate of the minimum recommended levels of additional
funds that may be requiredneeded to cover operating expenses such as employee salaries, inventory;rent,
and utilities enty—for the initial three month period following the opening of theFranehisedyour Area
Representative Business. This estimate does not 1nc1ude compensatlon to you or your owners and does not
include 1nterest ﬁnance charges or pays v v 3

obhgatrons Th1s estlmate 1ncludes oan our minimum marketlng requirement of $1 000 per month and
subject to your discretion, franchise leads, and your personal network of prospective franchise buyers, you
may incur significant franchise recruitment and marketing expenses that far exceed our minimum monthly
requirement.

Note 1411: Total: - Area Representative Agreement Only — This is an estimate of the initial start-up
expenses for an Area Representatrve Bumnessenly—and—doeﬁ&eeme}ud&e&%eests—aﬂd-e*peﬂses—tha%yeu

Fraﬂehrs&AgreemeﬂF We have based these estrmates on our experiences asa%raﬂelﬂnseeompaw n selhng
Unit Franchises. These are only estimates de—net—mel—ude—mtefest—and ﬁnaﬂemg—ehafges—t—h&t—yeﬁyour costs

and, the range of those costs, may ineu

Note 4512: Total: - Area Representative Agreement Plus One tonUnit Franchise — As an area
representative—and, subject to the terms of your—Area—Representativeour Unit Franchise Agreement
separately disclosed to you through our Unit Franchise Disclosure Document, you will be required to
develop and operate one Spa-LecationUnit Franchise (your“DevelopmentSpa-Loeation Eranchise™)-within
your Area Representatlve Temtow—and—subjeeHe—me%efm&eﬁa—Fﬁmemseﬁ%gﬁemeﬂFm&H&dﬁelesed

Agreementefor—yoﬁﬁDeV%lopmenPSpa%oea&oﬂ%raﬂeh&se You must sign your Unrt Franchrse Agreemen
at the same time that you sign theyour Area Representative Agreement, and you must open your
Unit Franchise within 12 months of the effective date of your Franchise

Development Spa-LocationUnit
Agreement and this—Area—Representative—Agreementthe Area Representative Agreement. The Item 7
estimated initial investment for a Unit Franchise under the Unit Franchise Disclosure Document is $941,753

to $1.329.232. which includes an initial franchise fee in the amount of $50,000. The estimated initial

expenses for developmg and operating your Development-Spa—toecationFranchiseareUnit Franchise is
separately disclosed in the Unit Franchise Disclosure Document, separately disclosed inttem—7-of-the

mdmdua%umt—Sp&Loeaﬁon&#aﬂelﬂs&FDB%h&ekﬁsseparatefrom this Drsclosure Document T—h%ﬁem—?
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ITEM 8

8 RESTRICTIONS ON SOURCES OF PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

To ensure that our standards and specifications of quality, service, and System development are maintained,
you must operate the—Franchisedyour Area Representative Business in strict conformity with the Area
Representative Agreement and the methods, standards, specifications, and sources of supply that we

designate and prescribe in euwr—manuals:the Manuals and that we approve for the promotion of Unit
Franchises.

Source Restrlcted Purchases and Leases — Generallv

de81gnate a suppller—éwh-}eh—ma-yume}uéeus, mcludmg oursclvc S or our afﬁhates} as the excluswe supplier
for the FranchisedSystem and your Area Representative Business. Our specifications and list of approved

and designated produets;-supplies-and-suppliers is contained in our manualsManuals. We will notify you of
any changes to our specifications or list of approved or designated suppliers. We may notify you of these
changes in various ways, including written or electronic correspondence, amendments and updates to our
mantals;-verbalManuals, and other forms of communication. We formulate and modify our standards and
specifications-for-preduets-and-services based on our industry experience and our management decisions
as to the overall operation and expansion of the System:V/O Med Spa System and the support of Unit
Franchisees. If we have previously approved a supplier, and their standards fall below our designated
standards, we will revoke our approval. We will notify you in writing of us revoking our approval.

Suppliers and Supplier Criteria
We may designate ourselves and our affiliates as exclusive suppliers of source restricted goods and

services-, marketing materials, presentations, and other media used to promote Unit Franchises and the Area

Representative Business. We may designate ourselves or a third party as the sole and exclusive supplier
irrespective of the existence of competing suppliers. If-there-is-ne-designated-, in the Manuals, we do not
designate a supplier for a particular item, you will purchase all such products, supplies and services from
suppliers who meet our specifications and standards. Currently, we are;_not and our affiliates are not
approved suppliers of the source restricted goods and services identified below. Our-officers-identified-in
Hem2Currently no officer of tht&DtselesuF%DeeumenPar&als%fﬁeersaﬂﬁLewersours owns an mterest
in any of our a 2
*dentrﬁed—belewdesrgnated supplrer

If you want to purchase or lease a source restricted item from a supplier that has not been previously
approved or designated by us in writing, you must send us a written request for approval and submit
additional information that we may request. We may charge you a fee equal to the costs and expenses that
we incur in revrewmg and/er evaluatlng an alternate suppher product and/or serv1ce requested by you We

MWe w1ll notlfy you of our approval or dlsapproval w1th1n a reasonable time {not to
exeeedexceeding 60 days) after we receive your written request for-approval-and all additional information
and-samples-that we may request. We may, in our sole discretion, withhold our approval. We do not make
our procedures or criteria for approving suppliers available to our SystemArea Representative franchisees;
except that when evaluating the approval of a particular supplier, among other things, we consider: whether
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the supplier can demonstrate to our reasenable-satisfaction the ability to meet our standards, specifications
and production requirements;-the-suppliers-quality-eontrol, whether or not we are the exclusive supplier of
the particular item, whether or not our affiliate or affiliates are the exclusive supplier of the particular item,
and whether or not the suppliers approval, in our sole determination, will allow us to advance the overall
interests of the System and our company.

We estimate that your purchase of goods and services from suppliers according to our specifications,
including your purchase of goods or services from our designated exclusive suppliers, to represent
approximately 5090% of your total purchases and leases in establishing the Franchised Business and
approximately 8690% of the on-going operating expenses of theFranchisedyour Area Representative
Business. Currently-neitherus-nor-ouraffiliates-are-approved-suppliers-of theWe require that you purchase

or lease the followmg source restrlcted goods and sew1ces4éenﬂﬁed—belew—@uﬂeFM§LH&efﬁeeFeﬁekH’S

3—Point-of Saleand-Computer Equipment—Currently-you-are required to purchase a new netebook

computer. Although;—eurrently; we presently have not designated any peint-ef-sale-business system or
customer management relationship system _for your Area Representative Business, we reserve the right
to do so in the future.

42. Branded Items and Marketing MaterialsMedia — All materials and media bearing the Licensed Marks
¢including;-but-net-timited-to; stationary, business cards, brochures, digital media, apparel, signs and
displays) must meet our standards and specifications and must be purchased from either us direethy-or our
designated suppliers. All of your marketing materials, mediums, and digital media must comply with our
standards and specifications and must be approved by us before you use them. You may only market the
sale of Unit Franchises through approved digital media, and social media platforms provided that you do
so in accordance with our marketing, digital media and social media policies.

3. Branded Items and Marketing Materials — All materials bearing the Licensed Marks including
stationary, business cards, brochures, apparel, signs and displays must meet our standards and
specifications and must be purchased from either us or our designated suppliers. All of your marketing
materials, mediums, and digital media must comply with our standards and specifications and must be
approved by us before you use them. You may only market the sale of Spa—teecationUnit Franchises
within your Area Representative Territory through approved digital media and social media platforms
provided that you do so in accordance with our marketing, digital media and social media policies. You
must purchase all branded marketing materials from either us or our designated exclusive supplier. We
may require that you exclusively use, at your cost, our designated supplier for social and digital media
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marketing services and exclusively use, at your cost, our social media platforms, vendors and marketing
channels.

5. Insurance — You must obtain the insurance coverage that we require from time to time as presently
disclosed in the Manuals and as we may modify. All insurance policies required under your Area
RepresentativeFranchise Agreement and as set forth in the AreaRepresentativeFranchise Agreement
must be written by a responsible carrier, reasonably acceptable to us and all insurance (excluding workers’
compensation) must name us, our officers, directors, shareholders, partners, agents, representatives and
independent contractors as additional insureds. The insurance policies must include a provision that the
insurance carrier must provide us with no less than 30 days’ prior written aetiee-in the event of a material
alteration to, or cancellation of, any insurance policy. A certificate of insurance must be furnished by you
to use at the earlier of 90 days afterof the Effective Date of the FranehiseArea Representative Agreement
or prior to the commencement of our initial training program. Insurance coverage must be at least as

comprehensive as the minimum requirements set forth in the chart below and in the Manuals.

¢b(a) Comprehensive general liability insurance, written on an occurrence basis, extended to
include contractual liability, products hability—and completed operations, and personal and
advertising injury, with a combined bodily injury and property damage limit of at least $1,000,000
per occurrence-and-$3, $2,000,000 in the-aggregate;

(eb) Statutory workers’ compensation insurance and employers’ liability insurance as required by

the law of the state in which yeur-SpaLeecationFEranchisethe Franchised Business is located,
including statutory workers’ compensation limits and employers’ liability limits of at least

$1,000,000;

—d (c) Commercial umbrella liability insurance with a total liability limit of at least $1,000,000;

{(d) Employment practices liability insurance with a limit of at least $2,000,000, including actions
of a third party and a minimum limit of $100,000 for wage and hour disputes; and

(e) All other insurance that we require in the Manual or that is required by law or by-the lease or

sublease for your SpaLeecationFranchiseFranchised Business.

Purchase Agreements and Cooperatives
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We may, in our discretion, negotiate purchase agreements, including price terms, with designated suppliers
for source restricted goods and services on behalf of the System. We may establish preferred vendor
programs with suppliers on behalf of some or all ef-the-SpatecationArea Representative Businesses and
Unit Franchises under the System and, in doing so, we may limit the number of approved vendors and/or
suppliers that you may purchase from and we may designate one vendor as your sole supplier. You will not
receive any material benefits for using our designated or approved suppliers.

Our Right to Receive Compensation and Our Revenue from Source Restricted Purchases

We and/or our affiliates may receive rebates, payments and other material benefits from suppliers based on
franchisee purchases and we reserve the right to institute and expand rebate programs in the future. As of
the Issuance Date of this Disclosure Document we have not yet received revenue from suppliers of
franchisee purchases of source restricted products or services but will in the future. We have entered a
purchase agreement with WBC Group, LLC an exclusive supplier of certain spa supplies, equipment,
private label, and third party branded Spa related retail products that must be offered from your Spa. Based
on this agreement we-expeet-to receive rebate payments ranging from 2% to 6% of our franchisee purchases
from this exclusive supplier. We have entered into an agreement with Allergan Aesthetic, an exclusive
supplier of certain branded Spa related injectable products and equipment that must be offered from your
Spa. Based on this agreement, we expeette-receive rebate payments ranging from 2% to 8% of our
franchisee purchases from this exclusive supplier. We have entered into an agreement with Galderma, an
exclusive supplier of certain branded Spa related injectable products that must be offered from your Spa.
Based on this agreement, we expeet-to-receive rebate payments ranging from 2% to 10% of our franchisee
purchases from this exclusive supplier. ~-We may choose to enter into an agreement with a skincare supplier
of certain VIO branded retail skincare products that must be offered from your Spa. We anticipate an
agreement where we expect to receive rebate payments ranging from 4% to 8% of our franchisee purchases
from this exclusive supplier. We have entered into an agreement with Lumenis, an exclusive supplier of
certain branded Spa related supplies and equipment that must be offered from your Spa. -Based on thisour
agreement with Lumenis agreement, we expect to receive rebate payments in the amount of $1,000 per unit

for our franchisee purchases from this excluswe suppher l—rkeur—ﬁse&l—year—eﬂd—mg—Deeembel%%We
do2022-we-did not reeeive;-an

fesmeted—pafeh%es—Hewc—ver—w&é&prowde our franchlsees w1th any materlal beneﬁts based on a

franchisee’s purchase of particular products or services or use of particular suppliers.

During the fiscal year ending December 31, 2023, we earned $593,359 in rebates from franchisee purchases.
This represents 14% of our total revenue of $4.169.566.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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9

ITEM 9

FRANCHISEE’S OBLIGATIONS

This table lists your principal obligations under the franchiseArea Representative Agreement and
other agreements. It will help you find more detailed information about your obligations in these
agreements and in other items of this Disclosure Document.

Obligation Section(s) in Agreement Disclosure
Document Item
a. Site selection and acquisition/lease e 7,8, 11,12
b. Pre-opening purchases and leases 23,3 6,7,8,. 11
c. Site development and other pre- Notapphieable2.3, 3. 6.9 6,7,8, 11
—opening
requirements
d. Initial and ongoing training 16 7,11
e. Opening +2.3,3.1,3.2,3.3,34,3.13,6.1,9 |11
f. Fees +4.2,5,62,6.3.103,11.1-,12.3 5,6,7-,8, 11
13.1
g. Compliance with standards and 1-2.5,3.4.5,65,8,9 8, 11
—policies /
__manual
h. Trademarks and proprietary +7,8 13, 14
—information
26
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Obligation

Section(s) in Agreement

Disclosure
Document Item

i. Restrictions on products and 2.1, 33,35 3.6, 3.7 3 302, 8, 11,12, 16
—services offered 6,992,113
j- Warranty and customer service Notapphieable 11,16
—requirements 2.3.6,3.7,3.8,3.9,3.10,3.11, 3.12
3.13
k. Territorial development and sales 41424344, Schedule 12 12
—quotas
1. Ongoing product and service —ee bl 6.8
—purchases
m. Maintenance, appearance and Novappheabhed. | 7,8,11,16.17
—remodeling requirements
n. Insurance 9.8 7,8
0. Advertising 1+-3.5,3.6,3.10,3.12 6,7,8, 11
p. Indemnification 1-14.25 6
q. Owner’s participation, +9.6,10.4 11,15
—management, staffing
r. Records and reports 19.10,9.11 6,11
s. Inspections and Audits 19.13 6,11
t. Transfer +-10 6,17
u. Renewal 11 6,17
v. Post-termination obligations 1-71,72,73,75,76,7.7,7.8,13 17
w. Non-competition covenants +-7.1,72,73,75,7.6,7.7,7.8, 15,17
13.2,13.3
x. Dispute resolution 14 15,17
y. Other: Individual guarantee of ExhibitsExhibit 152 199

Area Representative obligations

ITEM 10
10 FINANCING

We do not offer direct or indirect financing. We do not guarantee any note, lease, or other obligation— on

your behalf.
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ITEM 11
11 FRANCHISOR’S ASSISTANCE, ADVERTISING,
12 COMPUTER SYSTEMS AND TRAINING

Except as listed below, we are not required to provide you with any assistance.

Pre-Opening Obligations

1. Grant of Area Representative Rights — We will grant to you the right to operate the Eranchised-Areca
Representative Business within a designated area representative territory. (Area Representative Agreement,
SeetionstandSection 2);

2. Designate Area Representative Territory — We will define the Area Representative Territory for the
FranchisedArea Representative Business and include the geographic boundaries and/or a description of
your Area Representative Territory within the Attachmentsattachments to the Area Representative
Agreement. (Area Representative Agreement, Seetiens—t;Section 2; and Schedule 1);

3. Access to Individual-Unit-Spateeation Franchise Disclosure Document — We will provide you with
access to our current individual-unit-Spa—leecationUnit Franchise EDD:Disclosure Document. (Area
Representative Agreement, SeetionstandSection 3.11);

4._ Manuals — We will loan you a copy of our confidential and proprietary manualsManuals. You must
operate the Franchised-Area Representative Business in accordance with the manualsManuals and all
applicable laws, rules, and regulations. At all times, we reserve the right to supplement, modify and update
the manualsManuals (Area Representative Agreement, Seetions—t-andSection 6.5)—Currently;-the-.) The
operations manual as of the Issuance Date of this Disclosure Document currently consists of 250148 pages,
and the table of contents to the operations manual is attached as Exhibit C to this Disclosure Document.
The major subjects contained in the operations manual consists of establishing, developing, marketing and
operating the Franchised Business:.

5._ Approved Suppliers and Distributors — We will provide you with a list of our approved suppliers and
distributors (to the extent that we have designated themy;) either as part of ewrmanualsthe Manuals or
otherwise in writing. (Area Representative Agreement, Seetionst-andSection 6.5);

6._Signs, Equipment, Furniture, and Fixtures — We wilimay provide you with a list of our approved signage,
equipment, furniture and fixtures (to the extent that we have designated them);) either as part of eurthe
manuals or otherwise in writing. (Area Representative Agreement, Seetions+andSection 6);

7. Website and Digital Media — We will identify you on our website to the extent that our website includes
specific franchise sales information as to those geographic territories that are directly located within your
Area Representative Territory. You may not utilize any websites, web- based media, or digital media unless
expressly approved by us in writing. We strictly control how you may ermay-netuse websites and digital
media, and you must assign all website media and digital media accounts to us. (Area Representative
Agreement, SeetionstandSection 6); and

8. Initial Training — Not less than 45 days prior to commencing the operations of the EranchisedArca
Representative Business, you or your Managing Owner must attend and complete our initial training
program. We will provide you ¢and, up to one of your designated managers), with training in accordance
with our initial training program- at no additional fee or charge. (Area Representative Agreement, Seetions
+andSection 6.1)..) Our current training program is to be attended by you, or if you are a Corporate Entity,
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your Managing Owner evera—+0-day-peried-and one operating manager at our corporate offices located at
3991 North Jefferson Street, Medina, Ohio 44256, and a certified training faeilitySpa located in

Strongsville, Ohio- that we designate. The training program takes place over an approximate five day period
in Strongsville, Ohio. and is further described below in this Item 11 in more detail.

Site Selection

Although you are responsible for selecting aan office site for the—office—of-theFranchisedyour Area
Representative Business, you must obtain our approval of your office location. Generally; we do not own
or lease the real property that will serve as your office location, and you are responsible for all costs and
expenses in locating and evaluating proposed sites for your office location. Before you enter into a lease or
other agreement for your office location, you must obtain our approval. We will provide you with site
selection guidelines. Although there is no specified time limit for us to review the proposed site for your
office location, we will do so within a reasonably time period, not exceeding 30 days of our receipt of your
written request for our review of a proposed site and your submission to us of the information and
documentation that we may request concerning the proposed site. In determining whether to approve or
disapprove a proposed site for your office location, factors that we take into consideration include:(a}
characteristics of the proposed site; and—(b) the location of your proposed site relative to your Area
Representative Territory. Provided that there is suitable office space we may approve an office location
within a V/O Med Spa that is owned and controlled by you.

Time to Open
You may not open or commence the operations of the EranchisedArea Representative Business until you
have completed our initial training requirements; and obtained the necessary licensing and authorization
from state and regulatory agencies within your Area Representative Territory including, if applicable,
regrstratron of the mdmdﬁal—umt%pa—]:eeaﬁeﬂUmt Franchise EDBDisclosure Document, filing of the
Unit Franchise EPBDisclosure Document, and all appropriate waivers and/er
requirements related to the sale of franchises and/or business opportunities within your Area Representative
Terrrtory and any other state that maintains Jurrsdrctron related to the operatrons of the Fraﬂehrsed%usmes&

3—2—}Area Representatlve Busmess

We estimate that the length of time between the signing of your Area Representative Agreement and
opening the Franchised-Area Representative Business to be approximately four menths-to nine months.
Factors that may affect this estimated time period include:(a) the length of time aﬂdertakc—makcn by you to
complete to our satisfaction our 1n1t1a1 trarmng program

Agreement—etheﬁws%wemaytemeat%yeﬁFArea Representatrve Agreemenkwﬁheaﬂeﬁuﬂérrwfees
vithin-Business within 12 months from
the date of signing your Area Representatrve Agreement or otherwrse we may terminate your Area
Representative Agreement without refunding any fees or other funds to you.

Post-Opening Obligations
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3-Ceonsultations-and- CommunicationsCommunication of Operating Standards — We may establish, update

and provide you with consultations and commumcatlons—preﬂded—m—wrﬁmg—verbaﬂy—er;ﬂweugh—ether
forms-of media; as to the standards, procedures and systemSystem requirements as to the operation of the

Eranehised-your Area Representative Business including, but not limited to, System related marketing and

premetien-materials, franchisee candidate presentations, status of referred franchisee candidate approval or
disapproval, and other standards; and_specifications as we may;-in—eur—diseretion; designate, modify,

supplement and amend from time to t1me and—as set forth in the maﬁans—whieh—we—may—m—eaFdﬁereﬂen—

Busmess—Manuals (Area Representatlve Agreement Sectlons -1-6 and 6)—_L

42. Access to SpaLeeationUnit Franchise Disclosure Document and Sales Materials — We will provide you

with access to our then current individual-unitSpateeationUnit Franchise EDBDisclosure Document and to
our approved franchise sales materials and media. (Area Representative Agreement, Seetionst-andSection
6.4)..) You must ensure that the individual-unit-Spa-LeeationUnit Franchise FDDDisclosure Document is
current and in compliance with all laws, rules, and regulations within your Area Representative Territory,
including, without limitation, all FDBfranchise disclosure document disclosure, registration, filing, and
franchise sales requirements. (Area Representative Agreement, Seetionst-andSection 6.4);

53. Payment of Fees Under the Area Representative Agreement — During the initial term of the Area
Representative Agreement and; for so long as you are in compliance with the terms and conditions of the
Area Representative Agreement, we pay yeu—ecommissions—equal-to-50%of thenet-initial franchisethe
following fees and-33%-of the royaltyfees-to you:

Franchise Fee Compensation — For each Unit Franchise that we receivefrom-Spa-tocationFranchises
with-Spaslocated-in-or-to-be-developed-in;-as-applieable;authorize and approve for development and
operatlon w1thm your desuznated Area Representatlve Terrltory bﬂt—net—mel-ud-mg—Spa—I:eeatteﬁ

eﬁafterdurlng the 1n1t1al term of your Area Representatlve Agreement%aelfk we w111 pay to you a one-

time payment wit-bes amount equal to 50% of the net mltlal net franchlse fee that is uncondltlon@
paid to yeu ROFH § v
appheabl%fuﬂds%eﬁkth%respeetwe s and recelved by us (the “AR Franchlse Fee Compensatlon ).
You will not receive any Franchise Fee Compensation for Unit Franchises developed within your Area
Representative Territory after the initial term of you Area Representative Agreement; and

Royalty Compensation — For each Unit Franchise that is developed and first opened within your Area
Representative Territory Spa-LeeationFranchises—(during the initial term of your Area Representative
Agreement, Seetiens—-and-5);we will pay to you 33% of the net royalty fees paid to us by each Unit
Franchise with an authorized V/O Med Spa Unit Franchise located within your Area Representative
Territory during the initial term of your Area Representative Agreement and., if applicable, the renewal
term of your Area Representative Agreement (the “AR Royalty Compensation™). For each Unit
Franchise located and operating within your Area Representative Territory but that was developed
and/or first opened within your Area Representative Territory prior to the initial term of your Area
Representative Agreement, the AR Royalty Compensation will be equal to 33% of the net royalty fees
paid to us by each by such pre-existing Unit Franchise during the initial term of your Area

Representative Agreement and, if applicable, the renewal term of your Area Representative Agreement.
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You will not receive any Royalty Compensation for Unit Franchises developed within your Area
Representative Territory after the initial term of you Area Representative Agreement.

64. Refresher Training — We may provide refresher training programs or seminars, including national and
regional meetings. (Area Representative Agreement, Section 7.4);

5. Marketing Standards and Approval — We may establish, update, and communicate to you our standards
for the marketing and promotion of theEranchisedBusinessUnit Franchises, including, but-net-limited
tewithout limitation, the marketing materials and mediumsmarketing media that you may utilizeuse. We
will respond to your request respecting the communication of our approval or disapproval of marketing
materials and mediumsmedia that may be requested by you for use in the marketing and promotion of the
FranehisedBusinessUnit Franchises. We maintain full discretion as to the marketing standards and the
marketing materials and media that you may use in the marketing and promotion of Unit Franchises and
the Franchised-promotion of your Area Representative Business. (Area Representative Agreement, Sections
+-6.4; and 9.9);

76. Approved Vendors — We will provide the names and addresses of approved vendors and suppliers for
the System and-that you must utilize in the operations of the-Franchised-your Area Representative Business.
(Area Representative Agreement, SeetienstandSection 6.4); and

&7. Hiring and Training of Employees — We do not provide assistance with the hiring and training of your
employees You will be d1rectly respons1ble for the management and superv1s1on of your employees For

8. Pricing — We shall exclusively designate and determine all pricing as set forth in our Unit Franchise

Disclosure Document relating to initial franchise fees, royalty fees, and all other fees associated with a Unit
Franchise.

Advertising

1. Generally — All advertising;-marketing, marketing materials, and alt-marketing medivmsmedia used by
you in the marketing and promotion of the Eranchisedyour Area Representative Business and the promotion
and-sale-of Spa—teeationUnit Franchises must be pre-approved by us in writing and conform to our
standards and specifications. You may only utilize-these-advertising-and-use the marketing, marketing
materials, and mediuvmsmedia that we designate and approve in writing. In our sole and absolute discretion,
we may make available to you approved marketing templates comprised of pre-approved ads, ad copy, and
digital media that you may utilizeuse at your own expense. If you wish to utilizeuse marketing materials
and/or marketing- mediumsmedia that are not currently approved by us in writing, you may submit a written
request reguestingfor permission, and we will approve or disapprove of your request within 15 days of your
submission of the written request and sample marketing materials. We are not required to spend any amount
enm the marketm;, sale or promotion of Unit Franchises within your behalf-en—advertising—in—your

-Area Representative Territory or otherwise (Area Representative Agreement, Sections
1 3 10, 3.12, and 9.9); and

2. Local Marketing — You are not authorized to engage in any marketing (including, but-nettimited
tewithout limitation, all public relations, promotions, local marketing, digital media-and, or web- based
marketing) unless we pre-approve such marketing in writing. (Area Representative Agreement, Sections 1
3.12 and 9.9¥-.) You are required to engage-inmarket and promote Unit Franchises within local marketing;
and-you-arerequired-to-commitmarkets comprising your Area Representative Territory and spend an
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amount-equal-to-ne-not less than -$1,000 per month on yeurthese local marketing efforts. We will review
your local marketing programs and notify you if we approve same. We will make available to you, and
provide you with access to, our approved brochures, displays, presentations, and marketing campaigns (in
the form of a source document) that you may utilizeuse. In those instances where we provide you with
access to our marketing campaigns, we will provide you with the source designs and design specifications.
Hewever,—youYou will incur the direct costs associated with duplicatingbroadcasting, using, and
atilizingdistributing such marketing campaigns-and-in-having-such-campaignsprinteddistributed-and/or
placed-with-media-seurees.. All digital media and marketing must be approved by us. (Area Representative
Agreement, Sections 1, 3.12 and 9.9)-.)

Computer System

You must utilizeuse the computer systems;-peint-of-sale-, customer relationship management systems, and
business management systems that we specify and designate. Currently;—yeuWe may require that all
franchise sales leads and activity entered, tracked, and monitored through systems controlled, managed,

and operated bv us. You are requlred to pﬁrehaeemamtam and useutilize a-new notebook computer that

nship-1 : : e h inis exclusively
dcvotcd to the f-utu-reopcratrom of your Arca Reprcecntatlvc Busmces The cost of the computer system that
you will be required to purchase varies depending on the vendor and manufacturer and is estimated to cost
between being-$2,000 to $4,000. You are obligated to install the software upgrades and patches as provided

by the manufacturer of the computer-and-peint-of sale-system-, and the customer relationship management
and business management systems that we designate. You are responsible for hardware repairs or

replacement of systems that are no longer covered under warranty. Your estimated costs for the
maintenance, repair, and updates for the computer and point of sale systems is $1,500 per year. There are
no contractual limitations on the frequency or cost of this obligation. We will-net have independent access
to the mformatlon and data that is electromcally collected and stored on your computer systembu%rf—we

3 h i ms.. Subject to apphcable laws
such as HIPAA and privacy-related laws there are no contractual 11m1tat10ns on our right to access the
information the Franchised Business.

Initial Training

We will provide initial training for you or, if you are a Corporate Entity, your Managing Owner and one
operating manager at no additional fee or charge. Either you or your Managing Owner must successfully
complete the initial training program to our satisfaction prior to commencing the operations of, and opening,
the Franchised Business. The initial training program takes place over an approximate +0five day period.
Although we provide you or, if you are a Corporate Entity, your Managing Owner and one operating
manager, with initial training at no additional fee or charge, you will be responsible for all travel;tedging;
food;-automebilerental and accommodation expenses and-employee-wages-that-you-ineur-in connection
with your attendance and participation in our initial training program-ane-the-attendance-and participation
in-our-initial-training program.. (Area Representative Agreement, Seetions1-andSection 3.4)..) Currently,
we provide our initial training program no less frequently than quarterly and on an as-needed basis.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
TRAINING PROGRAM
The following chart summarizes the subjects covered in our initial training program:

Hours of Classroom Training Hours
Subject ot of On- | Location

32

b

V1o

V/O Med Spa. AR FDD. April 26;2023-18, 2024



Instructional materials that will be used in the initial training process includes our Manuals, live instruction

and handouts. Initial training will be conducted under the direction and supervision of our Director of
Training and Education, Talia Valline, and will utilize instructional materials comprised of live instruction,
handouts and the Manuals. Since October 2022 and continuing to date, Talia Valline has served as Director
of Training and Education for our System. From July 2022 to October 2022, Talia Valline served as a
Corporate Trainer/Franchise Business Consultant for our System. From July 2021 to July 2022, Talia
Valline served as a Spa Manager of our affiliate owned V/O Med Spa located in Strongsville, Ohio. From
October 2018 to May 2020, Talia Valline served as a Regional Manager for PsychBC, a national network
of outpatient clinics, where she oversaw six locations in the Cleveland/Akron, Ohio region. From July 2017
to October 2018, Talia Valline served as Director of Administration at Seriously Skin located in Chagrin
Falls, Ohio. The level of experience of our trainers will, at a minimum, include each trainer'strainer’s
satisfactory completion of our initial training program. In addition to initial training; you will also be
required to participate in and satisfy all other training programs that we may designate respecting the

Franchised Business. {AreaRepresentative-Agreement; Seetions-6-1-6-2-and-63)-

After the opening of the-Franchised Businessyour V/O Med Spa, we reserve the right to require that you
or, your Managing Owner if you are a Corporate Entity, yourManaging-Owner-attend a system-wide
training pregramsprogram (the “System-Wide Training Program”) that we may establish in our discretion.
If we establish a System-Wide Training PregramsProgram, the program will be offered from our affiliate
owned V/O Med Spa in Strongsville, Ohio and you will be responsible for all travel and expenses, lodging,
food, automobile rental expenses; and employee wages that you incur in connection with your attendance.
We will not require your attendance at a System-Wide Training PregramsProgram for more than a total of
five days in any calendar year.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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the--Job
Trainin
g
Hours)
Orientation, History & 2 0 StrengsvileMedina,
Organizational Philosophy OH
Services, Treatment and 4 205 Strongsville, OH
Products
Sales and Spa Operations 2 205 Strongsville, OH
Area Representative Roles and 4 0 StrengsvileMedina,
Responsibilities OH
Franchise Law and Federal 4 0 StrengsvileMedina,
Trade Commission OH
Area Representative Support 105 0 StrengsvileMedina,
Responsibilities OH
Operations Manual Review 101 0 StrengsvilleMedina,
OH
Business Operations and 4 0 StrengsvileMedina,
Business Finance OH
Deleted Cells
L L -H Deleted Cells
Subtotal Hours 24 10 \ Deleted Cells
Total Hours | 8034 Deleted Cells
Deleted Cells
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ITEM 12
13 TERRITORY

Grant of Area Representative Territory

Under the Area Representative Agreement; we—will grant to you, subject to our Reserved Rights as
diseusseddefined below-in-thisHem12, the right to develop and operate an Area Representative Business
within a designated territory (the—AreaRepresentativeTerritory)—The-area-that-we-designate-as-that is
referred to as your Area Representatlve Territory will be determined by us. There is no minimum Area

th%speerﬁe The scope and size of your Area Representatlve Terntory w1ll dependvagg dependlng on a
number of factors that include geography, population-demegraphies, and; the agreed upon number of Spa

LeeationUnit Franchises that-we-believe- may-be potentially-developeddesignated for potential development
within the Area Representative Territory. At the time of signing your Area Representative Agreement we

will mutually agree en-the—identifieation—efto and identify your Area Representative Territory and the
number of SpaJ:oeaﬁoﬂUmt Franchlses that must be sold, developed operated and supported by you w1th1n

We may identify your Area Representatlve Terrltory by zip code boundary streets, highways, county llnes
designated market area, and/or other recognizable demarcations.

Relocation

Your right to relocate your Area Representative Territory is not guaranteed and approval of a request by
you to relocate your Area Representative Territory is completely at our discretion. We evaluate relocation
requests on a case-by-case basis and consider factors such as operational history, the location of other Area
Representative Territories, our expansion plans, and other factors that are relevant to us at the time of a

relocation request.

Establishment of Additional Area Representative Businesses
You do not have the right to establish additional Area Representative Businesses.

Area Representative Territory Rights
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You will not receive an exclusive territory. You may face competition from other franchisees, from outlets
that we own, other channels of distribution or competitive brands that we control. However, during the term

of your Area Representative Agreement, provided that you are not in default of your obligations to us or
our affiliates and except as to our Reserved Rights set forth below, we will not grant any other person the
right to operate an Area Representative Business within your Area Representative Territory.

The continuation of your Area Representative Territory isrights are dependent en-the-and subject to your
achievement of a certain sales volume, market penetration-er-any, and other contingencies in addition to
your continued compliance with and satisfaction of, the terms and conditions of your Area Representative
Agreement. To retain the rights of the-Franchisedyour Area Representative Business and to your rights in

and—te—your Area Representative Territory, as to each and every year and development period set
forthidentified in your Area Representative Agreement, you must satisfy a development quota (the
“Development Quota™) as to the total number of Franchise Agreements signed with Spa—teeationUnit
Franchises designated within-and to be located within the Area Representative Territory and, the number
of Spa-teeationUnit Franchises located within your Area Representative Territory that are developed, open,
and operating in conformity with the requirements of our System. Your Development Quota will be
determmed and agreed to by both of us at the time of signing the Area Representatlve Agreement{—Area

. Your failure to comply with the Development Quota is a violation of your Area Representative Agreement
and will result in the termination of your rights as our Area Representative. We cannot alter the size of your
Area Representative Territory without your written consent. We will not shrink the size of your Area
Representative Territory if the population within your Area Representative Territory increases during the
term of your Area Representative Agreement. We will not increase the size of your Area Representative
Territory if the population within your Area Representatlve Territory decreases durlng the term of your
Area Representatlve Agreement h e : : y ch

unde rt-weWe and our affiliates reserve
to ourselves—t-he—e*eluwe—ﬂght on any and all terms and condltlons that we deem advisable and, without
any compensation or consideration to you-(AreaRepresentative-Agreement;Seetion2-4);, to engage in the
following activities (our “Reserved Rights™): (a) develop and operate, and grant to others the right to
develop and operate-Spa—teeation, Unit Franchises and_V/O Med Spas using the System and Licensed
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Marks within your Area Representative Territory and outside your Area Representative Territory; (b)
operate and grant to others the right to develop and operate Area Representative BusinessesBusiness using
the System and Licensed Marks for the development of Spa-LeeationUnit Franchises and/or V/O Med Spas
located outside of your Area Representative Territory, as we deem appropriate and irrespective of the
proximity to your Area Representative Territory; (c) acquire, be acquired by, merge with, or otherwise
affiliate with one or more businesses of any kind, including businesses that offer and sell products and
services and/or franchises that are the same as; or similar to;-the-Spa-teeation Unit Franchises, V/O Med
Spas, and/er-Area—Representative Businessesother area representative business, and/or the Franchised
Business, and after such acquisition, merger or affiliation, to own-ane, operate, and te-franchise, or license
others to own and operate, and to continue to own and operate, such businesses of any kind, even if such
businesses offer and sell products-and, services, and/or franchises that are the same as, or similar to-Spa
Loeation, Unit Franchises, V/O Med Spas, the Franchised Business, and/or Area—Representative
Businessesother area representative business (but not area representative business utilizing the Licensed
Marks) w1th1n your Area Representatlve Terrltory, (d) b%aequed—byoﬁﬂerg%wrt%koﬁo&heﬁws%afﬁha{e

: use the Licensed Marks and
System to promote, market and sell preéuets—aﬂd—semees—aﬂd#er—V/O Med Spa franchises-that-are-the same

as—er—s*mﬂar—to—Spa—I:oeat—roﬂ area representatlve busmesses and Unit Franchlses Spas—aﬂd#or—Area
By poN

P >

and d1str1bute the Approved Products

Representative Territory:(e)ruse-the Hieensed-Marksand-Systemteand
and Services and/orfranchises-offered and sold by SpatecationFEranehises;V/O Med Spas-andfor, the
offer and sale of V/O Med Spa franchises, the Area Representative BusinessesBusiness, and/or other area

representative business in alternative channels of distribution {including directly or indirectly through
national media, internet, third party brokers, franchise sales companies, in-house commissioned
salespersons and/or lead generation services) within or outside yeurthe Area Representative Territory; and
(fe) use the Licensed Marks and System, and to license others to use the Licensed Marks and System, to
engage in all other activities not expressly prohibited by the Area Representative Agreement.

Additional DiselosuresRestrictions on Us from Soliciting or Accepting Orders in Your Territory

There are no territorial restrictions from accepting business from prospective franchisees located outside of
your Area Representative Territory but interested in developing a Unit Franchise to be located within your
Area Representative Territory or outside your Area Representative Territory. We reserve the right to use
other channels of distribution, such as the internet, catalog sales, telemarketing, or other direct marketing

sales, to make sales within your territory using our principal trademarks or using trademarks different from
the ones you will use under the Franchise Agreement. We do not pay any compensation to you for soliciting

or accepting orders from inside your territory.

Competition by Us Under Different Trademarks
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We do not have plans to operate or franchise a business under trademarks different from the Licensed Marks

that sells or will sell goods or services similar to those that will be offered by you through the Franchised
Business.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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ITEM 13
14 TRADEMARKS

Under the terms of the AreaRepresentativeFranchise Agreement, you will be granted a license to use the
“VIOV/O Med Spa” trademark and those other marks- that we designate. We reserve the right to supplement
and modify the marks that you may or may not use in connection with the operations of your V/O Med Spa
LoecationFranchise-. You may only use the Licensed Marks in-the-manneras authorized by us in writing
and pursuant-tounder the terms of theyour Franchise Agreement. You may not use the Licensed Marks in

the name of theany Corporate Entity that you may—establish-te—ewn—and-operate—your—Spa—tecation
Franehise.

Principal Trademarks Registered with the United States Patent and Trademark Office
The principal trademarks identified in the schedule below are a part of the Licensed Marks, our System, are

registered with the United States Patent and Trademark Office (the “USPTO”) and, unless otherwise
designated by us, will be used by you in the operations of the Franchised Business. As to these marks all
required affidavits have been filed with the USPTO.

Mark USPTO Registration Number Registration Type Registration Date
;
VIO MED SPA 5933096 Principal December 10, 2019

VIO .

MEDSPA 5933094 Principal December 10, 2019
%L'.@MED&QA_”BW Principal December 10, 2019
FEEL GREAT. LOOK | 6290743 Principal March 9, 2021
AMAZING.

Principal Trademarks Not Registered with the United States Patent and Trademark Office
The following principal trademarks identified in the schedule below are a part of the Licensed Marks, our

System, and will be used by you in the operations of the Franchised Business but are not registered with
the United States Patent and USPTO. As to each of these principal trademarks:

We do not have a federal registration for each of these principal trademarks. Therefore, the trademarks
identified below do not have many legal benefits and rights that are afforded to federally registered
trademarks. If our right to use the trademarks (identified below) is challenged, you may have to change to
an alternative trademark, which may increase your expenses.

REMAINDER-OF PAGEINTENTIONALLY LEETF BEANK]

Mark Serial Number for Registration | Application Type Application Date
Application Filed with USPTO
Application
V/O MED SPA 97284413 1B February 25, 2022
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97284420 1B February 25, 2022

/

me d spa
me d
s pa

As to our principal trademarks there are no currently effective material determinations by the USPTO, the
Trademark Trial and Appeal Board, any court, or the trademark administrator of any state. There are no
pending mﬁmgement opposmon or cancellatlon proceedmgs and no pendlng lltlgatlon involving our
pr1nc1pa1 a - 3 s aterially-a ’ 5

97284424 1B February 25, 2022

trademarks

We know of superior rights, and potentially infringing uses, that could materially affect your use of the
Registered Marks or other related rights in certain geographic areas throughout the United States.

You are required to provide us with written notice efas to any claims that you may become aware of
respecting the Licensed Marks including, but-net-limited-towithout limitation, your use of the Licensed
Marks and/or a claim associated with a third party’s use of a trademark that is identical or confusingly
similar to the Licensed Marks that we have licensed to you. We maintain the exclusive discretion to take
any and all actions, or; to refrain from any action, that we believe to be appropriate in response to any
trademark infringement, challenge or claim. As-betweenus;—weWe possess the sole right to exclusively
control any and all litigation, legal proceedings, administrative proceedings and/or settlement(s)settlements
respecting any actual or alleged infringement, challenge or claim relating to the Licensed Marks. You must
sign all documents, instruments and agreements and undertake the actions that we, with the advice of our
legal counsel, determine to be necessary or advisable respecting the protection and/or maintenance of our
interests in the Licensed Marks in any legal proceeding, administrative proceeding or as may be otherwise
determined by us. As to the foregoing, we will reimburse you for the reasonable, out-of-pocket
administrative expenses that you incur and pay in complying with our written instructions.

A F - righ h shts-a eWe will protect you
agalnst claims of 1nfr1ngement and unfair competmon related to the Llcensed Marks, provided that your
use of the Licensed Marks is in accordance with the Area Representative Agreement and Franchise
AgreementAgreements, the Manuals, and is consistent with our instructions and the license granted to you.
We will indemnify you against direct damages for trademark infringement in a proceeding arising out of
your use of the Licensed Marks, provided your use of the Licensed Marks comply with the terms of your
Area Representative Agreement and Franchise AgreementAgreements, the Manuals, our written
instructions to you, and; you have timely notified us of the claim, have given us sole control of the defense
and settlement of the claim, and you are in compliance with your Eranchise-Area Representative Agreement
and;-if applicable; Multi-Unit Development-Agreement Franchise Agreements. If we defend the claim, we
have no obligation to indemnify or reimburse you with respect to any fees or disbursements of any attorney
that you retain.

If any third party establishes, to our satisfaction and in our discretion, that its rights to the Licensed Marks
are, for any legal reason, superior to any of our rights or of a nature that we believe, in our discretion, that
it is advisable to discontinue and/or modify the Licensed Marks, then we will modify and/or replace the
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Licensed Marks, and you must use the substitutions, replacements and/or variations of and/or to the
Licensed Marks and use the those trademarks, service marks, logos and trade names required and designated
by us. In such event, our sole liability and obligation will be to reimburse you for the direct out-of-pocket
costs of complying with this obligation, which you must document to our satisfaction, including, by way of
example, alterations in signage and replacement of marketing materials.

ITEM 14
15 PATENTS, COPYRIGHTS AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION

We do not own any patents:rights to, or licenses in any patent or copyrights material to the franchise System.
We-have-copyrighted-or may copyright advertising materials and design specifications, our Manuals and
other written materials and items. We have not applied to the United-States-Copyright Officetoregister
%hes%eepyﬂgkﬁs—W%haV%ne%appheeH&%h%USPTO for the issuance of any patents @uﬂen%l—y%v%deﬂne{

You must keep as confidential our manualsManuals, any supplements to the manualsManuals, and any
other manuals or written materials (including those materials made available to you in electronic format or
as part of an online or cloud- based network that is a part of the System or designated by the System) used
in connection with the Franchised Business. The manualsManuals contain information about our System,
Approved Spa-Products and Services, System fnventory—and-EquipmentSupplies, proprietary products,
marketing systems, and, among other things, confidential methods of operation. We consider the
information a trade secret and extremely confidential. You must use all reasonable means to keep this
information confidential and prevent any unauthorized copy, duplication, record; or reproduction of this
information. You must also require your employees to sign confidentiality agreements that will require
them to keep confidential, both during and after their employment, all information designated by us as
confidential. You must immediately inform us if you learn of any unauthorized use, infringement; or
challenge to the copyrighted materials, proprietary or confidential information, including-butnetlimited-te,
without limitation, our Manuals. We will take any and all action(s) (or refrain from same) that we determine,
in our discretion, to be appropriate. We may control any action we choose to bring. We need not participate
in your defense and/or indemnify you for damages or expenses in a proceeding involving a copyright or
patent. If any third party establishes to our satisfaction, in our discretion, that its right to these materials are
superior, then you must modify or discontinue your use of these materials in accordance with our written
instructions.

ITEM 15
16 OBLIGATION TO PARTICIPATE IN THE ACTUAL
17 OPERATION OF THE FRANCHISE BUSINESS

The Area Representative Agreement requires that you or, if you are a Corporate Entity, that your managing
shareholder, member or partner (your “Managing Owner”) be personally responsible for the management
and overall operations of theyour Franchised Business-{the~“Managing-Owner”).—We-must-approve-your
Managing Owner.. Your Managlng Owner must saﬁsﬁietefﬂ—yhcomplete to our satlsfactlon our 1n1t1al
tramlng program and mus

o § ness-be app_roved by us. At
all t1mes the Franchlsed Busmess must be managed and superv1sed by ayou or your Managing Owner.

You and, if you are Corporate Entity, each of your members, shareholders and/or partners (collectively,

“Owners™);”) must personally guarantee al-ef—ourthe obligations te—us-under the Area Representative

Agreement. Yeu—mustEach Owner must personally guarantee your obligations to us under the Area

Representative Agreement. You and each premise—in-writingOwner must agree that;-amengotherthings;
41

b

V1o

V/O Med Spa. AR FDD. April 26;2023-18, 2024



during the term of the Eranehise-Agreement-Area Representative Agreement and for 36 months following
the expiration or termination of your Area Representative Agreement that each of you will not: (a)
participate in any business that in-any-way-competes with the FranchisedArea Representative Business
andfor any_V/O Med Spa, and that for 36 months after the expiration efor termination of the Area
Representative Agreement (neither of you will participate in any business that competes with said-period

bemg tv..w durin the Area Representatlve Business or any peﬂeds—ef—nen—eempl-laﬂee)—yeﬁ—wr-l-l—net
h a-V/O Med Spa _that is

located w1th1n and/or servieingservices customers and/or prospectlve franchlsees leeated-within your Area
Representatlve Temtory—aﬂd w1th1n a2s mlle radlus surroundrng your Area Representatrve Terrltory#euf

, O w1th1n a 25 mile radlus surroundlng the locatlon for V/O Med
Spa’s located within your Area Representative Territory: or (b) solicit, divert, or attempt to divert active or

potential Unit Franchisee to other spa franchise opportunities.

ITEM 16
18 RESTRICTIONS ON WHAT THE FRANCHISEE MAY SELL

You may only seHpromote the preduets-and-servieessale of Unit Franchises as speeified-by-us-in-writing-or
etherwrs%approved by us in wr1t1ng and yeﬁ—mayuenl-yuseﬂ—th%pfeduets—aﬂd—semees%qmred—by—us—\&le

anyLFfaﬂeh{sevou are not authorlzed to enter any Agreements on our behalfAV%mamtam and we posses

sole discretion as to whether or not we approve ef-a—prespeetivefranchisee—and-whether-orneotUnit

Franchisees. There is no limitation on our right to change the terms and conditions upon which we eleetto

enter-into-aFranchise-Agreement-with-the prospeetive-franchisee:may offer Unit Franchises.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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ITEM 17
19 RENEWAL, TERMINATION, TRANSFER AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION

THE FRANCHISE RELATIONSHIP

This table lists certain important provisions of the Franechisefranchise and related agreements. You should
read these provisions in the agreements attached to this diselosure-decumentDisclosure Document.

Provision SeetionsSection Summary
in Area
Representative
Agreement
a. Length of the Area 2.2 10 years.
Representativefranchise term
b. Renewal or extension of the term 11 Limited #ight-ef10 year renewal for-additional+0-year-term

but rights afforded upon renewal are limited to existing area
representativefranchiseesindividual Unit Franchises as of the
end of the initial term and does not include continued
development rights regardingrelated to the sale of new Spa
LoeationUnit Franchises. Commissions during the renewal
term are limited to area representative royalty commissions
paid by area representative system franchisees during the
renewal term. You are not afforded additional development
rights during the renewal term in the Area Representative

Territory.
c. Requirements for Area 11 ¥euTo renew your area representative franchise you must:net
Representativefranchisee to renew or be in default—efcompliance with the terms of your Area
extend Representative Agreement;, provide us with 180 days prior

written notice of your request to renew, not be in default of
any Franchise Agreement-with-us:, own and operate not less
than one Spa within the Area Representative Territory;—your

Owners-and-spouses-of-your-owners-must-be-in-comphanee
with-theiragreements-with, pay all monetary obligations owed

to us:—give, execute a general release, undertake additional

training if required by us—180-days-prier-written-notice;, and
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Provision

SeetionsSection
in Area
Representative
Agreement

Summary

pay a renewal fee. Upon renewal; your rights in the
EranchisedArea Representative Business wilbbeis restricted to
providing services on behalf of existing area—representative
franehiseesindividual Unit Franchises as of the end of the
initial term and does not include continued development rights
regarding the sale of new SpateeatienUnit Franchises.

d. Termination by Area Representative

12.2

You may terminate the Area Representative Agreement if you
are in compliance with its terms, we are in material breach of
the Area Representative Agreement, and we are—in—material
breach-and-fail to cure thatthe material breach within 30 days
of receiving written notice or, if the breach cannot be cured
within 30 days, then—within—such period of time that is
reasonable to cure the material breach.

e. Termination by franchisor without cause

No provision

Not applicable.

f. Termination by franchisor with cause 12.1 We can terminate witheut-any-payment-to-you-if you are in
default and-fail- to-cureof the default-asstatedin-terms of the
Area Representative Agreement.

g. “Cause” defined — curable defaults 12.1(c) B T

; . NG )

You will have 30 days to cure a default where you, fail to:
timely develop and open the Area Representative Business;
operate the Area Representative Business in compliance with
applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules, and regulations,
including laws, rules and regulations governing the offer
and/or sale of franchises and such failure was inadvertent and
was not the result of intentional, reckless, or negligent action
or inaction by you; obtain and maintain, at all times, insurance
coverage and policies as set forth in the Operations Manual
and/or as otherwise required by us; timely submit, on an on-
going basis, all records, reports, data and information related
to your Area Representative Business as set forth in the
Operations Manual and/or as otherwise required by us: timely
satisfy and pay all vendors, suppliers, and/or franchise brokers
in connection with the development and/or operations of your
Area Representative Business, and/or the marketing

promotion, and/or sale of Unit Franchises; comply with any
specification, standard, or operating procedure designated by

us or otherwise set forth in the Operations Manual; comply
with and/or satisfy any term, condition, or requirement of the
Area Representative Agreement or any other agreement
between or among us, our affiliates, you, and/or your affiliates,
except where such action and/or failure constitutes a non-
curable default.
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Provision

SeetionsSection
in Area
Representative
Agreement

Summary

h. “Cause” defined — non-curable defaults

12.1(a)and).
12.1(b)

and/or fail to operate your Area Representative Business; three

or more instances where you commit a curable default,
whether or not you timely cured such default in each instance;
you intentionally and knowingly refuse to comply with the
terms of the Area Representative Agreement, and/or the
standards specifications, and/or requirements set forth in the
Operations Manual and/or as communicated to you by us from
time to time; you intentionally, knowingly, or negligently
operate _the Franchised Business in violation of applicable
laws, rules, and regulations including laws, rules and
regulations governing the offer and/or sale of franchises; you
transfer or attempt to transfer the Franchised Business or the
Ownership interests in your franchise company without our
approval; you disclose or permit the disclosure of information
contained in the Operations Manual and/or of confidential
information; you or your Owners engage in any activity that
that injures, harms, damages, or otherwise has a material
adverse effect on us, our System, the Licensed Marks, V/O
Med Spa, the Area Representative Business, and/or the
reputation of the V/O Med Spa brand; you and/or your Owners
breach and, if such breach is capable of a cure, fail to timely
cure another agreement with us including the AR Owner
Agreement and Guaranty; you and your Owners and managers
fail to complete, to our satisfaction, our initial and on-going
training programs; you fail to notify us of the misuse of
confidential information and you fail to protect same; you
misappropriate or misuse the Licensed Marks: you become or
are deemed insolvent, make an assignment for the benefit of
creditors, admit in writing your inability to pay debts; are
adjudicated bankrupt, file a voluntary bankruptcy petition or

have one filed against you, and/or you acquiesce to the
appointment of a trustee or receiver, or a court orders one;
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SeetionsSection
in Area
Representative
Agreement

Summary

execution is levied against the Franchised Business; a final
judgment is entered against the Area Representative Business
and is not satisfied within 30 days: you are dissolved: a lawsuit
or action is commenced against your Area Representative
Business to foreclose on a lien on your Area Representative
Business and such action is not dismissed after 60 days; you
fail to comply with Anti-Terrorism Laws or become listed on
the Annex to Executive Order 13244: you misappropriate
misuse, make, or permits any unauthorized use of the Licensed
Marks, our confidential information, and/or the System, you
materially impair the goodwill associated with the Licensed
Marks, the our confidential information, and/or the System
and/or you apply for registration of the Licensed Marks
anywhere in the world; you and/or your affiliate terminates the
Franchise Agreement for any AR Unit Franchise: you and/or
your affiliate breaches the terms of a Franchise Agreement for
an AR Unit Franchise and. if such breach is capable of a cure,

you and/or your affiliate fails to timely cure such breach; you
and/or your affiliate breaches the terms of a Franchise

Agreement for an AR Unit Franchise and such breach is not
subject to curing pursuant to the terms of such Franchise
Agreement; and/or you fail to timely meet and/or satisfy your
Area Representative’s Development Quota Obligations and/or
Area Representative’s Aggregate Development Quota and/or

Development Schedule obligations set forth in the Area
Representative Agreement.

i. Area Representative’s obligations on
termination/ non-renewal

13

You must: pay all ameunts-ewedsums that you owe to us er
ouraffiliatesunder the Area Representative Agreement and all

other agreements with us; cease owning and operating the
Area Representative Busmess refrain-fromcease representing
yourself as an Area Representative of ours; permanently cease
using ewrmarks;knrew-hews-and/or accessing the System, the
Licensed Marks, our confidential information, manuals;;the
Operations Manual; return the Operations Manual and all
confidential information to us er—destroy—(as—we—speeify)-alt
customer—lists—and—information,—franchisee—lists—and

> 5 >

G e L L L
Eranchised Businessin the original form provided to you and
document the destruction of all electronic files related to same;

completely de-identify the:+etarnthe operations manual-and
cease—usins—econfidential —informationof your  Area
Representative Business; as requested by us, transfer to us all
data, listings, digital media, accounts, web listings and
websites associated with the Area Representative Business;
and abide by the post-termination non-competition covenants

and restrictions;-and-assign-phone;fax-and-web-addresses-to

s.
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Provision SeetionsSection Summary
in Area
Representative
Agreement
j. Assignment of contract by franchisor 10.1 No restriction on our right to assign.
k. “Transfer” by Area Representative 16:1,2.7,10.2, IneludesA transfer means and includes, whether voluntary; or
defined 10.3,10.4, 10.5 | involuntary, conditional or unconditional, direct; or indirect:
and, 10.6 (a) an assignment, sale, gift, exehange transfer, pledge or sub-
franchise; (b) the grant of a mortgage, charge, lien or security
interest, er-ehangeincluding, without limitation, the grant of a
collateral assignment; (c) a merger, consolidation, exchange
of shares or other ownership iainterests, issuance of additional
ownership interests or securities representing or potentially
representing ownership interests, or redemption of ownership
interests; and (d) a sale or exchange of voting interests or
securities _convertible to voting interests, or an agreement
granting the right to exercise or control the exercise of the
voting rights of any holder of ownership interests or to control
the operations or affairs of Area Representative;—Area
1. Franchisor’s approval of transfer by 10.1,10.2,10.3, | We-have-theright to-approve-all-transfers-by-youTransfers
Area Representative 10.4, 10.5-and, require our prior written consent, which we-may
10.6 withheld/disapprevebe granted or withheld in our sele
discretion.
m. Conditions for franChisor_’s approval of | 10.1,10.2,10.3, | Tphe proposed transfer must be at least 24 months following
transfer by Area Representative }82’ 10.5-and, | the signing of the Area Representative Agreement, is subject

to our prior right of first refusal, and is subject to our
discretion including, butnettimited-tornew-assigneewithout
limitation: the transferee must have sufficient business
experience and financial resources to operate the Area
Representative Business, as determined in our sole discretion;
you must pay all amounts due us and our affiliates; assignee
and the assignee’s ewnersOwners must successfully complete
our Initial Training Program for Spa—franchiseesUnit
Franchisees and area representatlves you, and yeurprineipat
ewnerseach Owner, must sign a general release of us, our
affiliates, and respective shareholders, officers, directors,
employees and agents; assignee must agree to bring the Area
Representative Business up to current standards; if you and
youreach Owner and-Speuses have not previously signed our
AreaRepresentative AR Owner and-Speuses-Agreement and
GuaranteeGuaranty (Area Representative ~ Agreement,
Exhibit 1) you must do so and, in doing so individually agree
to our restrictive covenants and obligations; and—thethe
assignee, and each Owner must sign our Area Representative
Agreement, our AR Owner Agreement and Guaranty;
assignee must own and operate a Spa within the Area

47

V1o

V/O Med Spa. AR FDD. April 26;2023-18, 2024




Provision SeetionsSection Summary
in Area
Representative
Agreement
Representative Territory under a Franchise Agreement-with
as.
n. Franchisor’s right of first refusal to 10.6 We have a 30 day right of first refusal. We have the right to
acquire Area Representative’s business match any bona fide, arms-—length offer for your Area
Representative Business.
o. Franchisor’s option to purchase Area Not applicable- | Not applicable.
Representative’s business
p. Death or disability of Area 10.4 Area Representative Business and/or replacement Managing
Representative Owner must be transferred and/or designated within not more
than 120 days following the death or disability.
q. Non-competition covenants during the | 7.2,7.3, 7.4-and, | You and your ewsnersOwners cannot own, operate and/or
term of the Franchise 7.6 engage in any business that is competitive to the Area
Representative Business and/er—a—Spa— must comply with
confidentiality non-disclosure and non-solicitation
covenants.
r. Non-competition covenants after the 727375706 e Dl e

Franchise is terminated or expires

involvement, ownership or termination—eof —theinterest
whatsoever for 24 months in any competing Area
Representative Business;—as—te__or Spa in: your Area
Representative Territory-and; a 25 mile radius surrounding
your Area Representative Territory;-you-and-; a 25 mile radius
surroundmg the Spa locatlon of each Spa located in_your

Representative BusmessrTerrltory and you must comply with

confidentiality non-disclosure and non-solicitation

covenants.

s. Modification of the Agreement

14.1,14.2, and
14.13

Liod iting. f . gree -
change-
Requires writing signed by you and us, except for unilateral
changes that we may make to the Manuals or our unilateral
reduction of the scope of a restrictive covenant that we may
make in our discretion.

t. Integration/merger clause

14.13

Only the terms of the Area Representative Agreement and

otherwrittenasreements-schedules to the Area Representative

and the respective signed exhibits to the Area Representative

Agreement are binding(, subject to applieable-state law)-—-Any.
Nothing in any agreement is intended to disclaim the express

representations er-promises-outside-ofimade in the Franchise
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Provision SeetionsSection Summary
in Area
Representative
Agreement

Disclosure Document—and—Area—RepresentativeAgreement
may-notbe-enforeeable—, its exhibits and amendments.

u. Dispute resolution by arbitration or 14.7 Except for certain claims for injunctive relief, all disputes
mediation must first be submitted to non-binding mediation in Cuyahoga
County, Ohio and, if mediation is unsuccessful, then to
binding arbitration in Cuyahoga County, Ohio—. This
provision is subject to applicable state law3-.

v. Choice of forum 14.7 All mediation, arbitration and, if applicable, litigation
proceedings must be conducted in, or closest to, State court of
general jurisdiction that is within or closest to Cuyahoga
County, Ohio for, if appropriate, the United States District
Court nearest to our corporate headquarters at the time such
action is filed. This provision is subject to applicable state
law)..

w. Choice of law 14.6 Ohio law will govern-{exeept. However, this provision is

subject to state law and as otherwise disclosed in Exhibit H
to this Disclosure Document)-

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
ITEM 18
20 PUBLIC FIGURES

We do not currently use any public figure to promote our franchise. No public figure is currently involved
in our management.

ITEM 19
21 FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REPRESENTATIONS

The FTC’s Franchise Rule permits a franchisor to provide information about the actual or potential financial
performance of its franchised and/or franchisor-owned outlets; if there is a reasonable basis for the
information; and if the information is included in the diselosure-doeumentDisclosure Document. Financial
performance information that differs from that included in Item 19 may be given only if: (+i) a franchisor
provides the actual records of an existing outlet you are considering buying; or (2ii) franchisor supplements
the information provided in this Item 19, for example, by providing information about possible performance
at a particular location or under particular circumstances.

We do not make any representations about a franchisee’s future financial performance or the past financial
performance of company-owned or franchised outlets.— We also do not authorize our employees or
representatives to make any such representations either orally or in writing.— If you are purchasing an
existing outlet, however, we may provide you with the actual records of that outlet.—_If you receive any
other financial performance information or projections of your future income, you should report it to the
franchisor’s management by contacting Ryan Rose, Chief-Exeeutive-OfficerPresident, VIO Franchise
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GroupFRANCHISE GROUP, LLC at 3991 North Jefferson Street, Medina, Ohio 44256 and (440) 238-
6898, the Federal Trade Commission, and the appropriate state regulatory agencies.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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These-tablesare relatedOutlet and Franchisee Information relates to the V/O Med Spa Area Representative
Busme&sesBusmess and not md—xwel&al—um%pa%eea&eﬂlndwldual Umt Franchlses%e%kem—z&ef—\l@
-or V/O Med Spas

22 OUTLETS AND FRANCHISEE INFORMATION

ITEM 20

TABLE NO. 1
SYSTEM-WIBESYSTEMWIDE OUTLET SUMMARY
FOR YEARS 20202021 to 20232022

Sl o dite Outlets at the End
Outlet Type Year TN G of the Year Net Change

20202021 810 1012 +2

Franchised 20222024 1012 1214 +2
20222023 1214 417 +23

20202021 0 0 0
Company Owned 20212022 0 01 0+1
20222023 o1 10 =1

20212620 810 1612 +2
Total Outlets 202226021 1012 214 +23
20222023 1215 1517 e

TABLE NO. 2

TRANSFER OF OUTLETS FROM FRANCHISEES TO NEW OWNERS
(OTHER THAN THE FRANCHISOR)
FOR YEARS 20202021 to 20232022

State Year Number of Transfers
20212020 0
20222021 01
Colorado 20222023 10
20212620 0
NeneTotal 20212022 01
20222023 10

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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TABLE NO. 3

STATUS OF FRANCHISED OWNEB-OUTLETS

FOR YEARS 20202021 to 20222023

Ceased
Outlets at Reacquired | Operations | Outlets at
Start of Outlets Non- by for Other End
State Year Year Opened | Terminations | Renewals | Franchisor Reasons of Year
2021262
Colorado 9 ! 0 0 0 0 0 ]
2022202 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
2022202 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
3
. 2021262 20 0 0 0 0 0 20
EleridaConne 9
cticut 2022 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
023 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
Florida 2021 2 1 2 0 0 0 1
2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
202 ol o1 0 0 0 0 0 2
. 3 -
. 2021 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
Indiana
2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
2021202 0 01 0 0 0 0 01
Maryland 6
2021 4] + 4 4 0 4 +
2022 1 0 0 0 1 0 01
2023 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
2021262 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
Massachusett 0
S 2021 + 4] 4] 4] 0 4} +
2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 0
L. 2021262 o1 10 0 0 0 0 1
Michigan 0
2024 + 1] 0 0 0 0 +
2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 0
2021202 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
Y
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New 2021 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
Hampshire
2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 0
2021262 0 01 0 0 0 0 01
New Jersey 0
2022 1 1 0 0 0 0 2
2023 2 0 0 0 0 0 2
New York 2021 0 10 0 0 0 0 10
2022 10 10 0 0 0 0 20
2023 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
2021262 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
North 9
Carolina 2021 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2022 0 1 0 0 0 0
2020202 ) 0 0 0 0 0 1
Ohie 3
. 2021 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 0
) 2021262 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Pennsylvania 0
2021 0 0 0 0 0
2022 1 0 0 0 0 1
2020202 | 10 0 0 0 0 2 1
TFexas 3
2021 2 0 0 0 0 0 2
Texas
2022 2 0 0 0 0 0 2
2023 2 1 0 0 0 0 3
2020202 ! 0 0 0 0 0 1
Vermont 1
2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 0
. 2021 10 0 0 0 0 0 10
Virginia
2022 10 0 0 0 0 10
2020202 21 101
T 3 80 0 0 0 0
Totals 2021 10 4 2 0 0 0 12
2022 12 3 0 0 1 0 14
2023 14 3 0 0 0 0 17
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TABLE NO. 4
STATUS OF COMPANY OWNED OUTLETS

FOR YEARS 20202021 to 20222023

e
e
Nen Outlets | ensfor gult%
Outlets TFerminati | Renew | Reacqu | Other FrOTc}?i Outlets at End
at Start | Outlets e als ired by | Reasen e u oef sYear
State Year | of Year | Opened Franchi | sOutlet - -
sor s
Closed
262020 o
Maryland 21 0 0 0 0 0 0
202229 9
2 0 0 61 0 0 01
202220 0 0 0 1 0 1
01
23
202020 9
Totals 21 0 0 0 0 0 0
202229 9
2t 0 081 0 0 0 01
202220 0 0 0 0 1 0 1
23
TABLE NO. §
PROJECTED OPENINGS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 206222023
Arca Projected New
RepresentativeFranchi Franchised
54
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State se Agreement Signed OutletOutlets in the Projected New Company
but Outlet Not Opened Next Fiscal Year Owned Outlets in the Next
Fiscal Year
CeloradoUtah 0 1 0
Flovidy 9 4 4
‘ Massachusetis 0 2 0
‘ Michigan 0 2 0
New-Jersey 0 4 0
NevadaArizona 0 01 0
Neowth-Carobina o 6 9
Ohio 9 3 +
PennsylvaniaTotals 0 02
Texas 0 3 0
R 9 25 5

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

Notes to Tables:

If you buy this franchise, your contact information may be disclosed to other buyers when you leave
the franchise system.

During the last three fiscal years, no current or former area representative franchisees have signed
confidentiality clauses with us that restrict them from discussing with you their experiences as aan area
representative franchisee in our franchise system. We know of no area representative franchisee
organizations that are associated with our System and that-utilize our Licensed Marks or the V/O Med Spa
trade name as part of the franchisee erganizationsorganization’s name.

Exhibit F to this Disclosure Document contains a list of our then current area+epresentativesfranchisees of
an-Area Representative BusinessBusinesses as of the end of the Issuance Date of this Disclosure Document.

Exhibit G to this Disclosure Document contains a list of an area representatives-of an-AreaRepresentative
Businessrepresentative franchisees that had their Area Representative Business—terminated;Agreement

cancelled, not renewed or otherwise voluntarily or involuntarily ceased to do business under our
| FranchiseArea Representative Agreement during our most recently completed fiscal year or who has not
communicated with us within 10 weeks of the Issuance Date of this Disclosure Document.

ITEM 21
23 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Attached as Exhibit D isare our audited financial statements as-effor December 31, 20262023, December
31, 2022.262+ and December 31, 2022-0ur2021. We were established on January 30, 2018, and our fiscal
year ends on December 31.

ITEM 22
24 CONTRACTS

Our-AreaRepresentative-Agreement-is-attached Exhibits to this Disclosure Document-as

Exhibit E- Area Representative Agreement

The-following Agreements-are-attached-to-ourExhibit H State Specific Addenda

Schedules and Exhibits to the Area Representative Agreement:

Exhibit 1. Area Representative- Owners-and Spouse AR Owner Agreement and;- Guaranty
Exhibit 2- Confidentiality Agreement-FEerm-

Individual state law may supersede the provisions contained in your Area Representative Agreement
respecting the requirement that you execute a general release as a condition to assignment, sale or transfer.
See;Please review the state specific addendumsaddenda contained in Exhibit H of this Disclosure
Document.
25
ITEM 23
2526 RECEIPTS

Two copies of a detachable receipt in Exhibit I are located at the very end of this Disclosure Document.
Please sign one copy of the receipt and return it to us at the following address: Ryan Rose, Chief Exeeutive
OffieerPresident, VIO Franchise- GroupFRANCHISE GROUP, LLC, 3991 North Jefferson Street, Medina,
Ohio 44256. The duplicate is for your records.

[THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT ENDS HERE]
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List of State Administrators

California

Department of Financial Protection and Innovation

320 West 4th Street; Suite 750
Los Angeles, CA 90013

2101 Arena Boulevard
Sacramento, CA 95834
1-866-275-2677

Connecticut
Connecticut Banking Commissioner
Department of Banking

Securities & Business Investments Division

260 Constitution Plaza
Hartford, CT 06103

Florida

Division of Consumer Services
Attn: Business Opportunities
2005 Apalachee Parkway
Tallahassee, FL 32399

Hawaii

Commissioner of Securities

Dept of Commerce & Consumer Affairs
Business Registration Division

335 Merchant StreetSt, Room 203
Honolulu, HI 96813

Ilinois

Office of the Attorney General
Franchise Bureau

500 South Second Street
Springfield, IL 62706

Indiana

Indiana Secretary of State

Indiana Securities Division

Franchise Section

302 W. Washington Street Room E-111
Indianapolis, IN 46204

Kentucky
Office of the Attorney General

Consumer Protection Division
Attn: Business Opportunity
1024 Capital Center Drive
Frankfort, KY 40601

Maine

Department of Professional and Financial Regulations
Bureau of Banking

Securities Division

121 Statehouse Station

Augusta, ME 04333

Maryland

Office of the Attorney General
Securities Division

200 St. Paul Place

Baltimore, MD 21202

Michigan

Michigan Department of the Attorney General
Consumer Protection Division

Antitrust and Franchise Unit

670 Law Building

P-6-PO Box 30213

Lansing, MI 48909

Minnesota

Minnesota Department of Commerce
Securitios Divisi

85 7th Place East, Suite 280

St. Paul, MN 55101

Nebraska

Nebraska Department of Banking and Finance
Commerce Court

1230 O Street, Suite 400, Lincoln, NE 68509

New York

NY-SNew York State Department of Law
Investor Protection Bureau

28 Liberty Street, 21% Floor

New York, NY 10005
212-416-82222222

North Carolina

Secretary of State

Securities Division

300 North Salisbury Street, Suite 100
Raleigh, NC 27603

North Dakota

Office-of Securities CommissionerDepartment
600 East Boulevard;-5th Avenue, State Capitol
Fourteenth Floor Dept414

Department-4H4
Bismarck, ND 58505--0510
Phone 701-328-4712
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List of State Administrators (continued)

Rhode Island

Department of Business Registration
Division of Securities

233 Richmond Street; Suite 232
Providence, RI 02903

South Carolina

Office of the Secretary of State
1205 Pendleton Street

Edgar Brown Building, Suite 525
Columbia, SC 29201

South Dakota
Franchise Office
Division of Securities
910 E. Sioux Avenue
Pierre, SD 57501

Texas

Office of the Secretary of State
Statutory Document Section
1019 Brazos Street

Austin, TX 78701

Utah

Utah Department of Commerce
Division of Consumer Protection
160 East Three Hundred South
P-O-PO Box 146704

Salt Lake City, UT 84114

Virginia

State Corporation Commission

Division of Securities and Retail Franchising
1300 E. Main Street, 9th Floor

Richmond, VA 23219

Washington

Department of Financial Institutions
Securities Division

P.O-PO Box 9033

Olympia, WA 98507

360-902-8700

Wisconsin

Franchise Office

Wisconsin Securities Commission
P-O-PO Box 1768

Madison, WI 53701
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Agents for Service of Process

VIO Eranchise-GroupFRANCHISE GROUP, LLC,
3991 North Jefferson Street, Medina, Ohio 44256
Attn: Ryan Rose, Chief-Exeeuntive-OfficerPresident

California

Department of Financial Protection and Innovation
320 West 4th Street; Suite 750

Los Angeles, CA 90013

2101 Arena Boulevard
Sacramento, CA 95834
1-866-275-2677

Connecticut

Banking Commissioner

Department of Banking

Securities and Business Investment Division
260 Constitution Plaza

Hartford, CT 06103

Hawaii

Commissioner of Securities

DepartmentDept of Commerce & Consumer Affairs
Business Registration Division

335 Merchant Street;-SuiteSt, Room 203

Honolulu, HI 96813

Hlinois

Illinois Attorney General
500 South Second Street
Springfield, IL 62706

Maryland
Maryland Securities Commissioner

200 St. Paul Place
Baltimore, MD 21202

Michigan

Michigan Department of Commerce
Corporation and Securities Bureau
6546 Mercantile Way

Lansing, MI 48910

Minnesota

Commissioner of Commerce of Minnesota
Department of Commerce

85 7th Place East, Suite 280

St. Paul, MN 55101

New York

Secretary of State of the State of New York
99 Washington Avenue

Albany, NY 12231

North Dakota

North Dakota Securities Department
Securities Commissioner

600 East Boulevard Avenue, State Capitol
Fifth Floor, Dept 414

Bismarck, ND 58505

Phone 701-328-4712

Rhode Island

Director of Department of Business Regulation
233 Richmond Street, Suite 232

Providence, RI 02903

South Dakota

Director, Division of Securities
Department of Commerce and Regulation
445 East Capitol Avenue

Pierre, SD 57501

Virginia

Clerk of the State Corporation Commission
1300 East Main Street, 1** Floor
Richmond, VA 23219

Washington
Securities Administrator

Washington Department of Financial
Institutions

150 Israel Road SW

Tumwater, WA 98501

Wisconsin

Wisconsin Commissioner of Securities
345 W Washington Avenue

Madison, WI 53703
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V/0 Med Spa
FRANCHISE OPERATIONS MANUAL
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R. Evans & Assoc., Inc.

Certified Public Accountants
5260 Brookhaven Drive, North Royalton, Ohio 44133
Telephone (440) 409-2406, email RMCPA@aol.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors
VIO Franchise Group, LLC

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of VIO Franchise Group LLC, which comprise the balance
sheets as of December 31, 2023 and 2022 and the related statements of income, member's equity,
and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of VIO Franchise Group, LLC as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the results of
its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America (GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
required to be independent of VIO Franchise Group, LLC and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about VIO Franchise
Group, LLC's ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial
statements are available to be issued.




Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the

aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:

* Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

* |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing

an opinion on the effectiveness of VIO Franchise Group, LLC's internal control. Accordingly,
no such opinion is expressed.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant

accounting estimates made by management,as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

* Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about VIO Franchise Group, LLC's ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal
control related matters that we identified during the audit.

R. Evans and /0., Tnc.

R. EVANS & ASSOC., INC.
Certified Public Accountants

North Royalton, Ohio

March 14, 2024



VIO FRANCHISE GROUP, LLC
BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2023 and 2022

ASSETS
023 022
Current Assetls
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 726,259 1,101,290
Accounts Receivable - Franchisees 96,749 50,653
Accounts Receivable - Vendor Rebates 129,572 116,772
Prepaid Expenses 6,903 21,434
Note Receivable - Member 439,194 -0-
Notes Receivable - Related Parties 2,622 854
Total Current Assets 1,401,299 1,291,003
Property and Equipment
Furniture and Equipment 171,355 165,645
Sign 1915 4,113
179,270 172,758
Accumulated Depreciation (130,872) (95,446)
Net Property and Equipment 48,398 77,312
TOTAL ASSETS $ 1449697 $ 1368315

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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VIO FRANCHISE GROUP, LLC
BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2023 and 2022

LIABILITIES AND MEMBER'S EQUITY

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable - Trade
Accrued Commissions

Accrued Expenses

Accrued Payroll

Current Portion of Long-Term Debt
Note Payable - Member

Total Current Liabilities

Long-Term Liabilities

Long-Term Debt, Net of Current Portion
Total Liabilities
Member's Equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
MEMBER'S EQUITY

2023 2022
$ 26,481 $ 44,013
23,750 0=
4,494 8,214
8,724 G
2,800 2,630
-0- 788,098
66,249 842,955
155,607 161,979
221,856 1,004,934
1,227,841 363,381
$ 1449697 $ 1,368,315

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Revenues

VIO FRANCHISE GROUP, LLC
STATEMENTS OF INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 and 2022

Area Development Representative Fees

Initial Franchise Fees

Royalties, Net of $403,600 and $244,700 paid to

Area Representatives, respectively

Rebates
Brand Development Fees
Other Income

Total Revenues

Operating Expenses
Bank Charges
Brand Development
Commissions
Computer and Software
Consulting
Depreciation and Amortization
Dues and Subscriptions
Employee Benefits
Franchise Development
Insurance
Interest
Meals and Entertainment
Office Supplies
Payroll Taxes
Profit Sharing ,
Personnel and Uniforms
Professional Fees
Recruiting
Rent
Salaries and Wages
Subcontractor
Travel

Total Operating Expenses

NET INCOME

2023 2022
$ 610,000 $ 251,000
1,088,000 667,150
1,258,111 674,465
593,359 511,078
620,096 276,596
- 90,410
4,169,566 2,470,699
4,891 2,531
671,368 403,102
625,250 311,172
25804 77,416
10,140 24,860
35,426 33817
9,268 10,771
39,873 18,544
69,129 37,095
27,661 5177
3,301 14,709
51,363 15,005
10,137 29,355
97,710 50,688
27,932 7,392
866 6,575
147,716 190,702
7,024 9,184
26,000 12,333
1,255,335 582,524
0 58,967
158,912 166,928
3,305,106 2,068,847
$ 864,460 $ 401,852

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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VIO FRANCHISE GROUP, LLC
STATEMENTS OF MEMBER'S EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 and 2022

2023 2022
Member's Equity (Deficit) - Beginning of Year $ 363,381 % (538,471)
Net Income 864,460 401,852
Additional Paid-in-Capital -0- 500,000
Member's Equity - End of Year $ 1,227,841 % 363,381

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

6



VIO FRANCHISE GROUP, LLC
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 and 2022

2023 2022
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net Income $ 864,460 $ 401,852
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income to Net
Cash Provided by Operating Activities:

Depreciation and Amortization 35,426 33,817

Accrued Interest added to Long-Term Debt Loan -0- 14,709
(Increase) Decrease in Operating Assets:

Accounts Receivable - Franchisees (46,096) (10,201)

Accounts Receivable - Vendor Rebates (12,800) (106,876)

Prepaid Expenses 14,531 (21,434)

Deposits -0- 350
Increase (Decrease) in Operating Liabilities:

Accounts Payable - Trade (17,532) 32,604

Accrued Commissions 23,750 -0-

Accrued Expenses (3,720) (12,641)

Accrued Payroll 8,724 -0-

Total Adjustments 2,283 (69,672)

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 866,743 332,180
Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Note Receivable - Member (439,194) -0-

Notes Receivable - Related Parties (1,768) (854)

Loan Receivable - Related Party -0- 222,709

Acquisition of Property and Equipment (6,512) (6,300)
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Investing Activities (447,474) 215,555
Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Proceeds from (Principal Payments of) Note Payable -

Member (788,098) 23,785

Principal Payments of Long-Term Debt (6,202) -0-
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Financing Activities (794,300) 23.785
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND

CASH EQUIVALENTS (375,031) 571520
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING

OF YEAR 1,101,290 529,770
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR $ 726,259 $ 1,101,290

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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VIO FRANCHISE GROUP, LLC
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 and 2022

2023 2022
Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flows
Cash Paid for Interest 3 3,301 & -0-
Noncash Activity
Conversion of Note Payable - Related Party to
Additional Paid-in-Capital $ 0- % 500,000

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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VIO FRANCHISE GROUP, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2023 and 2022

NOTE 1 - NATURE OF BUSINESS

VIO Franchise Group, LLC (VFG) is in the medical spa business. VFG was organized in the
state of Ohio as a limited liability company effective on January 30, 2018. VFG is owned 100%
by VIO Holdings, LLC (VH), an Ohio limited liability company. VH also owns 100% of VIO Med
Spa's Strongsville, Ohio location. During 2023, there were thirty-four (34) VFG medical spa
franchise locations sold, twenty-one (21) VFG medical spa franchise locations opened, and as
of December 31, 2023, there was a total of thirty-seven (37) VFG medical spa franchise
locations that were open and operating. During 2022, there were eighteen (18) VFG medical
spa franchise locations sold, seven (7) VFG medical spa franchise locations opened, and as of
December 31, 2022, there was a total of sixteen (16) VFG medical spa franchise locations that
were open and operating. The franchisees are located in various states. The VFG corporate
headquarters are located in Medina, Ohio.

VIO Med Spa is an age-defying, beauty and wellness spa that provides innovative services for
both men and women who want to retain a youthful look and feel without engaging in invasive
procedures. As a national brand, VIO Med Spa strives to provide an exceptional experience,
consistent services and products and results that meet the needs of its customers.

VIO Med Spa offers customers traditional spa services, such as facials and chemical peels, as
well as non-invasive medical spa services. such as injectables, fillers and threading. VIO Med
Spa aspires to be the innovative leader in the medical spa industry by offering the latest
technologies and therapies offered in the weliness and aesthetics industry. Services offered
include injectables, dermal fillers, and neurotoxins; spa facials, chemical peels, and
dermaplaning; fat reducing cryolipolysis; muscle toning, and skin tightening; platelet-rich plasma
therapy; microneedling; retail skincare products, and other spa related services.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Method of Accounting and Basis of Presentation

The accompanying financial statements are presented in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles accepted in the United States of America. The accompanying financial
statements are prepared on the accrual method of accounting, recognizing income when earned
and expenses when incurred.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported
amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
VFG considers all liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less to cash equivalents.




VIO FRANCHISE GROUP, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2023 and 2022

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Accounts Receivable - Franchisees

Accounts receivable from franchisees of $96,749 and $50,653 at December 31, 2023 and 2022,
respectively, represents royalties and marketing revenues from VFG's franchisees. These
receivable balances were collected in January, 2024 and January, 2023, respectively, and
therefore no allowance for doubtful accounts is necessary. Management estimates the
uncollectible receivables based on historical collection experience coupled with a review of the
current status of existing receivables. When management considers an account to be
uncollectible, it is written off as a bad debt in current year operations.

Accounts Receivable - Vendor Rebates

Accounts receivable from vendors for rebates of $129,572 and $116,772 at December 31, 2023
and 2022, respectively, represents rebates due from VFG's vendors, per operating agreements.
Management considers these balances to be collectible, therefore, no allowance for doubtful
accounts is necessary. When management considers an account to be uncollectible, it is written
off as a bad debt in current year operations.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Depreciation is provided using straight-line
methods over estimated useful lives for book purposes and accelerated methods over estimated
useful lives for tax purposes. Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to
operations as incurred. Expenditures for betterment and major renewals are capitalized. The
cost of assets sold or retired and the related amounts of accumulated depreciation are
eliminated from the accounts in the year of disposal and the resulting gains or losses are
included in operations.

Assets are depreciated based on the following useful lives:

Furniture and Equipment 5 years
Sign 5 years
Advertising

VFG's policy is to expense advertising costs as incurred.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2022 financial statements to conform to the
2023 financial statement presentation. There was no effect on net income or equity as
previously reported.

Income Taxes

VFG is a single member Limited Liability Company under the provisions of the Internal Revenue
Code and is treated as a Limited Liability Company for federal income tax purposes.
Consequently, federal income taxes are not payable or provided for by VFG, as the Member is
taxed individually on the company's earnings.

10



VIO FRANCHISE GROUP, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2023 and 2022

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income Taxes (Continued)

VFG has adopted the provisions of ASC Topic 740-10-25, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income
Taxes, which prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the recognition
and measurement of tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. ASC Topic 740-
10-25 also provides guidance on de-recognition of income tax assets and liabilities,
classification of current and deferred income tax assets and liabilities, and accounting for
interest and penalties associated with tax positions. Since tax matters are subject to some
degree of uncertainty, there can be no assurance that VFG's tax returns will not be challenged
by the taxing authorities and that VFG will not be subject to additional tax, penaities and interest
as a result of such challenge. Generally, VFG's tax returns remain open for three years for
federal income tax examination. For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, VFG has
no material uncertain tax positions to be accounted for in the financial statements under these
rules.

NOTE 3 - REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue Recognition Guidance

The Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued and amended guidance for revenue
recognition under Accounting Standard Codification 606, Revenue Recognition (ASC Topic
606). The guidance outlines a single comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. The core principle of the guidance is that an
entity should recognize revenue for the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods and services. To achieve that core principle, an entity should apply the
following steps: (1) identify the entity's contracts with customers, (2) identify the performance
obligations in the contract, (3) determine the transaction price, (4) allocate the transaction price
to the performance obligations in the contract, and (5) recognize revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation.

Nature of Goods and Services

VFG generates revenues from sales at franchised store locations. The contractual franchise
agreement provides the franchisee the right to own and operate a VIO Med Spa franchised
store location upon a site approved by VFG. The contractual franchise agreement generally
provides for a ten (10) year term and a ten (10) year renewal term, subject to certain conditions.

Initial Franchise Fees

Upon signing a franchise agreement, the franchisee is required to pay a non-refundable Initial
Franchise Fee (the “Initial Franchise Fee") to VFG for the first franchise location, and a non-
refundable Initial Franchise Fee for each additional franchise location. The Initial Franchise Fee
requires VFG to provide certain pre-opening services to the franchisee. These pre-opening
services provided by VFG includes, a) assistance in the selection of a site for the franchisee's

11




VIO FRANCHISE GROUP, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2023 and 2022

NOTE 3 - REVENUE RECOGNITION (continued)

Initial Franchise Fees (continued)

location, b) assistance in obtaining and preparing the facilities for their intended use, c) training
of the franchisee’s personnel and the franchisee, d) preparation and distribution of manuals
concerning operations, administration, and record keeping, e) bookkeeping, information
technology, and advisory services, and f) inspection, testing and establishing a quality control
program. VFG has determined that the value of the pre-opening services they provide to a
franchisee exceeds the Initial Franchise Fee. Since VFG is a nonpublic franchisor, VFG has
elected to use the practical expedient available in the FASB Accounting Standards Update No.
2021-02 dated January 2021. The practical expedient permits franchisors that are not public
business entities to account for pre-opening services provided to a franchisee as distinct from
the license if the services are consistent with those included in a predefined list within the
guidance.

In addition, VFG has made the accounting policy election to recognize pre-opening services as
a single performance obligation, which allows VFG to recognize the revenue when the pre-
opening services are provided, and not defer and recognize the revenue over the contractual
term of the franchise agreement. Since the value of VFG’s pre-opening services provided to
franchisees exceeds the Initial Franchise Fee, there is no deferral of revenue for Initial
Franchise Fees.

Area Development Agreements

VFG offers opportunities to become an area representative within a designated territory to
solicit, screen, recruit, train and support VIO Med Spa franchises within a designated territory.
The Area Representative Fee is $10,000 per Spa Location Franchise that VFG designates for
development. There is a minimum purchase of five (5) franchises and a maximum purchase of
one-hundred (100) franchises for development, making the total investment by an area
representative anywhere from $50,000 to $1,000,000. The Area Representative Fee is payable
in a lump sum to VFG when the Area Representative Agreement is signed, and is not
refundable under any circumstances. Revenue is recognized by VFG upon the sale of the area
development agreement, as no further performance obligations exist for VFG.

Rovalty and Brand Development Fees

The franchise agreement requires the franchisee to pay a royalty fee of 6% of its gross sales
and a brand development fee up to 2% of its gross sales weekly on the Thursday of each week
for the preceding week. These fees are recognized as revenue by VFG when the franchisee
has provided the services and goods to the consumer.

Other Fees

Other fees, such as technical assistance fees and renewal fees, are due upon execution of the
related franchise agreement, and are recognized as revenue by VFG at the time the related
franchise agreement is signed.
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VIO FRANCHISE GROUP, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2023 and 2022

NOTE 3 - REVENUE RECOGNITION (continued)

Contract Balances

Contract balance receivables at December 31, 2023 or 2022 are classified as accounts
receivable - franchisees in the accompanying financial statements.

NOTE 4 - NOTE RECEIVABLE - MEMBER

Note receivable - member represents a note receivable from VIO Holdings, LLC (100% member
owner of VFG) in the amount of $439,194 at December 31, 2023. The note receivable is
payable on demand, non-interest bearing and unsecured.

NOTE 5 - NOTE PAYABLE - MEMBER

Note payable - member represents a note payable to VIO Holdings, LLC (100% member owner
of VFG), in the amount of $788,098 at December 31, 2022. The note payable was repaid in
2023 and was non-interest bearing and unsecured. During 2022, per agreement with VIO
Holdings, LLC, VFG converted $500,000 of the loan payable balance to additional paid-in-
capital.

NOTE 6 - LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term debt consists of the following at December 31, 2023 and 2022:

2023 2022
Note Payable - Economic Injury Disaster Loan (EIDL)
Installment term loan acquired to alleviate economic
injury caused by COVID-19, requires monthly
payments of $731 to be made through July 21, 2050,
payments include interest at 3.75% which have been
added to the loan payable balance. The loan is
secured by a continuing security interest in all assets
GG $ 158,407 $ 164,609
Current portion 2,800 2,630
Long-term portion 3 155,607 $ 161,979
Future minimum payments of long-term debt are as follows:
2024 $ 2,800
2025 2,907
2026 3,018
2027 8,132
2028 3.263
Thereafter 143,296
$ 158,407
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VIO FRANCHISE GROUP, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2023 and 2022

NOTE 7 - OPERATING LEASE

VFG leases office space in Medina, Ohio on a month-to-month lease. The monthly rental
payments are as follows: $600 monthly from June 2021 through May 2022; increased to $1,333
monthly from June 2022 through July 2023; and increased to $3,333 monthly beginning in
August 2023.

In February 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued ASC Topic 842,
Leases, which became effective for private companies for years beginning after December 15,
2021. ASC Topic 842, Leases requires lessees to recognize on the company's balance sheet
the assets and liabilities that arise from leases. A lessee should recognize in the balance sheet
a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset, and a lease liability on
which the lessee must make lease payments. ASC Topic 842, Leases does not apply to lease
terms that are less than twelve months. Therefore, since VFG's lease is on a month-to-month
basis, VFG is not required to adopt ASC Topic 842, Leases in the accompanying financial
statements, and instead records rent expense on a monthly basis.

NOTE 8 -PROFIT-SHARING PLAN

Effective January 1, 2022, VFG implemented a 401(k) profit-sharing plan for all qualified
employees. Eligible employees make voluntary contributions. VFG is required to make a safe -
harbor contribution equal to 100% of the first 3% of compensation and 50% of the next 2% of
compensation for all eligible employees. Profit sharing expense was $27,932 and $7,392 for
2023 and 2022, respectively.

NOTE 9 - CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

VFG maintains its cash balances at various financial institutions. Accounts at each institution
are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to $250,000. At December 31,
2023 and 2022, VFG's uninsured cash balances totaled $478,827 and $855,242, respectively.

NOTE 10 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS REVIEW

Management has evaluated subsequent events through March 14, 2024, which was the date
that the financial statements were available to be issued. No significant matters were identified
for disclosure during this evaluation.
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R. Evans & Assoc., Inc.

Certified Public Accountants
5260 Brookhaven Drive, North Royalton, Ohio 44133
Telephone (440) 409-2406, email RMCPA@aol.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors
VIO Franchise Group, LLC

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of VIO Franchise Group LLC, which comprise the balance
sheets as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 and the related statements of income, member's equity
(deficit), and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of VIO Franchise Group, LLC as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, and the results of
its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America (GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
required to be independent of VIO Franchise Group, LLC and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about VIO Franchise
Group, LLC's ability to continue as a going concern for one year after the date that the financial
statements are available to be issued.




Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are {o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
coliusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:
* Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures inciude examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audii
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of VIO Franchise Group, LLC's internal control. Accordingly,
no such opinion is expressed.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management,as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

* Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about VIO Franchise Group, LLC's ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal
control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

B Evane and sssc., Tne.

R. EVANS & ASSOC., INC.
Certified Public Accountants

North Royalton, Ohio

April 24, 2023




VIO FRANCHISE GROUP, LLC
BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2022 and 2021

ASSETS
2022 2021
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 1,101,280 % 529,770
Accounts Receivable - Franchisees 50,653 40,452
Accounts Receivable - Vendor Rebates 116,772 9,896
Prepaid Expenses 21,434 -0-
Notes Receivable - Related Parties 854 -0-
Total Current Assets 1,291,003 580,118
Property and Equipment
Furniture and Equipment 165,645 159,345
Sign 7,113 7,113
172,758 166,458
Accumulated Depreciation (95,446) (61,629)
Net Property and Equipment 77,312 104,829
Other Assets
l.oan Receivable - Related Party -0- 222,709
Deposits -0- 350
Total Other Assets -0- 223,059
TOTAL ASSETS $ 1.368.316 3. 908.008

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



VIO FRANCHISE GROUP, LLC
BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2022 and 2021

LIABILITIES AND MEMBER'S EQUITY (DEFICIT)

2022 2021
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable - Trade $ 44013 % 11,409
Accrued Expenses 8,214 20,855
Current Portion of Long-Term Debt 2,630 -0-
Note Payable - Related Party 788,098 1,264,313
Total Current Liabilities 842 955 1,296,577
Long-Term Liabilities
Long-Term Debt, Net of Current Portion 161,979 149,900
Total Liabilities 1,004,934 1,446,477
Member's Equity (Deficit) 363,381 (538,471)
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
MEMBER'S EQUITY (DEFICIT) $ 1,368,315 % 908,006

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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VIO FRANCHISE GROUP, LLC

STATEMENTS OF INCOME

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 and 2021

2022 2021
Revenues
Area Development Representative Fees $ 251,000 3 510,000
Initial Franchise Fees 667,150 144,000
Royalties, Net of $244,700 and $117,952 paid to
Area Representatives, respectively 674,465 369,735
Rebates 511,078 165,256
Brand Development Fees 276,596 159,843
Cther Income 90,410 42,054
Total Revenues 2,470,699 1,390,888
Operating Expenses
Bank Charges 2,531 637
Brand Development 440,197 123,356
Commissions 311,172 293,000
Computer and Software 77,416 14,110
Consulting 24,860 5172
Depreciatiocn and Amortization 33,817 33,291
Dues and Subscriptions 10,391 5,004
Employee Benefits 18,544 5,958
Insurance 5177 30,742
Interest 14,709 11
Licenses and Permits 380 1,061
Meals and Entertainment 15,005 1,518
Office Supplies 29,355 16
Payroll Taxes 50,688 15,133
Profit Sharing 7,392 -0-
Personnel and Uniforms 6,575 -0-
Professional Fees 190,702 126,449
Recruiting 9,184 -0-
Rent 12,333 4,288
Salaries and Wages 582,524 171,797
Subcontractor 58,967 140,126
Travel 166,928 7,979
Total Operating Expenses 2,068,847 979,648
NET INCOME $ 401,852 $ 411,240

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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VIO FRANCHISE GROUP, LLC
STATEMENTS OF MEMBER'S EQUITY (DEFICIT)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 and 2021

2022 2021
Member's (Deficit) - Beginning of Year $ (538,471) $ (949,711)
Net Income 401,852 411,240
Additional Paid-in-Capital 500,000 -0-
Member's Equity (Deficit) - End of Year $ 363,381 $ (538,471)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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VIO FRANCHISE GROUP, LLC
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 and 2021

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net Income

Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income o Net
Cash Provided by Operating Activities:

Depreciation and Amortization
Accrued Interest added to Long-Term Debt Loan

(Increase) Decrease in Operating Assets:
Accounts Receivable - Franchisees
Accounts Receivable - Vendor Rebates
Prepaid Expenses
Deposits

increase (Decrease) in Operating Liabilities:
Accounts Payable - Trade
Accrued and Withheld Payroll Taxes
Accrued Expenses

Total Adjustments
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Notes Receivable - Related Parties
Loan Receivable - Related Party
Acquisition of Property and Equipment
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Investing Activities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Proceeds frem (Principal Payments of) Note Payable -
Related Party
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Financing Activities

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING
OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR

2022 2021
$ 401,852 §$ 411,240
33,817 33,291
14,709 -0-
(10,201) (28,148)
(106,876) 1,908
(21,434) 8,016
350 -0-
32,604 (1,268)
-0- (3,235)
(12,641) (5,086)
(69,672) 5,478
332,180 416,718
(854) -0-
222,709 (21,694)
(6,300) -0-
215,555 (21,694)
23,785 (111,214)
23,785 (111,214)
571,520 283,810
529,770 245,960
$ 1,101,290 $ 529,770

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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VIO FRANCHISE GROUP, LLC
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 and 2021

2022
Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flows
Cash Paid for Interest $ -0- %
Nencash Activity
Conversion of Note Payable - Related Party to
Additional Paid-in-Capital $ 500,000 $

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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VIO FRANCHISE GROUP, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2022 and 2021

NOTE 1 - NATURE OF BUSINESS

VIO Franchise Group, LLC (VFG) is in the medical spa business. VFG was organized in the
state of Ohio as a limited liability company effective on January 30, 2018. VFG is owned 100%
by VIO Holdings, LLC (VH), an Chio limited liability company. VH also owns 100% of VIO Med
Spa’s Strongsville, Ohio location. During 2022, there were eighteen (18) VFG medical spa
franchise locations sold, seven (7) VFG medical spa franchise locations opened, and as of
December 31, 2022, there was a total of sixteen (16) VFG medical spa franchise locations that
were open and operating. During 2021, there were nine (9) VFG medical spa franchise
locations sold, two (2) VFG medical spa franchise locations opened, and as of December 31,
2021, there was a total of nine (9) VFG medical spa franchise locations that were open and
operating. The franchisees are located in varicus states. The VFG corporate headquarters are
located in Medina, Ohio.

VIO Med Spa is an age-defying, beauty and wellness spa that provides innovative services for
both men and women who want to retain a youthful look and feel without engaging in invasive
procedures. As a national brand, VIO Med Spa strives to provide an exceptional experience,
consistent services and products and results that meet the needs of its customers.

VIO Med Spa offers customers traditional spa services, such as facials and chemical peels, as
well as non-invasive medical spa services. such as injectables, fillers and threading. VIO Med
Spa aspires to be the innovative leader in the medical spa industry by offering the latest
technologies and therapies offered in the wellness and aesthetics industry. Services offered
include injectables, dermal fillers, and neurotoxins; spa facials, chemical peels, and
dermaplaning; fat reducing cryolipolysis; muscle toning, and skin tightening; platelet-rich plasma
therapy; microneediing; retail skincare products, and other spa related services.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Method of Accounting and Basis of Presentation

The accompanying financial statements are presented in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles accepted in the United States of America. The accompanying financial
statements are prepared on the accrual method of accounting, recognizing income when earned
and expenses when incurred.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported
amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
VFG considers all liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less to cash equivalents.




VIO FRANCHISE GROUP, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2022 and 2021

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Accounts Receivable - Franchisees

Accounts receivable from franchisees of $50,653 and $40,452 at December 31, 2022 and 2021,
respectively, represenis royalties and marketing revenues from VFG’s franchisees. These
receivable balances were collected in January, 2023 and January, 2022, respeciively, and
therefore no allowance for doubtful accounts is necessary. Management estimates the
uncollectible receivables based on historical collection experience coupled with a review of the
current status of existing receivables. When management considers an account to be
uncollectible, it is written off as a bad debt in current year operations.

Accounts Receivable - Vendor Rebates

Accounts receivable from vendors for rebates of $116,772 and $9,896 at December 31, 2022
and 2021, respectively, represents rebates due from VFG's vendors, per operating agreements.
Management considers these balances to be collectible, therefore, no allowance for doubtful
accounts is necessary. When management considers an account to be uncollectible, it is written
off as a bad debt in current year operations.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Depreciation is provided using straight-line
methods over estimated useful lives for book purposes and accelerated methods over estimated
useful lives for tax purposes. Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to
operations as incurred. Expenditures for betterment and major renewals are capitalized. The
cost of assets sold or retired and the related amounts of accumulated depreciation are
eliminated from the accounts in the year of disposal and the resulting gains or losses are
included in operations.

Assets are depreciated based on the following useful lives:

Furniture and Equipment 5 years
Sign 5 years
Advertising

VFG's policy is to expense advertising costs as incurred.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2021 financial statements to conform to the
2022 financial statement presentation. There was no effect on net income or equity as
previously reperted.

Income Taxes

VFG is a single member Limited Liability Company under the provisions of the Internal Revenue
Code and is treated as a Limited Liability Company for federal income tax purposes.
Consequently, federal income taxes are not payable or provided for by VFG, as the Member is
taxed individually on the company's earnings.
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VIO FRANCHISE GROUP, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2022 and 2021

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income Taxes {Continued)

VFG has adopted the provisions of ASC Topic 740-10-25, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income
Taxes, which prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement atiribute for the recognition
and measurement of tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. ASC Topic 740-
10-25 also provides guidance on de-recognition of income tax assets and liabilities,
classification of current and deferred income tax assets and liabilities, and accounting for
interest and penalties associated with tax positions. Since tax matters are subject to some
degree of uncertainty, there can be no assurance that VFG's tax returns will not be challenged
by the taxing authorities and that VFG will not be subject to additional tax, penalties and interest
as a result of such challenge. Generally, VFG's tax returns remain open for three years for
federal income tax examination. For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, VFG has
no material uncertain tax positions to be accounted for in the financial statements under these
rules.

NOTE 3 - REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue Recognition Guidance

The Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued and amended guidance for revenue
recognition under Accounting Standard Codification 606, Revenue Recognition (ASC Topic
606). The guidance outlines a single comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. The core principle of the guidance is that an
entity should recognize revenue for the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods and services. To achieve that core principle, an entity should apply the
following steps: (1) identify the entity's contracts with customers, (2) identify the performance
obligations in the contract, (3) determine the transaction price, (4) allocate the transaction price
to the performance obligations in the contract, and (5) recognize revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation.

Nature of Goods and Services

VFG generates revenues from sales at franchised store locations. The contractual franchise
agreement provides the franchisee the right to own and operate a VIO Med Spa franchised
store location upon a site approved by VFG. The contractual franchise agreement generaily
provides for a ten (10) year term and a ten (10) year renewal term, subject to certain conditions.

initial Franchise Fees

Upon signing a franchise agreement, the franchisee is required to pay a non-refundable Initial
Franchise Fee (the “Initial Franchise Fee") to VFG for the first franchise location, and a non-
refundable Initial Franchise Fee for each additional franchise location. The Initial Franchise Fee
requires VFG to provide certain pre-opening services to the franchisee. These pre-opening
services provided by VFG includes, a) assistance in the selection of a site for the franchisee’s
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VIO FRANCHISE GROUP, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2022 and 2021

NOTE 3 - REVENUE RECOGNITION (continued)

Initial Franchise Fees (continued)

location, b) assistance in obtaining and preparing the facilities for their intended use, ¢) training
of the franchisee’s personnel and the franchisee, d) preparation and distribution of manuals
concerning operations, administration, and record keeping, e) bookkeeping, information
technology, and advisory services, and f) inspection, testing and establishing a quality control
program. VFG has determined that the value of the pre-opening services they provide to a
franchisee exceeds the Initial Franchise Fee. Since VFG is a nonpublic franchisor, VFG has
elected to use the practical expedient available in the FASB Accounting Standards Update No.
2021-02 dated January 2021. The practical expedient permits franchisors that are not public
business entities to account for pre-opening services provided to a franchisee as distinct from
the license if the services are consistent with those included in a predefined list within the
guidance.

In addition, VFG has made the accounting policy election to recognize pre-opening services as
a single performance obligation, which allows VFG to reccgnize the revenue when the pre-
opening services are provided, and not defer and recognize the revenue over the contractual
term of the franchise agreement. Since the value of VFG’s pre-opening services provided to
franchisees exceeds the Initial Franchise Fee, there is no deferral of revenue for Initial
Franchise Fees.

Area Development Agreementis

VFG offers opportunities to become an area representative within a designated territory to
solicit, screen, recruit, train and support VIO Med Spa franchises within a designated territory.
The Area Representative Fee is $10,000 per Spa Location Franchise that VFG designates for
development. There is a minimum purchase of five (5) franchises and a maximum purchase of
one-hundred (100) franchises for development, making the total investment by an area
representative anywhere from $50,000 to $1,000,000. The Area Representative Fee is payable
in a lump sum to VFG when the Area Representative Agreement is signed, and is not
refundable under any circumstances. Revenue is recognized by VFG upon the sale of the area
development agreement, as no further performance obligations exist for VFG.

Rovyalty and Brand Development Fees

The franchise agreement requires the franchisee to pay a royalty fee of 6% of its gross sales
and a brand development fee up to 2% of its gross sales weekly on the Thursday of each week
for the preceding week. These fees are recognized as revenue by VFG when the franchisee
has provided the services and goods to the consumer.

Other Fees

Other fees, such as technical assistance fees and renewal fees, are due upon execution of the
related franchise agreement, and are recognized as revenue by VFG at the time the related
franchise agreement is signed.
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VIO FRANCHISE GROUP, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2022 and 2021

NOTE 3 - REVENUE RECOGNITION (continued)

Contract Balances

Contract balance receivables at December 31, 2022 or 2021 are classified as accounis
receivable - franchisees in the accompanying financial statements.

NOTE 4 - LOAN RECEIVABLE - RELATED PARTY

VFG has a loan receivable from VIO Med Spa Strongsville, LLC (100% owned affiliate of VH) of
$222,709 at December 31, 2021. The loan receivable was repaid in 2022. The loan receivable
was non-interest bearing and unsecured.

NOTE 5 - NOTE PAYABLE - RELATED PARTY

Note payable - related party represents a note payable to VIO Holdings, LL.C (100% Member
owner of VFG), in the amount of $788,098 and $1,264,313 at December 31, 2022 and 2021,
respectively. The note payable has no scheduled principal payments, is non-interest bearing, is
payable on demand, and is unsecured. During 2022, per agreement with VIO Holdings, LLC,
VFG converied $500,000 of the loan payable balance to additional paid-in-capital that is
included in equity as of December 31, 2022,

NOTE 6 - LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term debt consists of the following at December 31, 2022 and 2021:

2022 2021
Note Payable - Economic Injury Disaster Loan (EIDL)
Installiment term loan acquired to alleviate economic
injury caused by COVID-19, requires monthly
payments of $731 to be made from January, 2023
through December, 2053, payments include interest
at 3.75% which have been added to the loan payable
balance. The loan is secured by a continuing
security interest in all assets of VFG.
$ 164,609 $ 149,200
Current portion 2,630 -0-
Long-term portion $ 161,979 $ 149,900
Future minimum payments of long-term debt are as follows:
2023 $ 2,630
2024 2,745
2025 2,849
2026 2,958
2027 3,071
Thereafter 150,356
3 164,609
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VIO FRANCHISE GROUP, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2022 and 2021

NOTE 7 - OPERATING LEASE

VFG leases office space in Medina, Ohio on a month-to-month basis. The lease terms are for
monthly rental payments to be made of $600 from June 2021 through May 2022, and monthly
rental payments to be made of $1,333 beginning June 2022.

In February 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued ASC Topic 842,
Leases, which becomes effective for private companies for years beginning after December 15,
2021. This accounting pronouncement supersedes existing guidance on accounting for leases
contained in ASC Topic 840, Leases. ASC Topic 842, Leases requires lessees to recognize
the assets and liabilities that arise from leases on their balance sheet. A lessee should
recognize in the balance sheet a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying
asset, and a lease liability on which the lessee must make lease payments. ASC Topic 842,
Leases does not apply to lease terms that are less than twelve months. Therefore, VSG is not
required to adopt ASC Topic 842, Leases in the accompanying financial statements, and
instead records rent expense on a monthly basis.

NOTE 8 -PROFIT-SHARING PLAN

Effective January 1, 2022, VFG implemented a 401(k) profit-sharing plan for all quaiified
employees. Eligible employees make voluntary contributions. VFG is required to make a safe -
harbor contribution equal to 100% of the first 3% of compensation and 50% of the next 2% of
cempensation for all eligible employees. Profit sharing expense was $7,392 for 2022.

NOTE 9 - CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

VFG maintains its cash balances at various financial institutions. Accounis at each institution
are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to $250,000. At December 31,
2022 and 2021, VFG's uninsured cash balances totaled $855,242 and $279,770, respectively.

NOTE 10 - EFFECTS OF THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC

The COVID-19 pandemic in the United States has caused many businesses disruptions through
mandated closures. The extent of the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on VFG’s operations
and financial performance will depend on future developments, including the duration and
spread of the COVID-19 pandemic, impact on VFG’s franchisees, customers, employees, and
vendors, all of which are uncertain and cannot be predicted. During 2022 and 2021, there has
been no adverse effect on VFG's franchise business operations.

NOTE 11 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS REVIEW

Management has evaluated subsequent events through April 24, 2023, which was the date that
the financial statements were available to be issued. No significant matters were identified for
disclosure during this evaluation.
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AREA REPRESENTATIVE AGREEMENT

This Area Representative Agreement (the “Agreement”) is entered into on ————
(the “Effective Date”), by and between VIO Franchise-GroupFRANCHISE GROUP, LLC an Ohio lLimited
liability-eompanyLimited Liability Company with a principal place of business located at 3991 North

Jefferson Street, Medina, Ohio 44256;—(the— (“Franchisor®)”), and ———(the—Area

RECITALS

WHEREAS, Franchisor has developed a distinctive and proprietary system (the “System”) for the nen-
medieal-development;-management and;petentially;-the operation of a spa-(the“V/O Med Spa™) that offers
and provides retail skincare, cosmetic health and wellness medical spa products and services that include
facials, chemical skin peels, neurotoxin injectables, injectable dermal fillers, skin rejuvenation and
tightening (e.g., microneedling, radio frequency microneedling, intense pulsed light therapy, plasma
fibroblast, etc.) body contouring (e.g., high-intensity focused electromagnetic stimulation, cryolipolysis,
etc.), platelet-rich plasma therapy treatments, facial and body lifting and smooth threads, wellness therapy
(e.g., bioidentical hormone replacement therapy, IV hydration therapy, nutrition supplement injections,
sexual wellness, etc.), light therapy, and other cosmetic medical spa and spa related services and retail
products that Franchisor authorizes (the “Approved Spa-Products and Services”) under the Licensed Marks
(defined below;) (each, a “V/O Med Spa”);

WHEREAS, the-System-relates-to-and-ineludesthis Agreement is for the development and operation of a
spa—leea&eﬂ—ffaﬂehiseéan area representatlve busmess (hﬁ%ﬁﬁ%&%ﬁeﬁ%ﬁ—&%%ﬂ

1
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franchise development franch1se marketmg, and spa—ﬁaerl—ttyebased—francmsee trammg and support serv1ces

¢ .AR SerV1ces onbehalf

of F ranchlsor in connection w1th the sales, development, trammg and support of V/O Med Spa franchisees
(each a “Unit Franchise”) in accordance with the requirements of this Agreement and the System (defined

below):

WHEREAS, Asas part of the System, Franchisor has developed systems and procedures for the marketing
and promotion of SpateeationUnit Franchises and the training and operational support of franchisees of
SpateeationUnit Franchises, and the term “System” further includes Franchisor’s designated procedures,
specifications, marketing plans, development strategies, equipment, supplies, confidential information, and
trade secrets for the development and operation of an Area Representative Business that offers and provides
the AR Services;

WHEREAS, Area Representative has requested the non-exclusive license and right;-pursuant-to-the-terms
ofthis-Agreement- to develop and operate an Area Representative Business to be developed and operated
within a designated geographic territory (the “Area Representative Territory-as-set-forth-in-this- Agreement

and-") and to provide, on behalf of Franchisor and in accordance with a-developmentschedule-thatmustbe
strietly-adhered-to;the terms of this Agreement, AR Services related to the Area Representative Territory
Unit Franchisee’s that are located within and operate within the Area Representative Territory; and

WHEREAS, Eaeh—Spa—tecationcach Unit Franchise to be developed and operated within the Area
Representative Territory must be developed and operated, as designated by Franchisor, in compliance with
the System and -aceordanee-with-the applicable franchise agreement (each, a “Unit Franchise Agreement

« : ) < ; : el

{cach. —a — “Franchisc — Agrcement™ —or — “Spa— Location — Franchisc — Agreement™)
) between Franchisor and each authorized franchisee (each, an “AR Unit Franchisee”) of a Spatoecation

Repfeseﬂt&ﬁ%%&SpaJ:ee&tmn%ﬁaﬂehﬁ%mﬁeeefdaﬂeewﬁhV/O Med Spa developed durlng the tefmsef

th%Ff&aehs%Agfeema}Q—a%&aﬂmg—ﬁaemty—aﬂd—feﬁﬁpwpesemmal term of earrying-eut-and
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within the Area Representative Territory.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals and other good and valuable consideration,
the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby mutually acknowledged, the parties do hereby agree, as
follows:

SECTION 1
2628 DEFINITIONS

Supplementing the terms and definitions contained in the foregoing “Recitals™::

“Abandon”-refers-te-and means the conduct of Area Representative, including acts of omission as well as
commission, indicating the willingness, desire or intent of Area Representative to discontinue the operations
of the Area Representative Business.

“Aggregate Development Quota” refers-te-and-means, in aggregate, the number of Development Spa
EeeationUnit Franchises that must be established and in operation within the Area Representative Territory
during the Initial Term of this Agreement and in accordance with the Development Schedule. Area
Representative’s Aggregate Development Quota is identified and set forth in Schedule 12 of this
Agreement.

“Approved Products and Services” shall have the meaning defined in the Recitals section of this

Agreement and shall further refer to and mean those products and services that Franchisor authorizes for
V/O Med Spas.

“AR Affiliates” refers-to-and-meanmeans, individually and/or collectively: (a) if Area Representative is a
Corporate Entity, each current and, if applicable, prior Owner of Area Representative; (b) if Area
Representative is an individual or individuals, each individual identified as an Area Representative; (c) a

3

V/O Med Spa. AR FDD. April 18, 2024



Corporate Entity that is in any way owned or controlled by an Owner or prior Owner irrespective of the
percentage of ownership or control; and (d) a Corporate Entity that is in any way owned or controlled by
any individual identified as an Area Representative-and/ortheirspouses.

“AR Franchise Fee Compensation” means, subject to the terms of this Agreement, the one-time fee
payable by Franchisor to Area Representative equal to 50% of the Net Franchise Fee paid by AR Unit
Franchisees to Franchisor during the Initial Term of this Agreement. The AR Franchise Fee Compensation
shall be paid within 30 days of the later to occur of Franchisor’s receipt of the applicable Franchise Fee or
satisfaction of any contingencies related to the franchise sale upon which the Franchise Fee is based
including, without limitation, any Franchise Fee deferral conditions or requirements.

“AR Initial Training Program” shall have the meaning defined and set forth in Section 6.1 of this
Agreement.

“AR Office”—refers—to—and means the commercial office used by Area Representative for the
administration, management, and operation of the Area Representative Business.

“AR Owner Agreement and Speuse-Guaranty” refersto-and-means the form ef-agreement attached to
this Agreement as Exhibit 1.

“AR Royalty Commission”refers—to-and-Compensation” means, subject to the en-geing-terms of this
Agreement, the contingent fees payable by Franchisor to Area Representative equal to: (a) 33% of the

Royalty Fee paid by AR Unit Franchisees to Franchisor during the Initial Term of this Agreement by
Eranchisor-to-AreaRepresentative-and, if applicable, the Renewal Term; and (b) 33% of the Royalty Fee

paid by Legacy AR Unit Franchisees to Franchisor during the Initial Term of this Agreement and, if
applicable, the Renewal Term. The AR Royalty Compensation shall be paid within 30 days of Franchisor’s

receipt of a-Reyalty Fee—The- AR Reoyalty- Commissionshall-be-equal-te 33%ofthe Royalty Fee and is

contlngent on Area Representatlve S comphance w1th the terms and condltlons of thls Agreement flih%ArR

apphe&bl%th%Reﬂewal—Term—Wlthout hmitaﬁeﬂ—tel miting the foregomg, the AR Royalty
CommissionCompensation Royalty Fee shall only relate to Royalty Fees paid by AR—UnitArea
Representative Territory Franchisees. Area Representative agrees that Franchisor may waive or reduce any
AR Unit Franchisee’s royalties and/or royalty rate in Franchisor’s sole discretion and, in doing so, Area
Representative shall not be entitled to any additional compensation.

“AR Services” shall have the meaning set forth in the Recitals and shall further refer to, mean and include,
individually and collectively, Area RepresentativesRepresentative’s ongoing performance of the Referral
Services, Site Services, Pre-Opening and Opening Services, On-Going Support Services, Franchisee
Relationship Services, and Inspection Services. All AR Services must be performed by Area Representative
for the benefit of Franchisor and subject to Franchisor’s standards and specifications, which Franchisor
may modify from time to time in Franchisor’s sole discretion.

“AR Spa—LeeationUnit Franchise” refers—te—and—means, individually and in aggregate, the Spa
LeeationUnit Franchises owned and-eperated-by Area Representative and/or AR Affiliates that are and
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physically located within the Area Representative Territory and-pursuant to the terms and conditions of
aeach respective Unit Franchise Agreement that exists separate and apart from this Agreement. Area
Representative must and shall utilize an AreaRepresentative’s-AR-SpaleeationAR Unit Franchise that is
approved by Franchisor for Area Representative’s performance of the AR Services including, but-net
limited-toewithout limitation, the Pre-Opening Services.

“AR Unit Franchisee” shall have the meaning set forth in the Recitals and shall further refer to and mean
means-a franchiseeUnit Franchisee that-, during the Initial Term of this Agreement, enters into a Spa
LoeationUnit Franchise Agreement with Franchisor {where: (a) the SpateeationUnit Franchise Agreement
is executed by Franchisor and franchisee-and-wherethe Unit Franchisee: (b) all initial fees have been paid
and released to Franchisor)-during-the-Initial Term-of this- Agreement,-where-the-Spa-Loeation; (c) the Unit

Franchise Agreement provides for a-Spateeationthe development of a Unit Franchise to-be-developed-and
operatedphysically located within AreaRepresentative’s-the Area Representative Territory and;-where-the

ARduring the Initial Term of this Agreement; and (d) the Unit Franchisee develops and opens a Spa
LeeationUnit Franchise that is physically located within AreaRepresentative’sthe Area Representative
Territory in accordance with the terms of the Unit Franchise Agreement.

“Area Representatlve Business” shall have the meanmg set forth in the Rec1tals—aﬁd—shal—l—€uft-her—refer—te

“Area Representative Territory”-refers—to-and means the geographic area identified and described in
Schedule 1 to this Agreement.

“Area Representative Territory Fee’refers-to-and means the area representative territory fee to be paid
by Area Representative to Franchisor in the amount identified and set forth in Schedule 42 of this
Agreement.
“Assignee Corporate Entity” shall have the meaning defined and set forth in Section 10.5 of this
Agreement.

“Authorized Franchise Sales Agent”—refers—to—and means a Franchise Sales Agent authorized by
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Franchisor in writing and as to the Area Representative Territory.

“Breach” the term “breach” shall be interchangeable and synonymous with the word “default.”

“Business Management System” refers to and means the software, internet, web based and/or cloud- based
system-or-systems, and-eustomerpoint of sale systems, and franchisee relationship management system-or
systems as same may be—individually, or collectively, by designated by Franchisor, in Franchisor’s
d-xsere&eﬂReasonable Busmess Judgmen as belng required for use ﬂ%hehy Area Representatlve Busmes&

ste%age—based—aeeesﬁ&ﬂ%%BusmessMaﬂagemem—System%r the Area Representatlve Busmessjaﬂérteﬁmcea
Representative’s Business Management-SystemData—.

“Business Management System Data” refers to and means the forms, data, tools, customer information,
inventeryfranchisee information, franchisee candidate information, sales, and satesother information that:
(a) is pre-populated or entered into the Business Management System-utilized—; (b) is entered by Area

Representatlve—éb}as—en%&ed—évhethepby%&eh&sef or AreaRepresentative)a Unit Franchisee into theany
Business Management System; and/or (c) is recorded, stored and/or maintained by—theBusiness

Management-System—in connection with the management-and-operations—of-the-Area Representative

Business or any underlying V/O Med Spa.

“Commissions” shall have the meaning defined and set forth in Section 5.3 of this Agreement.

“Competitive Business” refers to and means any business that is the same as or similar to: (a) a Spa; (b) a
Spa Location Franchise; and/or (c) the Area Representative Business as it relates franchise sales, franchisee
training, and/or franchisee support related to Spa Location Franchises and other spas and/or medi-spas that
are similar to Spa Location Franchises and/or Spas.

“Confidential Information” refersto-and-means all of Franchisor’s and/or Franchisor’s affiliatesaffiliates’
trade secrets, methods, standards, techniques, procedures, data and information, as same may exist as of the
Effective Date of this Agreement and as same may be developed, modified and supplemented in the future,
constituting and comprising: (a) franchise sales processes, franchise sales presentations, franchise sales
projections, V/O Med Spa franchisee and prospective franchisee candidate contacts, V/O Med Spa
franchisee and prospective franchisee information, prospective franchisee lead generation sources, V/O
Med Spa franchisee and prospective franchisee surveys, V/O Med Spa franchisee financial data; (b)
methods, specifications, standards, policies, procedures, information, concepts, programs and systems
relating to the development, establishment, marketing, promotion and operation of V/O Med Spas: (c)

methods, specifications, standards, policies, procedures, information, concepts, programs and systems
relating to the development establlshment marketlng, promotlon and operatlon of the Area Representative
Business; (

&aﬂehisee&e%pa—]:eeaﬂeﬂ—%aﬂehﬂesd) 1nformat10n concerning_customers, customer hsts emall hsts
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database lists, product sales, operating results, financial performance and other financial data of franchisees
or-prospeetive-franchisees-of V/O Med Spas and the Area Representative Business; (e) customer lists and
mtormatlon related to V/O Med Spa LeeatienUnit Franchlses and/er the Area Representatlve Business; (f)

Busmc—%—ég—)—Busmess Management System Data (hg) current and future 1nf0rmat10n contamed in the
operations-manual;and-(H)-Knew-HewOperations Manual; (h) Know-How; and (i) franchisee recruitment

and marketing data, information, and plans respecting Unit Franchisees, Unit Franchisee candidates, and
the sale of Unit Franchises.

<,

Confidentiality Agreement” refers-to-and-means the form ef~“Confidentiality Agreement” attached to
this Agreement as Exhibit 2.

“Controlling Interest” shall exist for the following individuals, Owners, partners and/or entities: (a) (Hif
Area Representative is a corporation) a controlling interest shall exist for such shareholders and Owners of
the voting shares of stock of Area Representative as (i) shall permit voting control of Area Representative
on any issue and/or (ii) shall prevent any other person, group, combination, or entity from blocking voting
control on any issue or exercising any veto power; (b) (if Area Representative is a general partnership) a
controlling interest shall exist for such partners and Owners that possess a managing partnership interest or
such percentage of the general partnership interests in Area Representative as (i) shall permit determination
of the outcome on any issue, and (ii) shall prevent any other person, group, combination, or entity from
blocking voting control on any issue or exercising any veto power; (c) (Hif Area Representative is a limited
partnership) a controlling interest shall exist for such partners and Owners that possess a general partnership
interest; and (d) (Hif Area Representative is a limited liability company) a controlling interest shall exist
for such members and Owners that possess a percentage of the membership interests as (i) shall permit
determination of the outcome on any issue, and (ii) shall prevent any other person, group, combination or
entity from blocking voting control on any issue or exercising any veto power.

I3

Copyrights”—+efers—to—and means all works and materials for which Franchisor or any affiliate of
Franchlsor has secured common law orre glstered copyrlght protectlonﬂﬂd%mnehiseﬂtﬂhzes&ﬂd%e%&l—}ews

Effective Date of this Agreement or any time in the future.

“Corporate Entity” refers-to-and-means a corporation, limited liability company, partnership, or other
corperate-legal entity that is not an individual person.

%5

Development Period” refers-to-and-means, as applicable, each period of time designated and identified in
the Development Schedule setforth-in-the- AR Information-Sheet-attached to this Agreement as Schedule
42. There are multiple Development Periods and, as to each Development Period, Area Representative
possesses specific Development Quota Obligations.

“Development Quota Obligations”refers-to-and means, pursuant to the Development Schedule and as to
each and every Development Period: (a) the required minimum-number of Development SpaLeecationUnit
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Franchise Agreements that must be signed during a particular Development Period in accordance with the
terms of this Agreement and the respective Franchise Agreement, and (b) the number of Development Spa
LeeationUnit Franchises that must be open and in operation, in accordance with the terms of each respective
Development Spa-teeationUnit Franchise Agreement, within the Area Representative Territory as of the
last day of the last calendar month for the particular Development Period. Area Representative’s
Development Quota Obligations, as to each and every Development Period that is identified in the
Development Schedule, each represent independent development obligations that must be satisfied by Area

Representative individually and in the aggregate.

“Development Schedule” refers to and means the development schedule identified, defined, and set forth
in Schedule 12 of this Agreement.

“Development Spa—LeeationUnit Franchise” refers—to—and-means a Spa—LeeationUnit Franchise
developed and operated by an AR Unit Franchisee and/or Area Representative that is physically developed
and located within the Area Representative Territory during the Initial Term of this Agreement and in
compliance with the terms and conditions of each respective SpateeationUnit Franchise Agreement.

“Development Unit Franchise Agreement” means a fully executed Unit Franchise Agreement for the
development and operation of a Development Unit Franchise that is fully executed by Franchisor and an
AR Unit Franchisee that has been approved by Franchisor and where the initial franchise fee has been
satisfied and paid in full and the Unit Franchise Agreement is in full force and effect.

“Digital Media” refers to and means any interactive or static eleetroniedigital document, application or
media that is connected to and/or in a network of computers;—servers and/or other devices linked by
communications software, part of the world wide web (including, but not limited to websites), linked by
the internet or part of a web based apphcatlon software apphcatlon smart phone baseetapphcatlon or social
media platform i s-such as Facebook,
LinkedIn, Twitter, Plnterest Instagram, SnapChat and YouTube, and weorld-wide-web-and-internet based
directories and local directories that refers, references, identifies, reviews, promotes and/or relates, in any
way, to, V/O Med SpateeationFranchises, the Area Representative Business, the Licensed Marks, the
System and/or Franchlsor D1g1ta1 Medla fu1ther 1ncludes the System Webs1te wel%pages—aﬂd—websﬁe

and/or pubhcatlons relatlng to the System that is d1sp1ayed and/or transmltted d1g1tally

“Effective Date” shall be the date set forth, defined and referred to in the first paragraph of this Agreement.

“FDD” refers to and means Eranchise Diselosure Documentfranchise disclosure document.

“Financial Performance Representation” refers to and means any written or oral statement, presentation,
depiction, pro forma, display, or communication referencing and/or including information as to the financial
performance of Spas or Spa-LeeationUnit Franchises, the potential financial performance of Spas or Spa
LeeationUnit Franchises, and/or any other financial information respecting and/or relating to a Spa or Spa
LoeationUnit Franchise including, but—netlimited—tewithout limitation, revenue, gross sales, costs,
expenses, sales data, proformas, projections, profits, and/or profit margins.
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“Franchise Agreement” shall have the same meaning as “Unit Franchise Agreement.”

“Franchise Fee” refersto-and-means the initial one-time franchise fee paid by an AR Unit Franchisee to
Franchisor at the time of signing a Spa-teeationUnit Franchise Agreement and occurring during the Initial
Term of this Agreement. For purposes of clarification, the Franchise Fee is comprised of that portion of the
initial fee disclosed in Item 5 of the applicable Spa-Systesr EPBUnit Franchise Disclosure Document upon
which the Franchise Agreement is based, but does not include any Item 5 disclosed fees associated with
AR Unit Franchisee’s purchase of initial inventory or other pre-opening purchases required by the AR Unit
Franchisee and paid to Franchisor or Franchisor’s affiliates. All determinations as to the Franchise Fee,
including, but-nettimited-tewithout limitation, the amount of the Franchise Fee and modifications of the
Franchise Fee, shall be made by Franchisor in Franchisor’s sole discretion. Without limitatientelimiting
the foregoing, as between Franchisor and Area Representative, the term Franchise Fee does not include fees
paid to Franchisor in connection with an AR Unit Franchisee’s transfer of a Spa-LeeationUnit Franchise.

1%

Franchise Sales Agent” refers-to-and-means third party franchise brokers, consultants, business coaches,
and/or agents+{, whether or not speeiallyspecifically licensed and/or certified in franchise sales), who solicit
and/or introduce franchisors to qualified franchisee lead prospects and/or perform and/or provide services
in support of, or in furtherance to, the Referral Services. Franchise Sales Agents do not include employees,
members, managers, officers, agents, and/or independent contractors of Area Representative.

“Franchise Sales Agent Fee” refers-to-and-means all fees and expenses charged, directly or indirectly, to
Franchisor in connection with services performed by a Franchise Sales Agent.

“Franchise Sales Listings” refers-te-and-means print and web- based franchise listing services and portals
that market and promote franchise opportunities and/or procure and distribute franchise sales leads.

“Franchise Shows” refers to and means tradeshows and events that promote the sale of franchises and
franchise opportunities.
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“Franchisor’s Reasonable Business Judgment” or “Reasonable Business Judgment”” means any and all

decisions, actions and choices made by Franchisor concerning or relating to this Agreement, the System,
V/O Med Spa, and the Area Representative Business where Franchisor undertakes or makes such decision
with the intention of benefitting or acting in a way that could benefit the System including, as examples and
without limitation, enhancing the value of the Licensed Marks, increasing customer satisfaction
minimizing potential customer confusion as to the Licensed Marks, determining designated territory
markets, minimizing potential customer confusion as to the location of V/O Med Spa, expanding brand
awareness of the Licensed Marks, implementing marketing and accounting control systems, approving
products, services, supplies and equipment. Area Representative agrees that when a decision, determination,
action and/or choice is made by Franchisor in Franchisor’s Reasonable Business Judgment that such
decision, determination, action or choice made by Franchisor shall take precedence and prevail, even if
other alternatives, determinations, actions and/or choices are reasonable or arguably available and/or
preferable. Area Representative agrees that in connection with any decision, determination, action and/or
choice made by Franchisor in Franchisor’s Reasonable Business Judgment that: (a) Franchisor possesses a
legitimate interest in seeking to maximize Franchisor’s profits; (b) Franchisor shall not be required to
consider Area Representative’s individual economic or business interests as compared to the overall
System; and (¢) should Franchisor economically benefit from such decision, determination, action and/or
choice that such economic benefit to Franchisor shall not be relevant to demonstrating that Franchisor did
not exercise reasonable business judgment with regard to Franchisor’s obligations under this Agreement
and/or with regard to the System. Area Representative agrees that neither Area Representative and/or any
third party, including, without limitation, any third party acting as a trier of fact, shall substitute Area
Representative’s or such third party’s judgment for Franchisor’s Reasonable Business Judgment. Area
Representative further agrees that should Area Representative challenge Franchisor’s Reasonable Business
Judgment in any legal proceeding, then Area Representative shall possess the burden of demonstrating, by
clear and convincing evidence, that Franchisor failed to exercise Franchisor’s Reasonable Business

Judgment.

“Immediate Family” refers to and means the spouse, parent, sibling, or parent of a person and any other

member-of the-household member of such personsinelading-witheut limitation-children-of such-persen-.
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“Initial Term” refers to and means the period of time set forth and defined in Section 2.2 of this Agreement.
“Inspection Services” refers-to-and-means calendar year quarterly in-depth, on-site field inspections to be
performed by areaArea Representative as to each and every aspect of each AR Unit Franchisee’s Spa
Loeationand Legacy AR Unit Franchisee’s Unit Franchise with such inspection to be performed in
accordance with Franchisor’s standards and specifications in compliance with Franchisor’s written
reporting requirements as to AR Unit Franchisee SpateeationUnit Franchises.

“Know-How” refers to_and means Franchisor’s trade secrets and proprietary information relating to the
development, establishment, marketing, promotion and/or operation of a Spa and/or Area Representative
Business, including, but-netlimited-towithout limitation, methods, techniques, reeipes;-specifications, food
preparation, procedures, policies, marketing strategies, and information reflected in, included in,
comprising, and/or constituting a part of the System. Without Himitatien-telimiting the foregoing, Know-
How shall further include information contained in the eperations—manualOperations Manual and the
Confidential Information.

“Legacy AR Unit Franchisee” means each respective V/O Med Spa that is a Unit Franchise that was
developed and opened within the Area Representative Territory prior to the Effective Date of this
Agreement and/or the subject of a Unit Franchise Agreement signed prior to the Effective Date of this

Agreement.

“Licensed Marks” shall have the meaning set forth in the Recitals and shall further refer to and means-such
mean the trademarks, service marks, trademarks;-trade-dress;emblems, and indicia of origin, including the

“V/O Med Spa” trademark. the V/O Med S a logo Trade Dress, and othe trade names, service marks:
trademarks, logos, eonm A A .

%%t—er—w%eh—mayub&med-med—ehaﬂged—er—&eqwedilogam and dcs1gns authorlzcd by Franchlsor oF
Franchisor’s—affiliates.-in connection with the development and operation-of Spas—and/orotherwise
designatedidentification of the System, V/O Med Spas, and the Approved Products and Services, provided
that such trade names, trademarks, service marks, logos and designs are subject to modification

replacement and discontinuance by Franchisor te—be—used-in eenformity—with-the-SystemFranchisor’s
Reasonable Business Judgment.

“Managing Owner” refers-to-and-means;-if FranchiseeArea Representative is a-partnership-or Corporate
Entity, the Managing Owner shall be the Owner responsible for the day- to- day oversight, management,
and operation of the Area Representative Business. The Managing Owner must possess and maintain an
ownership and equity interest in the Area Representative such that said individual owns, holds, and controls
not less than 25% of the equity and ownership interests in Area Representative. At all times; the Managing
Owner must manage the operations of the Area Representative Business.

“Net Franchise Fee” refers to and means the Franchise Fee less any amounts that Franchisor pays to any
Franchise Sales Agents or that is payable by Franchisor to any Franchise Sales Agents. All determinations
as to whether or not any amount is due or payable to a Franchise Sales Agent shall be exclusively
determined by Franchisor.

«

Non-Compliance Event” shall have the meaning defined and set forth in Section 3.11 of this Agreement.

“Offer” shall have the meaning defined and set forth in Section 10.6 of this Agreement.

11
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“On-Going Support Services” refers-to-and-means providing AR Unit Franchisees and Legacy AR Unit
Franchisees on-going support, consultations, training, inspections and advice, as directed and required by
Franchisor and in accordance with Franchisor’s standards and specifications including, but-netlimited
tewithout limitation, Area Representative’s on-going obligation to: (a) provide AR Unit Franchisees and
Legacy AR Unit Franchisees with on-going consultation and advise as to the operations of a V/O Med Spa
in conformity with the requirements of the System AR Unit Franchisees with monthly on-site consultation
and/or telephone consultations evaluating V/O Med Spa performance, compliance with Franchisor’s
standards-and, specifications-and, advice, and guidance regarding Franchisor’s System requirements; (b)
provide AR Unit Franchisees and Legacy AR Unit Franchisees with ongoing updates of information,
industry regulations, System training requirements; and programs regarding Approved Spa-Products and
Services, business operations in general, V/O Med Spas, Spa-LeeationUnit Franchises, and the System,
including, without limitation, information about special or new services offered by Franchisor; and System
Inventory and Equipment; (c) provide AR Unit Franchisees and Legacy AR Unit Franchisees with on-going
advice in assisting AR Unit Franchisees in improving the operations and performance of AR Unit
Franchisee Spa—teeationUnit Franchises, including, but—nettmited—tewithout limitation, advertising,
marketing, financial controls, operational controls, and customer service; (d) as to each and every AR Unit
Franchisee Spa—Leecation—FranchiseLocationFranchiseand Legacy AR Unit Franchisees, conduct a
menthlyquarterly on-site quality and service inspection at the location of each AR Unit Franchisee Spa
LeeationUnit Franchise and, following such inspection, to prepare written inspection reports that conform
to Franchisor’s requirements; (e) provide AR Unit Franchisees and Legacy AR Unit Franchisees with access
to Franchisor’s approved advertising—and—prometionalmarketing materials as may be developed by
Franchisor periodically; (f) assist with the establishment and implementation of advertising cooperatives
that Franchisor may or may not authorize for AR Unit Franchisees; (g) provide and submit Franchisor with
detailed reports; as designated by Franchisor, but not less frequently than menthsevery month, concerning
the performance and operation of AR Unit Franchisees and Legacy AR Unit Franchisees and their
respective compliance with the System; and (h) take such action as Franchisor shall reasonably request to
ensure and monitor AR Unit Franchisee compliance and Legacy AR Unit Franchisee compliance with the
terms and conditions of each AR Unit Franchisees’ and Legacy AR Unit Franchisees’ obligations under
their respective Unit Franchise Agreements;-and-(i)-offer-and provideResideneyTraining Programs-as
designated by Franchisor.

“Operations Manual” refers to and means, individually and collectively, the manual(s) designated by
Franchisor and relating to the development and/or operations of an Area Representative Business, Spas,
and/or Spas;—Spa—teeationUnit Franchises including, bﬂ{—ﬁe»t—hmﬁed—GGWIthout 11m1tat10n the policies,
procedures and requirements for the development and operation of sinesses-other
area representative businesses. The eperations—manualOperations Manual may consist of one or more
volumes, handbooks, manuals, written materials, videos, electronic media files, cloud/internet based list-
service, intranet, internet based and accessed databases, computer media, email, webinars and other
materials as may be modified, added to, replaced or supplemented by Franchisor from time to time in
Franchisor’s diseretionReasonable Business Judgment, whether by way of supplements, replacement pages,
franchise bulletins, or other official pronouncements or means.

“Owner” refers to and means collectively, individually and jointly: (a) the officers and directors of Area
Representative (including the officers and directors of any general partner of Area Representative) who
hold an ownership interest in Area Representative; (b) the managing member or manager of Area
Representative, if Area Representative is a limited liability company; ané-(c) all holders of a 5% or more
direct or indirect ownership interest in Area Representative and/or of any entity directly or indirectly
controlling Area Representative:; and (d) the Managing Owner(s). Area Representative’s Owners are
identified in Schedule 43 to this Agreement.

12
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“Person” refers to and means any person, individual, limited liability company, partnership, corporation
company, or any other legal entity.

“Post-Term Restricted Period” refers to and means the 36 month period after the earliest to occur of the
following: (a) the expiration or termination of this Agreement for any reason; or (b) the date on which Area
Representative, in compliance with the terms of this Agreement, Transfers this Agreement to another

erson.

“Pre-Opening and Opening Services” refers to and means: (a) providing AR Unit Franchisees with
Franchisor’s then current standards and guidelines for the development and opening of SpasV/O locations
and Spa—LecationUnit Franchises including, but—netlimited—tewithout limitation, System Build-Out
Requirements, System Inventory and Equipment, and Approved Spa-Products and Services; (b) providing
AR Unit Franchisee’s assistance and guidance in earry-carrying out and complying with Franchisor’s
System Build-Out Requirements; (c) providing AR Unit Franchisees with initial franchisee training as may
be designated by Franchisor from time to time and as Franchisor may require, at Franchisor’s election, to
be performed by Area Representative from a training facility located within the Area Representative
Territory and including the AR Spa—LecationUnit Franchise and/or facilities designated by Franchisor
anywhere in the United States and outside the Area Representative Territory; (d) assisting AR Unit
Franchisees in developing and implementing a grand-opening marketing plan in conformity with
Franchisor’s standards and specifications; and (e) inspecting and certifying each AR Unit Franchisees’
compliance with Franchisor’s pre-opening and grand-opening requirements.

“Prohibited Activities” shall have the meaning defined and set forth in Section 7.4 of this Agreement.

“Publlshed Content” refers to and means any and all 1nformat10n data artlcles bleg—pe%%—pfesﬂ—ﬁc—le&se%—

pestscommumcatlons videos and other mformatlon relatmg to or concemmg the Area Representatlve
Business, the System, Spas, Spa-LecationEranchises;and/V/O Med Spa, or the Licensed Marks that is or
was made available by AreaRepresentativeFranchisee or AreaRepresentative’sFranchisee’s agents to the
public in print or electronic media that is published, listed, made available, uploaded on, downloaded to-es,
posted teor distributed through Digital Media.

“Referral Services” refers to and means: (a) the marketing and promotion of SpateeationUnit Franchises
to prospective qualified franchisees located within the Area Representative Territory who are interested in
developing, opening and operating a Spa within the Area Representative Territory; (b) evaluating
prospective Spa—teeationUnit Franchisee leads, applications and qualifications; (c) at the direction of
Franchisor, conducting prospective Spa—teeationUnit Franchisee interviews, web-based and in-person
information gathering sessions, franchise opportunity presentations, and discovery days; and (d) preparing
and submitting periodic reports (not less than monthly), as directed by Franchisor and in a format
determined by Franchisor, to Franchisor identifying Referral Services performed by Area Representative,
identification of all prospective Spa-lecationUnit Franchisee leads that Area Representative communicated
with and/or was contacted by, and identification of all qualified prospective Spa-tecationUnit Franchisee
leads. All Referral Services shall be performed by Area Representative at Area Representative’s sole cost
and expense. All Referral Services must be performed by Area Representative in accordance with the terms
and conditions of this Agreement, and in compliance with all applicable laws including, but-net-timited
towithout limitation, federal and state franchise laws, business opportunity laws, and all other laws that
govern and/or relate to commercial relationships, the offer and sale of franchises and/or franchise
relationships.
13
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“Renewal Fee” the Renewal Fee is athe fixed fee-in-the-sum of $25,000.

“Renewal Term” refers to and means the +0-yeartime period that commences on the expiration of the Initial
Term and continues;_for a period of 10 years (or 120 months), unless earlier terminated pursuant to the
terms of this Agreement. The Renewal Term applies only if Area Representative is entitled to invoke, and
does invoke, Area Representative’s renewal rights in accordance with the terms of this Agreement,
including, but-netlimited-tewithout limitation, Section 11 of this Agreement.

%5

Reserved Rights” shall have the meaning set forth and defined in Section 2.4 of this Agreement.

“Restricted Territory” refers to and means the geographic area: (a) comprising Area Representative’s

Area Representative Territory;—ane; (b)_comprising a 25- mile radius surrounding Area Representative’s
Area Representative Territory; and (c) comprising a 25 mile radius surrounding the Spa location for each
V/O Med Spa located and/or under development within Area Representative’s Area Representative
Territory. If a court of competent jurisdiction determines that the foregoing Restricted Territory is too broad
to_be enforceable, then the “Restricted Territory” means the geographic area comprising Area

Representative’s Area Representative Territory plus a 25 mile radius surrounding Area Representative’s
Area Representative Territory.

“Royalty Fee” refers to and means the net royalty fee paid by an AR Unit Franchisee to Franchisor during
the Term of this Agreement and pursuant to, and in accordance with, the terms and conditions of the
respective Spa-LeecationUnit Franchise Agreement and less any special tax and/or assessment imposed by
any federal, state, and/or local government and/or entity. For purposes of clarification, the Royalty Fee is
exclusively comprised of the “Royalty Fee” disclosed in Item 6 of the applicable Spa—teeationUnit
Franchise EDBDisclosure Document upon which the Franchise Agreement is based and does not include
any other fees charges by Franchisor to an AR Unit Franchisee including, butnettmited—towithout
limitation, brand development fees, national marketing fees, designated marketing area fees, local

14
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marketing fees, technology fees, call center fees, business management system fees, training fees, late
charges, interest charges, audit fees, transfer fees, renewal fees, or fees and/or payments associated with
System Inventory and Equipment. Franchisor, in Franchisor’s sole discretion, may modify, reduce, suspend,
and/or forgive payment of a Royalty Fee.

“Scheduled Business Commencement Date” refers to and means the date that occurs on the +2three month
anniversary of the Effective Date of this Agreement.

“Site Services” refers to and means: (a) providing AR Unit Franchisees with Franchisor’s then current
guidelines for the location and development of Spas and Spa-LeeationUnit Franchises; (b) assisting AR
Unit Franchisees in identifying potential Spa locations and sites; (c) assisting AR Unit Franchisees in
documenting their potential site selections and in organizing and submitting all required documentation and
information as required by Franchisor and/or requested by Franchisor in connection with Franchisor’s
review of a potential Spa location and/or site. Area Representative acknowledges and representsagrees that
Area Representative does not possess the authority to approve of a proposed site or Spa location.

13

Spa” shall have the meaning defined in the “Recitals® section of this Agreement and is—further
supplemented;-as-follows:have the term-same meaning as V/O Med Spas.

“Spa %Mﬂheﬁefeﬁ%}d—mea&a%usmesﬂh%epemfe&a&%& Locatmn#emwh&e#ﬂa%t@ppfeved

et b o and” micans the fixed  eommereinl et —ireladine—the e —and
improvements;Spa_retail locations from which aV/O Med Spas and Spa—teeationUnit Franchises are
established, operated, and managed-
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m sha 4 Q 5—a Q - as to Area
Representatlve shall further refer to and meansmean Franchlsor s standards spec1ﬁcat10ns operating
requirements, and criteria respecting the development and operation of an Area Representative Business.

“System Build-Out Requirements” refers-to-and-means Franchisor’s criteria and requirements for the
build-out and construction of Spas and Spa—LeecationUnit Franchises, including Franchisor’s approved
suppliers and Franchisor’s standards and specifications for Spa design, furniture, fixtures and
improvements, equipment, point of sale systems, grand-openings, and other requirements designated by
Franchisor.

<

System Inventory and Equipment” refers-to-and-means the products, equipment, supplies, inventory,
materials, franchise sales presentations. franchise sales displays, and services, including, but-net-limited
towithout limitation, branded and unbranded—paeckaging; materials, uniforms, dlsplays and retail
merchandise, and the Business Management System designated by Franchisor in the epc—r—aﬂeﬂs
manualOperations Manual and as may be modified and supplemented by Franchisor from time to time in
Franchisor’s Reasonable Business Judgment.

13

System Website” refers-te-and-means the web page and/or pages located on the world- wide web at the

www.viomedspa.com URL—(uniform—resource—locator)—and shall further include all webpages and
subdomains relating to Spas, Spa—eeationUnit Franchises, and/or the promotion, marketing and sale of

SpateeationUnit Franchises.

“Term” referste-and-means: (a) the Initial Term, and (b) the Renewal Term; if Area Representative invokes
Area Representative’s limited renewal rights as set forth in this Agreement, including, but-nettimited
towithout limitation, Section 11 of this Agreement.

“Transfer’refersto-and means and shall include, without limitation, the following, whether voluntary or
involuntary, conditional or unconditional, and/or direct or indirect: (a) an assignment, sale, gift,
conveyance, hypothecation, transfer, pledge. or sub-franchise; (b) the grant of a mortgage, charge, lien, or
security interest, including, without limitation, the grant of a collateral assignment; (c) a merger,
consolidation, exchange of shares or other ownership interests, issuance of additional ownership interests
or securities representing or potentially representing ownership interests, or redemption of ownership
interests; and (d) a sale or exchange of voting interests or securities convertible to voting interests; or an
agreement granting the right to exercise or control the exercise of the voting rights of any holder of
ownership interests or to control the operations or affairs of EranchiseeArea Representative.

“Transfer Fee” is-ameans the fixed fee-in-the-sum of $25,000.

““Unit Franchise” shall have the meaning defined in the Recitals section of this Agreement and refers to
V/O Med Spa authorized for development and operation pursuant to a Unit Franchise Agreement.

“Unit Franchise Agreement” shall have the meaning set forth in the Recitals and shall further refer to and
mean Franchisor’s Franchise Agreement and/or development agreement for a Unit Franchise as such
agreements may or may not be designated and determined by Franchisor from time to time, in Franchisor’s
sole discretion, and as Franchisor may supplement, modify, and/or amend in Franchisor’s sole discretion
including, without limitation, supplementing, modifying, and/or amending the form Franchise Agreements
and all exhibits and schedules attached thereto, including exhibits, riders, collateral assignments of lease or

16
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sublease, and personal guarantees designated by Franchisor. Franchisor possesses the exclusive right to
designate and determine the form of the Franchise Agreement and the terms thereto and Franchisor, in
Franchisor’s sole discretion, may modify and amend the material terms of the Franchise Agreement
including, without limitation, modification of franchise fees, royalty fees, brand development fund fees,
territories, and all other legal rights and obligations.

“Unit Franchise Disclosure Document” means a franchise disclosure document for the development and
operation a V/O Med Spa Unit Franchises.

“Unit Franchisee” means any person that has been approved by Franchisor, has entered into, and is a
party to a Unit Franchise Agreement with Franchisor.

“Unit Franchisee Relationship Services” means providing services for, and on behalf of AR Unit
Franchisees and Legacy AR Unit Franchisees wherein Area Representative, subject to the direction and
instruction of Franchisor, shall be delegated certain obligations of Franchisor, as such obligations of
Franchisor may exist pursuant to the Unit Franchise Agreement(s) for each respective AR Unit Franchisee
and Legacy AR Unit Franchisee. In this regard, Area Representative agrees that, among other things, Area
Representative, pursuant to the written instruction of Franchisor and/or the Operations Manual, shall be
delegated certain obligations and take such actions on behalf of Franchisor as designated by Franchisor.

“Unit Franchisee Training Program” refers to and means any training program designated by Franchisor
for Unit Franchisees.

“V/O Med Spa” shall have the meaning defined in the Recitals section of this Agreement and, without
limitation to the foregoing, includes all Spas operating under the System and Licensed Marks, whether
owned by Franchisor, Franchisor’s affiliates, and/or Franehisor’s-franchisees of the System.

REMAINDER-OFPAGEINTENTHONALLY LEFFBEANK]

SECTION 2
2729 ARAREA REPRESENTATIVE GRANT AND OBLIGATIONS

29.1 2.1 GRANT AND ARAREA REPRESENTATIVE OBLIGATIONS

Area Representative has requested that Franchisor grant to Area Representative the non-exclusive license
and right to develop, own and operate an Area Representative Business within a specified territory. Relying
on the representations made by Area Representative and/or Area Representative’s Owners in any submitted
application and during the application process and, subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement,
Area Representative’s request has been approved by Franchisor, subject to the following terms and
conditions:

{a)—(a) During the Term of this Agreement and subject to the rights of Franchisor, including, but
not
Himited-towithout limitation, the Reserved Rights, Franchisor grants to Area Representative and Area
Representative accepts, the non-exclusive license, right and obligation to develop and operate anthe
Area Representative Business within the Area Representative Territory as the Area Representative
Territory is set forth and defined in Schedule 1 to this Agreement. The rights set forth in this Agreement
shall-exelusivelyrelate only to the Area Representative Territory and, to be effective, Schedule 1 must
17
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be signed by Franchisor and must-designate and-deseribe-a specific Area Representative Territory. If
Schedule 1 is not signed by Franchisor, or if Schedule 1 does not identify and describe an Area
Representative Territory, then there shall be no Area Representative Territory, and Area Representative
shall not possess any rights as an Area-Representative;-andarea representative;

(b) Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement including, butnetlimited-towithout limitation, the
Reserved Rights, provided that; at all times Area Representative is and remains in compliance with att
of-the terms and provisions of this Agreement, then during the Term of this Agreement, neither
Eranchisornor-any-affiliate-of Franchisor will establish-or-eperate;-ornot grant aan area representative
franchise to any third party to establish or operate, an AreaRepresentative Businessarea representative
business using the Licensed Marks and System within the Area Representative Territory.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Area Representative agrees that Area Representative may face
competition from other area representatives of Spa—eeationUnit Franchises that operate in other
territories—; and

(¢) The foregoing rights granted in this Section 2.1 are subject to and contingent upon each and every
term and condition of this Agreement, the rights of any prior user, and are non-exclusive and
subordinate to the Reserved Rights.

29.2 2.2 TERM

Unless previously terminated pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, the term of this Agreement swit-beis
for a period of 10 consecutive years; commencing on the Effective Date (the “Initial Term”). Provided that
Area Representative satisfies the terms and conditions of this Agreement, including and subject to Section
11 of this Agreement, Area Representative may renew a portion of this Agreement for the Renewal Term.

293 23 AR’SSPALOCATIONAREA REPRESENTATIVE’S UNIT FRANCHISE

Upon execution of this Agreement, Area Representative shall have also entered into a Spa-teeationUnit
Franchise Agreement for Area Representative’s development, ownership, and operation of an AR Spa
LeeationUnit Franchise. Commencing no later than 12 months from the Effective Date of this Agreement
and continuing throughout the Term of this Agreement, Area Representative must own and operate an AR
Spa-LeeationUnit Franchise in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Franchise Agreement for
thesuch AR SpateeationUnit Franchise. As to the AR Spa-teeationUnit Franchise, Area Representative
agrees that:

(a) Commencing netno later than 12 months from the Effective Date of this Agreement and at all times
thereafter throughout the Term of this Agreement, Area Representative must own and operate notless
thanat least one AR Spa-LeeationUnit Franchise in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
applicable Franchise Agreement;-and

(b) At all times, Area Representative shall operate AreaRepresentative’s-Spa-lecationcach respective
AR Unit Franchisefs) in accordance with the terms and conditions of the respective Franchise

Agreement for each SpaLeeationUnit Franchise. In the event that any Franchise Agreement for an AR
Spa-LecationUnit Franchise is terminated by Franchisor as a result of Area Representative’s breach, as
a franchisee; of a Franchise Agreement for a Spa-teeationUnit Franchise, then such breach shall also
constitute a default of this Agreement entitling Franchisor, among other things, to terminate this
Agreement:; and

¢) Without limiting Section 2.3(a) and Section 2.3(b) above, if, at the time of signing this Agreement

the Aggregate Development Quota as set forth in Schedule 2 of this Agreement is equal to 15 or more

Development Unit Franchises, then, at the time of signing the Franchise Agreement for Area
18
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Representative’s first AR Unit Franchise, Franchisor will waive the Franchise Fee (limited to the initial
one-time franchise fee) for Area Representative’s first AR Unit Franchise. The foregoing waiver is
contingent upon Area Representative’s compliance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.
Area Representative agrees that if Area Representative transfers a Franchise Agreement for a Unit
Franchise for which Area Representative received a waiver of the Franchise Fee pursuant to this Section
2.3(c), and such transfer is made prior to the full development and opening of the Unit Franchise, then
Area Representative shall immediately pay to Franchisor the full amount of the Franchise Fee (the
foregoing shall not be construed as consent as to any transfer or sale of a Unit Franchise or Franchise
Agreement owned by Area Representative).
294
295 24 FRANCHISOR’S RESERVEDRESERVATION OF RIGHTS
Franchisor on behalf of itself, its affiliates, and its assigns, retains all rights, on any and all terms and
conditions that Franchisor deems advisable and without any compensation or consideration to Area
Representative to engage in the following activities (the “Reserved Rights”): (a) develop and operate, and
grant to others the right to develop and operate-Spa-FLeeation, Unit Franchises and Spas using the System
and Licensed Marks within the Area Representative Territory and outside the Area Representative
Territory; (b) develop and operate, and grant to others the right to develop and operate—an—Area
Representative Business/-AreaRepresentative Businesses, area representative business using the System
and Licensed Marks for the development of SpateeationUnit Franchises and/or Spas located outside the
Area Representative Territory; as Franchisor deems appropriate and irrespective of the proximity to the
Area Representative Territory; (c) acquire, be acquired by, merge with, or otherwise affiliate with one or
more businesses of any kind, including businesses that offer and sell products—ane, services, and/or
franchises that are the same as, or similar to, the Spa—FeeationUnit Franchises, Spas, and/erthe Area
Representative BusinessesBusiness, or other area representative business, and after such acquisition,
merger, or affiliation, to own and operate, and to franchise; or license others to own and operate, and to
continue to own and operate such businesses of any kind, even if such businesses offer and sell products
and services and/or franchises that are the same as, or similar to-Spa—eeation, Unit Franchises, Spas,
and/erthe Area Representative Businesses—(but-netutilizingthe Licensed-Marks)-Business, and/or other

area representative business within the Area Representative Territory:{(d)-be-acquired-by-ormerge-with-or
otherwise—affiliate—with-one—or—meore, (but other area representative businesses ef-anykind,—ineluding

businesses—that-offershall not utilize the Licensed Marks): (d) use the Licensed Marks and System to

promote, market, and sell produets-and-services-and/or-franchises-that-are-the same-as;-or similar to; Spa
Leeaﬂoﬂ%faﬂehises%pas—aﬁd#oﬁUmt Franchises, Area Representatlve Bus1nesses even if such business

Sys{em—teand dlstrlbute the Approved Products and Serv1ces aﬂd%er—ﬁ*—dﬁehﬁes—offered and sold by Spa
LoeeationUnit Franchises, Spas—and/er, the Area Representative BusinessesBusiness, and/or other area

representative business in alternative channels of distribution {including directly or indirectly through
national media, internet, third party brokers, franchise sales companies, in-house commissioned
salespersons and/or lead generation services) within or outside the Area Representative Territory; and (£

e) use the Licensed Marks and System, and to franchise or license others to use the Licensed Marks and

System and te-license-others-to-use-the Licensed-Marks-and-System to engage in all other activities not
expressly prohibited by this Agreement.

29.6 2.5 MODIFICATION OF SYSTEM
Franchisor, in Franchisor’s sole discretion, reserves the right, at all times, to supplement, modify, alter,
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and/or amend the System, including any and/or all components of the System and the terms and conditions
of the Franchise Agreements that may or may not be offered. Area Representative shall promptly comply
with all such modifications to the System whether such modification results in the addition, subtraction,
modification, and/or enhancement to any and/or all components of the System. Franchisor shall provide
Area Representative with a reasonable amount of time peried-to comply with any change or modification
to the System, which shall be communicated to FranchiseeArea Representative by Franchisor, including,
but-netlimited-towithout limitation, communication through the eperations-manualOperations Manual.

29.7 2.6 OWNERSHIP-OF-CORPORATE ENTITY OWNERSHIP

If Area Representative is at any time a Corporate Entity, FranchiseeArea Representative represents that the
information contained in Schedule 13 to this Agreement is and-shall-remain-complete;-true and accurate
throughout-the Term-of this-Aereement.

29.8 2.7 NON-NOT TRANSFERABLE OR ASSIGNABLE BY ARAREA
REPRESENTATIVE

Area Representative agrees that Area Representative does not possess and shall not possess the right to

franchise, sub-franchise, license, sublicense, assign and/or otherwise Transfer Area Representative’s rights

under this Agreement. The rights and privileges granted and conveyed to Area Representative in this

Agreement may not be Transferred unless otherwise agreed by Franchisor and subject to the requirements

restrictions, and conditions set forth in Section 10 of this Agreement.

299 2.8 INDEPENDENT CONTRACTORS AND NO JOINT EMPLOYER
RELATIONSHIP

Franchisor and Area Representative agree that this Agreement does not create a fiduciary relationship
between Franchisor and Area Representative;. Franchisor and Area Representative further agree that
Franchisor and Area Representative are independent contractors, and nothing in this Agreement is intended
to make either party a general or special agent, legal representative, subsidiary, joint venture, partner,
employer, employee, or servant of the other for any purpose. Area Representative agrees that Area
Representative shall be and is the sole employer of its employees. Area Representative has the sole right to
select, hire and discharge Area Representative’s employees. Area Representative is responsible for all
decisions regarding hiring, firing, training, supervising, disciplining, scheduling, and paying wages to, and
withholding and paying taxes for, Area Representative’s employees. Area Representative, each Owner;
each-Speuse, and Area Representative’s officers, directors, manager, agents, representatives, independent
contractors, and employees shall not be construed, considered, or represented as Franchisor’s employees,
representatives, or agents. Area Representative agrees that there is no joint employer relationship between
Franchisor and Area Representative or Area Representative’s employees. Area Representative’s
compliance with all federal, state, and local labor laws rules and regulations shall be exclusively determined
and managed by Area Representative. To the extent that the eperations-manualOperations Manual includes
information, specifications, procedures, criteria, and/or requirements as to employees of the Area
Representative Business, such requirements shall be interpreted exclusively for the purpose of maintaining
brand standards and under no circumstance shall same relate to the employer-employee relationship. As to
the foregoing issue of “joint employer” and the non-existence thereof, in the event of any inconsistency or
conflict between this Agreement and the eperations-manualOperations Manual, the terms of this Agreement
shall take precedence and govern.

SECTION 3
2830  OBEIGATIONSDEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION OF THE AREA
REPRESENTATIVE BUSINESS
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30.1 3.1 ARAREA REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE

Area Representative shall operate and manage the Area Representative Business from an AR Office that:
(a) is established and maintained by Area Representative at a commercial office location within the Area
Representative Territory; (b) eemplies—with-the-terms-and-conditions-of this Agreement;(e)-satisfies and
meets Franchisor’s standards and specifications; (dc) is timely presented by Area Representative to
Franchisor for approval as Eranchisee’s-Area Representative’s proposed AR Office; (ed) is approved by
Franchisor as Area Representative’s AR Office; (fe) is timely secured by Area Representative within 9960
days of the Effective Date of this Agreement; as evidenced by a binding lease with a duration equal:-(g to.,
or greater, than the Initial Term; (f) is, and; at all times; shall be, exclusively dedicated to the operation of
the Area Representative Business; (hg) is located within the Area Representative Territory; and (ih)
otherwise meets the terms and conditions of this Agreement and Franchisor’s standards and specifications.
Area Representative’s AR Office may be located within an AR Unit Franchise.

Area Representative will not lease, purchase, or otherwise acquire a proposed AR Office until such
information as Franchisor may require as to the proposed AR Office has been provided to Franchisor by
Area Representative and; Franchisor has approved the effieeproposed AR Office. Franchisor shall respond
to Area Representative’s request for approval of a proposed AR Office within a reasonable time period, but
not exceeding 30 days following Franchisor's receipt; from Area Representative; of complete written
information about Area Representative’s proposed AR Office. If Franchisor rejects or disapproves Area
Representative’s proposed AR Office, Area Representative must nevertheless identify and obtain
Franchisor’s approval of a proposed AR Office within the time requirements set forth in this Agreement.
Franchisor’s disapproval of a proposed AR Office shall not serve as a basis to extend any deadline or
requirement set forth in this Agreement.

31

311 3.2 COMMENCEMENT OF AREA REPRESENTATIVE BUSINESS

Area Representatlve must develop and commence the day-to day operatlons of the Area Representatlve

on or before the Scheduled Busmess Commencement Date and, thereafter throughout the Term of this

Agreement. Witheut-Himitation-te-the-foregeing,priorPrior to opening and commencing the operations of
the Area Representative Business, including, but-netlimited-towithout limitation, the AR Services, Area

Representative must, as determined by Franchisor: (a) be—in—ecomphaneecomply with the terms and
conditions of this Agreement; (b) havesatisfiedsatisfy the pre-opening obligations set forth by Franchisor
in the eperations-manualOperations Manual; (c) have-completedcomplete and satisfiedsatisfy the AR Initial
Training Program; (d) have—eempletedcomplete and satisfiedsatisfy the Franchisee Initial Training
Program; (e) obtain all required licenses and satisfy all legal obligations and requirements related to the
operations of the Area Representative Business; (f) satisfy Franchisor’s designated insurance requirements;
and (e)-obtainedg) obtain Franchisor’s written consent to open and commence the operations of the Area
Representative Business.

312 33 ARAREA REPRESENTATIVE OPERATIONS AND ON-GOING OBLIGATIONS
If Area Representative is a Corporate Entity, then at all times during the Term of this Agreement, the Area
Representative Business shall;—en—a—day-to-day—basis; be directly managed and supervised by Area
Representative’s Managing Owner on a day-to-day basis. Franchisor must approve Area Representative’s
Managing ~ Owner. Area  Representative  shall not delegate and/or assign  Area
RepresentativesRepresentative’s obligations under this Agreement to a third party. Witheut-limitation-te
the—foregoing;,—asAs to the Area Representative Territory, Area Representative shall, at Area
Representative’s sole cost and expense: (a) exclusively operate the Area Representative Business from and
within the Area Representative Territory; (b) exclusively offer, provide, and perform the AR Services for
the benefit of Franchisor, the System, and Franchisor’s affiliates and assigns; (c) satisfy and complete all
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initial and supplemental area representative and/er Unit Franchisee training-programsTraining Programs
designated by Franchisorfremtime-to-time; (d) exclusively utilize the Business Management System i
conneetion-with-the-AreaRepresentative Business-and-as directed by Franchisor; (e) own and operate net
less-thanat least one AR Spa-teeationUnit Franchise and, as directed by Franchisor fremtime-to-time;
provide Pre-Opening Services and AR Services utilizing the AR Spa-LeeationUnit Franchise; (f) timely
satisfy Area Representative’s Aggregate Development Quota; obligations and Development Quota
Obligations;—and-Development-Schedule—obligations—_in accordance with the terms of this Agreement
including, but-netlimited—towithout limitation, Section 4 and Schedule 12 of this Agreement; (g)
communicate with-and work with Authorized Franchise Sales Agents in attractingpromoting, qualifying,
and referring qualified prospective Spa—teeationUnit Franchisees to Franchisor; (h) if approved and
authorized in accordance with Section 3.6 of this Agreement, manage Franchise Sales Listings; (i) if
approved and authorized in accordance with Section 3.6 of this Agreement, attend and promote the sale of
Spa—teeationUnit Franchises at Franchise Shows; (j) comply with the operating standards set forth by
Franchisor as to the operations of the Area Representative Business, including, but-netlimited-to-Seetions
3-andwithout limitation, the operating standards set forth in Section 3 and Section 4 of this Agreement; (k)
operate the Area Representative Business in conformity with the eperations-manualOperations Manual as
such eperations-manualOperations Manual exists as of the Effective Date of this Agreement and as the
operations-manualOperations Manual may be modified and supplemented from time to time in the future
by Franchisor; in Franchisor’s_sole discretion; (1) operate the Area Representative Business in conformity
with the highest ethical and professional standards, including, but-netlimited-towithout limitation, those
standards specified by Franchisor in the eperations—manualOperations Manual; (m) operate the Area
Representative Business in conformity with all applicable federal and state franchise laws, business
opportunity laws, and commercial laws, including, without limitation, franchise disclosure and filing
document disclosure laws and obligations, franchise disclosure document registration obligations imposed
on area representatives, franchise seller disclosure and/or registration and filing requirements, and business
opportunity disclosure and/or registration and filing requirements; and (n) otherwise comply with the terms
and conditions of this Agreement. The foregoing shall be undertaken by Area Representative at Area
Representative’s sole cost and expense and without any contribution, rebate, or credit from Franchisor.

313 34 ARAREA REPRESENTATIVE TRAINING
Within 9060 days of the Effective Date of this Agreement, Area Representative shall complete, to
Franchisor’s satisfaction, the AR Initial Training Program and the Franchisee Initial Training Program.

314 35 THIRD PARTY FRANCHISE SALES AGENTS AND SALES AGENT FEES

Area Representative mayshall not engage any Franchise Sales Agent without the express written consent of
Franchisor. If Area Representative wishes to recruit, utilize, and/or benefit from the services of a Franchise
Sales Agent then: (a) Area Representative must obtain Franchisor’s written approval, which Franchisor may
grant or refuse in Franchisor’s sole discretion; and (b) the Franchise Sales Agent must enter into a written
franchise sales agent agreement approved by Franchisor and signed by Franchisor. Area Representative
agrees that, at all times, Franchisor may, without notice to Area Representative and/or without requiring the
consent of Area Representative, engage a Franchise Sales Agent in connection with the sale of Spa
LeeationUnit Franchises within the Area Representative Territory. Area Representative agrees that critical
to the System is Franchisor’s reputation and the System’s reputation for paying Franchise Sales Agents in
connection with the sale of SpaUnit Franchises. To protect the System, Area Representative acknowledges
and agrees that in the event of a dispute between Area Representative and a Franchise Sales Agent as to a
commission and/or fee that may be payable to the Franchise Sales Agent, that Franchisor possesses the sole
discretion and authority in determining whether or not such commission and/or fee shall be paid.

315 3.6 FRANCHISE SALES LISTINGS AND FRANCHISE SHOWS
Area Representative may not use any Franchise Sales Listings without the express written consent of
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Franchisor. If Area Representative wishes to use any Franchise Sales Listings, then: (a) Area Representative
must obtain Franchisor’s written approval, which Franchisor may grant or refuse in Franchisor’s sole
discretion; (b) Thethe Franchise Sales Listings must comply with all of Franchisor’s criteria and
requirements for Franchise Sales Listings; and (c) Area Representative shall be solely and exclusively
responsible for all fees and expenses associated with the Franchise Sales Listings.

Area Representative may not attend and/or promote SpateeationUnit Franchises at any Franchise Shows
without the express written consent of Franchisor. If Area Representative wishes to attend a Franchise Show
to promote Spa-LeeationUnit Franchises, then: (a) Area Representative must obtain Franchisor’s written
approval, which Franchisor may grant or refuse in Franchisor’s sole discretion; (b) Thethe Franchise Show
displays, advertising, and marketing materials must be approved by Franchisor and-must otherwise comply
with all of Franchisor’s criteria and requirements; and (c) Area Representative shall be solely and exclusively
responsible for all fees and expenses associated with the Franchise Shows.

31.6 3.7 NO AUTHORITY BY-ARTO AWARD FRANCHISES OR ENTER INTO ANY
AGREEMENTS
31.7 AND NO RIGHTS AS A THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARY
Notwithstanding anything contained in this Agreement to the contrary, under no circumstance is Area
Representative authorized to enter into any agreement on behalf of Franchisor, award any Spa-lLecationUnit
Franchises, sign any Franchise Agreement, make any promises on behalf of Franchisor, and/or make any
representations and/or statements other than those disclosed by Franchisor in Franchisor’s then current and
issued and, if applicable, registered and/or filed franchise-diselosure-doeument-Unit Franchise Disclosure
Document. Area Representative’s rights as set forth in this Agreement is that of an agent of Franchisor to
act in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement-and-at the-direction-of Franchisor.. Under
no circumstance shall or will Area Representative acquire any ownership interests and/or rights in or to the
System, the Licensed Marks-and/er, improvements, modifications, and/or enhancements to the System
and/or Licensed Marks. Under no circumstance shall or will Area Representative acquire any interests
and/or rightrights in or to the Franchise Agreements with AR Unit Franchisees and/or altany other contracts,
agreements, and/or legal rights between Franchisor and AR Unit Franchisees. Area Representative is not
intended to be, and shall not be, a third party beneficiary in or to the Franchise Agreements with AR Unit
Franchisees and/or altany other contracts, agreements, and/or legal rights between Franchisor and-AR Unit
Franchisees.

31.8 3.8—38 FRANCHISOR’S RIGHTS REGARDING INSPECTIONS AND
FRANCHISOR’S EXCLUSIVE RIGHT TO TAKE ACTION UNDER A FRANCHISE
AGREEMENT

As to the Inspection Services and the on-site quality, operations, support, customer experience, and service

inspections that are to be undertaken by Area Representative as a part of Area Representative’s On-Going

Support Services, Area Representative agrees that: (a) Area Representative’s inspections shall be advisory

only and-that, at all times, Franchisor possesses and retains the right to inspect all AR Unit Franchisee Spa

LeeationUnit Franchises; and; (b) at Franchisor’s sole discretion, to otherwise directly inspect and/or

ascertain whether AR Unit Franchisees are in compliance with the terms and conditions of their respective

Franchise Agreements and System requirements.

Notwithstanding any term or condition in this Agreement to
the contrary, Area Representative agrees that as to the legal rights of AR Unit Franchisees:(a), Franchisor
possesses the sole and exclusive right to: (a) determine whether-er—set an AR Unit Franchisee is in
compliance with the terms and conditions of its Franchise Agreement; (b) Eranchisorpossesses-thesole-and
execlasive—right-te-terminate thean AR Unit Franchisee’s Franchise Agreement—of-an—Agreement; (c)
Eranehisor possesses-thesole-and-exelusive right te send notices of default to AR Unit Franchisees and/or
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other legal notices involving AR Unit Franchisee rights and/or obligations under each respective Area
Representative Franchise Agreements;—(d)—Franchisor—pessesses—the—sole—and—exelusive—right
toAgreement(s); (d) terminate a Franchise Agreement due to the occurrence of an AR Umt Franchlsee s
default and/or for failure to cure a default; and (e) 2 5 take
any legal action with respect to any default by an AR Unlt Franchlsee and/or any Vlolatlon of an AR Unit
Franchisee, as such default and/or violation may be exclusively determined by Franchisor.

If Area Representative believes and/or pessesspossesses knowledge and/or information that indicates that
an AR Unit Franchisee has and/or may be in violation of the terms or conditions of the AR Unit Franchisee’s
Franchise Agreement, or-that the AR Unit Franchisee is otherwise in violation of the requirements of the
System, Area Representative shall immediately notify Franchisor in writing. Franchisor shall determine
whether ernot-to investigate the alleged violation-and. If Franchisor determines that there is a breach by
an AR Unit Franchisee of its Franchise Agreement-with;, then Franchisor shalmay, in Franchisor’s sole
discretion, take such action as Franchisor deems appropriate. Area Representative shall take such action as
Franchisor directs in support of the determination and decision of Franchisor.

319 39 FRANCHISOR’S DESIGNATED FACILITIES AND EVENTS
Although Area Representative’ s rlghts in and to the Area Representatlve Business are llmlted to the Area
Representative Territory, W rdtre—an e h o 3 v
Representative aeknewledge&aﬁéragrees that at the so]e dlscretlon of F ranchlsor F ranchlsor may requlre
Area Representative, at Area Representative’s sole cost and expense, to carry-out and discharge certain AR
Services from facilities and locations that may be located outside the Area Representative Territory as same
may be designated by Franchisor from time to time. Among other things, at the election of Franchisor, Area
Representative and Area Representative’s employees may be required to attend discovery days and training
events at facilities and locations designated by Franchisor that are outside the Area Representative Territory,
and Area Representative shall be required to attend Franchisee conferences and events designated by
Franchisor.

31.10 3.10 DIGITAL MEDIA, SYSTEM WEBSITE AND TELEPHONE NUMBERS

Area Representative acknowledges the significance of Digital Media to the System and necessity for
Franchisor’s control over Digital Media. Between Franchisor and Area Representative, Franchisor is the
absolute owner of the Digital Media and nothing contained in this Agreement grants to Area Representative
any ownership interest in or to the Digital Media. Area Representative shall not utilize, access, or open
accounts regarding or related to Digital Media unless expressly approved by Franchisor in writing, which
approval Franchisor may withhold, condition, or limit as determined by Franchisor in Franchisor’s sole
discretion, and which approval, if given, shall be limited to the marketing and promotion of Spa
LeeationUnit Franchise sales in accordance with Franchisor’s standards and specifications. Upon expiration
or termination of this Agreement for any reason, any prior authorization by Franchisor as to Area
Representative’s right to utilize the Digital Media and/or etherwise-as-te-any rights of Area Representative
in or to the Digital Media shall be automatically terminated and, at Franchisor’s election, the right to any
and all accounts and/or sites (if any) associated with Digital Media utilized by Area Representative shall be
transferred to Franchisor. Under no circumstance shall Area Representative utilize the Digital Media for
purposes ef-or with the effect of libeling or disparaging another person, nor shall Area Representative
violate any copyrights—as, trademarks, or other intellectual property rights of any person. As to such
actions-as between Area Representative and any third party, Area Representative is exclusively responsible
for disparagement, libel, and/or eepyrightintellectual property infringement if Area Representative
published and/or caused such content to be published.

Area Representative agrees that Digital Media and/or Published Content, if permitted by Franchisor, must
be approved by Franchisor prior to publication or use in any form. Digital Media and Published Content
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that is approved by Franchisor, or that-otherwise is-acceptable to Franchisor as meeting Franchisor’s
standards, shall be owned by Franchisor. As between Franchisor and Area Representative, any and all
interest and right in or to the Digital Media and/or Published Content shall, at all times, be and is the
exclusive property of Franchisor both during the Term of this Agreement and upon the expiration-er,
termination, or Transfer of this Agreement. Area Representative acknowledges and agrees that the System
Website, Digital Media, and Published Content, and all improvements and modifications made to the
System Website, Digital Media, and Published Content-is, are, and shall be, the exclusive property of
Franchisor.

31.11 3.11 FDD REGISTRATION, DISCLOSURE AND COMPLIANCE OBLIGATIONS

Area Representative shall not market, promote, or solicit franchise sales at any time during which any one
of the following non-compliance events occurs (a “Non-Compliance Event”): (a) Franchisor’s EDD-forSpa
EranchisesUnit Franchise Disclosure Document, as designated and determined by Franchisor in
Franchisor’s sole discretion, is not current and updated in accordance with federal law, rules, and
regulat1ons 1nclud1ng, but—net—l-rmﬁed—tewnhout 11m1tat10n 16 CFR Parts 436 and 437 (b) Franchlsor S Spa

TerﬂtefyUnrt Franchrse Drsclosure Document is not currently ﬁledwr%hﬂnd regrstered, or authorlzed in

accordance with thejurisdietions-applicable franchise filing requirements, registration requirements, and/or
business opportunity laws;(e)-Area—Representative; if such laws and regulations are applicable to the
jurisdictions that include the Area Representative Territory;-dees-netregister-as-a-franchise-seller;-er(e; (c)
Area Representatlve if appllcable to the _]urlsdlctrons that 1nclude the Area Representatlve Temtory, does
not register Area h h
writing:as a franchise seller and is regulred to regrster asa franch1se seller under appllcable law, and/or ld[
Area Representative, if applicable to the jurisdictions that include the Area Representative Territory and

subject to Franchisor’s written consent and approval, does not register or file an Area Representative FDD
that Area Representative is required to register or file under applicable law. Area Representative expressly
acknowledges and agrees that certain jurisdictions may require that Area Representative register its own
FDD and/or that Area Representative make specific filings and registrations and-that, if requestedapplicable
to dethe Area Representative Territory and/or the operations of Area Representative, upon the request of
Franchisor, Area Representative, at Area Representative’s sole cost and expense and subject to Franchisor’s
standards, specifications, and written approval, shall cause its ewnArea Representative’s FDD to be
prepared, registered and/er filed, as applicable, in accordance with Franchisor’s instruction and at Area
Representative’s sole cost and expense.

If a Non-Compliance Event occurs as a result of subsections (ba) or (eb) of the first paragraph of this Section
3.1 l—then—EheDeveleﬁment—Sehedﬂleshall—besusﬁenéed—fer and such timne-wntitthe FDD-is-as-applicable:

ered 0 Non-Compliance Event was not
caused by FFanehaseH&du%te any actlon or a%suklnactlon of Area Representative including, but not
limited to, Area Representative’s failure to provide and/or timely provide information, documentation,
compliance certifications, financial statements, and/or other documents as may be requested by Franchisor
in connection with Franchisor’s preparation, update, filing-and/orregistration-of Eranchiser’s-SpaEDD-,
and/or registration of Franchisor’s Unit Franchise Disclosure Document, then the Development Schedule
shall be suspended for such time until the subsection (a) or (b) Non-Compliance Event (as set forth in this
Section 3.11) is cured. Franchisor, in Franchisor’s sole determination, shall designate and determine
whether or not the Non-Compliance Event has been cured.

Without Hmitatien—telimiting the foregoing, Area Representative agrees that; if requested by Franchisor,
Area Representative shall timely and consistently provide Franchisor with all information that Franchisor
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requests in connection with the preparation, update, registration, and/or renewal of the Spa—FBBUnit
Franchise Disclosure Document, the operations of the Area Representative Business, and as to all AR Unit
Franchisees. Area Representative shall also timely provide Franchisor with Area Representative’s audited
financial statements no later than March 1 of each calendar year during the Term of this Agreement.

31.12 3.12 ADVERTISING, RECRUITING, SCREENING, AND APPROVALS
Area Representative shall berespensibleadvertise for-advertising forreeruiting-sereentng, recruit, screen,

and reviewingreview prospective AR Unit Franchisees_subject to Franchisor’s instructions and System
standards. Area Representative must spend a minimum of $1,000 per month on the solicitation of

prospective AR Unit Franchisees, except that there is no minimum expenditure for the first six months
of the Term. Area Representative must submit monthly reports to Franchisor showing the advertising
expenditures. If Area Representative fails to spend the required minimum of $1,000 per month, Franchisor
may require Area Representative to pay this amount to Franchisor or its affiliates to be-spentspend on
solicitation and advertisement. Area Representative shall provide prospective AR Unit Franchisees with
information in print, digital, webinar, and other mediums approved or designated by Franchisor.

Area Representative shall submit all qualified prospective AR Unit Franchisees to Franchisor for approval.
Area Representative shall follow those submission processes designated by Franchisor, including, butset
limited-towithout limitation, required information gathering sessions that must be undertaken by Area
RepresentationRepresentative and the preparation and submission of prospective AR Unit Franchisee
applications, data, and reports that must be submitted by Area Representative to Franchisor prior to
Franchisor considering and/or evaluating a prospective AR Unit Franchisee.

Upon Area RepresentativesRepresentative’s submission of all information required by Franchisor-and
upen, a prospective AR Unit Franchisee’s submission of all information required by Franchisor, apenand
completion of Franchisor’s internal review and qualification process, by-delivery-ef-writtennetice-to-Area
Representative—Franchisor shall approve or disapprove the award of Spa—teeationUnit Franchises to
prospective AR Unit Franchisees by delivery of written notice to Area Representative. Franchisor agrees
to exert good faith efforts to deliver such notification to Area Representative within 10 business days
after the later of: (a) receipt by Franchisor of a complete application, financial statement, and other
materials requested by Franchisor regarding the prospective AR Unit Franchisee; or (b) the personal
interview of the prospective AR Unit Franchisee applicant, at the expense of the prospective AR Unit
Franchisee, by Franchisor at Franchisor’s designated corporate offices. Franchisor shall determine whether
the prospective AR Unit Franchisee applicant possesses sufficient financial and managerial capability and
has—satisfiedsatisfies the other criteria then-used- utilized by Franchisor in granting Spa-teeationUnit
Franchises. Franchisor may refuse to grant a franchise to a prospective AR Unit Franchisee applicant for
any reason or no reason at all and-in Franchisor’s sole discretion. The grant of a Spa-LeeationUnit Franchise
shall be effective only upon and after the full execution of the then current Franchise Agreement by
Franchisor and the prospective AR Unit Franchisee applicant.

31.13 3.13 ARAREA REPRESENTATIVE STAFFING AND EMPLOYEE RELATIONSHIPS
Area Representative shall hire a sufficient number of employees to carry-out, perform, and satisfy Area
Representative’s obligations under this Agreement. Area Representative acknowledges and agrees that
Area Representative is and shall be the sole employer of its employees. Area Representative has the sole
right to select, hire, and discharge Area Representative’s employees. Area Representative is solely
responsible for all decisions regarding hiring, firing, training, supervising, disciplining, scheduling and
paying wages to, and withholding and paying taxes for, Area Representative’s employees. Area
Representative agrees that there is no joint employer relationship between Franchisor and Area
Representative. Area Representative’s compliance with all federal, state, and local labor and wage laws,
rules, and regulations shall be exclusively determined and managed by Area Representative. To the extent
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that the eperations—manualOperations Manual includes information, specifications, procedures, criteria,
and/or requirements as to employees of the Area Representative Business, such requirements shall be
interpreted exclusively for the purpose of maintaining brand standards associated with the System, to
protect the goed-willgoodwill associated with the System, and to ensure System uniformity requirements
and standards concerning the System-and-under. Under no circumstance shall samesuch information
specifications, procedures, criteria, and/or requirements relate to the employer-employee relationship. As
to the foregoing issue of “joint employer™ and the non-existence thereof, in the event of any inconsistency
or conflict between this Agreement and the eperations—manualOperations Manual, the terms of this
Agreement shall take precedence and govern.

31.14 3.14 IMAGE _AND FINANCIAL DATA RELEASE

Area Representative agrees and authorizes Franchisor to use Area Representative’s likeness in photographs,
videos, and all other media in which Area Representative’s likeness appears and to use same in any and all
Digital Media and other publications and advertisements of Franchisor. Area Representative agrees that
any photograph or image using Area Representative’s likeness will become Franchisor’s property and wit
not bereturned to Area Representative. Area Representative agrees and irrevocably authorizes Franchisor
to use, edit, alter, copy, exhibit, publish, or distribute any photograph and/or image (digital, video, print,
or otherwise) of Area Representative for any lawful purpose and to do so without payment of any royalty
or fee to Area Representative. Area Representative, at all times, further authorizes Franchisor to publicly
disclose and publish financial data and information related to the financial performance of the Area
Representative Business in Franchisor’s Franchise Disclosure Documents and other media designated by
Franchisor.

31.15 3.15 RELOCATION

Under no circumstance will Area Representative be permitted to relocate the Area Representative Business,
relocate the Area Representative Territory, and/or modify the Area Representative Territory, without the
prior written consent of Franchisor, which Franchisor may withhold in its sole discretion. If Area
Representative wishes to relocate the AR Office, Area Representative must obtain Franchisor’s prior
written consent, which Franchisor will not unreasonably withhold previded-thatso long as the proposed new
officeAR Office is located within the Area Representative Territory.

SECTION 4
2932 DEVELOPMENT QUOTA, AREA REPRESENTATIVE FEE,
3033 AND DEVELOPMENT SCHEDULE

331 4.1 REPRESENTATIONS, DEVELOPMENT QUOTA AND QUOTA OBLIGATIONS
Franchisor acknowledges and Area Representative agreeagrees and representrepresents that: (a) the
Aggregate Development Quota is identified and set forth in Schedule 42 of this Agreement; (b) as to each
and every Development Period, the Development Quota Obligations are identified and set forth in Schedule
12 of this Agreement; (c) the Aggregate Development Quota is fair and reasonable; (d) the Development
Quota Obligations are fair and reasonable; (e) Franchisor has not made any representations and/or
warranties as to the number of Development Spa-LecationUnit Franchises that may or will be established
within the Area Representative Territory, except as set forth in subsection (f) of this Section 4.1; (f) thatin
agreeing to the Aggregate Development Quota, the Development Schedule, and the Development Period
Quota Development ObligationObligations, Franchisor solely and exclusively represents that the Aggregate
Development Quota represents a number of Development Spa—LeeationUnit Franchise
Agreement’sAgreements that Franchisor will approve for development and operation within the Area
Representative Territory provided that the prospective franchiseesUnit Franchisees are qualified, meet
Franchisor’s then current standards and criteria for Spa—teeationUnit Franchises, and are otherwise
approved by Franchisor, in Franchisor’s sole and exclusive discretion; (g) Area Representative has

27

V/O Med Spa. AR FDD. April 18, 2024



independently evaluated the Area Representative Territory to independently determine and assess potential
franchise-Unit Franchise sales, the availability of potential Development Spa—teeationUnit Franchise
locations, the potential successful operation of Development SpateeationUnit Franchises, and the overall
suitability of the Area Representative Territory; (h) Area Representative has independently and-with-Area
Representative’slegal-counsel-investigated and evaluated all regulatory laws, rules, and requirements
related to Spa—Leeationthe marketing and promotion of Unit Franchises inelading,—but-netlimited—to;
whether-or-notfranchisees-within the Area Representative Territory mayhd-&eet-l-y—ewn—and operate-a-Spa-or
Spa-Management Business-and the types of activities that

inFranchisor has advised Area Representative to obtain the advice of legal counsel; (i) Franchisor possesses
sole discretion as to whether or not Franchisor elects to enter into a Franchise Agreement with a proposed
AR Unit Franchisee and that-Area—Representative-acknowledges—that-Franchisor, in Franchisor’s sole
discretion, will-and-maycan reject potential AR Unit Franchisees based-on-theirqualifications-and-eriteria
determined-byFranehiserfor any reason or no reason at all; and (j) that-under no circumstance is Franchisor
under any obligation to market the sale of Spa—tLeecationUnit Franchises within or related to the Area
Representative Territory.

332 4.2 AREA REPRESENTATIVE TERRITORY FEE

In exchange for the rights set forth and granted to Area Representative pursuant to the terms of this
Agreement, upon execution of this Agreement, Area Representative shall pay to Franchisor the Area
Representative Territory Fee. The Area Representative Territory Fee is identified in Schedule 42 of this
Agreement-and-notrefundable-underany-eireumstanee-and, the Area Representative Territory Fee is fully
earned by Franchisor upon execution of this Agreement, and the Area Representative Territory Fee is not
refundable under any circumstance. Area Representative agrees that, among other things, the Area
Representative Territory Fee is not a Franchise Agreement fee of any kind nor is it in lieu of any Franchise
Agreement fee but, rather, is a fee paid by Area Representative to Franchisor in connection with the rights
set forth in this Agreement relating to Area Representative’s right to operate anthe Area Representative
Business. Area Representative acknowledges and agrees that the Area Representative Territory Fee is
calculated based on the aggregate number of Development Spa—LeecationUnit Franchises authorized for
potential development by this Agreement.

33.3

334 43 DEVELOPMENT SCHEDULE

Area Representative agrees that to induce Franchisor to enter into this Agreement that Area Representative,
in connection with Area Representative’s development and operation of the Area Representative Business
and Area Representative’s performance of the AR Services, that- AreaRepresentative-shall timely meet and
satisfy the development requirements set forth in the Development Schedule, including, but-nettimited
towithout limitation, the Aggregate Development Quota and the Development Quota Obligations. The
Development Schedule is attached to this Agreement as a part of Schedule 12. Area Representative’s failure
to timely meet — with time being of the essence - and satisty the Aggregate Development Quota, the
Development Schedule, and/or the Development Quota Obligations shall constitute a material default of
this Agreement and, among other things, entitle Franchisor to terminate this Agreement. Time is of the
essence. Each and every Development Period shall be independent of the other, and Area Representative’s
failure to meet Area RepresentativesRepresentative’s Development Quota Obligations for any particular
Development Period shall constitute a material default of this Agreement. Deficits and/or deficiencies as to
any one particular Development Period cannot be carried over, satisfied, and/or made up in any subsequent
Development Period.

335

33.6 4.4 REASONABLENESS OF DEVELOPMENT SCHEDULE

Area Representative agrees and represents that it has conducted its own independent investigation and
analysis of the prospects for the establishment of Development Spa—teeationUnit Franchises within the
Area Representative Territory, that-Area Representative approves of the Development Schedule as being
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reasonable and viableachievable, and that-Area Representative recognizesagrees that failure to achieve-the
results-deseribed-intimely meet and satisfy — with time being of the essence - the Aggregate Development
Sehedule-willQuota and the respective Development Quota Obligations shall constitute a material breach
of this Agreement-with-time-being-of-the-essenee. Additionally, as to the Development Schedule, Area
Representative agrees that: (a) the Development Schedule is fair and reasonable; (b) Franchisor has not
made any representations and/or warranties as to the number of Development Spa-teecationUnit Franchises
that will or may be established within the Area Representative Territory; (¢) Franchisor has not made any
representations and/or warranties as to the number of Development Spa—LeeationUnit Franchise
Agreements that will or may be signed withinas to the Area Representative Territory and/or within the
respective Development Periods; (d) in agreeing to the Development Schedule, Franchisor solely represents
that the Development Schedule represents a number of Development Spa—LeeationUnit Franchise
Agreement’sAgreements that Franchisor may approve for development and operation within the Area
Representative Territory provided that the prospective franchisees are qualified, meet Franchisor’s then
current standards and criteria for SpaUnit Franchisees, and are otherwise approved by Franchisor; (e) that
Area Representative has independently evaluated the Area Representative Territory to independently
determine and assess potential franchise sales, the availability of potential Development Spa-teeationUnit
Franchise locations, the potential successful operation of Development Spa-LeeationUnit Franchises, and
the overall suitability of the Area Representative Territory, the Aggregate Development Quota, and the
Development Schedule; and (f) Franchisor possesses sole discretion as to whether er#ret-Franchisor elects
to enter into a Franchise Agreement with a proposed AR Unit Franchisee, and that-Area Representative
acknowledges and agrees that Franchisor will-and-maycan reject potential AR Unit Franchisees based-on
their-qualifications-andfor any reason or no reason at all in EranehisersFranchisor’s sole discretion. Under
no circumstance is Franchisor under any obligation to market the sale of Spa-LeeationUnit Franchises
within, or related to, the Area Representative Territory.

SECTION 5§
3134 CONTINGENT AREA REPRESENTATIVE COMMISSIONS

341 5.1 INITIAL NET FRANCHISE FEE COMMISSIONCOMPENSATION
During the Initial Term of this Agreement and subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement,
Franchisor shall pay to Area Representative the Initial NetAR Franchise Fee CommissienCompensation.

342 5.2 AREA REPRESENTATIVE ROYALTY €COMMISSIONCOMPENSATION

During the Term of this Agreement and subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, Franchisor
shall pay to Area Representative the AR Royalty Ceommission—UnderCompensation. Except for the AR
Franchise Fee Compensation and AR Royalty Compensation, under no circumstances shall Area
Representative be entitled to receive any commissions on any other revenue, receipts, rebates, fees, funds
and/or sumsany other amounts paid to Franchisor or Franchisor’s affiliates by an AR Unit Franchisee, Unit
Franchisee, or any third party veaderresulting from and/or relating to the Area Representative Territory or
AR Unit Franchisees.

343 53 COMMISSIONCOMPENSATION CONDITIONS

In-addition-te-and-witheutWithout limitation to the terms and eendition-etherwiseconditions set forth in this
Agreement as to payment and calculation of Initial NetAR Franchise Fee CommissionsCompensation and
AR Royalty CemnumnissiensCompensation (individually and collectively, the “Commissions™), Area
Representative agrees:

(a) Upon the expiration—es, termination, or Transfer of this Agreement for any reason, Area
Representative’s right to receive Commissions and altany other fermsform of compensation under this
Agreement shall immediately and automatically terminate. Within 30 days of the termination-and/er,
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expiration, or Transfer of this Agreement, Franchisor shall pay to Area Representative the Commissions
that accrued and became payable and due to Area Representative up to the date of expiration-ex,
termination, or Transfer of this Agreement;

(b) In the event of a default of this Agreement by Area Representative where such default is curable by
Area Representative, Area Representative shall waive-{, without the right to payment in the future}-any
and, all rights to Commissions that Area Representative would have earned and/or would have been
paid to Area Representative during the period in which Area Representative’s default existed and
remained uncured;

(c) Franchisor’s payments of Commissions to Area Representative shall occur on a cash receipts
accounting basis and not on an accounting accrual basis:;

(d) If Franchisor, in Franchisor’s sole discretion and for any reason, elects to refund and/or refunds all
or a portion of an AR Unit Franchisees Franchise Fee and/or Royalty EeeFees, Franchisor may: (i)
offset the amount of Commissions applicable to such refunds against any future Commissions payable
and due by Franchlsor to Area Representatwe%h%@emﬂmssmﬁees%ﬁehiweweﬁslﬁpadﬁea
- ntativ AR v i; and/or (ii) demand
from Franchlseeﬁ'mé a refund of the apphcable Commlssmns orlglnally paid to Franchisee as to the
refunded Franchise Fee and/or Royalty Fees and upon such refund request Franchisee shall pay to
Franchisor the requested refunded Commissions within five business days;

(de) Franchisor is permitted to set-off against Area Representative’s Commissions all sumsamounts
and/or fees that may be payable and/or due from Area Representative to Franchisor-;

(f) Under no circumstance is Area Representative granted any set-off rights_as against Franchisor; and
(g) Under no circumstance shall Area Representative receive or collect any fees, receipts, and/or receive

any credits or consideration from any AR Unit Franchisees, Unit Franchisees, or any third party in
connection with and/or related to the System.

SECTION 6
3235 ARAREA REPRESENTATIVE TRAINING AND OPERATING ASSISTANCE

351 6.1 ARAREA REPRESENTATIVE INITIAL TRAINING

Within 90 days of the Effective Date of this Agreement, Eranchisorshall-provide-Area— Representative or,
if Area Representative is a Corporate Entity, Area Representative’s Owners—with—initial-training, shall
participate in Franchisor’s initial training program for Area Representatives (the “AR Initial Training
Program”) if established and required by Franchisor. Area Representative and Area Representative’s
Owners, at Area -Representative’s -sole -cost -and expense, must attend and complete;-to-the-satisfaction-of
Franehiser; the AR Initial Training Program and the Franchisee Initial Training Program:- to the satisfaction
of Franchisor. The AR Initial Training Program shall be structured, configured, and established by
Franchisor from time to time and may be structured by Franchisor so that it is offered and completed by
Area Representative in various phases, which may require participation in interactive webinar type sessions
and on-site training at Franchisor’s corporate offices. Franchisor will not charge Area Representative tuition
or other fees in connection with the AR Initial Training Program or the Franchisee Initial Training Program,
however, Area Representative is responsible for all travel-and, living, and other reasonable expenses
associated with attending the training programs.
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352 6.2 REPLACEMENT TRAINING

The AR Initial Training Program will be made available to replacement or additional Owners and other
management personnel of Area Representative that are approved by Franchisor. Franchisor reserves-the
right-tecan charge a tuition or supplemental training fee in anthe amount payable—in—advaneeforsuch
tratning—of $800 per day Wthh shall be pald bV Area Representatlve wx—l—l—b%eqm%ed—%#&%mmgfee

to Franchisor in an-a nt-designated by Franchisor-as Franchisor's then-de rated y
aﬂ—mel-xﬂduaJ—t-r—amer—aﬂd— dvancc ot @uch tralmng Area Representatlve shall be resp0n51ble for all travel
and, living, and other reasonable expenses incurred by Area Representative’s personnel in connection with
attendance at such training programs. If, at Franchisor’s election, training occurs on-site within Area
Representative’sthe Area Representative Territory or such other location selected at the request of Area
Representative or for the benefit of Area Representative, then Area Representative shall also pay to
Franchisor all travel, food. transportation, and hetel-accommeodationlodging expenses incurred by
Franchisor.

353 6.3 SEMINARS AND ON-GOING TRAINING

Periodically, Franchisor may, at Franchisor’s election, present seminars, conventions, or continuing
development programs for the benefit of the Area Representative. Franchisor smaycan charge a fee up to
$800 per day for such training or programs. Area Representative or its Owners shall-beare required to and
shall attend anyall ongoing mandatery—seminars, conferences, industry conventions, meetings, erand
programs as may-be-offereddesignated by Franchisor. If Area Representative fails to attend a Franchisor
designated mandatory seminar, convention, meeting, training event, or program without obtaining
Franchisor’s prior written approval of the absence and fails to arrange for attendance at an alternate time,
Area Representative shall be required to make up the missed program at a time and place designated by
Franchisor and pay Franchisor a fee equal to Franchisor’s then current fee; as set forth in the eperations
manualOperations Manual or otherwise in writing. Franchisor shall give Area Representative at least 60
days’ prior written notice of any seminar, convention, training, or program deemeddesignated as
mandatory- by Franchisor. Area Representative will be responsible for all travel-and, living, and other
expenses associated with attendance at any ongoing training program, seminar, convention or programs:
designated by Franchisor. Area Representative will-be—required-to-shall pay to Franchisor itsFranchisor’s
then current fee for attending any mandatory training, seminar or convention. Franchisor may preclude
FranchiseeArea Representative from attending any seminar or convention if FranchiseeArea
Representative is in default of this Agreement at the time of the training, seminar or convention; or if
Eranchisee-has-hadArea Representative was issued two notices of default within 12 months prior to any
seminar or convention.

354 6.4 FRANCHISOR’S OPERATING ASSISTANCE

From time to time and as determined by Franchisor, in Franchisor’s sole discretion, Franchisor may advise
Area Representative of those applicable standards, procedures, and System requirements in connection with
Area Representative’s operation of the Area Representative Business. Operating assistance may, as
determined by Franchisor, in Franchisor’s sole discretion, may-consist of:

(a) Establishing and communicating to Area Representative operating procedures, improvements to the
System, and modifications to the System in connection with the Area Representative’s operation of the
Area Representative Business, the Approved Spa-Products and Services, and_the procedures to be
utilized by Area Representative in connection with Area Representative’s training of AR Unit
Franchisees, and Area Representative’s marketing and promotion of the Area Representative Business;

(b) Upon the reasonable request of Area Representative, consultation by telephone regarding advice
related to franchise sales, site selection, Franchisee support, and other required assistance. In providing
assistance, Franchisor will be reasonably accessible during normal business hours by phone, fax, e-
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mail, or other means of communication reasonably determined by Franchisor. If Area Representative
requests additional, special, on-premises training of its personnel or other assistance in operating
its Area Representative Business and/or AR SpateeationUnit Franchise, then Area Representative
agrees to pay for all expenses for that training or assistance, including any per diem costs assessed by
Franchisor-and-any, an amount equal to wages or compensation ewed-teof Franchisor’s personnel, and
travel-and, living, and other reasonable expenses incurred by Franchisor’s personnel. Franchisor shall
have the right to charge Area Representative a fees—eurrently in the amount of $500 per day, and be
retmbursedArea Representative shall reimburse Franchisor for all related expenses-ineludingtravel
lodging;-and-meals; for any assistance or services requested by Area Representative and not specifically
required to be performed by Franchisor under this Agreement:, including, without limitation, travel
lodging, transportation, and meal expenses. Area Representative understands-and-acknowledges and
agrees that different AreaRepresentativesarea representatives will require different levels of service
and support, and-that Franchisor makes no warranties or guarantees that Area Representative will

receive the same level of service and support as any other Area-Representativearea representative;

(c) Establishing and communicating additional and/or modified System standards and requirements;

(d) Establishing and communicating franchise development standards and base campaigns that are
authorized for use by Area RepresentativesRepresentative;

(e) Establishing and communicating advertising and promotional programs and standards for use by
Area Representative;

(f) Approving or disapproving of Area Representative’s request to utilize marketing and promotion
materials and media not previously authorized by Franchisor;

(g) Establishing and communicating administrative and general operating procedures for use by Area
RepresentativesRepresentative;

(h) Establishing, updating, revising, and communicating a list(s) of approved suppliers of products,
supplies, equipment, software systems, and marketing related services including, butnettimited
tewithout limitation, the System Inventory and Equipment, as Franchisor deems appropriate and as may
be otherwise designated by Franchisor in Franchisor’s sole discretion;

(i) Establishing and communicating guldance to Area Representative in the form of the eperations
mantalOperations Manual and as Franchisor, in Franchisor’s sole discretion; deems appropriate, in the
form of bulletins or other written materials, telephonic consultations, and/or consultations at the offices
of Franchisor; and

(j) Maintaining an issued EFBBUnit Franchise Disclosure Document that is timely-renewed-and-made
available to Area Representative.

355 6.5 OPERATIONS MANUAL
Franchisor shall loan to Area Representative during the termTerm of the-franehisethis Agreement one copy
¢of the Operations Manual in digitala format er-inprint,as-determineddesignated by Franchisor)-ef-the

operations—manual.. The eoperations—manualOperations Manual contains mandatory and suggested

specifications, standards, and operating procedures that Franchisor prescribes for Spas, Spa-LecationUnit

Franchises, the Area Representative Business, other area representative business. and information relative

to other obligations of Area Representative. Area Representative must operate the Area Representative

Business in accordance with the specifications and requirements set forth in the eperations—manual
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andOperations Manual, as same may be modified, updated, supplemented, revised. and/or changed by
Franchisor from time to time. Franchisor has the right to add to, and otherwise modify, the eperations
mantalOperations Manual to reflect changes in the System. Area Representative must keep its copy of the
operations-manualOperations Manual current and in a secure location at the AR Office. If the eperations
manualOperations Manual is provided to Area Representative in electronic format, Area Representative
shall not permit third party access to the eperations-manualOperations Manual. The master copy of the
operations—manualOperations Manual that Franchisor maintains at Franchisor’s principal office or
electronically, whichever is most recently issued, controls if there is a dispute relative to the contents of the
operations—manual:Operations Manual. Area Representative shall have a reasonable period of time to
implement the changes in the System required by changes to the eperations-manual-Operations Manual.
Franchisor shall give Area Representative written-notice of thesuch modifications, updates, supplements
revisions, and/or changes required-and the-perieda reasonable amount of time within which the changes
must be implemented by Area Representative.

SECTION 7
3336 AREA REPRESENTATIVE’S RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS AND OBLIGATIONS

36.1 7.1 NECESSITY FOR RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS

Area Representative agrees that only through the course of entering into this Agreement isare Area
Representative and Area Representative’s Owners being-provided with access to the System, Franchisor’s
training, use of the Licensed Marks, and access to the eperations—manualOperations Manual and
Confidential Information. Area Representative agrees that competition by Area Representative; Owners
and/or SpeusesOwners could jeopardize the entire System and cause irreparable harm to Franchisor, Spa
Franchisees, and other AreaRepresentatives-area representatives. Accordingly, Area Representative agrees
to comply with the restrictive covenants set forth in this Section 7 and throughout this Agreement.

362 7.2 RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS: KNOW-HOW

Area Representative agrees that, at all times, Area Representative: (a) shall not use the Know-How in any
business or capacity other than the operation of the Area Representative Business pursuant to this
Agreement or, if applicable, as may be authorized pursuant to the terms of a SpateeationUnit Franchise
Agreement between Franchisor and Area Representative; (b) shall maintain the confidentiality of the
Know-How at all times; (c) shall not make unauthorized copies of documents containing any Know-How;
(d) shall take all reasonable steps that Franchisor requires from time to time to prevent unauthorized use or
disclosure of the Know-How; and (e) shall stop using the Know-How immediately upon the expiration,
termination, or Transfer of this Agreement unless doing so is otherwise authorized pursuant to the terms of
a Spa—LeeationUnit Franchise Agreement between Franchisor and Area Representative. Area
Representative agrees that the foregomg covenants and obhgatlons shall also apply to: (a)>-Area
Representative’si) Owners and ses-cach
Owner shall execute the AR Owner greement and—Speﬁse Guaranty—aﬂd—@e in the form attached to this
Agreement as Exhibit 1, and (ii) Area Representative’s directors, officers, employees, and agents where
disclosure of the Know-How was necessary for the operations of the Area Representative Business and
swhere-such director, officer, employee, and/or agent previously executed and delivered to Franchisor the
Confidentiality Agreement.

363 7.3 RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS: CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

Area Representative agrees that, at all times, Area Representative: (a) shall not use the Confidential
Information in any business or capacity other than the Area Representative Business operated by Area
Representative or, if applicable, as may be authorized pursuant to the terms of a Spa-LeeationUnit Franchise
Agreement between Franchisor and Area Representative; (b) shall maintain the confidentiality of the
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Confidential Information at all times; (c) -shall not make unauthorized copies of documents containing any
Confidential Information; (d) shall take such reasonable steps as Franchisor may ask of Area Representative
from time to time to prevent unauthorized use or disclosure of the Confidential Information; and (e) shall
stop using the Confidential Information immediately upon the expiration, termination, or Transfer of this
Agreement unless doing so is otherwise authorized pursuant to the terms of a Spa-LeeationUnit Franchise
Agreement between Franchisor and Area Representative. Area Representative agrees that the foregoing
covenants and obhgatlons shall also apply to: (al) Area Representatlve s Owners and Spoﬁ%es—aﬂd—a%

Owner shall execute the AR Owner greement andSpeuse Guarantyﬁaﬂd—éb in the form attached to this

Agreement as Exhibit 1, and (ii) Area Representative’s directors, officers, employees, and agents where
disclosure of the Cenfidential-InformationKnow-How was necessary for the operations of the Area
Representative Business and where-such director, officer, employee, and/or agent previously executed and
delivered to Franchisor the Confidentiality Agreement.

364 74 RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS: -UNFAIR COMPETITION AND IN-TERM NON-
COMPETITION OBLIGATIONS

Area Representative agrees that during the Term of this Agreement, Area Representative swilshall not
engage in the following activities (the “Prohibited Activities”): (a) owning and/or having any legal or
equitable interest (whether as an individual proprietor, owner, partner, member or shareholder of a
Corporate Entity, or in any similar capacity) in a Competitive Business (other than owning an interest of
3% or less in a publicly traded company that is a Competitive Business); (b) operating, managing, funding,
and/or performing services (Whether as an employee, officer, director, manager, consultant, representative,
agent, and/or credltor orin any 51m11ar capamty) fora Competltlve Busmess and (c) dlvertmg1 or attemptmg
to dlvert any a a altilia a a

%aﬂehseesﬁe%&%%&}eﬁmsﬁmw&h%mmhse&e%&ﬁ%m&&ome&&aﬂeﬂsee Unit Franchlsees or

prospective franchisce of Franchisor (or of onc of Franchisor’s afliliates or {ranchisces) or of Arca
Representative-to-any-otherpersen-business-erUnit Franchisee candidates to another Competitive Business
franchise system other—thanthat-ef-a—V/O-Med-Spa—and/or V/O-Med-Spabusiness opportunity. Area
Representative Business-AreaRepresentativeacknowledges and agrees that if Area Representative were to
engage in the Prohibited Activities—that, then such actions would be unfair, weuld-constitute unfair
competition, and weuld-cause harm to Franchisor, the System, and ether-Spa-AreaRepresentativesUnit
Franchisees. Area Representative agrees that the foregomg covenants and obhgatlons shall also apply to
AreaRepresentative’s-Owners and Speu a S
alpﬁheabl%(&rea—l%epreseﬂta%%s—@xmers—aﬂd%pouse&each Owner shall each execute and dehver to
Franchisor the AR Owner Agreement and-Speuse Guaranty_in the form attached to this Agreement as

Exhibit 1.

365 7.5 RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS: UNFAIR COMPETITION AND POST-
TERMINATION NON-COMPETITION OBLIGATIONS

Area Representative agrees that during the_Post-Term Restricted Period, Area Representative will not
engage in any Prohibited Activities. If Area Representative is-engagedengages in any Prohibited Activities
during the Post-Term Restricted Period; within the Restricted Territory, then Area Representative agrees
that theArea Representative’s Post-Term Restricted Period will be extended by the period of time during
which Area Representative was/were-engagingengaged in thesuch Prohibited Activity (any such extension
of time will not be construed as a waiver of Area Representative’s breach or otherwise impair any of
Franchisor’s rights or remedies relating to Area Representative’s breach). Area Representative
acknowledges and agrees that if Area Representative were to engage in the Prohibited Activities during the

Post-Term Restricted Period, then such actions would be unfair, constitute unfair competition, and cause
harm to Franchisor, the System, and Unit Franchisees. Area Representative agrees that the foregoing
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covenants and obligations shall also apply to AreaRepresentative’s-Owners and Speuses-and-that-Area
Representative’s-Owners-and-Speuses-each Owner shall each execute and deliver to Franchisor the Area
Representative AR Ownerﬁaﬁd—Spease Agreement and Guaranty%ea—Represen&aﬂv%&gree&thaF in the

form attachcd to thls

Fmﬂehse%aﬂd—th%ystemA;reement as Exhrbrt 1.

36.6 7.6 IMMEDIATE FAMILY MEMBERS

Area Representative acknowledges and agrees that should Area Representative circumvent the restrictive
covenants and obligations due to Franchisor under this Section 7:6 by disclosing Confidential Information
and/or Know-How to an rmmed—ra%%ﬁam‘rl—y mmedrate Famrly member (i.e., parent, sibling, child, or
grandchild-e etk e aranty) that Franchisor-will-and-the-,
System-wiH, and Unit Franchrscw would be 1rreparably harmed Area Representative acknowledges and
agrees that if Area Representative or one or more of Area Representative’s Owners did-diselosediscloses
the Know-How to an #mmediatefamilylmmediate Family member, and the #mmediatefamilyImmediate
Family member-ef-AreaRepresentative-or-an-Owaer used the Confidential Information or Know-How to

engage in activities that, for Area Representative and Area Representative’s Owners, qualify as Prohibited
Activities-as—defined-abeve;—that, then Franchisor-and, the System-will, and Unit Franchisees would be
irreparably harmed. Area Representative acknowledges and agrees that, as between Area Representative
and Franchisor, that Area Representative and Area Representative’s Owners are in a better position to know
if Area Representative permitted and/or provided an immediate—familylmmediate Family member with
access to the Confidential Information and/or Know-How. Therefore, Area Representative agrees that Area
Representative will be presumed to have violated the terms of this Agreement and, in particular, the
restrictive covenants and obligations set forth in this Section 7-6 if any member of Area Representative’s
or—an-Owners-Immediate Family or the immediatefamilylmmediate Family member of an Owner (a)
engages in any Prohibited Activities_in the Restricted Territory during any period of time during which
Area Representative is prohibited from engaging in the Prohibited Activities and/or (b) uses or discloses
the Confidential Information and/or Know-How. However, Area Representative may rebut this
presumption by providing evidence conclusively demonstrating that neither Area Representative nor Area
Representative’s Owner(s)-did-net-diseloseOwners disclosed the Confidential Information and Know-How
to an Immediate Family member, and did-netpermitneither Area Representative nor Area Representative’s
Owners permitted disclosure of the Confidential Information or Know-How to the—familyan Immediate
Family member of Area Representative or Area Representative’s Owners. Area Representative
acknowledges-and-agrees that the foregoing covenants, obligations, representations; and burden of proof
shall also apply to AreaRepresentative’s-Owners-and-Speuses, and that AreaRepresentative’s-Owners-and
Speuseseach Owner shall each-execute and deliver to Franchisor the AreaRepresentative-AR Owner and
Speuse-Agreement and Guaranty in the form attached to this Agreement as Exhibit 1.

36.7 7.7 REASONABLENESS OF RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS AND OBLIGATIONS

Area Representative agrees that: (a) the terms and-previsions-of this Section 7 are reasonable both in time
and in-scope of geographic area; and (b) Area Representative has sufficient resources—and, business
experience, and opportunities to earn an adequate living while complying with the terms and-provisiens-of
this Section 7. Area Representative hereby waives and releases any right to challenge the terms and
provisions—of_this Section 7 as being overly broad, unreasonable, or otherwise unenforceable.
Although Area Representative and Franchisor both believe that the restrictive covenants and obligations
ofset forth in this Section 7 to be reasonable in terms of scope, duration, and geographic area, Franchisor
may at any time unilaterally modify the terms of this Section 7 (provided that such modification is in writing
and signed by Franchisor) by limiting the scope of the Prohibited Activities, narrowing the definition of a
Competitive Business, shortening the duration of the Post-Term Restricted Period, reducing the geographic
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scope of the Restricted Territory, and/or reducing the scope of any other covenant imposed upon Atrea
RepresentativeFranchisee under this Section 7 to ensure that the terms and covenants are enforceable under
applicable law.

36.8 7.8 BREACH OF RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS AND OBLIGATIONS

Area Representative agrees that Area Representative’s failure, and/or the failure of Area Representative’s
Owner(s)-fatlureOwners, to comply with the restrictive covenants and obligations set forth in this Section
7 will cause irreparable harm to Franchisor, the System, and/or etherSpa—teeationUnit Franchisees for
which there is no adequate remedy at law. Therefore, Area Representative agrees that any violation of these
Seetion—7—the restrictive covenants and obligations set forth in this Section 7 by either—Area
RepresentativeFranchisee and/or any Owner{s)—will shall entitle Franchisor to injunctive relief. Area
Representative agrees that Franchisor may apply for such injunctive relief, without bond, but upon due
notice, in addition to such further and other relief as may be available atin equity or at law;-and-the-sole
remedy—of AreaRepresentative—in. In the event of the entry of such injunetion—injunctive relief, Area
Representative’s sole remedy will be the dissolution of such injunction, if warranted, upon a hearing duly
held on such injunctive relief, and all claims for damages by reasen-of-theArea Representative and/or any
Owner for wrongful issuance of any such injunction beingexpresstyare waived hereby)-and released by
Area Representative and/or any Owner. If a court requires the filing of a bond notwithstanding the preceding
sentenee;-theforegoing provisions of this Section 7.8, then Area Representative and Franchisor agree that
the amount of the bond shall not exceed $1,000. Franchisor’s remedies under this Section 7.8 are not
exclusive of any other;- remedy set forth in this Agreement, but may be combined with ethersother relief
available to Franchisor under this Agreement, er-at law, or in equity, including, without limitation

injunctive relief, specific performance, and recovery of monetary damages.

SECTION 8
3437 LICENSED MARKS, SYSTEM AND INNOVATIONS TO SYSTEM

371 8.1 OWNERSHIP AND GOODWILL

Area Representative acknowledges and agrees that, as between or among Franchisor, Area Representative
and any Owner, Franchisor is the owner of all right, title, and interest in and to the Licensed Marks, the
System, Published Content, Digital Media and the goodwill associated with the Licensed Marks-and, the
System:, the Published Content, and Digital Media. Except as otherwise specifically provided in this
Agreement, Area Representative agrees that Area Representative possesses no interest or right, whatsoever,
in or to the Licensed Marks, the System, Digital- Media,-Published Content-, Digital Media, and/or the
goodwill associated with the Licensed Marks-and, the Systems-, Published Content, and Digital Media. Area
Representative's right to use the Licensed Marks-and, the System, the Published Content, and Digital Media
is derived solely from this Agreement. Any unauthorized use of the Licensed Marks-and/or, the System,
Published Content, and Digital Media by Area Representative or any ef AreaRepresentative’s-affiliatesAR
Affiliates shall constitute an infringement of the rights of Franchisor in and to the Licensed Marks-and/er,
the System:, Published Content, and Digital Media. Area Representative agrees that all usage of the
Licensed Marks-and/er, the System, Published Content, and Digital Media by Area Representative, and all
goodwill associated with the Licensed Marks-and, the System, Published Content, and Digital Media, shall
exclusively benefit Franchisor without granting any goodwill interests or rights to Area Representative,
except for Area Representative’s non-exclusive interest and limited right to use the Licensed Marks-and,
the System, Published Content, and Digital Media in the operation of the Area Representative Business;
subject to, and in accordance with, the terms and conditions of this Agreement. Area Representative shall
not, at any time during the Term or after the expiration, termination, or Transfer of this Agreement, contest
the validity or ownership of the Licensed Marks, the System, Digital Media, Published Content, and/or the
goodwill associated with the Licensed Marks-and, the System, Published Content, and/or Digital Media.
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and at no time shall Area Representative assist any other person in contesting the validity or ownership of
the Licensed Marks, the System, Digital-Media—Published Content, Digital Media, and/or the goodwill
associated with the Licensed Marks—and, the System, Published Content, and Digital Media. Area
Representative and each Owner shall not take any action that prejudices or interferes with the validity of
Franchisor's rights with respect to Licensed Marks, the System, Digital Media;-Published Content, Digital
Media, and/or the goodwill associated with the Licensed Marks-and, the System, Published Content, and

Digital Media.

372 8.2 USE OF THE LICENSED MARKS

Area Representative agrees that Area Representative’s use of the Licensed Marks and System shall be
limited to Area Representative’s operation of the Area Representative Business in accordance with the
terms of this Agreement, in accordance with the standards and specifications set forth in the eperations
mantalOperations Manual, any other standards and specifications of Franchisor, and/or etherwise-as-may
be otherwise established by Franchisor from time to time and-in Franchisor’s sole discretion. Area
Representative shall not use the Licensed Marks as part of its corporate or other legal name, and Area
Representative shall not use the Licensed Marks with modifying words, terms, designs, or symbols, or in
any modified form. Area Representative shall comply with Franchisor's instructions in filing and
maintaining their requisite trade name or fictitious name registrations as may be required by applicable law.

373 83 NOTIFICATION OF INFRINGEMENT AND CLAIMS

Area Representative must notify Franchisor immediately in writing of any apparent infringement of, or
challenge to, Area Representative's use of any Licensed Mark and/or the System or of any claim by any
person claiming any rights in any manner with respect to the Licensed Mark, the System, or any similar
trade name, trademark, or service mark of which Area Representative becomes aware. Area Representative
must not communicate with any person other than Franchisor and Franchisor’s counsel in connection with
any infringement, challenge, or claim by any third party to the Licensed Marks and/or the System.
Franchisor and/or Franchisor’s licensor shall possess sole and complete discretion, in Franchisor’s
Reasonable Business Judgment, to take any action and/or to refrain from taking action;_that Franchisor
and/or Franchisor’s licensor deems appropriate, including, without limitation, the right to exclusively
control any litigation or administrative proceeding arising out of, or relating to, any infringement, challenge,
claim, or otherwise relating to any Licensed Mark and/or the System. Area Representative agrees to execute
all documents, render assistance, and take all actions as may be necessary or advisable to protect and
maintain the interests of Franchisor and/or Franchisor’s licensor in any litigation or administrative
proceeding or to otherwise protect and maintain;-as-directed-by Eranchisor; the interests of Franchisor and/or
Franchisor’s licensor in the Licensed Marks_as directed by Franchisor. Franchisor will reimburse Area
Representative for reasonable direct expenses incurred by Area Representative in assisting Franchisor in
any such litigation or administrative proceeding previdedso long as Area Representative timely notifies
Franchisor of such litigation or administrative proceeding; and-Area—Representative complies with the
written instructions of Franchisor respecting any such litigation or administrative proceeding.

374 84 DISCONTINUANCE OF USE OF LICENSED MARKS

Area Representative acknowledges and agrees that at any time should Franchisor determine, in Franchisor's
sole discretion and based on Franchisor’s Reasonable Business Judgment, that it is advisable for Franchisor,
the System, and/or Area Representative to replace, modify, substitute, and/or discontinue use of any
Licensed Marks, then Area Representative shall comply with Franchisor’s determination and instructions
as to the replacement, modification, substitution, and/or discontinuance of such Licensed Mark(s). Area
Representative shall comply within the foregoing requirements within a reasonable time period after notice
by Franchisor. If Area Representative is required to take action pursuant—te—instruetiondirected by
Franchisor pursuant to this Section 8.4, or; if Area Representative is otherwise required to replace, modify,
substitute, and/or discontinue use of any Licensed Marks, the sole liability and obligation of Franchisor to
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Area Representative shall be to reimburse Area Representative for the reasonable and direct costs incurred
by Area Representative in complying with this obligation, which Area Representative shall document to
the satisfaction of Franchisor. Franchisor maintains the exclusive right, in Franchisor’s Reasonable
Business Judgment, to, in whole or in part, replace, modify, substitute, and/or discontinue any and all
features and/or components of the Licensed Marks and/or the System at any time.

375 85 OWNERSHIP OF INNOVATIONS, IMPROVEMENTS AND CUSTOMER
INFORMATION

Area Representative agrees that with regard to the Area Representative Business, all customer lists,
prospective franchisee lists, franchiseeUnit Franchisee lists, and their contents and information represent
Confidential Information and constitute an asset of Franchisor whether or not such information was
authored, created, or supplied by Franchisor. During the Term of this Agreement and in connection with
the development, establishment, marketing, promotion, and operation of the Area Representative Business,
Area Representative shall disclose to Franchisor all of Area Representative’s, AR Affiliate’s, and/or
Owner’s, ideas, concepts, methods—and, products, and improvements conceived or developed by Area
Representative-and-AreaRepresentative s-affiliates, AR Affiliates, Owners, agents, and employees relating

to the development and operatlon of V/O Med Spas and Sp&keeaﬂeﬁ%ﬁehise%the Area Representatlve

Franchlses All customer llStS and their contents Urnt Franchisee lists, prospective unit franchisee lists and

all of Area Representative’s and Area Representative’s Owners;affiliates-and-employees-assighment-ofany
sueh ideas, concepts, reetpesymethods, and-products-that AreaRepresentative- isrequired-to-diseloseto, and

improvements relating to the Licensed Marks, the System, and/or V/O Med Spas shall be owned by

Franchlsor and, if requested bV Franchlsor&méeﬁﬂms—Seeﬂeﬂ%é%ﬂeh*s%shaﬂ#W&n&ebhga&e&te

eeﬂeept—methed—er—p;eéueﬁﬂthe&%eb%a&nﬂg—ﬁaﬂehﬁe{isﬁﬁef qhall bc documcntcd by a wrltten—aﬁﬁmva-l—

. irrevocable, and unconditional royalty free / payment free assignment and transfer.

SECTION 9
38 OPERATING STANDARDS

38.1 9.1 OPERATING STANDARDS

Area Representative shall give prompt, courteous, and efficient AR Services and-shall, in all dealings
with such AR Unit Franchisees, prospective AR Unit Franchisees, prospective franchisees, and the public,
adhere to the highest standards of honesty, integrity, fair dealing, and ethical conduct. Without limitation
telimiting the foregoing, at all times; Area Representative shall adhere to the standards established by
Franchisor from time to time and communicated by Franchisor to Area Representative.

382 9.2 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND GOOD BUSINESS PRACTICES

Area Representative shall secure and maintain in force all required licenses, permits, and certificates
relating to the Area Representative Business. Area Representative acknowledges beingand agrees that
Franchisor advised Area Representative that many jurisdictions have enacted laws, rules and/or regulations
governing and/or regulating the sale of franchises and relationships with franchisees, including, but-net
himited-tewithout limitation, laws, rules, and regulations related to FDD disclosures, FDD registrations,
renewals and updates, business opportunity disclosures, filings and requirements, and franchisor-franchisee
relationships. Area Representative, at Area Representative’s sole cost and expense, shall comply with; all
such laws, rules, and regulations as they relate to the Area Representative Business, and;-ameng-other
things; Area Representative shall only use such form ef-FDDs and any other legal documents that
Franchisor; approved in writing;-has-appreved- for use by Area Representative. Area Representative agrees
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to comply with all applicable laws pertaining to the privacy of customer, employee, and transactional
information (“Privacy Laws”). If there is a conflict between Franchisor’s standards and policies, if any,
pertaining to Privacy Laws and actual applicable law, Area Representative will: (a) comply with the
requirements of applicable law; (b) immediately give Franchisor written notice of said conflict and/or
the lack of required policies and procedures; and (c) promptly and fully cooperate with Franchisor and
Franchisor’s legal counsel in determining the most effective way, if any, to satisfy the applicable Privacy
Laws. Area Representative agrees not to publish, disseminate, implement, revise, or rescind a data privacy
policy without Franchisor’s prior written consent as to said policy.

383 93 ACCURACY OF INFORMATION

Before Area Representative engages in the operations of the Area Representative Business and at all times
thereafter, Area Representative shall independently evaluate and review Franchisor’s designated FDD for
accuracy as to Area Representative and the Area Representative Business, and Area Representative shall
immediately notify Franchisor as to any inaccuracies and/or required updates and modifications. At all
times, Area Representative shall review and confirm the accuracy of all information provided by Area
Representative to prospective AR Unit Franchisees, AR Unit Franchisees, and to the public. All information
that Area Representative distributes and/or otherwise provides to third parties must be pre-approved by
Franchisor in writing. Franchisor shall provide Area Representative with any changes to Franchisor’s then
current and applicable FDD and other agreements on a timely basis, and Franchisor shall, upon written
request of Area Representative, provide Area Representative with confirmation that the information in any
written materials or documents being-used by the Area Representative is accurate and appropriate. If Area
Representative notifies Franchisor of -an -error -in -any -information- in Franchisor’s documents, Franchisor
shall have a reasonable period of time to attempt to correct any deficiencies, misrepresentations, or
omissions in such information.

384 94 NO FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REPRESENTATIONS

Under no circumstance shall Area Representative provide a prospective AR Unit Franchisee, a prospective
SpaUnit Franchisee, or the public with a Financial Performance Representation. Area Representative cannot
and shall not provide any information that constitutes a Financial Performance Representation to anyone.
If Franchisor includes a Financial Performance Representation in Item 19 of the FDD that Franchisor
authorizes for AreaRepresentative’sthe Area Representative Territory, then Area Representative may only
refer a prospective franchisee to Item 19 for information as to a Financial Performance Representation.

385 9.5 NOTIFICATION OF LITIGATION

Area Representative shall notify Franchisor in writing within three days of the commencement of any
action, suit, arbitration, proceeding, or investigation, and of the issuance of any order, writ, injunction,
award, or decree by any court, agency, or other governmental instrumentality that names Area
Representative—, and/or Area—Representative’s—Owners;an  Owner as a  party or otherwise
eoneerningconcerns the operation or financial condition of Area Representative, the Area Representative
Business, or any AR Unit Franchisee.

38.6 9.6 OWNERSHIP AND MANAGEMENT

At all times, the Area Representative Business shall be operated under the direct day- to- day supervision
of Area Representative or, if Area Representative is a Corporate Entity, Area Representative’s Managing
Owner as designated and identified in Schedule 13 to this Agreement. Area Representative represents that
the Statement of Area Representatives Owners attached to this Agreement as Schedule 1.3 is true, complete,
and accurate. Area Representative shall promptly provide Franchisor with written notification if the
information in the statement of ownership changes at any time during the Term of this Agreement and shall
comply with the applicable transfer provisions contained in Section 10 of this Agreement.
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38.7 9.7 NO CONFLICTS OF INTEREST AND CONTINUED PERFORMANCE

Area Representative shall at all times faithfully, honestly, and diligently perform its obligations under this
Agreement, and Area Representative shall continuously and, in good faith and using its best efforts, offer
and provide the AR Services. Other than the Area Representative Business, Area Representative shall not
engage in any other business or other activity, directly or indirectly, except; as applicable; to the
ownership and operation of a Spa—LeeationUnit Franchise. Under no circumstance shall Area
Representative Abandon the Area Representative Business.

388 9.8 INSURANCE

At all times during the Term of this Agreement, Area Representative, at Area Representative’s sole cost
and expense, shall maintain in full force and effect insurance for the Area Representative Business of the
types, in the amounts, and under such terms and conditions as Franchisor may periodically and reasonably
prescribe in the eperations-manualOperations Manual or otherwise in writing. All-ef insurance policies shall
name Franchisor, _its_ affiliates, and its designees as additional insureds, contain a waiver of the
insurance company’s right of subrogation against Franchisor, and provide that Franchisor will receive 30
days’ prior written notice of termination, expiration, or cancellation of any such policy. Franchisor reserves
the right to require Area Representative to participate in Franchisor’s Greup—Esrersgroup errors and
Omissiensomissions insurance policy, if Franchisor maintains such a policy, and to require Area
Representative to pay its pro rata share of such insurance coverage. In the event Area Representative fails
to secure insurance as proscribed by Franchisor and does not cure same within a 48 hour period following
notice, Area Representative shall be in default, and Franchisor may immediately terminate this Agreement.
Area Representative shall provide proof of insurance to Franchisor prior to commencement of operations
of the Area Representative Business and as otherwise requested by Franchisor.

389

38.10 9.9 ADVERTISING AND MARKETING MATERIALS

Prior to utilizing any advertising or marketing materials, including, but-nettimited-te;print-mediawithout
limitation, Published Content and Digital Media, Area Representative must submit all materials to Franchisor
for approval. Franchisor, in Franchisor’s sole discretion, may_approve or disapprove of advertising and
marketing materials submitted by Area Representative. Area Representative acknowledges and understands
that certain states and state franchise regulators require the filing of franchise sales advertising materials
with the appropriate state agency within prescribed time frames prior to dissemination to prospective
franchisees. Area Representative shall independently evaluate all state franchise laws, rules, and
regulations, and Area Representative, at Area Representative’s sole cost and expense, shall fully and timely
comply with the filing requirements as to all advertising and marketing materials. Franchisor may charge
Area Representative for the costs incurred by Franchisor in developing and/or printing advertising and
marketing materials supplied by Franchisor to Area Representative at Area Representative’s request; or for
expenses incurred by Franchisor to file Area Representative’s proposed advertising materialmaterials with
the appropriate state authority. Franchisor must approve all proposed advertising materials Area
Representative desires to utilize before Area Representative utilizes such advertising materials or Area
Representative files or submits such advertising materials with or to the appropriate state authority.

38.11 9.10 ACCOUNTING, BOOKKEEPING AND RECORDS

Area Representative shall maintain at the AR Office all original invoices, receipts, checks, contracts,
licenses, acknowledgement of receipt forms, and-bookkeeping, and AR Unit Franchisee and prospective
AR Unit Franchisee records as Franchisor may periodically require. Without limitatien—telimiting the
immediately preceding sentence, and as a supplement to the audited financial statement requirements set
forth in Section 3.11 of this Agreement, Area Representative shall furnish to Franchisor, within 90 days
after the end of Area Representative’s fiscal year, a balance sheet, a statement of shareholders equity, a
profit and loss statement, and a statement of cash flow for Area Representative’s prior fiscal year, which
should end on December 31%. Franchisor possesses the right, atin Franchisor’s sole discretion, to require

40

V/O Med Spa. AR FDD. April 18, 2024



that the foregoing financial statements, at the expense of Area Representative, be audited by a certified
public accountant who issues an audit report and auditor’s consent. Additionally, upon request of
Franchisor, within 10 days after such returns are filed, exact copies of federal and state income, sales, and
any other tax returns and such other forms, records, books, and other information as Franchisor may
periodically require regarding the Area Representative Business shall be furnished to Franchisor. Area
Representative shall maintain all records and reports of the Area Representative Business conducted
pursuant to this Agreement for at least three years after the date of termination-ex, expiration, or Transfer
of this Agreement.

38.12 9.11 REPORTS

Area Representative shall, as often as required by Franchisor, deliver to Franchisor a written report of the
Area Representative Business activities during such time period as requested by Franchisor and in such
form and in—sueh—detail as Franchisor may- periodically specify related to the Area Representative
Business and/or the AR Services, prospective AR Unit Franchisees, and AR Unit Franchisees.

38.13 9.12 COMPUTERS AND BUSINESS MANAGEMENT

Area Representative, at its expense, shall purchase or lease, and thereafter maintain, such computer and
telecommunication hardware, software, firmware, required dedicated telephone and power lines, modem(s),
printer(s), and other computer- related accessories or peripheral equipment as Franchisor specifies in the
operations-manualOperations Manual or otherwise in writing. Area Representative, at Area Representative’s
sole cost and expense, shall license and utilize the Business Management System as directed by Franchisor
and. Area Representative shall grant to Franchisor direct and independent access to the Business
Management System utilized by Area Representative and the Business Management System Data.

38.14 9.13 INSPECTIONS AND AUDITS BY FRANCHISOR

To determine whether Area Representative is complying with this Agreement, Franchisor or its designee
shall have the right at any time during normal business hours; and within 48 hours’ prior notice to Area
Representative, to enter the AR Office; or any other location in which Area Representative is then keeping
its business records, and inspect; and audit; the Area Representative Business records, bookkeeping and
accounting records, invoices, payroll records, time cards, check stubs, bank deposits, receipts, sales tax
records and -returns, -and any other business records and documents of the Area Representative Business.
Area Representative and its employees shall fully cooperate with representatives of Franchisor in making,
conducting, supervising, or observing any such inspection or audit.

From the date—ofthisAsreementEffective Date until three years after the end-of-theTFermexpiration,
termination, or Transfer of this Agreement, Franchisor and/or Franchisor’s autherized-agentdesignee shall
have the right to request, receive, inspect, and audit any of the records concerning all financial, marketing,
and other operating aspects of the Area Representative Business conducted under this Agreement, wherever
they may be located. Franchisor agrees to do inspections and audits at reasonable times. Area
Representative agrees to keep all records and reports for seven years from the date such records are created.

SECTION 10
3539 TRANSFER OF INTEREST

39.1 10.1 BY THE FRANCHISOR

At all times, Franchisor possesses and maintains the sole and absolute right to Transfer and/or assign

Franchisor’s rights and obligations under this Agreement, in whole and/or in part (for any purpose and in

any form of transaction as may be designated and/or elected by Franchisor; in Franchisor’s sole discretion)

to any person;-entity-CerperateEntity-and/orthird-party without the consent ef AreaRepresentative-and

witheuttheor approval of Area Representative. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall prevent, prohibit,
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restrict, hinder, enjoin, or otherwise restrain Franchisor from selling, transferringTransferring, conveying,
or assigning this Agreement, and/or Franchisor’s rights and obligations under this Agreement, to any
person;-entity;-Corperate-Entity-or-other-third-party. Franchisor has an unrestricted and unequivocal right
to Transfer and/or assign its rights or obligations under this Agreement, in whole or in part, atin Franchisor’s
sole and absolute discretion. In the event Franchisor Transfers and/or assigns this Agreement and/or any or
all of Franchisor’s rights and obligations set forth in this Agreement to a person,

orotherthird partysthen this Agreement shall survive, remain in full force and effect, and inure to the beneﬁt
of, the purchaser, transferee, conveyee, and/or assignee of this Agreement.

39.2 10.2 NO TRANSFER BY AREA REPRESENTATIVE MAY NOT-FRANSFER
WITHOUT FRANCHISOR

39.3 APPROVAL

Area Representative agrees, and, Area Representative represents and warrants that Area Representative’s

Owners understand and agree, that the rights and duties set forth in this Agreement are personal to Area

Representative and each Owner. Therefore, Area Representative agrees that:

(a) No ownership interest of any Owner in Area Representative may be Transferred without the prior
written consent of Franchisor;

(b) No obligations, rights or interest of Area Representative in (i) this Agreement, (ii) the Area
Representative Business, or (ii) all or substantially all of the assets of the Area Representative Business
may be Transferred without the prior written consent of Franchisor;

(c) Without limitatientelimiting the foregoing provision of this Section 10.2, any Transfer by Area
Representative respecting and/or relating to this Agreement-and/or, the Area Representative Business,
and/or assets associated with the Area Representative Business will require the prior written consent of
Franchisor where such Transfer occurs by virtue of: (i) divorce or legal dissolution of marriage; (ii)
insolvency; (iii) dissolution of a Corporate Entity; (iv) last will and testament; (v) intestate succession;
or (vi) declaration of, or transfer in, trust;

(d) Any purported Transfer without the written consent of Franchisor, or otherwise in violation of this
Agreement, including, butnetlimited-towithout limitation, this Section 10.2, shall constitute a breach
of this Agreement, be null, void, and shallof no effect, and convey to the transferee no rights or interests
in this Agreement; and

(e) In the event of a Transfer of this Agreement that is approved by Franchisor, (i) Area Representative
shall not be relieved of Area Representative’s obligations under this Agreement whether said
obligations accrued and/or arose prior to and/or after the date of Transfer, (ii) such approval shall not
be deemed Franchisor’s consent or approval to any further Transfer of this Agreement, and (iii) the
provisions set forth in this Section 10.2 shall remain in full force and effect and apply to any other
transfer.

394 103 CONDITIONS FOR APPROVAL OF TRANSFER

Franchisor, in Franchisor’s_sole discretion, may withhold Franchisor’s approval of a Transfer by Area
Representative or an Owner. Without Hmitatien—telimiting the foregoing, if Franchisor approves of a
Transfer and if Franchisor does not elect to exercise Franchisor’s right of first refusal as set forth in Section
10.6 below, Fhethe proposed transferee (including, such assignee’s ewner(s)-and-spouse(sjowners if the
proposed transferee is a Corporate Entity), must be of good moral character, have sufficient business
experience, aptitude and financial resources to own and operate the Area Representative Business, have
separately been approved for the ownership and operation of a Spa within the Area Representative
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Territory, have acquired and/or owns a Spa within the Area Representative Territory, and otherwise
meetmeets Franchisor's then—applicable standards for Area—Representativesarea representatives as
determined by Franchisor in Franchisor’s sole discretion. Furthermore, the proposed transferee and the
proposed transferee’s owners and-speuses—may not own or operate, or intend to own or operate, a
Competitive Business. Area Representative agrees that Franchisor may condition approval of a Transfer
upon Area Representative’s satisfaction (either before, or contemporaneously with, the effective date of the
Transfer) of the following, which is not exhaustive:

(a) Area Representative must provide written notice to Franchisor of the proposed Transfer of this
Agreement at least 30 days prior to the Transfer, and Area Representative must have also satisfied the
obligations set forth in Section 10.6 below;

(b) All accrued monetary obligations of Area Representative and all other outstanding obligations of
Area Representative to Franchisor and/or Franchisor’s affiliates under this Agreement and the
agreements referenced or incorporated in, or attached to, this Agreement (collectively, the “Ancillary
Agreements”) must be satisfied in a timely manner, and Area Representative must satisfy all trade,
supplier, and vendor accounts and other debts, of whatever nature or kind, in a timely manner;

(c) Area Representative;each-Owner; and each SpeuseOwner must not be in default or material breach
of this Agreement or the Ancillary Agreements;

(d) The transferee shall be bound by all terms and conditions of this Agreement, and execute an Area
Representative Agreement in the same form as this Agreement, and each owner of the transferee and

theirrespeetive—spouses—shall personally execute the AreaRepresentative AR Owner—and—Speuse
Agreement and Guaranty in the form attached to thls Agreement as Exhlblt l%ac—#ewner—ef—the

(e) All obligations of Area Representative under this Agreement shall be assumed by the transferee;

and each individual owner of transferee;—and-theirrespeetive-Owners—and-Speuses in a manner

satisfactory to Franchisor;

(f) Area Representative;each-Owaer; and each SpeuseOwner must execute a general release in favor
of Franchisor releasing Franchisor, Franchisor’s affiliates, and Franchisor’s past and present officers,
directors, shareholders, members, partners, agents, representatives, independent contractors, servants,
and employees, of any and all claims against Franchisor for any and all matters, claims, and causes of
action, whether accrued or unaccrued, arising on, or before, the effective date of the Transfer;

(g) Area Representativeseach-Owner; and each SpeuseOwner shall remain liable for all obligations to
Franchisor set forth in this Agreement;

(h) At the transferee's expense, the transferee; and the transferee's Ownersowners must complete any
training programs then in effect for area representatives upon terms and conditions set forth in this
Agreement or as Franchisor otherwise reasonably requires;

(i) Area Representative must pay the Transfer Fee to Franchisor;

(j) Transferee’s employees, directors, officers, independent contractors, and agents who will have
access to Confidential Information shall execute the Confidentiality Agreement attached to this
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Agreement as Exhibit 2;

(k) Area Representative and transferee acknowledge and agree that Franchisor's approval of the
Transfer indicates only that the transferee meets, or Franchisor waived, the criteria established by
Franchisor for area representatives as of the time of such transfer, and Franchisor's approval thereof
does not constitute a warranty or guaranty by Franchisor, express or implied, of the suitability of the
terms of sale, successful operation, or profitability of the Area Representative Business;

(1) Area Representative and transferee acknowledge and agree that Franchisor’s approval of the
Transfer at issue does not constitute Franchisor’s approval of future or other Transfers or the waiver of
the requirement that Franchisor must approve such future or other Transfers in accordance with this
Agreement;

(m) The Transfer must be made in compliance with all applicable laws;
(n) The Transfer cannot occur within 24 months of the Effective Date-ef this-Agreement;

(o) The assigneetransferee must own and operate a Spa within the Area Representative Territory and
in accordance with a Franchise Agreement with Franchisor; and

(p) Franchisor's consent to a Transfer of any interest that is subject to the restrictions of this Agreement
shall not constitute a waiver of any claims #Franchisor may have against Area Representative or any
Owner or be deemed a waiver of Franchisor's right to demand strict and exact compliance with this
Agreement by the transferee.

39.5 104 DEATH OR DISABILITY OF OWNER

Upon the death or permanent disability of Area Representative (if Area Representative is an individual and
not a Corporate Entity) or the Managing Owner (if Area Representative is a Corporate Entity), the executor,
administrator, conservator, or other personal representative of that person, or the remaining shareholders,
members or partners, must appoint an Owner or Managing Owner (as applicable) within a reasonable time,
which shall not exceed 30120 days from the date of death or permanent disability. The appointed Owner or
Managing Owner (as applicable) must serve and qualify as Managing Owner and attend and successfully
complete the AR Initial Training Program within 90 days of the appointment. If Area Representative
Business is not being managed by a Franchisor approved Owner or Managing Owner (as applicable) within
30120 days after such death or permanent disability, Franchisor is authorized, but is not required, to
immediately appoint a manager to maintain the operations of Area Representative Business for, and on
behalf of, Area Representative at Area Representative’s sole costs until an approved assignee is able to
assume the management and operation of Area Representative Business. Franchisor's appointment of a
manager for the Area Representative Business does not relieve Area Representative of its obligations under
this Agreement, including this Section 10.4, or constitute a waiver of Franchisor’s right to terminate this
Agreement pursuant to Section 12; below. At all times, including while the Area Representative’s Business
may be managed by Franchisor’s appointed manager, Franchisor shall not be liable for any debts, losses,
costs, or expenses incurred in the operations of Area Representative Business or to any creditor of Area
Representative. Franchisor has the right to charge a reasonable fee for such management services and may
cease to provide management services at any time in Franchisor’s sole discretion.

Upon the death of Area Representative or any Owner, the executor, administrator, conservator or other
personal representative of that deceased person must transfer his or her interest to a person Franchisor
approves within a reasonable time, which shall not-te exceed 12 months from the date of death.
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If Area Representative is an individual, then in the event of the death or permanent disability of Area
Representative, this Agreement may be Transferred to any designated person, heir, or beneficiary without
the payment of the Transfer Fee. Notwithstanding the immediately foregoing sentence, the Transfer of this
Agreement to such transferee of Area Representative shall be subject to the applicable terms and conditions
of this Section 10, including Franchisor approval or disapproval of the Transfer in FranehisersFranchisor’s
sole discretion and, if approved by Franchisor, the Transfer shall not be valid or effective until Franchisor
has received the properly executed legal documents, which Franchisor’s atterneyslegal counsel deem
necessary to properly and legally document such Transfer of this Agreement. Furthermore, said transferee
must agree to be unconditionally bound by the terms and conditions of this Agreement, transferee must sign
an Area Representative Agreement in the same form as this Agreement, personally guarantee the
performance of Area Representative’s obligations under this Agreement, and execute the Atea
Representative AR Owner-and-Spouse Agreement and Guaranty attached to this Agreement as Exhibit 1.

39.6 10.5 TRANSFER TO WHOLLY OWNED CORPORATE ENTITY

In the event Area Representative is an individual/are individuals, this Agreement may be Transferred by
Area Representative to a Corporate Entity owned by such transferring individuals (the “Assignee Corporate
Entity”), provided that: (a) Area Representative has provided Franchisor with 30 days prior written notice
of the proposed Assignment of this Agreement; (b) Area Representative (individually, jointly and severally
as to each individual Area Representative) shall sign and be bound, individually, by the Area
Representative AR Owner and-Speuse-Agreement and Guaranty attached to this Agreement as Exhibit 1;

to-this-Agreement-as-Exhibit+:(d) Area Representative has provided Franchisor with true and accurate
copies of corporate formation documents related to the Assignee Corporate Entity and the ownership of the
Assignee Corporate Entity and has further provided Franchisor with all additional documentation as
Franchise may request concerning the proposed assignment and/or Assignee Corporate Entity; and-(e(d)
Area Representative is otherwise in compliance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement and any
Ancillary Agreements-; and (e) the Area Representative who is an individual or are individuals must wholly
own the Assignee Corporate Entity. Area Representative acknowledges and agrees that an assignment to
an Assignee Corporate Entity shall not relieve Area Representative of Area Representative’s individual
obligations under this Agreement as such obligations existed between Area Representative and Franchisor
prior to the date of any assignment to the Assignee Corporate Entity.

39.7

39.8 10.6 FRANCHISOR’S RIGHT OF FIRST REFUSAL

If Area Representative or an Owner desiredesires to engage, in whole or in part, in a Transfer of Area
Representative, this Agreement, and/or _the Area Representative Business, then Area Representative or
such Owner (as applicable) must obtain a bona fide, signed written offer from the fully disclosed purchaser
(the “Offer”) and submit an exact copy of the Offer to Franchisor. Franchisor shall have 30 days after receipt
of the Offer to decide whether Franchisor will purchase the interest in Area Representative and/or the Area
Representative Business for the same price and upon the same terms contained in the Offer-, provided
however, that Franchisor may substitute cash for any form of payment proposed in the Offer)-. If Franchisor
notifies Area Representative within said 30 day period that Franchisor intends to purchase the interest
within-said-30-day-period;, then Area Representative or Owner (as applicable) must sell the interest to
Franchisor. Franchisor will have at least an additional 60 days to prepare for closing: and consummate the
transaction. Franchisor shall be entitled to receive from Area Representative or Owner (as-apphieable)-all
customary representations and warranties given by Area Representative or Owner—(as-applieable) as the
seller of the assets and/or the ownership interest or, at Franchisor’s election, the representations and
warranties contained in the offer. If Franchisor does not exercise its right of first refusal, Area
Representative or Owner (as-applicable}-may complete the Transfer to the purchaser pursuant to, and in
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accordance with, the terms of the Offer, provided that separate and apart from this Section 10.6 right of first
refusal, Area Representative complies with the terms of this Section 10. However, if the sale to the
purchaser is not completed within 120 days after delivery of the Offer to Franchisor, or there is a material
change in the terms of the sale, Franchisor will again have the right of first refusal specified in this Section
10.6. Franchisor’s right of first refusal in this Section 10.6 shall not apply to any Transfer pursuant to and
in compliance with Section 10.5 of this Agreement.

SECTION 11
3640  LIMITED RENEWAL OF PARTIAL AREA REPRESENTATIVE RIGHTS

40.1 11.1 AR’SLIMITED RENEWAL RIGHTS

Subject to Area Representative’s satisfaction of the terms and conditions of this Section 11, for one Renewal
Term, Area Representative possesses the option to renew Area Representative’s obligations under this
Agreement and certain rights of Area Representative under this Agreement, provided that:

(a) Area Representative has complied with and has satisfied all of the terms, provisions and
conditions of this Agreement and Area Representative has not otherwise breached this Agreement at
any time;

(b) At the time of renewal, Area Representative owns and operates not less than one AR Spa
LeeationUnit Franchise and is in full compliance with the terms and conditions of al-Area
Representative is Franchise Agreements;

(c) Area Representative pays the Renewal Fee; and

(d) Area Representative complies with the terms and conditions of this Section 11.

40.2 11.2 RENEWAL NOTICE OBLIGATIONS

In addition to Area Representative satisfying the terms and conditions set forth in this Section 11, Area
Representative must give Franchisor written notice of Area Representative’s election to renew this
Agreement not less than 180 days before the end of the Imtlal Term, with such time #sbeing of the essence-
5, or otherwise Area Representative waives and

>

releases Area Representatlve s renewal request —and - Franchisor’s —acknowledgement —of —Areca

renew thls Seet}efH—LAgrcemcnt

403 113 AR’S-LIMITED RIGHTS UPON RENEWAL DURING THE RENEWAL TERM
Upon renewal of this Area Representative Agreement;_and during the Renewal Term, #-any—Area
Representative’s rights under this Agreement and-in and to the Area Representative Business and the Area
Representative Territory shallin-theirentiretys- revert back to Franchisor in their entirety, except-that, as
to AR Unit Franchisees that signed a SpateeationUnit Franchise Agreement during the Initial Term of this
Agreement, Area Representative shall;-during-the Renewal- Term;—_be entitled to the payment of the AR
Royalty Cemmissien;-Compensation during the Renewal Term, provided that:
40.4
(a)- Area Representative continues to perform and provide; the AR Services comprised exclusively of
the On-Going Support Services, Unit Franchisee Relationship Services, and Inspection Services in
accordance with the terms of this Agreement and Franchisor’s standards and specifications as
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determined by Franchisor from time to time

&WS%W&%—F%M%&R%MMS@M%S—%H&S&%&S@%%S and

(b) Area Representative continues to comply with each and every term, provision, covenant, and
obligation of this Agreement with the express understanding and agreement that except as to Area
Representative’s pre-renewal obligation to perform the Referral Services, Site Services, Pre-Opening
and Opening Services, each and every term, provision, covenant, and obligation of this Agreement as

setforth-in-this-Agreement-and-applicable-during-the Initial Term-shall be applicable to the Renewal

Term.

Without limitatien-telimiting the foregoing, Area Representative acknowledges and agrees that during the
Renewal Term, ameng-other-things-Area Representative shall not be entitled to payment of any Initial
NetAR Franchise Fee CommissionCompensation, and-that all compensation and/or Commissions to be paid
to Area Representative during the Renewal Term shall be limited to AR Royalty
CeommissiensCompensation based on AR Unit Franchisees that signed a Spa—teecationUnit Franchise
Agreement during the Initial Term of this Agreement. Without himitatientelimiting the foregoing, ameng
e%hepﬂw}g%all rlghts in the Area Representatlve Terrltory shall revert back to Franchisor, and Franchisor;

ay— shall possess all rights to offer and sell Spa
LeeaﬁeﬂUnlt Franchlses w1th1n the Area Representatlon Territory without any payments and/or
compensation to Area Representative.

40.5 114 CONDITIONS FOR RENEWAL

In addition to the conditions and requirements stated above in this Section 11, each and every one of the
following conditions and requirements must be satisfied by Area Representative before and at the time of
renewal:

(a) Area Representative;-each-Owner and each Speuse-(as-applicable)Owner must not be in material
default of any provision of this Agreement, any amendment or successor agreement, and any Franchise
Agreement; and Area Representative must have substantially and timely complied with all the terms
and conditions of all agreements with Franchisor and Franchisor’s affiliates;

(b) Area Representative must have timely satisfied all monetary obligations owed by Area
Representative to Franchisor under this Agreement, Spa-teeatienUnit Franchise Agreements, and all
other agreements between Area Representative and Franchisor or any of Franchisor’s affiliates;

(c) Based upon an assessment of Area Representative's needs conducted by Franchisor prior to renewal,
Area Representative must undertake such additional training, if any, as necessary to comply with
Franchisor's then current training requirements, including Initial Franchisee Training; and

(d) Area Representative and the-Oswnerseach Owner must execute the general release in favor of
Franchisor, Franchisor’s affiliates and their respective officers, directors, shareholders, partners, agents,
representatives, independent contractors, servants, employees, successors and assigns from any and all
claims, including, without limitation, claims arising under this Agreement under federal, state or local
laws, rules, regulations, or orders. If precluded by law from giving a general release, Area
Representative and each Owner shall execute an estoppel statement.

SECTION 12
41 DEFAULTS AND REMEDIES
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41.1 12.1 DEFAULTS BY FRANCHISEE AND TERMINATION BY FRANCHISOR

(a) Defaults and Automatic Termination — At the election of Franchisor, Area Representative shall be
in default of this Agreement;—and-AreaRepresentative’s—rights—under and this Agreement shall be
automatically and immediately terminated, without notice to Area Representative and without providing
Area Representative any opportunity to cure, upon the occurrence of any one or more of the following
actions, inactions, omissions, events, and/or circumstances:

(i) Area Representative becomes insolvent;

@b, and/or Area Representative makes a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or takes any
other similar action for the protection or benefit of creditors;
(ii) Area Representative admits in writing Area Representative’s inability to pay its debts as they
mature;

@v), and/or Area Representative gives notice to any governmental body or agency of insolvency,
pending insolvency, suspension of operations and/or pending suspension of operations;

(viii) Area Representative files a voluntary petition in bankruptcys,
&#) Area Representative is adjudicated bankrupt or insolvent;

volun sa 3 ative;, and/or
%-) Area Representatlve ﬁles any pet1t1on or answer seeking any reorganization, arrangement,
composition, readjustment, liquidation, dissolution or other similar relief under any applicable federal
and/or state law relative to bankruptcy, insolvency or similar relief for debtors;

bankruptcv is ﬁlcd against Area chrcecntatlvc and Area chrc%cntanvc fails to have the involuntary

petition discharged within 35 days of the petition filing, and/or
&9 Area Representative seeks, consents to, or acquiesces in, the appointment of any trustee, receiver,

conservator, custodian or liquidator for Area Representative’s business or any assets of Area
Representative;

(v) A bill in equity or other proceeding for the appointment of any trustee, receiver, conservator,
custodian or liquidator of Area Representative for Area Representative's business or any assets of
Area Representative is filed and Area Representative consents to same;

(vi(xit) A court of competent jurisdiction appoints or orders any trustee, receiver, conservator,
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custodian or liquidator for Area Representative’s business or any assets of Area Representative and
such appointment or order remains for an aggregate of 60 days, whether or not consecutive, from the
date of entry thereof;

federal law or such a proceeding is initiated against Area Representative;

(viii¢xiv) This Agreement, or any of Area Representative’s rights under this Agreement, is levied
upon under any attachment or execution;

{xv), and/or Execution is levied upon or against the Area Representative’s-businessRepresentative
Business or any assets of Area Representative;

(xvi)-A, and/or a final judgment against Area Representative remains of record or unsatisfied for 30
days or more, unless an appeal and/or supersedeas-bond is filed;
-

(ix) Area Representative is dissolved;

(X)Exvit A cause of action or lawsuit to foreclose any lien or mortgage against the assets of the Area

Representative Business and is not dismissed within 60 days after the summons is served on Area
Representative; and/or

(xi) Upon termination by Franchisor pursuant to Section 12.1(b) or Section 12.1(c) of this Agreement;

(b) Defaults and Automatic Termination Upenupon Written Notice without Cure Period — Area
Representative shall be in default of this Agreement and AreaRepresentative’s—rights—under—this
Agreement may be terminated by Franchisor, inat Franchisor's sole discretion, upon written notice from
Franchisor to Area Representative efand without providing Area Representative any ene-of thefoHowing
events—and/oropportunity to cure, upon the occurrence of any one or more of the following actions,
inactions, omissions, events, and/or circumstances, with such termination effective on the date of
Franchisor’s notice:

(i) Area Representative Abandons the Area Representative Business-and/er, surrenders and/or fails
to contlnuously and actlvcly opcratc the Area Representative Busmess

(ii) Area Representative, on three or more instances and/or occasions, engages, commits, and/or
suffers an action, inaction, omission, event, and/or circumstance that constitutes or qualifies as a
default under Section 12.1(c) of this Agreement, irrespective of whether or not such action, inaction,
omission, event, and/or circumstance is the subject of a notice of default from Franchisor to Area
Representative pursuant to Section 12.1(c) of this Agreement and irrespective of whether or not such
default was timely cured and irrespective of whether or not Area Representative paid any penalties
or additional fees to Franchisor:;
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(iii) Area Representative, intentionally and knowingly, refuses to comply with and/or breaches any
term, condition, provision, and/or requirement of this Agreement with the intent of causing harm to
Franchisor, the System, AR Unit Franchisee’s, other System franchisees, and/or customers of the
Area Representative Business;

(iv) Area Representative intentionally, knowingly, with prior notice, and/or through negligence, at
any time, develops, manages, maintains, and/or operates the Area Representative Business in
violation of federal, state, and/or local laws, rules, regulations, ordinances, permits, codes and/or
conduct including, without limitation, laws, rules and regulations governing the offer and/or sale of
franchises;

(v) Area Representative attempts to Transfers or, purportedly attempts to Transfer, er-any-purperted
Transfer-of-this Agreement or any of Area Representative’s rights under this Agreement-to-a-third
party-, without Franchisor’s prior approval, written consent, and/or otherwise not in accordance with
this Agreement;

Gv)-Area—Representative—(vi) If Area Representative is a Corporate Entity, an Owner of Area
Representative attempts to Transfer or, purportedly Transfers, the Owners equity interests, ownership
interests, and/or rights in Area Representative without Franchisor’s prior approval, written consent
and/or otherwise not in accordance with this Agreement;

(vn) Area Representative d1scloses dlvulges aﬂd%er—prowdes access to, communicates—te—any
y-, and/or permits the communication

of the contentsa# data and/or aﬂymeormatlon contalned in;-the-operations-manual the Operations
Manual to any third party not otherwise authorized by Franchisor;

(wviii) Area Representative discloses, divulges, and/er-provides access to, communicates—to—any
unauthorized-persen-or-entity-any, and/or permits the communication of Confidential Information to

any third party not otherwise authorized by Franchisor;

(Vﬂx) Area Representatlve

{vit) Arca Representative materially breaches. or isengages in material default ofs this Agreement or
engaging-in-any-otherany activity that injures, harms, damages, or otherwise has a material adverse

effect on Franchisor, the System, the Licensed Marks, Spas;—and/orV/O Med Spa—lecation
Eranechises, the Area Representative Business, and/or the reputation of the V/O Med Spa brand;

(viix) Area Representative; and/or an Owner, and/or—a—Speuse—as applicable}-aterially and
whether individually or jointly, breaches; or is in material-default of the AreaRepresentative AR
Owner and-Speuse-Agreement and Guaranty attached-hereto-as Exhibit1;

and/er, if an applicable opportunity to cure exists, fails to

B R e e
tlmely cure the breach or default of the AR Owner ol a felony or Arca Representative or an Owner

Guaranty;
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(xi) Area Representative and/or an Owner fails-te-comply-with-Anti-Terrorismrawsor become listed
on-the- Annex-to-Executive- Order132440f Area Representative is convicted of a felony crime, and/or

pleads guilty or nolo contendere to a felony crime;

G)-Area—Representative—fails(xii) Area Representative and/or an Owner of Area Representative
engages in intentionally dishonest and/or unethical conduct that, in Franchisor’s Reasonable Business
Judgment, results in embarrassment to Franchisor, the System, the Licensed Marks, V/O Med Spa
the Area Representative Business, and/or the reputation of the V/O Med Spa brand;

(xiii) Area Representative fails to complete, to Franchisor’s reasonable satisfaction, the Training
Program and/or supplemental training programs designated by Franchisor;

(xiv) Area Representative fails, upon receiving actual or constructive notice, to: (1) immediately
notify Franchisor of any known breach of the Confidentiality Agreement by any person or entity; (2)
immediately notify Franchisor of facts and information that would cause a reasonable person to
believe that a person or entity violated the Confidentiality Agreement and/or is in the process of
violating the Confidentiality Agreement; and/er (3) take reasonable steps {including, notice to
Franchisor and Area Representative’s consultation with Area Representative’s legal counsel), to
prevent any person or entity from violating the terms of the Confidentiality Agreement_and/or
otherwise publicly disseminating Confidential Information;

(xiixv) Area Representative misappropriates, misuses, er-makes, or permits any unauthorized use of
the Licensed Marks, the Confidential Information, and/or the System; and/or Area Representative
materially impairs the goodwill associated with the Licensed Marks, and/or Area Representative
applies for registration of the Licensed Marks anywhere in the world;

ev)-AreaRepresentative-and/oranAreaRepresentative(xvi) Area Representative and/or an Owner

fails to comply with Anti-Terrorism Laws or becomes listed on the Annex to Executive Order
13244.

(xvii) Area Representative and/or any AR Affiliate terminates the Franchise Agreement for any AR
Spa-LeeationUnit Franchise;

(xvi

(xviii) Area Representative and/or an AreaRepresentative AR Affiliate breaches the terms of a
Franchise Agreement for an AR SpateeationUnit Franchise and, if such breach is capable of a
cure, Area Representative and/or the AreaRepresentative- AR Affiliate fails to timely cure such
breach;

(xvit

(xix) Area Representative and/or an AreaRepresentative AR Affiliate breaches the terms of a
Franchise Agreement for an AR SpateeationUnit Franchise and; such breach is not subject to
curing pursuant to the terms of such Franchise Agreement;-is-neteapable-ofeuring; and/or

(xx) Area Representatives fails to timely meet and/or satisfy Area Representative’s Development
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Quota Obligations and/or Area Representative’s Aggregate Development Quota and/or Development
Schedule obligations as-set forth in this Agreement including, but-nettmited-tewithout limitation,
Section 4 and Schedule 42 of this Agreement.

(c) Defaults and Automatic Termination After 30 Day Cure Period — Area Representative shall be

in default of this Agreement;—and-AreaRepresentative’s—rights—under—_and this Agreement shall be
terminated, upon 30-ealendar-days-written-notice-(speeifying-the defaultoccurrence of this-Agreement

aﬂd#efany one or more of the following actions, inactions, £a+1rufes—omlssmns events and/or

unlesseufeé
by—A—rea—Repfeseﬂt—&mle—wﬁ%ﬂﬂ—H&e—Ne&ee—Peﬁed— Area Representatlve tlmelv cures, to the satisfaction

of Franchisor, such default / action, inaction, omission, event, and/or circumstance within 30 calendar
days of Franchisor’s written notice:

(i) Area Representative fails or refuses to comply with and/or breaches any term, condition, provision
and/or requirement of this Agreement that is not otherwise a default under Section 12.1(a), or 12.1(b)

of this Agreement;

(ii) Area Representative fails or refuses to comply with any term or condition of this Agreement or

any other agreement between or among Franchisor, Franchisor’s affiliates, Area Representative,

and/or AreaRepresentative’s-affiliatesAR Affiliates;

(iv) Area Representative inadvertently and without intent or through reckless or negligent actions
and/or _inaction operates the Area Representative’sRepresentative Business in any manner that
violates any federal, state, or local laws, rules, and regulations, including, but-net-limited-towithout
limitation, laws, rules and regulations governing the offer and/or sale of franchises within the Area
Representative Territory;

(v) Area Representative fails or refuses, at any time, to maintain;-ersuffers-cancelation-of-any- the

required insurance pelieypolicies and insurance coverage required underfor the Area Representative
Business as set forth in this Agreement;, and/or in the Operations Manual;

(vi) Area Representative fails or refuses to timely submit to Franchisor records, reports, stored media,
recordings, financial statements, books, accounts, statements, data, documentation and/or other
information as required by this Agreement, as set forth in the Operations Manual, and/or as requested

by Franchisor;

(vii) Area Representative fails to timely satisfy and pay all vendors, suppliers, and/or franchise
brokers in connection with the development and/or operations of the Area Representative Business,
and/or the marketing, promotion, and/or sale of AR Unit Franchises: and/or
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(viii) Area Representative fails or refuses to comply with any specification, standard, or operating
procedure designated by Franchisor or otherwise set forth in the eperations-manual-erOperations
Manual.

The foregoing events of default set forth in this Section 12.1(c) shall exclude events of default that
are otherwise governed by and/or constitute events of default under Section 12.1(a) or Section
12.1(b). In the event of any inconsistency or conflict between the provisions of this Section 12.1(c)
with Section 12.1(a), Section 12.1(a) shall take precedence and govern. In the event of any
inconsistency or conflict between the provisions of this Section 12.1(c) with Section 12.1(b), Section
12.1(b) shall take precedence and govern.

412 12.2 TERMINATION BY AREA REPRESENTATIVE

If Area Representatlve and each Owner aﬂd%peas%(a&appheab}e}are in full compliance with each and
every term and previsiencondition of this Agreement, and Franchisor materially breaches Franchisor’s
substantive and material obligations set forth in this Agreement, Area Representative may terminate this
Agreement in the event of the following: (a) Franchisor does not correct the material breach within 30 days
after Franchisor’s receipt of Area Representative’s written notice of such material breach to Franchisor; or
(b) in a case where Franchisor’s material breach cannot reasonably be cured within 30 days;-within30-days
of Franchisor’s receipt of Area Representative’s written notice of Franchisor’s material breach, Franchisor
shall be provided a reasonable time period to cure such material breach provided that Franchisor provides
reasonable evidence to Area Representative of Franchisor’s current, continuing, and/or planned efforts to
correct the material breach within a reasonable time.

In either case, Area Representative’s termination of this Agreement shall not take effect until;-as-applicable;

expiration of the 30 day period set forth above or such reasonable time period as necessary to cure the

material breach, and Area Representative delivers to Franchisor a separate written notice of termination.

The termination date must be at least 10 days after Franchisor’s receipt of Area Representative’s notice of

termination. Area Representative’s termination of this Agreement for any reason other than in compliance

with this Section 12.2 shall not constitute the termination of this Agreement-and, shall constitute a material
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breach of this Agreement by Area Representative, and shall be of no force or effect.

To induce Franchisor to enter into this Agreement, Area Representative;—each—Owner and each
SpeuseOwner agree that if Area Representative terminates this Agreement pursuant to this Section 12.2
that, then Area Representative; and each Owner and-each-Speuse-shall nevertheless comply with, and be
bound by, all restrictions and the post-term obligations set forth in Section 7 of this Agreement.

413 123 FRANCHISOR’S OTHER REMEDIES

In the event of Area Representative’s breach of any provision of this Agreement or Area
RepresentativesRepresentative’s default under this Agreement, Franchisor, at Franchisor’s sole discretion,
shall be entitled to the following remedies and rights in addition to any other rights and remedies available
to Franchisor set forth in this Agreement, at law, or in equity: (a) void and terminate this Agreement, and
market, sell, transfer, convey, and/or assign the rights granted to Area Representative under this Agreement
to any other person er-entity-at Franchisor’s_sole discretion; (b) hold Area Representative liable for, and
recover from Area Representative, all costs (including court costs, deposition costs, and all other costs of
litigation), damages (subject to the limitations set forth in Section 14.10 below), losses; (including loss of
royalties and loss of business), interest, fees (including, without limitation, reasonable attorney fees,
accountant fees, expert witness fees, and consultant fees), expenses, and charges resulting from Area
Representative’s default or material breach; (c) exercise all legal and equitable rights and remedies
allowable by applicable law; (d) recover from Area Representative all costs (including court costs,
deposition costs, and all other costs of litigation), damages (subject to the limitations set forth in Section
14.10 below), losses (including loss of royalties and loss of business), interest, fees (including, without
limitation, reasonable attorney fees, accountant fees, expert witness fees, and consultant fees), expenses,
and charges to reclaim the rights granted to Area Representative under this Agreement, and marketing,
selling, transferring, conveying or assigning those rights to another person-er-entity; () enjoin, restrain,
prohibit, or otherwise prevent Area Representative from operating the Area Representative Business or
exercising any rights granted to Area Representative under this Agreement pursuant to a court ordered
restraining order, injunction, or other means; (f) recover from Area Representative all costs (including court
costs, deposition costs, and all other costs of litigation), damages (subject to the limitations set forth in
Section 14.10 below), losses (including loss of royalties and loss of business), interest, fees (including,
without limitation, reasonable attorney fees, accountant fees, expert witness fees, and consultant fees),
expenses and charges resulting from, or associated with, enjoining, restraining, prohibiting, or otherwise
preventing Area Representative from operating Area Representative Business or exercising any rights
granted to Area Representative under this Agreement pursuant to a court ordered restraining order,
injunction, or other means; (g) a declaratory judgment that this Agreement and all rights granted to Area
Representative under this Agreement are terminated, null, and void; and (h) recover from Area
Representative all payments, fees, monetary obligations, financial obligations, interest, and charges due and
owing to Franchisor from Area Representative pursuant to this Agreement. Franchisor’s-sueh rights and
remedies are cumulative, and no exercise or enforcement by Franchisor of any such right or remedy
precludes the exercise or enforcement by Franchisor of any other right or remedy which Franchisor is
entitled byat law or in equity to enforce.
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SECTION 13
3842 OBLIGATIONS UPON TERMINATION, EXPIRATION,

3943 AND CONTINUING OBLIGATIONS

43.1 13.1 PAYMENT OF AMOUNTS OWED TO FRANCHISOR

Without lmitation—telimiting any other Asticleterm or previsiencondition of this Agreement, upon
expiration or termination of this Agreement for any reason, Area Representative shall immediately pay to
Franchisor all sums and fees due from Area Representative to Franchisor under the terms of this Agreement
including, butnetlimited-te-without limitation, Royalty Fees-and, Advertising Contributions, and all other
sums and fees due from Area Representative to Franchisor, Franchisor’s affiliates, and Franchisor’s
suppliers_under this Agreement or otherwise due and owing to Franchisor, Franchisor’s affiliates, and
Franchisor’s suppliers from Area Representative.

43.2 13.2 CEASE OPERATIONS, USE OF SYSTEM AND PROTECTION OF THE SYSTEM
YpenExcept as may be separately authorized pursuant to the terms of a Unit Franchise Agreement between
Franchisor and Area Representative, upon expiration, termination, or Transfer of this Agreement for any
reason, Area Representative shall possess no rights in or to the Area Representative Business, the Area
Representative Territory, or any rights granted to Area Representative in this Agreement, and; Area
Representative shall immediately:

(a) Permanently cease operating the Area Representative Business;

(b) Permanently cease holding itself/himself/herself out to any person—er—entity, or represent
itself/himself/herself, as a present or former area representative of the System;

(c) Permanently cease to use, in any manner: (i) the System, including, without limitation, the
Confidential Information, the Licensed Marks, the Business Management System Data, and the
operations-manualOperations Manual; (ii) any methods, procedures, or techniques associated with the
System in which Franchisor possesses proprietary rights or that constitute Franchisor’s trade secrets;
and (iii) any other advertising, marketing, media, and any other information, documents, or things
associated with Franchisor, the System, the Licensed Marks, and the Area Representative Business;

(d) Return to Franchisor the eperations—manualOperations Manual (including any and all parts,
supplements, and copies of the eperations-manualOperations Manual), the Confidential Information
(including, without limitation, the Business Management System Data and all customer lists and
information), and all other confidential materials, equipment, software, information, and property
owned by Franchisor and all copies thereof provided, however, that Area Representative may retain
Area Representative’s copies of this Agreement, correspondence between Franchisor and Area
Representative, but not including Confidential Information that may be contained in or attached thereto,
and other documents that Area Representative needs to retain pursuant to applicable law;
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(e) Permanently cease accessing, immediately disconnect from, and discontinue using any and all
digital media, intra-nets, cloud based systems, and/or servers that store, maintain, and/or provide access
to the eperations—manualOperations Manual, Confidential Information, and all other standards; and
specifications of Franchisor;

(f) Immediately notify Franchisor; in writing; of any and all locations where Area Representative may
have maintained and/or stored digital files and/or media containing all or parts of the eperations
mantalOperations Manual, any Confidential Information, and all other standards and specifications of
Franchisor, immediately turn over such digital files and media to Franchisor, and follow Franchisor’s
instructions as to the destruction of such digital files and media;

(g) Take all actions reasonably necessary and/or-reasenably required to cancel all fictitious or assumed
names or equivalent registrations relating to the Licensed Marks;

(h)- At no cost to Franchisor, take such action as may be determined by Franchisor to: (i) provide and
assign to Franchisor the Business Management System, the Business Management System Data, and
all customer lists, customer information, and customer data; (ii) transfer, disconnect, and/or otherwise
assign, as directed by Franchisor, all telephone numbers, email addresses, Web Based Media listings,
Digital Media, accounts and log-in information used in connection with Area Representative’s former
Area Representative Business and/or otherwise associated with the System and/or the Licensed Marks,
and cancel Area Representative’s interests in same as such cancellation may be directed by Franchisor;

(i) Abide by, and comply with, the restrictive covenants and obligations set forth in this Agreement,
including, without limitation, the restrictive covenants and obligations set forth in Section 7 of this
Agreement; and

(j) Provide Franchisor, within 30 days of the expiration, termination, or Transfer of this Agreement,
with written proof demonstrating that Area Representative has-complied with the terms of this Section
13 and all other obligations under this Agreement that Area Representative must perform, abide by,
and comply with, subsequent to the termination, expiration, or Transfer of this Agreement.

43.3 133 CONTINUING OBLIGATIONS

All obligations of Franchisor and Area Representative under this Agreement which expressly, or by their
nature, survive, or are intended to survive, the expiration, termination, or Transfer of this Agreement shall
continue in full force and effect subsequent to, and notwithstanding, this Agreement’s termination,
expiration, or Transfer, until such obligations are satisfied in full or, by thetheir nature and/or terms, such
obligation(s) expire.

_Area Representative further agrees that in the event of a Transfer of this Agreement by Area
Representative ster—is i : in-violat “this
Agreement, under no circumstance shall Area Representative be relieved of Area Representative’s
Obligations under this Agreement and under no circumstance shall eachany Owner-and-Speuse be relieved
of their respective guarantees, agreements, and obligations related to, or associated with, this Agreement,
including, without limitation, the guarantees, agreements, and obligations set forth in this Agreement, -the
Area-Representative AR Owner and-Speuse-Agreement and Guaranty attached to this Agreement as Exhibit
1. The foregoing shall not be interpreted or otherwise construed as constituting consent to any Transfer of
this Agreement without theFranchisor’s express written consent-by-Franchisor and Area Representative’s
compliance with this Agreement respecting any such Transfer.
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SECTION 14
44 ENFORCEMENT, CONSTRUCTION AND INDEMNIFICATION

44.1 14.1 SEVERABILITY AND SUBSTITUTION OF VALID PROVISIONS

Except as expressly provided to the contrary in this Agreement, Franchisor and Area Representative agree
that each term and condition of this Agreement shall be interpreted or otherwise construed to be independent
of each other and severable. Although each term and condition of this Agreement are considered by the
parties to be reasonable and intended to be enforceable, if any such term and condition of this Agreement
is found by a court of competent jurisdiction, agency, or other governmental agency to be unenforceable as
written or otherwise, then such term and condition shall be modified, rewritten, interpreted, or “blue-lined”
to include as much of its nature and scope as will render it enforceable. If such term and condition cannot
be so modified, rewritten, interpreted, or “blue-lined” in any respect, then it will not be given effect and
severed from this Agreement, and the remainder of this Agreement shall be interpreted, construed and
enforced as if such term and condition was not included in this Agreement.

If any applicable and binding law or rule requires a greater prior notice of the termination of this Agreement
than is required in this Agreement, or the taking of some other action not required by this Agreement, or if
under any applicable and binding law or rule, any term and condition of this Agreement, or any
specification, standard, or operating procedure Franchisor prescribes is invalid or unenforceable, then the
greater prior notice and/or other action required by law or rule shall be substituted for the comparable
provisions, and Franchisor has the right, in its sole discretion, to modify the invalid or unenforceable term
and condition, specification, standard, or operating procedure to the extent required to be valid and
enforceable. Area Representative agrees to be bound by any such substituted and/or modified term and
condition of this Agreement imposing the maximum duty permitted by law that is prescribed within the
terms of any provision of this Agreement as though it were originally and separately articulated in, and
made a part of, this Agreement as of the Effective Date and/or any specification, standard or operating
procedure Franchisor prescribes, which may result from striking from any terms and conditions,
specifications, standards, or operating procedures, and any portion or portions thereof, a court may hold to
be unenforceable or from reducing the scope of any promise or covenant to the extent required to comply
with a court order. Modifications to this Agreement shall be effective only in those jurisdictions in which
such terms and conditions, specifications, standards, or operating procedures are found to be unenforceable,
unless Franchisor elects to give them greater applicability, in which case, this Agreement shall be enforced
as originally made in all other jurisdictions.

44.2

44.3 14.2 WAIVER OF OBLIGATIONS

No delay, waiver, omission, or forbearance on the part of Franchisor to enforce any term and condition of
this Agreement or exercise any of Franchisor’s rights, options, or powers under this Agreement constitutes
a waiver by Franchisor to enforce any other term and condition of this Agreement or exercise any of
Franchisor’s other rights, options, or powers under this Agreement. No such delay, waiver, omission, or
forbearance shall constitute a waiver by Franchisor to subsequently enforce such term and condition of this
Agreement or subsequently exercise such right, option, or power. Acceptance by Franchisor of any
payments, fees, charges, or other amount from Area Representative payable to Franchisor pursuant to this
Agreement shall not constitute a waiver or acceptance of Area Representative’s default or breach of this
Agreement or otherwise a waiver of any term and condition of this Agreement, and Franchisor reserves the
right to pursue any and all additional remedies set forth in this Agreement, at law, or in equity. Franchisor
shall likewise not be deemed to have waived or impaired any term and condition, right, option or power set
forth in this Agreement by virtue of any custom or practice of the parties at variance with the terms and
conditions of this Agreement or Franchisor’s insistence upon Area Representative’s strict compliance with
Area Representative’s obligations, including any mandatory specification, standard or operating procedure.
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No waiver by Franchisor of any term and condition of this Agreement shall be valid unless in writing and
signed by Franchisor.

444 143 FORCE MAJEURE
If either Franchisor or Area Representative is delayed in performing any obligation under this Agreement
by any cause reasonably beyond its control when such cause would affect any person erentity-similarly
situated, including, without limitation, war, civil disorder, catastrophic weather, power outage, acts of God
and/or labor strikes unassociated with Area Representative or Franchisor (collectively, “Force Majeure”),
then the time period for performing such obligation shall be extended by a period of time equal to the period
of delay. Notwithstanding the immediately foregoing sentence, any delay resulting from Force Majeure
shall not excuse Area Representative’s payment of any fee, charge, amount, and/or any other monetary or
financial obligation to Franchlsor under thls Agreement, includinewithoutlimitation. the payment-of the
—and the non-performance of any obligation under this
Agreement due to Force Majeure shall not be extended or otherwise excused for more than 6six months.

44.5 144 SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF

Nothing in this Agreement bars Franchisor’s right to obtain specific performance of the provisions of this
Agreement and injunctive relief under legal and/or equity rules against threatened conduct that will cause
damages or loss to Franchisor, the Licensed Marks, or the System. Without limitatientelimiting the rights
set forth in Section 7 of this Agreement, Area Representative agrees that Franchisor may obtain such
injunctive relief in addition to such further or other relief as may be available at law or in equity. Area
Representative agrees that Franchisor will not be required to post a bond (other than as set forth in Section
7.8 of this Agreement) to obtain injunctive relief and that Area Representative's only remedy if an injunction
is entered against Area Representative will be the dissolution of that injunction, if warranted, upon a hearing
duly held (all claims for damages by reason of the wrongful issuance of any such injunction being expressly
waived hereby). None of the remedies available to Franchisor under this Agreement are exclusive of any
other, but may be combined with others under this Agreement, or at law or in equity, including injunctive
relief, specific performance, and recovery of monetary damages. Without hmitatien—telimiting the
foregoing, Area Representative agrees that in—the—event—ef—-a breach of this Agreement by Area
Representative respecting and/or concerning the System, and/or the Licensed Marks shall cause irreparable
harm to Franchisor, the System and the Licensed Marks. The foregoing shall not be interpreted to invalidate
the mediation and arbitration requirements set forth in Section 14.7. of this Agreement and shall be
consistent with same.

44.6 14.5 RIGHTS OF PARTIES ARE CUMULATIVE

The rights of Franchisor and Area Representative under this Agreement are cumulative and no exercise or
enforcement by a party of any right or remedy precludes the exercise or enforcement by that party of any
other right or remedy which Franchisor or Area Representative is entitled by law to enforce.

44.7 14.6 GOVERNING LAW

EXCEPT TO THE EXTENT GOVERNED BY THE UNITED STATES TRADEMARK ACT OF 1946
(LANHAM ACT, 15 U.S.C. §§ 1051 ET SEQ.) OR OTHER FEDERAL LAW, THIS AGREEMENT AND
THE RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN THE PARTIES HERETO-SHALL BE GOVERNED BY. AND
CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH, THE INTERNAL LAWS OF THE STATE OF OHIO,
EXCEPT THAT ITS CHOICE OF LAW AND CONFLICTS OF LAWS RULES SHALL NOT APPLY
AND ANY FRANCHISE REGISTRATION, DISCLOSURE, RELATIONSHIP, OR SIMILAR
STATUTE WHICH MAY BE ADOPTED BY THE STATE OF OHIO SHALL NOT APPLY UNLESS
ITS JURISDICTIONAL REQUIREMENTS ARE MET INDEPENDENTLY WITHOUT REFERENCE
TO THIS PARAGRAPH.
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——-14.7 CHOICE-OFEAW-NON-BINDING MEDIATION;
44.8 AND BINDING ARBITRATION;AND-CONSENTFFOJURISDICTHION

H (a) Non-Binding Mediation — Area Representative and Franchisor agree that before either party
may bring any action, dispute and/or controversy arising from or related to this Agreement and/or the
franchise relationship between Franchisor and Area Representative in arbitration, the parties must first
mediate the dispute through non-binding mediation. Mediation shall be non-binding and shall be
conducted by the American Arbitration Association (“AAA”) in accordance with the AAA’s then current
rules for the mediation of commercial disputes. All mediation proceedings shall be conducted in
Cuyahoga County, Ohio or, if a mediator is not available in Cuyahoga County, Ohio then at a suitable
location selected by the mediator that is located closest to Cuyahoga County, Ohio. Mediation shall be
conducted by one mediator and if Franchisor and EranehiseFranchisee cannot agree on a mediator then
the mediator shall be selected by the AAA. Mediation shall be conducted within 45 days of the AAA’s
designation and/or acknowledgment of the selected mediator or such longer period as may be agreed to
between Franchisor and Area Representative in writing and signed by each respective party. Franchisor
and Area Representative shall each be responsible for their own costs associated with mediation and
Franchisor and Area Representative shall each be responsible for and shall each pay 50% of the
mediator’s fee and the AAA’s mediation fees.

Notwithstanding the preceding paragraph, Franchisor and Area Representative agree this Sub-Sub-
Section 14.7(+a) and, thereby, the prerequisite requirement of non-binding mediation, shall not, at
Franchisor’s election, apply to: (a) any claims or disputes related to or concerning a breach of this
Agreement by Area Representative that, under the terms of this Agreement, may entitle Franchisor to
the award of injunctive relief including, but not limited to, Area Representative’s violation or purported
violation of Section 6 of this Agreement; and/or (b) claims by either Franchisor or Area Representative
under this Agreement that relates to either Franchisor’s or Area Representative’s failure to pay fees or
other monetary obligations due under this Agreement.

2 (b Arbitration — Subject to the prerequisite requirements of non-binding mediation as set
forth in Sub-Section +44.7(+a), and, except, at Franchisor’s election, as to any claims or disputes related
to or concerning a breach of this Agreement by Area Representative that, under the terms of this
Agreement, may entitle Franchisor to the award of injunctive relief including, but not limited to, Area
Representative’s violation or purported violation of Section 7 of this Agreement, Franchisor and Area
Representative agree that all disputes, controversies, and claims, arising from and/or related to this
Agreement, the relationship between Franchisor and Area Representative, the System, and/or the
validity of this Agreement and/or the Ancillary Agreements, shall be submitted, on demand of either
Franchisor or Area Representative, to the AAA for binding arbitration. Arbitration shall be conducted
by one arbitrator in accordance with the AAA’s then current rules for commercial disputes, except as
may be otherwise required in this Section 14.7. All arbitration proceedings shall be conducted in
Cuyahoga County, Ohio or, if suitable AAA facilities are not available in Cuyahoga County, Ohio then
at a suitable AAA location selected by the arbitrator that is located closest to Cuyahoga County, Ohio.

In connection with binding arbitration, Franchisor and Area Representative further agree that:

@ (i) All matters relating to arbitration, will be governed by the United States Federal Arbitration
Act, except as expressly or otherwise set forth in this Agreement;
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¢y  (ii) The arbitration hearing shall be conducted within 180 days of the demand for arbitration;

z

(iii) _ The arbitrator shall render written findings of fact and conclusions of law;

() (iv) Except as may be otherwise required and/or prohibited by this Agreement including, but
not limited to Sections 14.9, 14.10, 14.15, 14.18, 14.20, and 14.1124 of this Agreement, the
arbitrator has the right to award or include in his or her award any relief that he or she
determines to be proper, including monetary damages, interest on unpaid sums, specific
performance, injunctive relief, attorneys’ fees, and costs and expenses as allowable under this
Agreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, under no circumstance shall the Arbitrator be
authorized to award or declare the Licensed Marks to be generic or invalid;

¢} (v) They shall each be bound to the limitations periods set forth in Section 14.9 of this
Agreement and that, in any arbitration proceeding, Franchisor and Area Representative must
each timely submit, within the same arbitration proceeding, any claim that would constitute a
compulsory counterclaim as such claims are defined and set forth under Rule 13 of the United
States Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. Any claim that is not submitted or filed as required
shall be forever barred;

&  (vi)Judgment upon the arbitrator’s award may be entered in any court of competent
jurisdiction; and

) (vii) Arbitration and/or any arbitration award must be conducted in accordance with the
terms of this Agreement including, but not limited to, the requirements set forth in this Section
147

3 (o Consent to Jurisdiction and Venue — Subject to the non-binding mediation and
arbitration provisions set forth in this Section 14.7, Franchisor and Area Representative agree that any
judicial action or legal proceeding must be brought in a court of competent jurisdiction located within
Ohio and within Cuyahoga County or the county closest to Cuyahoga County. Franchisor and Area
Representative do hereby irrevocably consent to and waive any objection to such jurisdiction or venue.
Without limitation to the foregoing and notwithstanding same, Franchisor and Area Representative agree
that Franchisor, at Franchisor’s election, -may bring any legal action or proceeding seeking a temporary
restraining order, preliminary injunction, or any action seeking Franchisor’s enforcement of an
arbitration award or any judicial decision in the federal or state court located in the county and state
where either the FranchisedArea Representative Business was located or where Area Representative
resides.
44.9
44.10 14.8 VARIANCES
AREA REPRESENTATIVE ACKNOWLEDGES THAT FRANCHISOR HAS AND MAY AT
DIFFERENT TIMES, IN FRANCHISOR’S ABSOLUTE AND SOLE DISCRETION, APPROVE
EXCEPTIONS OR CHANGES FROM THE UNIFORM STANDARDS OF THE SYSTEM, WHICH
FRANCHISOR DEEMS DESIRABLE OR NECESSARY UNDER PARTICULAR CIRCUMSTANCES.
AREA REPRESENTATIVE UNDERSTANDS THAT IT HAS NO RIGHT TO OBJECT TO OR
AUTOMATICALLY OBTAIN SUCH VARIANCES, AND ANY EXCEPTION OR CHANGE MUST BE
APPROVED IN ADVANCE BY FRANCHISOR IN WRITING. AREA REPRESENTATIVE
UNDERSTANDS THAT EXISTING AREA REPRESENTATIVES MAY OPERATE UNDER
DIFFERENT FORMS OF AGREEMENTS AND THAT THE RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF
EXISTING AREA REPRESENTATIVES MAY DIFFER MATERIALLY FROM THIS AGREEMENT.
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44.11 14.9 LIMITATIONS OF CLAIMS

EXCEPT FOR CLAIMS BROUGHT BY FRANCHISOR WITH REGARD TO AREA
REPRESENTATIVE’S OBLIGATIONS TO MAKE PAYMENTS TO FRANCHISOR PURSUANT TO
THIS AGREEMENT, FRANCHISOR’S ENFORCEMENT OF THE RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS SET
FORTH IN SECTION 7 OF THIS AGREEMENT, AND AREA REPRESENTATIVE’S OBLIGATION
TO INDEMNIFY FRANCHISOR IN ACCORDANCE WITH THIS AGREEMENT, ANY AND ALL
CLAIMS AND/OR CAUSES OF ACHONSACTION ARISING OUT OF, OR RELATING TO, THIS
AGREEMENT, OR THE RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN AREA REPRESENTATIVE AND
FRANCHISOR RESULTING FROM THIS AGREEMENT, SHALL BE BARRED UNLESS SUCH
CLAIM AND/OR CAUSE OF ACTION IS COMMENCED WITHIN TWO YEARS FROM THE DATE
ON WHICH THE ACT OR EVENT GIVING RISE TO THE CLAIM OCCURRED OR ONE YEAR
FROM THE DATE ON WHICH AREA REPRESENTATIVE OR FRANCHISOR KNEW, OR SHOULD
HAVE KNOWN, IN THE EXERCISE OF REASONABLE DILIGENCE, OF THE FACTS GIVING RISE
TO SUCH CLAIM AND/OR CAUSE OF ACTION, WHICHEVER OCCURS FIRST IN TIME.

44.12 14.10 ' WAIVER OF PUNITIVE DAMAGES AND LIMITATION OF DAMAGES
FRANCHISOR AND AREA REPRESENTATIVE HEREBY WAIVE TO THE FULLEST EXTENT
PERMITTED BY LAW, ANY RIGHT TO OR CLAIM FOR ANY PUNITIVE, EXEMPLARY,
CONSEQUENTIAL OR SPECULATIVE DAMAGES AGAINST THE OTHER AND AGREE THAT IN
THE EVENT OF A DISPUTE BETWEEN THEM, EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE PROVIDED HEREIN,
EACH SHALL BE LIMITED TO THE RECOVERY OF ACTUAL DAMAGES SUSTAINED BY IT;
PROVIDED THAT SUCH WAIVER SHALL NOT APPLY TO ANY CLAIM (A) ALLOWED BY
FRANCHISOR OR AREA REPRESENTATIVE FOR ATTORNEY’S FEES OR COSTS AND
EXPENSES UNDER THIS AGREEMENT; AND/OR (B) FOR LOST PROFITS AND LOST BUSINESS
BY FRANCHISOR OR AREA REPRESENTATIVE AND THE OWNERS UPON OR ARISING OUT
OF THE TERMINATION OF THIS AGREEMENT. NOTWITHSTANDING ANYTHING TO THE
CONTRARY IN THIS AGREEMENT, IF ANY OTHER TERM OF THIS AGREEMENT IS FOUND OR
DETERMINED TO BE UNCONSCIONABLE OR UNENFORCEABLE FOR ANY REASON, THE
FOREGOING PROVISIONS OF WAIVER BY AGREEMENT OF PUNITIVE, EXEMPLARY,
INCIDENTAL, INDIRECT, SPECIAL, CONSEQUENTIAL OR OTHER SIMILAR DAMAGES SHALL
CONTINUE IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT.

44.13 14.11  WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL

FRANCHISOR AND AREA REPRESENTATIVE IRREVOCABLY WAIVE TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY
ACTION, PROCEEDING, OR COUNTERCLAIM, WHETHER AT LAW OR IN EQUITY, BROUGHT
BY EITHER OF THEM AGAINST THE OTHER, WHETHER A LEGAL ACTION, IN MEDIATION,
OR IN ARBITRATION.

44.14 14.12 BINDING EFFECT

This Agreement is binding upon the parties of this Agreement and their respective executors,
administrators, heirs, permitted assigns, and successors in interest, and this Agreement shall not be modified
except by written agreement signed by-beth Area Representative and Franchisor.

44.15 14.13 COMPLETE AGREEMENT

This Agreement, the documents referredreferenced in, or attached to-in, this Agreement, and the Schedules
and Exhibits to this Agreement, constitute the entire, full and complete Agreement between Franchisor and
Area Representative concerning the subject matter of this Agreement and supersedes all prior related
agreements between Franchisor and Area Representative. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the franchise
disclosure document (as registered with certain states, required by federal law or otherwise and provided to
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Area Representative or its representative) shall not be deemed to constitute a part of this Agreement nor as
a separate, binding agreement concerning the subject matter hereof. Netwithstanding—Nothing in the
foregoing;nothing—in—this—or—anyrelated—agreementAgreement is intended to disclaim the express
representations Franchisor made in the EranchiseDiselosureDocument-its-exhibits;franchise disclosure
document that Franchisor and-its—amendments/or Franchisor’s agent furnished to Area Representative
and/or Owners.

44.16 14.14 ATTORNEY FEES AND EXPENSES

Area Representative agrees that in the event that an arbitrator in any arbitration proceeding and/or, a court
of competent jurisdiction shall issue an award, judgment, decision and/or order finding, holding and/or
declaring Area Representative’s breach of this Agreement than Franchisor shall also be entitled to the
recovery of all reasonable attorney fees, costs and expenses associated with and/or related to such
arbitration and/or litigation. Said fees, costs and expenses shall include, but not be limited to, attorney fees,
arbitration fees, arbitrator fees, deposition expenses, expert witness fees and filing fees.

44.17 14.15 WAIVER OENO CLASS- ACTIONANDPDUALDISPUFERESOLUHON-AND
NO OR MULTI-PARTY ACTIONS

FRANCHISOR AND AREA REPRESENTATIVE AGREE THAT ALL PROCEEDINGS AND/OR
LEGAL ACTIONS ARISING OUT OF, OR REEATEDRELATING TO, THIS AGREEMENT, AND/OR
THE OFFER AND SALE OF THE ERANCHISEDFRANCHISED AREA REPRESENTATIVE
BUSINESS FROM FRANCHISOR TO AREA REPRESENTATIVE, WILL BE CONDUCTED ON AN
INDIVIDUAL BASIS AND NOT A CLASS-WIDE BASIS, AND, THAT ANY PROCEEDING
BETWEEN AREA REPRESENTATIVE, AREA REPRESENTATIVE’S OWNERS, SPOUSES-AND/OR
GUARANTORS AND FRANCHISOR AND/OR FRANCHISOR’S AFFILIATES, OFFICERS,
DIRECTORS, AND/OR EMPLOYEES MAY NOT BE CONSOLIDATED WITH ANY OTHER
PROCEEDING BETWEEN FRANCHISOR AND ANY OTHER THIRD PARTY.

44.18 14.16 _ ACCEPTANCE BY FRANCHISOR
This Agreement will not be binding on Franchisor unless and until an authorized officer of Franchisor has
signed it.

44.19 14 17 OPPORTUNITY FOR REVIEW BY A—REA—REPR:ESEN?AH—\LE—S—AJKPORN—E—XL

Franchlsor e ded;an 3 at ativ ty-torecommends that Franchisee
have this Agreement and the Franchise D1sclosu1‘e Document reviewed by Atea
Representative’sFranchisee’s lawyer, accountant, and other business advisors—Area—Representative
expressly;-acknowledges;-agrees;-and represents-that:, prior to signing this Agreement.
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44.20 14.18 NO PERSONAL LIABILITY BY FRANCHISOR’S EMPLOYEES, OFFICERS,
AND/OR AUTHORIZED AGENTS

Area Representative agrees that the fulfillment of any of Franchisor’s obligations wsittenset forth in this

Agreement ruled-to—be-bindingin—a-court-of law—shall be Franchisor’s sole obligation, and none of

Franchisor’s employees, officers, directors, and/or authorized agents shall be personally liable to Area

Representative for any reason. In-addition-te-theforegoingFranchisorand AreaRepresentativeare-not

jeintemployers:

44.21 14.19 NON-UNIFORM AGREEMENTS

Area Representative acknowledges and agrees that Franchisor makes no representations or warranties that
all other agreements with other System franchisees entered into before or after the Effective Date of this
Agreement do or will contain terms substantially similar to those contained in this Agreement. Area
Representative acknowledges and agrees that Franchisor may waive or modify comparable provisions of
other agreements to other System franchisees in a non-uniform manner.

44.22 1420  NO RIGHT TO OFFSET BY-AREA-REPRESENTATIVE

Area Representative shall not, on grounds of the alleged nonperformance, material breach, or default by
Franchisor of this Agreement, any other agreement between Franchisor and Area Representative, or for any
other reason, withhold any payment, fee, or any other amount payable by Area Representative to Franchisor
pursuant to this Agreement.

44.23 1421 HEADINGS

The headings and subheadings in this Agreement are strictly for convenience and reference only, and they
shall not limit, expand, or otherwise affect the interpretation and construction of the terms and conditions
of this Agreement.
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44.24 14.22 AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE AND-BIND

Each party acknowledges, warrants and represents that it has all requisite power and authority to enter into
this Agreement. The execution, delivery, and performance of this Agreement has been duly and lawfully
authorized by all necessary actions of each party, and the signatory to this Agreement for each party has
been duly and lawfully authorized to execute this Agreement for and on behalf of the party for whom each
signatory has signed.

44.25 1423  COUNTERPARTS;, ELECTRONIC SIGNATURES;, AND MULTIPLE COPIES
This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, all of which counterparts shall be deemed originals and
taken together shall constitute a single agreement, and the signature pages of which may be detached from
the several counterparts and attached to a single copy of this Agreement to physically form a single
document.

44.26 14.24  JOINT AND SEVERAL LIABILITY
If Area Representative consists of more than one person or entity, then their liability under this Agreement
shall be joint and several.

44.27 14.25 INDEMNIFICATION OF FRANCHISOR BY AREA REPRESENTATIVE

Area Representative agrees to indemnify, defend and hold Franchisor, Franchisor’s affiliates, officers,
directors, members, and managers harmless from any and all claims, causes of action, judgments, suits,
liabilities, charges, fines, penalties, penalties and/or other liabilities {including, the recovery of reasonable
attorney fees and expenses), suffered by Franchisor, incurred by Franchisor, and/or charged to Franchisor
as a result of and/or related to: (a) Area Representative’s breach of this Agreement, (b) Area
Representative’s failure to perform arany obligation-as set forth in this Agreement, (c) intentional acts of
Area Representative, and/or (d) negligent acts of Area Representative.

44.28 14.26  RECITALS AND-REPRESENTATIONS

The parties agree that the reeitals—and-representationsRecitals contained en—the—first-page—ofin this
Agreement constitute a material part of this Agreement and are hereby fully incorporated into the terms and
conditions of this Agreement.

14.27 CONSTRUCTION

Unless the context of this Agreement clearly requires otherwise: (i) references to the plural include the
singular, the singular include the plural, the whole include the part, and the part include the whole, (ii)
references to one gender include all genders, (iii) “or” has the inclusive meaning frequently identified with
the phrase “and/or,” (iv) “including” has the inclusive meaning frequently identified with the phrase
“including, but not limited to” or “including, without limitation,” and (v) references to “hereunder,”
“herein” or “hereof” relate to this Agreement as a whole. Any reference in this Agreement to any statute,
rule, regulation or agreement, including this Agreement, shall be deemed to include such statute, rule,
regulation or agreement as it may be modified, varied, amended or supplemented from time to time

SECTION 15
4045 NOTICES

All written notices_and reports permitted or required to be delivered by this Agreement shall be deemed so
delivered, at the time delivered by hand, one business day after being placed in the hands of a national
commercial courier service for overnight delivery (properly addressed and with tracking confirmation), or
three business days after placed in the U.S. mail by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, and
addressed to the party to be notified at its most current principal business address of which the notifying
party has been notified. Reports requiring delivery shall be delivered by certified U.S. mail and/or
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electronically, as designated by Franchisor. The addresses for the parties set forth in the initial paragraph
of this Agreement shall be used unless and until a different address has been designated by written notice
to the other party. Any notice required under this Agreement shall not be deemed effective or given by
Area Representative to Franchisor unless given in strict compliance with this Agreement. Atbwrittennetices

permitted-or required-to-be-delivered-byNotwithstanding the eperations-manualforegoing, the Operations
Manual and/erupdates-er modifications to the eperations-manual-shallOperations Manual may be deemed
so-delivered at-the-time-of notifyingand/or noticed to Area Representative by eleetreniesuch means;-as

designated selected by Franchisor, including;butnetlimited-to-immediately by electronic notice and email.

In all cases where Franchisor’s prior approval is required and no other method or timing for obtaining such
approval is prescribed, Area Representative shall request such approval in writing, and, unless otherwise
expressly proscribed in this Agreement, Franchisor shall respond within 10 business days after receiving
Area Representative’s written request and all supporting documentation, provided if Franchisor does not
respond, such request shall be deemed unapproved. Franchisor’s consent to, or approval of, any act or
request by Area Representative shall be effective only to the extent specifically stated, and Franchisor’s
consent or approval shall not be deemed to waive, or render unnecessary, consent or approval of any other
subsequent similar act or request.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed, sealed and delivered this Agreement en-theas of
the Effective Date set forth in the first paragraph of this Agreement.

-y j )

Franchisor: Area Representative:
VIO Eranehise-GroupFRANCHISE GROUP, LLC

By: By:
Signature Signature
Name and Title (please print) Name (please print)
Dated Dated
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Area Representative Territory - Franchisor and Area Representative agree that the “Area Representative
Territory,” as such term defined in the Area Representative Agreement, is identified as follows:

\ / / /7 \ m e d|AreaRepresentative Agreement - Schedule 1
s p a AR Information Sheet

[For this Schedule to be Effective this Schedule Must be Completed
and Signed by Franchisor. If no territory is identified in this
Schedule 1, then there shall be no Area Representative Territory]

and (the—acknowledges and represents that the foregoing determmatlon as to
Area Representative™):

nltlated by Area Representatlve Agfeemeﬂkbe%eeﬂ%faﬂelﬂser—aﬂdand for Area Representative and, are
further-defined-and-set-forth-in-this AR Information-Sheet:-Representative’s benefit.

Franchisor: Area Representative:
VIO FRANCHISE GROUP, LLC
AreaRepresentative Ferritory Fee Aggregate Development Quota

V/O Med Spa. AR FDD. April 18, 2024
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By:

Signature Signature
—— +—

Name (please print)

Name and Title
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[ DevelopmentSechedule

i MinimomNomber  MinimumNumberof ( Deleted Cells
Area Representative ' Development-Spa ( Deleted Cells
me d Agreement pere ; ; (Inserted Cells
S pa Schedule2 Franchise open-and in-operation :
Area Representative Territory ~ *Yereements {in-accordance with
signed during cach  the terms of cach
Fee, Aggregate Development ) .
PeriodQuota, Development Development Spa
and Development Schedule Period: Loeation Franchise
hin
Arca Representative
. i .
Development Period
as of the last day of
the-lastealendar
month for the
respective
f—T0 [ ]
f——TF0—} [ |
f——F0—} [ e
e e -
| mmmm— L & Amm——{ — ——1

Area Representative Territory Fee — The Area Representative Territory Fee, as such term is set forth and

defined in the Area Representative Agreement, is $

Aggregate Development Quota — The Aggregate Development Quota, as such term is set forth and defined

in the Area Representative Agreement, is

Development Unit Franchises.

Development Schedule — The Development Schedule, as such term is set forth and defined in the Area

Representative Agreement, is:

Development Schedule and Development Schedule Obligations

A

A

Development Period

Number of Development
Unit Franchise Agreements
signed during each respective
Development Period:

. ;
heﬁ“se‘?‘? tive represents a*:d &ﬁﬁ*;’ﬂs © “?ﬂeme*

Number of Development Unit Franchises open and

in operation in accordance with the terms of each

respective Development Unit Franchise Agreement
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within the Area Representative Territory during and
within each respective Development Period as of the
last day of the last calendar month for the respective
Development Period:
First Development Period L1
to
Second Development Period L1
to
Third Development Period L1
to
Fourth Development Period L1
to
Fifth Development Period L1
to
Sixth Development Period L1
to
Seventh Development Period L1
to
Eighth Development Period L1
to
Ninth Development Period L1
to
Tenth Development Period L1
to
Dated:
Franchisor: Area Representative:

VIO FRANCHISE GROUP, LLC

By:
Signature Signature

Name and Title

Name (please print)
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Area Representative Agreement

me d  Schedule 3
S P a Statement of Area Representative’s Owners

Area Representative represents that the following schedule is complete and accurately identifies Area

Representative’s Owners, Area Representative’s Managing Owner, and their respective ownership interests

in Area Representative. Defined terms shall have the meanings set forth in the Area Representative

Agreement between Franchisor and Area Representative.

If Area Representative is a Corporate Entity, Area Representative represents and affirms to Franchisor that the
following list identifies each and every Owner of Area Representative and their respective ownership interests.

Owner Name

Owner Address

Ownership Interest Percentage

MANAGING-OWNER:Name of
designated
Managing Owner:

Dated:

Franchisor:

VIO Eranehise-GreupFRANCHISE GROUP, LLC

Area Representative:

Signature Signature
Nate-(please-print)

Dated Dated
Signature
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V /U sra
AREA REPRESENTATIVE
By:
Signature Signature

Name and Title Name (please print)
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AR Owner Agreement and Guaranty
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V/O :::

AR OWNER AND-SPOUSE-AGREEMENT AND GUARANTY

This Area—RepresentativeAR Owner and—Speuse—Agreement and Individual—Guaranty (thethis
“Agreement”) is entered into 1nd1v1dually emered—m%e—by yeu—as—e&her—aﬂ—ewner—ef

each of the undersi gned

owners of Area chrcscntatlvc (dcﬁncd bclow) in

their personal capacity and in favor of VIO Franehis%@reaﬁ
EECsFRANCHISE GROUP, LLC, an Ohio Limited Liability Company and its successors and assigns,

upon the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement. In this Agreement, VIO Franchise
GroupFRANCHISE GROUP, LLC is referred to as “us™,” “our”.” or “we?;.” and each individual owner
that signs this Agreement is referred to as “you=.”

Recitals and Representations

WHEREAS, you-agree-thatArea Representative is (“Area
Representative”);

WHEREAS. we have developed a distinctive and proprietary system (the “System”) for the nen-medieal
development;-management and;-petentially;-the operation of a spa—{the=V/O Med Spa™) that offers and
provides retail skincare, cosmetic health and wellness medical spa products and services that include facials,
chemical skin peels, neurotoxin injectables, injectable dermal fillers, skin rejuvenation and tightening (e.g.,
microneedling, radio frequency microneedling, intense pulsed light therapy, plasma fibroblast, etc.) body
contouring (e.g., high-intensity focused electromagnetic stimulation, cryolipolysis, etc.), platelet-rich
plasma therapy treatments, facial and body lifting and smooth threads, wellness therapy (e.g., bioidentical
hormone replacement therapy, I'V hydration therapy, nutrition supplement injections, sexual wellness, etc.),
light therapy, and other cosmetic medical spa and spa related services and retail products that Franchisor
authorizes (the “Approved Spa-Products and Services”) under the Licensed Marks (defined below);) (each,

a “V/O Med Spa”);

WHEREAS, the-System-relates-to-and-incladesArea Representative has entered into a V/O Med Spa Area
Representative Agreement (“Area Representative Agreement”) for the development and operation of a-spa
locationfranchisedan area representative business (hereinafter referred-to-as-the“SpaTecationthe “Area
Representative Business™) that provides franchise sales, franchise development, franchise marketing, and

franchisee training, and support services (the “AR Services”) on our behalf of an in connection with the
ales, development, tralnlng and support of V/O Med Spa franchises (eaeh a “Unit Franchise™);—that
: h ifications-an i 3 al law ”) located w1th1n or

under—th%]:}eensed—Marksset forth in the Area Representatlve Agreement and in accordance w1th the

requirements of the System:-orArea Representative Agreement and our System (defined below);
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WHEREAS, Asas part of the System, for-qualified-arearepresentatives-pursuant-to-the-terms-of our-area
representative-agreement-we have developed systems and procedures for the marketing and promotion of
SpalLecationFranchise-opportunitiesUnit Franchises and the training and operational support servieesforof
franchlsees of Spa%eeaﬁeﬂ%mmh%e&&h%eﬂ%eﬂ%—%dﬂﬁeﬂm&mﬁepre@eﬂﬂtﬂ%&%emed

Unit Franchises, and the term “System”
further 1ncludes our de51gnated procedures spec1ﬁcat10ns marketing plans, development strategies,
equipment-and, supplies, confidential information, and trade secrets for the development and operation of
a—busmessan Area Representative Business that offers and provides the AR Services—(an—Area

WHEREAS, you represent-that-you-have received and-have thoroughly reviewed the completed Area
Representative Agreement, including the completed Schedules and Exhibits attached thereteto the Area
Representative Agreement;

WHEREAS, we have recommended that you thoroughly review the Area Representative Agreement, this
Agreement, and all exhibits and schedules to the Area Representative Agreement with ayour individual

lawyer-seleetedand-hired-byvon;

WHEREAS, you represent to-us-that you are either:(a)-an Owner (defined below) of Area Representative
suchand that you own or control a legal, equitable or beneficial ownership or equity interest in Area
Representative and/or otherwise meet the deﬁnltlon of an “Owner” as set forth in this Agreement; and/or

WHEREAS, you acknowledge that this Agreement will-applyapplies to you individually, jointly and
severally with all ethersother individuals who sign this Agreement ¢including, if this Agreement is signed

in counterparts or electronically ameng-ether Owners-and-Speuses);by others;

WHEREAS, you acknowledge that this Agreement, among other things, personally obligates you to
guarantee Area Representative’s obligations to us and obligates you to brand protection, confidentiality
and, non-competition, and non-solicit restrictions and covenants, and-that you enter into this Agreement to
induce us to enter into the Area Representative Agreement with Area Representative; and

WHEREAS, you acknowledge that we are relying on this Agreement, and-that without this Agreement we
would not have entered into, and/or would not be simultaneously entering into, the Area Representative
Agreement with Area Representative.
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NOW THEREFORE, to induce us to enter into the Area Representative Agreement and as consideration to
us for entering into the Area Representative Agreement with Area Representative, and_for other
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which you acknowledge, you agree as follows:

1. Recitals and Representations

You agree that the foregoing Recitals and Representations are true and accurate and constitute a material
part of this Agreement and are hereby incorporated into the main body of this Agreement.

2. Definitions
Supplementing the terms and definitions contained in the Recitals and Representations:

“Approved Spa-Products and Services” shall have the meaning defined in the “Recitals” section of this
Agreement and shall further refer to and mean those products and services that we authorize for sale
byV/O Med Spas : 0 a
Serviees:. We shall excluswely de51gnate and determme the ApprovedSpa Products and Serv1ces and
we, in our Reasonable Business Judgrnent may change modrfy, reduce or supplernent the Approved Spa
g esProducts and Services of
the Area Representatlve Busmess The Operatlons Manual sub]ect to chan;,es that we may make from
time to time and our right to change and modify the Approved Products and Services, shall designate the
Approved Products and Services.

“AR Unit Franchisee” shall refer to and mean a Unit Franchisee that, during the Initial Term of the Area
Representative Agreement enters into a Unit Franchise Agreement with us where: (a) the Unit Franchise
Agreement is executed by us and the Unit Franchisee: (b) all initial fees have been paid and released to
us; (¢) the Unit Franchise Agreement provides for the development and operation of a Unit Franchise
physically located within the Area Representative Territory during the Initial Term of the Area
Representative Agreement; and (d) the Unit Franchisee develops and opens a Unit Franchise from an
authorized location within the Area Representative Territory in accordance with the terms of the Unit
Franchise Agreement.

“Area Representative Business” shall have the meaning set forth in the Recitals.

“Area Representative Territory” refers to and means the geographic area identified and described in
Sehedule1-to-the Area Representative Agreement.

“Business Management System” refers to and means the software, internet, web based and/or cloud-
based system-or-systems, and-eustomerpoint of sale systems, and franchisee relationship management

system—er—systems as same may be—individually, or collectively, by designated by us, in our
d-rserc—treﬂRcasonablc Busmcss Judgmcnt as berng requrred for use g i s

SS;5

“Business Management System Data” refers to and means the forms, data, tools, customer information,
inventeryfranchisee information, franchisee candidate information, sales, and salesother information that:

3
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(a) is pre-populated or entered into the Business Management System-utitized-; (b) is entered by Area

Representative;—(b)-is—entered{whether by—us or Area—Representative)a Unit Franchisee into theany
Business Management System; and/or (c) is recorded, stored and/or maintained by—theBusiness

Management-Systesr-in connection with the managementand-operations—of-the-Area Representative

Business or any underlying V/O Med Spa Business.

“Competitive Business” refers to and means any business that is the same as or similar to: (a) a Spa; (b)
a Spa Location Franchise; and/or (c) the Area Representative Business as it relates franchise sales,
franchisee training, and/or franchisee support related to Spa Location franehisesFranchises and other spas
and/or medical-medi-spas that are similar to Spa Location Franchises and/or Spas.

“Confidential Information” refers to and means all of our and/or our affiliatesaffiliates’ trade secrets,
methods, standards, techniques, procedures, data and information, as same may exist as of the Effective
Date of thisthe Area Representative Agreement and as same may be developed, modified and
supplemented in the future, constituting and comprising: (a) franchise sales processes, franchise sales
presentations, franchise sales projections, V/O Med Spa franchisee and prospective franchisee candidate
contacts, V/O Med Spa franchisee and prospective franchisee information, prospective franchisee lead
generation sources, V/O Med Spa franchisee and prospective franchisee surveys, V/O Med Spa franchisee
financial data; (b) methods, specifications, standards, policies, procedures, information, concepts,
programs and systems relating to the development, establishment, marketing, promotion and operation
of V/O Med Spas; (c) methods, specifications, standards, policies, procedures, information, concepts,
programs and systems relating to the development, establishment, marketing, promotion and operation

of the Area Representative Busrness (b}—metheés—seeerﬁeaﬂeﬂs,—staﬁdarés—pe&e&es—preeeé\ﬁes—

orffatton;,—€ConceptS;—progran Y S P 5 S 5 g5

Fmﬁehasescustomers customer lists, ema11 hsts database lists, product sales operatmg results ﬁnanc1a1
performance and other financial data of V/O Med Spas;Spa—tecationFEranchises; and/er the Area
Representative Business; (fe) customer lists and information related to V/O Med Spas, Spa-teeatienUnit
Franchises, and/er the Area Representative Business; (gf) Business Management System Data; (hg)
current and future information contained in the eperations-manualOperations Manual; (h) Know-How;
and (i) Knew-Hewifranchisee recruitment and marketing data, information, and plans respecting Unit
Franchisees, Unit Franchisee candidates, and the sale of Unit Franchises.

“Copyrights” refers to and means all works and materials for which we or any affiliate of ours has

secured common law or reglstered copyrlght protectlon—aﬂd—we—uﬂh%e—aﬂd%e&aﬂew—ﬁaﬁehﬁees—eﬁsie&

the—EﬁfeeH*e—Date—ea"—t-ms whether as of the Effectlve Date of the Area Representatlve Agreement or any

time in the future.

“Corporate Entity” refers to and means a corporation, limited liability company, partnership, or other
corperate legal entity that is not an individual person.

4
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“Digital Media” refers to and means any interactive or static eleetreniedigital document, application or
media that is connected to and/er-in-aany network-ef computers;servers-and/or-other-devices-linked by,
communications seftware;-part-of-thesystem, world wide web-(ineluding-but-netlimited-to-websites);
linked by-the-internet-or partof a-web-based, intranet, streaming service, application, seftware-application;
smaerher}%baseePappheaﬂewand/or social medla platform melﬂdmg—butuﬂeﬂﬂmted—teseelakmedﬁa

1dent1ﬁes reviews, promotes and/or relates in any way, to V/O Med Spas%p&[:eeat}eﬂﬁraﬂeh&ses the
Area Representative Business, the Licensed Marks, the System and/or us. Digital Media includes the

System Website and all other media and/or publications relating to the System that is digitally displayed
or transmitted.

“Effective Date” refers to the “Effective Date” of the Area Representative Agreement as the term
“Effective Date” is set forth and defined in the Area Representative Agreement. If, for any reason, the
Effective Date cannot be determined by reference to the Area Representative Agreement, then the
Effective Date shall be the date that you sign this Agreement.

“Immediate Family” refers to and means the spouse parent srbhng or parent of a person and any other
household member of hou ueh p W mita 8 such
person.

“Intellectual Property” refers to and means, individually and collectively, our Licensed Marks,
Copyrights, Know-How, and System.

“Know-How” refers to_and means our trade secrets and proprietary information relating to the
development, establishment, marketing, promotion and/or operation of a V/O Med Spa Business and/or
Area Representative Business, including, but-net-limited-tewithout limitation, methods, techniques,
reerpekspemﬁcatlons food preparatlon procedures, policies, marketing strategies, and information
reflected in, included in, comprising, and/or constituting a part of the System. Without hLmitation
telimiting the foregoing, Know-How shall further include information contained in the eperations
mantalOperations Manual and the Confidential Information.

“Licensed Marks” refersshall have the meaning set forth in the Recitals and shall further refer to and
means-sach-mean the trademarks, service marks, trademarks;-trade-dress;emblems, and indicia of origin

including the “V/O Med Spa” trademark. the V/O Med Spa logo Trade Dress and othe trade names,
service marks trademarks logos Sl o A

slogans and desr;,ns authorrzed by

us e%eur—aﬁﬁhatekm connection w1th the develepmeﬂt—and—eperatrmﬂrdentrﬁcatron of the System
V/O Med Spas, SpatecationFranchises;-and/or-otherwise-designatedand the Approved Products and
Services, provided that such trade names, trademarks, service marks, logos and designs are subject to

modification, replacement and discontinuance by us to-be-used-in—conformity—with-the-Systemin our

Reasonable Business Judgment.

“Operations Manual” refers to and means, individually and collectively, the manual(s) designated by
us and relating to the development and/or operations of an Area Representative Business, Spatecation
FEranchisesand/or Spas—inecludingbut net HmitedtoV/O Med Spas and/or Unit Franchises including.
without limitation, the policies, procedures and requirements for the development and operation of other
area representative business. The Operations Manual further refers to and means, individually and
collectively, the manual(s) designated by us and relating to the development and/or operations of V/O
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Med Spas including, without limitation, the policies, procedures and requirements for the development
and operation of AreaRepresentative Businesses—The-operations-manualV/O Med Spas. The Operations
Manual may consist of one or more volumes, handbooks, manuals, written materials, videos, electronic
media files, cloud/internet based list-service, intranet, internet based and accessed databases, computer
media, email, webinars and other materials as may be modified, added to, replaced or supplemented by
us from time to time in our diseretionReasonable Business Judgment, whether by way of supplements,
replacement pages, franchise bulletins, or other official pronouncements or means.

“Owner” refers to and means collectively, individually, and jointly: (a) the officers and directors of Area
Representative (including the officers and directors of any general partner of Area Representative) who
hold an ownership interest in Area Representative; (b) the managing member or manager of Area
Representative; if Area Representative is a limited liability company; and/or (c) all holders of a 5% or
more direct or indirect ownership interest in Area Representative and/or of any entity directly or indirectly
controlling Area Representative. Area Representative’s Owners are identified in Schedule 13 to the-Area
Representativethis Agreement. Area Representative’s Owners are identified in Schedule 3 to the Area
Representative Agreement. If, for any reason you are not identified in HemSchedule 3 to the Area
Representative Agreement, you nevertheless represent that you are either-an-Owner-or-the-Speuse-of an
Owner.

“Post-Term Restricted Period” refers to and means the 36 month period after the earliest to occur of

the following: (a) the expiration or termination of the Area Representative Agreement for any reason; or

(b) the date on which Area Representative Transfers the Area Representative Agreement to another
person.

“Prohibited Activities” refers to and means any or all of the following: (a) owning and/or having any
legal or equitable interest (whether as an individual proprietor, owner, partner, member or shareholder of
a Corporate Entity, or in any similar capacity) in a Competitive Business (other than owning an interest
of 3% or less in a publicly traded company that is a Competitive Business); (b) operating, managing,
funding, and/or performing services (whether as an employee, officer, director, manager, consultant,
representatlve agent and/or credltor or in any similar capacity) for a Competmve Business; {c—)&weﬁmg

attemptlng to_divert, Unit Franchlsees or prospectlve Unit Franchlsee candidates to another business
brokerage franchise system and/or business opportunity. You agree that if you were to engage in the
Prohibited Activities that such actions would be unfair, would constitute unfair competition, and would
cause harm to us, the System, Franchisees, and other Spa-AtreaRepresentativesarea representatives and
area representative business.
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“Reasonable Business Judgment” refers to, means and relates to any and all decisions, actions and
choices made by us concerning or relating to this Area Representative Agreement, the System, V/O Med
Spa’s and the Area Representative Business where we undertake or make such decision with the intention
of benefitting or acting in a way that could benefit the System including, as examples and without
limitation, enhancing the value of the Licensed Marks, increasing customer satisfaction, minimizing
potential customer confusion as to the Licensed Marks, determining designated territory markets,
minimizing potential customer confusion as to the location of V/O Med Spas. expanding brand awareness
of the Licensed Marks, implementing marketing and accounting control systems, approving products,
services, supplies and equipment. You agree that when a decision, determination, action and/or choice is
made by us in our Reasonable Business Judgment that such decision, determination, action or choice
made by us shall take precedence and prevail, even if other alternatives, determinations, actions and/or
choices are reasonable or arguably available and/or preferable. You agree that in connection with any
decision, determination, action and/or choice made by us in our Reasonable Business Judgment that: (a)
we possess a legitimate interest in seeking to maximize out profits; (b) we shall not be required to consider
your or Area Representative’s individual economic or business interests as compared to the overall
System; and (c) should we economically benefit from such decision, determination, action and/or choice
that such economic benefit to us shall not be relevant to demonstrating that we did not exercise reasonable
business judgment with regard to our obligations under the Area Representative Agreement and/or with
regard to the System. You agree that neither you, Area Representative and/or any third party, including,
without limitation, any third party acting as a trier of fact, shall substitute your, Area Representative’s or
such third party’s judgment for our Reasonable Business Judgment. You further agree that should you or
Area Representative challenge our Reasonable Business Judgment in any legal proceeding that you and/or
Area Representative shall possess the burden of demonstrating, by clear and convincing evidence, that
we failed to exercise our Reasonable Business Judgment.

“System” shall have the meaning set forth in the Recitals and, as to Area Representative, shall further
refer to and shall-further refer to-and-meansmean our standards, specifications, operating requirements,
and criteria respecting the development and operation of an Area Representative Business.

“System Website” refers to and means the web page and/or pages located on the world- wide web at the
www.viomedspa.com URE—(unifermresouree—ocator)—and shall further include all webpages and
subdomains relating to V/O Med Spas, SpaLeeationUnit Franchises, and/or the AreaRepresentative
Business:promotion, marketing and sale of Unit Franchises.

“Trade Dress” refers to and means the designs, images, marketing materials, packaging, branding and/or
branding images that we authorize and require Area Representative to use in connection with the
operation of the V/O Med Spas;-Spateeation and Unit Franchises,-and as may be revised and further
developed by us from time to time.
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b
“Transfer” refers to, means, and shall include, without limitation, the following, whether voluntary or

involuntary, conditional or unconditional, and/or direct or indirect: (a) an assignment, sale, gift,
conveyance, hypothecation, transfer, pledge, or sub-franchise; (b) the grant of a mortgage, charge, lien,
or security interest, including, without limitation, the grant of a collateral assignment; (¢) a merger,
consolidation, exchange of shares or other ownership interests, issuance of additional ownership interests

or securities representing or potentially representing ownership interests, or redemption of ownership
interests; and (d) a sale or exchange of voting interests or securities convertible to voting interests or an

agreement granting the right to exercise or control the exercise of the voting rights of any holder of
ownership interests or to control the operations or affairs of Area Representative.

“Unit Franchise” shall have the meaning defined in the Recitals section of this Agreement and refers to
each respective V/O Med Spa Business authorized for development and operation pursuant to a Unit
Franchise Agreement.

“Unit Franchise Agreement” shall refer to and mean our individual unit Franchise Agreement and/or
development agreement for a Unit Franchise as such agreements may or may not be designated and
determined by us from time to time, in our sole discretion, and as we may supplement, modify, and/or
amend in our sole discretion including, without limitation, supplementing, modifying, and/or amending
the form Franchise Agreements and all exhibits and schedules attached thereto, including exhibits, riders
collateral assignments of lease or sublease, and personal guarantees designated by us. We possess the
exclusive right to designate and determine the form of the Franchise Agreement and the terms thereto
and we, in our sole discretion, may modify and amend the material terms of the Franchise Agreement
including, without limitation, modification of franchise fees, royalty fees, brand development fund fees,
territories, and all other legal rights and obligations.

“Unit Franchisee” refers to and means any person that has been approved by us and has entered into,
and is a party to, a Unit Franchise Agreement with us.

“V/O Med Spa” shall have the meaning defined in the Recitals section of this Agreement and shall further
refers to all V/O Med Spas operating under the System and Licensed Marks, whether owned by us, our

affiliates, and/or our franchisees.

3. Additional Acknowledgments by You

In addition to the representations and acknowledgments contained in the Recitals and Representations;
above, andwhich are incorporated into this Agreement, you acknowledge and represent that:

(a) as of the Effective Date you are an Owner-and/oer-Speuse;

(b) that-you are signing this Agreement in your individual capacity, and-that you are bound to the
terms and conditions of this Agreement and irrespective of any change in your status as an Owner

ahdforSpose:
(c) in your capacity as an Owner of Area Representative-eras-the-Speuse-of an- Owner-of Area

Representative-that you have and will be gaining access to, among other things, the System and
Intellectual Property;
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(d) vouacknowledge that all of the components and aspects of the System and Intellectual
Property (both individually and as they relate to one another collectively) are critical to our success
as the franchisor of the System and to the overall System;

(e) you acknowledge that we need to protect the System and Intellectual property, and that
to do so, we require that you, in your individual capacity,te agree to the brand protection, non-

competition and other covenants and restrictions contained in this Agreement and that you
personally guarantee the financial and other obligations of Area Representative to us; and

(f) youacknowledgethat- the terms of this Agreement are fair and reasonable, and that-you
have elected, based on your own decision, to enter into this Agreement to induce us to enter into
the Area Representative Agreement with Area Representative.

4. Intellectual Property, Brand Protection and Non-Competition Covenants and Restrictions

(a) Know-How. You agree that: (i) you will not use the Know-How in any business or
capacity other than the Area Representative Business; (ii) you will maintain the confidentiality of
the Know-How at all times; (iii) you will not make unauthorized copies of documents containing
any Know-How; (iv) you will take such reasonable steps as we may ask of you from time to time
to prevent unauthorized use or disclosure of the Know-How; and (v) you will stop using the Know-
How immediately if you are no longer an Owner of Area Representative-eryourSpeuse-is-no-longer
an-Owner-of AreaRepresentativeas-applieable.. You will not use the Intellectual Property for any
purpose other than the development and operation of the Area Representative Business pursuant to
the terms of the Area Representative Agreement and eperations-manual-=Operations Manual. You
agree to assign to us or our designee, without charge, all rights to any Imprevementimprovement
to the System, V/O Med Spas, the Licensed Marks, and Unit Franchises developed by you,
including the right to grant sublicenses. If applicable law precludes you from assigning ownership
of any lmprevementsuch improvement to us, then such Imprevementimprovement shall be
perpetually licensed by you to us free of charge, with full rights to use, commercialize, and
sublicense the same.

(b)Nen-CompetitionDuring Franchise Relationship—  Subject to the terms and conditions of
ArtieleSection 5 of this Agreement; below, you represent;-acknewledge and agree that while you
are an Owner of Area Representative er-while-your Speuse-is-an-Ownerof AreaRepresentative(as
applieable)-that you will not engage in any Prohibited Activities. You acknowledge and agree that
this restriction is fair and reasonable, and that-if you did-engageengaged in a Prohibited Activity
that, then such actions would constitute acts of unfair competition and will irreparably harm us and
the System.

ey Non-Competition-After Franchise Relationship-—(c) You represent, acknowledge and agree
that during the Restricted Period you will not engage in any Prohibited Activities; provided,
however, that the Prohibited Activity relating to having an interest in a Competitive Business will
only apply with respect to a Competitive Business that is located within and/or relates;—in-any
way;provides competitive goods or services to customers/clients who are located within the
Restricted Territory. If you engage in any Prohibited Activities during the Restricted Period within
the Restricted Territory, then you agree that your Restricted Period will be extended by the period
of time during which you were engaging in the prohibited activity (any such extension of time will
not be construed as a waiver of your breach or otherwise impair any of our rights or remedies
relating to your breach). You acknowledge and agree that this restriction is fair and reasonable, and
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that if you did-engageengaged in a Prohibited Activity-that, then such actions would constitute acts
of unfair competition and will irreparably harm us and the System.

(d) Confidentiality Restrictions. You_represent, acknowledge and agree that, at all times
you: (i) shall not use the Confidential Information in any business or capacity other than the Area
Representative Business; (ii) shall maintain the confidentiality of the Confidential Information;
(iii) shall not make unauthorized copies of documents containing any Confidential Information;
(iv) shall take such reasonable steps as we may ask of you and/or Area Representative from time
to time to prevent unauthorized use or disclosure of the Confidential Information; (v) shall
immediately and permanently stop using the Confidential Information upon the expiration or
termination of the Area Representative Agreement; (vi) shall immediately and permanently stop
using the Confidential Information if you are no longer an Owner of Area Representative-and/or
the-Speuse-of-an-Owner; (vii) shall immediately and permanently stop using the Confidential
Information upon Area Representative’s Transfer of the Area Representative Agreement; and (viii)
shall not disclose the Confidential Information to any third party person except in a legal proceeding
pursuant to an order of a court of competent jurisdiction and after affording us no less than 15
business days prior notice and an opportunity for us, at our election, to appear in such action.

(e)-tmmedinteFamibhMembers You agreeacknowledge that should you circumvent the
purpose and protections (due to us) of this Agreement by disclosing Know-How to an immediate
family-memberlmmediate Family Member (i.e., parent, sibling, child, or grandchild) we-wilt and
the System will be irreparably harmed. You acknowledge that if you did disclose the Know-How
to an immediate—family—memberlmmediate Family Member and your immediate—family
memberlmmediate Family Member used the Know-How to engage in activities that, for you,
qualify as Prohibited Activities as defined above, that we and the System will be irreparably
harmed. You agree that as between you and us that you are in a better position to know if you
permitted and/or prevideprovided an immediate-family-memberlmmediate Family Member with
access to the Know-How. Therefore, you agree that you will be presumed to have violated the terms
of this Agreement if any member of your immediatefamilylmmediate Family (i) engages in any
Prohibited Activities during any period of time during which you are prohibited from engaging in
the Prohibited Activities or (ii) uses or discloses the Know-How. However, you may rebut this
presumption by providing evidence conclusively demonstrating that you did not disclose the Know-
How, nor permit disclosure of the Know-How to, the family-memberlmmediate Family Member.

(f)-Reasenableness-of Covenants-and Restrietions—You_ You acknowledge and agree that: (i) the
terms of this Agreement are reasonable both in time and in-scope of geographic area; and (ii) you
have sufficient resources-asnd, business experience, and opportunities to earn an adequate living
while complying with the terms of this Agreement. YOU WAIVE ANY RIGHT TO CHALLENGE THE
TERMS OF THIS AGREEMENT AS BEING OVERLY BROAD, UNREASONABLE OR OTHERWISE
UNENFORCEABLE. Although you and we both believe that the covenants in this Agreement are
reasonable in terms of scope, duration and geographic arearea, we may at any time unilaterally

modify the terms of this AstieleSection 4—nteleetual Property; BrandProtection—andNon-
Competition—Covenants—and Restrietions) by limiting the scope of the Prohibited Activities,

narrowing the definition of a Competitive Business, shortening the duration of the Restricted
Period, reducing the geographic scope of the Restricted Territory, and/or reducing the scope of any
other covenant imposed upon you under this AstieleSection 4 to ensure that the terms and covenants
are enforceable under applicable law.

(g)Breach—_ You agree that failure to comply with these-Asticle 4-Intellectual Property; Brand
Protectionthe terms, conditions, restrictions, and Nen-Cempetition—Ceovenants—anéd
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Restrietionscovenants set forth in this Section 4 will cause irreparable harm to us, Franchisees,
and/or other V/O Med Spa franchiseesarea representatives for which there is no adequate remedy
at law. Therefore, you agree that any violation of these covenants will entitle us to injunctive relief.
You agree that we may apply for such injunctive relief, without bond, but upon due notice, in
addition to such further and other relief as may be available at law or in equity-erlaw, and the sole
remedy of yours, in the event of the entry of such injunction, will be the dissolution of such
injunction, #-warranted;,—apon-hearing—duly-held(and all claims for damages by reason of the
wrongful issuance of any such injunction being expressly waived hereby). by you. If a court
requires the filing of a bond notwithstanding the preceding sentence, the parties agree that the
amount of the bond shall not exceed $1,000. None of the remedies available to us under this
ArtieleSection 4 are exclusive of any other remedies, but may be combined with others under this
Agreement, er-at law, or in equity, including injunctive relief, specific performance, and recovery
of monetary damages.

5. Transfer Restrictions and Non-Competition Covenants and Restrictions,

Notwithstanding anything contained in this Agreement to the contrary, you expressty-acknowledge and
agree that if you are an Owner, and/er-the-Speuse—of-an—Owner—that, prior to Transferring;—as an
Owner;Owner’s equity and/or ownership interests in Area Representative that, among other things, Area
Representative must notify us and obtain our written consent. Likewise, you acknowledge and agree that
under the Area Representative Agreement that prior to Area Representative’s Transfer of the Area
Representative Agreement, among other things, Area Representative must notify us and obtain our written
consent. For our protection and to prevent the subversion of the non-competition covenants contained in
AtrtieleSection 4 of this Agreement and, to induce us to enter into the Area Representative Agreement with
Area Representative, you agree, that:

(a)-___if you are an Owner, should Area Representative fail to properly and timely notify us in
writing of the proposed Transfer of your equity and/or ownership interests in Area Representative
and/or should Area Representative; fail to obtain our consent to the proposed Transfer of your
equity and/or ownership interests in Area Representative (which we may either reject or approve,
in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Area Representative Agreement), you shall
remain subject to the non-competition covenants contained in AttieleSection 4 of this Agreement
and irrespective of any purported and/or actual Transfer in violation of the terms and conditions of
the Area Representative Agreement;
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(- youare-the-Spouse-of-an-Owner—(b) should Area Representative fail to properly and

timely notify us in writing of the proposed Transfer of the Area Representative Agreement to a
third party person and/or should Area Representative; fail to obtain our consent to the proposed
Transfer of the Area Representative Agreement to a third party (which we may either reject or
approve; in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Area Representative Agreement), you
shall remain subject to the non-competition covenants contained in AstieleSection 4 of this

Agreement and irrespective of any purported and/or actual Transfer in violation of the terms and
conditions of the Area Representative Agreement; and

(c) should Area Representative fail to properly and timely notify us in writing of the proposed
Transfer of the Area Representative Agreement to a third party and/or should Area Representative
fail to obtain our consent to the proposed Transfer of the Area Representative Agreement to a third
party (which we may either reject or approve in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
Area Representative Agreement), you shall remain subject to the non-competition covenants
contained in Section 4 of this Agreement and irrespective of any purported and/or actual Transfer
in violation of the terms and conditions of the Area Representative Agreement.

Personal Guaranty of Area Representative Agreement and Financial Obligations.

To secure Area Representative’s financial obligations under the Area Representative Agreement and all
ancillary agreements _executed by Area Representative in connection with the Area Representative
Agreement, including, without limitation, any agreement for the purchase of goods or services from us or
an affiliate of ours (collectively, the “Ancillary Agreements™)”), you individually, jointly and severally, and
personally and unconditionally:

(a) __ guarantee to us and our successor and assigns; that Area Representative shall punctually
satisfy and pay all of Area Representative’s payment and other obligations under the Area
Representative Agreement;

(b) ___ guarantee to us and our successor and assigns; that Area Representative shall punctually
satisfy and pay all of Area Representative’s payment and other obligations under the Atea

Representative- Agreement-and-all-Ancillary Agreements;

(c)- agree, at all times, to be personally bound by, and personally liable for, each and every fee,
payment and monetary obligation due from Area Representative to us pursuant to the terms of the
Area Representative Agreement;

(d) agree, at all times, to be personally bound by, and personally liable for, each and every fee,
payment and monetary obligation due from Area Representative to us and/or our affiliates under

the AreaRepresentative-Agreement-and-all-Ancillary Agreements;

()e) do, at all times, hereby personally guarantee payment of each and every fee, payment and
monetary obligation due, or that may become duedues, from Area Representative to us pursuant to

the terms of the Area Representative Agreement; and al-Aneillary Agreements;-and
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(eyf) do, at all times, hereby personally guarantee AreaRepresentative’s-performaneepayment
of each-and-every-term and eondition-of theevery fee, payment and monetary obligation due or that

may become due from Area Representative Agreement-and-alto us pursuant to the terms of the
Ancillary Agreements;-and.

You waive: (a) acceptance and notice of acceptance by us of the foregoing undertakings; (b) notice of
demand for payment of any indebtedness guaranteed; (c) protest and notice of default to any party or person
with respect to the indebtedness guaranteed; (d) any right you may have to require that an action be brought
against Area Representative or any other person as a condition of liability; and (e) the defense of the statute
of limitations in any action hereunder or for the collection of any indebtedness hereby guaranteed.

You agree that: (a) your direct and immediate liability under this guarantyAgreement shall be joint and
several with Area Representative and all other signatories to this Agreement; (b) you will render any
payment required under the Area Representative Agreement and the Ancillary Agreements upon demand
if Area Representative fails or refuses punctually to do so; (c) your liability shall not be contingent or
conditioned upon pursuit by us of any remedies against Area Representative or any other person; and
(d) liability shall not be diminished, relieved or otherwise affected by any extension of time, credit or other
indulgence that we may grant to Area Representative or to any other person, including the acceptance of
any partial payment or performance, or the compromise or release of any claims, none of which shall in
any way modify or amend this guaranteeAgreement, which shall be continuing and irrevocable during the
term of each of the Area Representative Agreement and the Ancillary Agreements and following the
termination, expiration or Transfer of each of the Area Representative Agreement and the Ancillary
Agreements to the extent any financial obligations under any such Area Representative Agreement and
Ancillary Agreements survive such termination, expiration or Transfer. This guarantyAgreement will
continue unchanged by the occurrence of any bankruptcy with respect to Area Representative or any
assignee or successor of Area Representative or by any abandonment of one or more of the Area
Representative Agreement and/or and Ancillary Agreements by a trustee of Area Representative. Neither
your obligation to make payment in accordance with the terms of this undertaking nor any remedy for
enforcement shall be impaired, modified, changed, released or limited in any manner whatsoever by any
impairment, modification, change, release or limitation of the liability of Area Representative or its estate
in bankruptcy or of any remedy for enforcement, resulting from the operation of any present or future
provision of the U-S:United States Bankruptcy Act or other statute, or from the decision of any court or
agency.

7. Arbitration, Consent to Jurisdiction and Venue, and Cross-Default.

Any dispute between the parties relating to this Agreement shall be brought in accordance with the dispute
resolution procedures set forth in the FranchiseArea Representative Agreement. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, if any of the dispute resolution procedures set forth in the Franchise Areca Representative Agreement
conflict with any of the terms of this Agreement, the terms of this Agreement shall prevail. Without limitation

to the foregoing, you agree that:

(a) Arbitration — Except, at our option, as to any claims or disputes related to or concerning a
breach of this Agreement by you that may entitle us to the award of injunctive relief, you agree that
any and all disputes, controversies, and claims, arising from and/or related to this Agreement, shall
be submitted to the American Arbitration Association (“AAA”) for binding arbitration. Arbitration
shall be conducted by one arbitrator in accordance with the AAA’s then current rules for
commercial disputes, except as may be otherwise required in this Agreement. All arbitration
proceedings shall be conducted in Cuyahoga County, Ohio or, if suitable AAA facilities are not
available in Cuyahoga County, Ohio then at a suitable AAA location selected by the arbitrator that
is located closest to Cuyahoga County, Ohio.
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In connection with binding arbitration, you agree that:

@) All matters relating to arbitration, will be governed by the United States Federal
Arbitration Act, except as expressly or otherwise set forth in this Agreement;

(i1) - The arbitration hearing shall be conducted within 180 days of the demand for
arbitration;

(iii)—— The arbitrator shall render written findings of fact and conclusions of law;

(iv)—— Except as may be otherwise required and/or prohibited by this Agreement, the
arbitrator has the right to award or include in his or her award any relief that he or she
determines to be proper, including monetary damages, interest on unpaid sums, specific
performance, injunctive relief, attorneys’ fees, and costs and expenses as allowable under
this Agreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, under no circumstance shall the Arbitrator
be authorized to award or declare the Licensed Marks to be generic or invalid; and

(v) -Judgment upon the arbitrator’s award may be entered in any court of competent
jurisdiction.
(b) Consent to Jurisdiction and Venue — You agree that any judicial action or legal

proceeding must be brought in a court of competent jurisdiction located within the State of
Ohio and within Cuyahoga County or the county closest to Cuyahoga County. You do hereby
irrevocably consent to and waive any objection to such jurisdiction or venue. Without
limitation to the foregoing and notwithstanding same, you agree that we, at our election, -may
bring any legal action or proceeding seeking a temporary restraining order, preliminary
injunction, or any action seeking our enforcement of an arbitration award or any judicial
decision in the federal or state court located in the county and state where you reside.

(c) Acknowledgment as to Cross-Default — You acknowledge and agree that a breach of this
Agreement by you shall constitute a material event of default under the EranchiseArea
Representative Agreement, permitting us, among other things, to terminate the FranchiseArca
Representative Agreement in accordance with the terms thereof.

8. Miscellaneous

(a) If either party-hireswe or you hire an attorney or files suit-againstthe-other party-in relating

to and alleging a breach of this Agreement, the losing party agrees to pay the prevailing party’s
reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs incurred in connection with such breach.

(b)- This Agreement will be governed by, construed and enforced under the laws of the State
of Ohio and the courts in that state shall have exclusive jurisdiction over any legal proceedings
arising out of this Agreement.

(c)- Any claim, defense or cause of action that you may have against us or-against Area
Representative, regardless of cause or origin, cannot be used as a defense against our enforcement
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of this Agreement.

(d)-___ Each section of this Agreement, including each subsection and portion thereof, is severable.
In the event that any section, subsection or portion of this Agreement is unenforceable, it shall not
affect the enforceability of any other section, subsection or portion;—and-each. Each party to this
Agreement agrees that the court may impose such limitations on the terms of this Agreement as it
deems in its discretion necessary to make such terms reasonable in scope, duration and geographic
area.

(e)-____You agree that we may deliver to you any notice or other communication contemplated by
this Agreement in the same manner and to the same address listed in the notice provisions of the
Area Representative Agreement and any such delivery shall be deemed effective for purposes of
this Agreement. You may change the address to which notices must be sent by sending us a written
notice requesting such change, which notice shall be delivered in the manner and to the address
listed in the Area Representative Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the undersigned has executed this AR Owner Agreement and Guaranty
as of the date or dates set forth below.

Owner-/-Sp : Owner
Speuser——:
Signature Signature
Printed Name and Date Printed Name and Date
15
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me d
S pa

Signature-of Owner/SpeuseAreca Representative

Agreement
Exhibit 2

CONFIDENTIALITY AGREEMENT
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THIS EXHIBIT IS FOR PURPOSES ONLY AS A SAMPLE FROM A CONFIDENTIALITY AGREEMENT THAT FRANCHISOR MAY APPROVE FOR USE
BY AREA REPRESENTATIVE — BEFORE USING WITH AN EMPLOYEE OR INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR, AREA REPRESENTATIVE SHOULD
HAVE THIS AGREEMENT REVIEWED AND APPROVED BY AN INDEPENDENT ATTORNEY HIRED BY AREA REPRESENTATIVE]

VIO -Franchise-Group EC FDD+H-7-4
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Confidentiality Agreement

This Confidentiality Agreement (the “Agreement”) is entered intemade this day of
(the “Effective Date”) by the undersigned individual (“you”) in favor of:

il SN 4 B

LIRS 5995

and its successors and assigns (“us”, “our?”, or “we>)”), upon the terms and

conditions set forth below.

Recitals and Representations

WHEREAS, we are-own and operate, pursuant to a license granted to us by VIO FRANCHISE GROUP, LLC
an area representative business (the ewners—ef-a—licensedV/O-Med-Spa—"Area Representative Business
thereinafter”) wherein, as an independent contractor, we provide franchise marketing, franchise development
and franchisee training and support services in connection w1th the sale development and operations of V/O

Med Spas (each referred to as th
and opcerate as a franchisce:"Unit Franchlse )

WHEREAS, you are or are about to be an employee, independent contractor, officer and/or director of a-V/O

Med-Spaour Area Representative Business-that-is-independently-owned-and-operated-by-us;

WHEREAS. this Agreement is not an employment agreement;

WHEREAS, in the course of your employment, independent contractor relationship, and/or association with us,
you may gain access to Confidential Information (defined below in this Agreement)), and you understand and
agree that it is necessary for us to protect the Confidential Information and for the Confidential Information to
remain confidential;

WHEREAS, our franchisor, VIO Eranchise-GreupFRANCHISE GROUP, LLC (“Franchisor”™), is not a party to

this agreementAgreement, and Franchisor does not own, operate, or manage the V/O—Med-Spa—Area
Representative Business, but Franchisor is an intended third party beneficiary of this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, you understand and agree that this Agreement is not an employment agreement, and this Agreement
is only a confidentiality agreement in connection with information, materials, and access that may be provided
to you in connection with the ¥/O-Med-Spa-Area Representative Business.

NOW THEREFORE, you acknowledge and agree as follows:

1.- Recitals and Representations. You agree that the foregoing Recitals and Representations are true and
accurate and shall constitute a part of this Agreement and are hereby incorporated into the main body of this
Agreement.

2. Definitions. For purposes of this Agreement, the following terms have the meanings given to them

below:
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“Approved Products and Services” means those Franchisor authorized and designated activities
respecting the marketing and promotion of V/O Med Spa franchises and further refers to and means
products and services that Franchisor authorizes for sale by spas. Franchisor shall exclusively designate
and determine the Approved Products and Services, and Franchisor may change, modify, reduce or

supplement the Approved Products and Services. The Operations Manual, subject to changes that
Franchisor may make from time to time and Franchisor’s right to change and modify the Approved

Products and Services, shall designate the Approved Products and Services.

“Business Management System” refers-to-and-means the software-and/er, internet-, web based and/or
cloud based system and/or systems, peint—of-sale—system—or—systems—and customer relationship
management system or systems as use&u%eemee%ﬂ%%hﬂa&epeﬁaﬁeﬂ&eﬁth%\#@%%ed%p&same

may be individually or collectively designated by us or Franchisor as being required for use in the Area
Representative Business. Without limiting the foregoing, the Business Management System may include
web based, private server based, network based, and/or cloud-based systems.

REMAINDER-OF PAGEINTFENHONALLY EEFT BEANK]

“Business Management System Data” refers—te—and—means the forms, data, tools, customer
information, inventory and sales information;-and-other-information that: (a) is pre-populated or entered
into and/er-maintained-en-the Business Management System utilized; (b) is entered into the Business
Management System; and/or (c) is recorded, stored and/or maintained by the Business Management
System in connection with the management and operations of the V/O-Med-Spa-Area Representative
Business.

“ . ISl

: ic“Confidential Information” means all
of our, our affiliates’, and Franchisor’s trade secrets methods, standards, techniques, procedures, data
and information, as same may exist as of the Effective Date and as same may be developed, modified
and supplemented in the future, constituting and comprising: (a) franchise sales processes, franchise
sales presentations, franchise sales projections, V/O Med Spa franchisee and prospective franchisee
candidate contacts, V/O Med Spa franchisee and prospective franchisee information, prospective
franchisee lead generation sources, V/O Med Spa franchisee and prospective franchisee surveys, V/O
Med Spa franchisee financial data; (b) methods, specifications, standards, policies, procedures,
information, concepts, programs and systems relating to the development, establishment, marketing,
promotion and operation of the V/O-Med-Spa-AreaRepresentative Business:(bV/O Med Spa and/or the
Area Representative Business: (¢) information concerning consumer preferences for services, products,
materials and supplies used or sold by, and specifications for and knowledge of suppliers of certain
materials, equipment, products, supplies and procedures used or sold by V/O Med Spa; (d) information
concerning customers, customer lists, email lists, database lists, product sales, operating results,
financial performance and other financial data of the-V/O Med Spa-Business:(¢; (e) customer lists and
information related to the-V/O Med Spa _and the Area Representative Business; (éf) Business
Management System Data; (eg) current and future 1nformat10n contalned in the %Meé%p&epemﬂeﬂs

pfeduetieﬂ,—eeekmg; eratlons Manual h Know-l—low 1nformat10n concermn franchlse and

y v paprospective
franchlsee consumer preferences for Umt F ranchlses and spec1ﬁcat10ns for and knowledge of suppliers
of certain materials, franchise sales marketing strategies, budgets, marketing channels, sales data; and
(j) information concerning franchisees of Unit Franchises, prospective franchisees of Unit Franchises,

email lists, database lists, product sales, operating results, financial performance and other financial data
of franchisees or prospective franchisees of Unit Franchises and/or the Area Representative Business.
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“Digital Media” refers-to-and-means any interactive or static eleetroniedigital document, application or

media that is connected to and/or in a network of computers and/or other devices linked by communications
software, part of the world wide web (including, but not limited to;-www-viemedspa-com; websites), linked

by the internet or part of a web based application, software application, smart phone application or social
media platforms—and—appheationsplatform such as Facebook, LinkedIn, Twitter, Pinterest, Instagram,
SnapChat, and YouTube, and werld-wide-web-and-internet based directories and local directories that refers,
references, identifies, reviews, promotes and/or relates, in any way, to-the, V/O Med SpaSpas, the Area

Representative Business-or-other V/O-Med-SpaBusiness:

. the System and/or Franchlsor Digital Medra furthe
includes the System Website, and all other media and/or publications relating to the System that is

displayed and/or transmitted digitally.

Marks” means the trademarks service marks emblems and mdlcla of origin, mcludmg the “V/O Med

Spa” trademark, the V/O Med Spa logo, Trade Dress, and other trade names, service marks, trademarks,
logos, slogans and designs authorized by Franchisor in connection with the identification of the System,
V/O Med Spas, and the Approved Products and Services, provided that such trade names, trademarks,
service marks, logos and designs are subject to modification, replacement and discontinuance by
Franchisor.

“Operations Manual” means, individually and collectively, the manual(s) designated by Franchisor or
us and relating to the development and/or operations of an Area Representative Business, and/or V/O
Med Spas including, without limitation, the policies, procedures and requirements for the development
and operation of Area Representative Business. The Operations Manual further refers to and means
individually and collectively, the manual(s) designated by Franchisor or us and relating to the
development and/or operations of V/O Med Spas. The Operations Manual may consist of one or more
volumes, handbooks, manuals, written materials, videovideos, electronic media files, cloud/internet
based list-service, intra-netintranet, internet based and accessed databases, computer media, email,
webinars and other materials as may be modified, added to, replaced or supplemented-- by us from time
to time by Franchisor or us, whether by way of supplements, replacement pages, franchise bulletins, or

other official pronouncements or means.

“ i

“System” means specifications, systems, and
requirements designated for the marketing, promotion and sale of V/O Med Spa franchises and the
specifications, systems, and requirements designated for the establishment, development and operation

of V/O Med Spas.

“Trade Dress” means the designs, images, marketing materials, packaging, branding and/or branding
images usedthat Franchisor authorizes and requires the Area Representative Business to use in
connection with the operation of the-V/O Med Spa Businessand Unit Franchises, as may be revised and

further developed by Franchisor from time to time.

“Unit Franchise” shall have the meaning defined in the Recitals section of this Agreement.

Your Access to Confidential Information. In addition to the representations and acknowledgments

contained in the Recitals and Representations, above, you acknowledge and represent that in your capacity as
an employee, independent contractor, officer and/or director of the V/O-Med-Spa-Area Representative Business

3
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that you will be gaining access to, among other things, the Confidential Information. You acknowledge that the
terms of this Agreement are fair and reasonable.

4. Protection of the Confidential Information. You agree that: (i) you will not use the Confidential
Information in any business or capacity other than the V/O-Med-Spa-Area Representative Business; (ii) you will
maintain the confidentiality of the Confidential Information at all times; (iii) you will not make unauthorized
copies of documents containing the Confidential Information; (iv) you will take such reasonable steps as the-we
may ask of you from time to time to prevent unauthorized use or disclosure of the Confidential Information; and
(v) you will stop using the Confidential Information immediately at our request or demand. You will not use the
Confidential Information for any purpose other than for the performance of your duties on behalf of us and in
accordance with the scope of your work with us.

5.___ Reasonableness of Covenants and Restrictions. You agree that the terms of this Agreement are
reasonable and fair, and-that you have sufficient resources and business experience and opportunities to earn an
adequate living while complying with the terms of this Agreement. You hereby waive any right to challenge
the terms of this Agreement as being overly broad, unreasonable or otherwise unenforceable.

6. Breach. You agree that failure to comply with the terms of this Agreement will cause irreparable harm
to us-and-te-eur-franchisor V1O-Eranehise-Group; EEC, Franchisor, the System, the Licensed Marks, and other
V/O Med Spa franchisees for which there is no adequate remedy at law. Therefore, you agree that any violation
of these covenants will entitle us or eurFranchisor VIO-Franchise-Group, EC-to injunctive relief. You agree
that we and/or eurFranchisor-Vie-Franehise-Group;1--C may apply for such injunctive relief, without bond,

but upon due notice, in addition to such further and other relief as may be available at equity or law, and the sole
remedy of yours, in the event of the entry of such injunction, will be the dissolution of such injunction, if
warranted, upon a hearing duly held (all claims for damages by reason of the wrongful issuance of any such
injunction being expressly waived hereby). If a court requires the filing of a bond notwithstanding the preceding
sentence, then you agree that the amount of the bond shall not exceed $1,000. None of the remedies available to
us under this AstieleSection 6 are exclusive of any other, but may be combined with others under this Agreement,
or at law or in equity, including injunctive relief, specific performance and recovery of monetary damages.

7. Miscellaneous.

(a) _If we hire an attorney or files suit against you because you have breached this Agreement and
if we prevail in such lawsuit, you agree to pay the reasonable attorney fees and costs that we incur.

(b) Each section of this Agreement, including each subsection and portion thereof, is severable. In the
event that any section, subsection or portion of this Agreement is unenforceable, it shall not affect the
enforceability of any other section, subsection or portion; and each party to this Agreement agrees that
the court may impose such limitations on the terms of this Agreement as it deems in its discretion
necessary to make such terms reasonable in scope, duration and geographic area.

(¢) YOU ACKNOWLEDGE THAT THIS IS NOT AN EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT AND
THAT THERE IS NOT, AND SHALL NEVER BE, AN EMPLOYER/EMPLOYEE
RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN YOU AND FRANCHISOR. YOUR RELATIONSHIP WITH US
(INCLUDING YOUR EMPLOYMENT RELATIONSHIP, THE TERMS OF YOUR
EMPLOYMENT AND THE CREATION AND/OR TERMINATION OF SUCH
EMPLOYMENT RELATIONSHIP) IS AND SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY CONTROLLED
BETWEEN YOU AND US. FRANCHISOR IS NOT A JOINT EMPLOYER, AND THERE IS
NO EMPLOYMENT RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN YOU AND FRANCHISOR.
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(d) YOU ACKNOWLEDGE AND AGREE THAT OUR-FRANCHISOR;MO-FRANCHISE
GROUP;LLG; IS NOT A PARTY TO THIS AGREEMENT, BUT_FRANCHISOR IS AN
INTENDED THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARY OF THIS AGREEMENT.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each-ofthe undersigned has-executed this Agreement as of the date-or
dates-set-forth-belewEffective Date.

Printed Name
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Individual Signature-of Restricted Party
FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

EXHIBIT F
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ERANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
EXHIBITFF
HIST-OE-AREA REPRESENTATIVES

(as of December 31, 2023)
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AREA REPRESENTATIVES

farol-Pecember 312022
State Business Area Area Representative Phone Number
Cco The State of Colorado John & Nina Newcomb 720-560-7201
CT The State of Connecticut Geoff Schneider & Steve Volkwyn 917-862-1367
FL Orlando, Florida Suresh Vanukuru 919-649-4193
Tampa, Florida David Shuck* 656-208-0120
IN The State of Indiana Romeo Radulici & Sachin Patel 440-503-7110
MA The State of Massachusetts Kal Guallappali & Paul Faucher* 260-460-7290
MI Detroit Metro, Michigan Patrick Tomina and Jennifer Gully 248-866-4522
MD Central & Southern Maryland Adam Greenburg and Tom Cook 410-497-8909
NH The State of New Hampshire Kal Guallappali & Paul Faucher* 260-460-7290
NJ Northern New Jersey Niraj & Bansari Shah 201-965-1170
Central & Southern New Jersey | Elio Vecchiarelli & Suzanne Moore* 914-573-9707
NC The State of North Carolina Suresh & Sharmila Vanukuru 919-649-4193
NY Downstate New York Nick & Manny Galanis & Tommy 917-440-9999
Regoukos
OH Greater Toledo, Greater Sachin Patel & Hetal Patel 314-249-2314
Cleveland, Akron Youngstown,
and Columbus, Ohio Areas
PA Philadelphia, Pennsylvania Elio Vecchiarelli & Suzanne Moore* 914-573-9707
TX Austin, Texas Kirk & Rebecca Risha 512-554-2467
Dallas, Texas Wesley Gilliland & William Stewart 704-995-1168
Houston, Texas David Shuck* 656-208-0120
VA Northern New Jersey Adam Greenburg and Tom Cook 410-497-8909
VT The State of Vermont Kal Guallappali & Paul Faucher* 260-460-7290

*Area Representatives signed one agreement for multiple territories.
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FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

m e d
\/ O s p a EXHIBITG
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FRANCHISEES
THAT HAVE-LEFT THE SYSTEM

i f e VIO, V/O Med Spa. AR FDD. April 26;2623-18, 2024



VIO, V/O Med Spa. AR FDD. April 26:2623-18, 2024




AREA REPRESENTATIVES WHO HAVE LEFT THE SYSTEM
(January 1, 2022 to December 31, 2022)

State | Business Area Area Representative Phone Number

CO Territory Transferred to Another Area Michael Fasing 702-902-4946
Representative

MD The State of Maryland Acquired by Arpan Desai 443-622-6878
Corporate

NV The State of Nevada & Scottsdale, Arizona | William Lui & Nick Razze 714-893-4600
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California Area Representative FDD AddendumAmendment
Amendments to V/O-Med-Spa

the Area Representative Franchise Disclosure Document

The registration of this franchise offering by the California Department of Financial Protection and
Innovation does not constitute approval, recommendation, or endorsement by the commissioner.

1. Item 17 “Renewal, Termination, Transfer and Dispute Resolution: The Franchise Relationship.” is
supplemented by the addition of the following:

A. THE CALIFORNIA FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW REQUIRES THAT A COPY OF ALL
PROPOSED AGREEMENTS RELATING TO THE SALE OF THE FRANCHISE BE DELIVERED
TOGETHER WITH THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT.

B. The franchisor, any person or franchise broker in Item 2 of the FDD is not subject to any currently
effective order of any national securities association or national securities exchange, as defined in the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, 15 U.S.C.A. 78a et seq., suspending or expelling such persons from
membership in such association or exchange.

C. California Business and Professions Code Sections 20000 through 20043 establish the rights of the
franchisee concerning termination, transfer, or non-renewal of a franchise. If the area-representative
agreementlranchise Agreement contains a provision that is inconsistent with the law, the law will
control.

D. The arearepresentative-agreementFranchise Agreement provides for termination upon bankruptcy.
This provision may not be enforceable under federal bankruptcy law. (11 U.S.C.A. Sec. 101 et seq.).

E. The arearepresentative-agreementFranchise Agreement contains a covenant not to compete, which
extends beyond the termination of the franchise. This provision may not be enforceable under
California law.

F. The area—representative—agreementFranchise Agreement requires binding arbitration. The
arbitration will occur in the State of Ohio with the costs being borne by the franchisee and franchisor.

Prospective franchisees are encouraged to consult private legal counsel to determine the
applicability of California and federal laws (such as Business and Professions Code Section 20040.5
Code of Civil Procedure Section 1281, and the Federal Arbitration Act) to any provisions of a
Franchise Agreement restricting venue to a forum outside the State of California.

G. The area—representative-agreementFranchise Agreement requires application of the laws of the
State of Ohio. This provision may not be enforceable under California law.

2. Section 31125 of the California Corporations Code requires us to give you a diselosure
deeumentDisclosure Document, in a form containing the information that the commissioner may by rule
or order require, before a solicitation of a proposed material modification of an existing franchise.

3. You must sign a general release of claims if you renew or transfer your franchise. California
Corporations Code Section 31512 voids a waiver of your rights under the Franchise Investment Law
(California Corporations Code Sections 31000 through 31516).
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4. Business and Professions Code Section 20010 voids a waiver of your rights under the Franchise
Relations Act (Business and Professions Code Sections 20000 through 20043-).

6:5. The following URL address is for the franchisor’s website:
www-viomedspa-eomwww.viomedspa.com.

OUR WEBSITE HAS NOT BEEN REVIEWED OR APPROVED BY THE CALIFORNIA
DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL PROTECTION AND INNOVATION. _ANY COMPLAINTS
CONCERNING THE CONTENT OF THIS WEBSITE MAY BE DIRECTED TO THE CALIFORNIA
DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL PROTECTION AND INNOVATION AT www.dfpi.ca.gov.

6. California’s Franchise Investment Law (Corporations Code sections 31512 and 31512.1) states that any
provision of a franchise agreement or related document requiring the franchisee to waive specific provisions
of the law is contrary to public police and is voice and unenforceable. The law also prohibits a franchisor
from disclaiming or denying (i) representations it, its employees or its agents make to you, (ii) our ability
to rely on any representations it makes to you, or (iii) any violation of the law.

7. No statement, questionnaire or acknowledgement signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with
the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of: (i) waiting any claims under any
licable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on an:
statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This

provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise.

Connecticut Area Representative FDD AddendumAmendment
Amendments to V/O-Med-Spa

the Area Representative Franchise Disclosure Document

1. Item 3 “Litigation,” is supplemented by the addition of the following:

A. Neither the Franchisor nor any person identified in Items 1 or 2 above has any administrative,
criminal or material civil action (or a significant number of civil actions irrespective of materiality)
pending against him alleging a violation of any franchise law, fraud, embezzlement, fraudulent
conversion, restraint of trade, unfair or deceptive practices, business opportunity law, securities law,
misappropriation of property or comparable allegations.

B. Neither the Franchisor nor any other person identified in Items 1 or 2 above has during the 10 year
period immediately preceding the date of this Disclosure Document, been convicted of a felony or
pleaded nolo contendere to a felony charge or been held liable in any civil action by final judgment,
or been the subject of any material complaint or other legal proceeding where a felony, civil action,
complaint or other legal proceeding involved violation of any franchise law, fraud, embezzlement,
fraudulent conversion, restraint of trade, unfair or deceptive practices, business opportunity law,
securities law, misappropriation of property or comparable allegations or which was brought by a
present or former purchaser-investor or which involves or involved the business opportunity
relationship.
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C. Neither the Franchisor nor any person identified in Items 1 or 2 above is subject to any currently
effective injunctive or restrictive order or decree relating to the franchise, or under any federal, state
or Canadian franchise, securities, business opportunity, antitrust, trade regulation or trade practice law
as a result of concluded or pending action or proceeding brought by a public agency, or is a party to a
proceeding currently pending in which an order is sought, relating to or affecting business opportunity
activities or the seller-purchaser-investor relationship, or involving fraud, including but not limited to,
a violation of any business opportunity law, franchise law, securities law or unfair or deceptive
practices law, embezzlement, fraudulent conversion, misappropriation of property or restraint of trade.

D. Neither Company nor any person identified in Item 2 above is subject to any currently effective
order of any national securities association or national securities exchange (as defined in the Securities
& Exchange Act of 1934) suspending or expelling these persons from membership in the association
or exchange.

2. Item 4 “Bankruptcy,” is supplemented by the addition of the following:

No entity or person listed in Items 1 and 2 of this Disclosure Document has, at any time during the
previous 10 fiscal years (a) filed for bankruptcy protection, (b) been adjudged bankrupt, (c) been
reorganized due to insolvency, or (d) been a principal, director, executive officer or partner of any
other person that has so filed or was adjudged or reorganized, during or within one year after the period
that the person held a position with the other person.

If the seller fails to deliver the products, equipment or supplies or fails to render the services necessary to
begin substantial operation of the business within 45 days of the delivery date stated in your contract be
cancelled.

DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY CONNECTICUT LAW
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The State of Connecticut does not approve, recommend, endorse or sponsor any business opportunity. The
information contained in this disclosure has not been verified by the state. If you have any questions about
this investment, see an attorney before you sign a contract or agreement.

BUSINESS OPPORTUNITY DISCLOSURE

The following business opportunity disclosure is provided by VIO FRANCHISE GROUP, LLC, a
registered business in the State of Connecticut.

Disclosure Document is dated: April 26:-202318, 2024

Hawaii Area Representative FDD AddendumAmendment
Amendments to V/O-Med-Spa

the Area Representative Franchise Disclosure Document

Exhibit J “FDD Receipts.” is supplemented with the addition of the following:

The Receipt for this Disclosure Document (attached-as-Exhibit “})”) is supplemented to add the
following:

1. THIS FRANCHISE WILL BE/HAVE BEEN FILED UNDER THE FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW
OF THE STATE OF HAWAIL FILING DOES NOT CONSTITUTE APPROVAL,
RECOMMENDATION OR ENDORSEMENT BY THE DIRECTOR OF COMMERCE AND
CONSUMER AFFAIRS OR A FINDING BY THE DIRECTOR OF COMMERCE AND CONSUMER
AFFAIRS THAT THE INFORMATION PROVIDED HEREIN IS TRUE, COMPLETE AND NOT
MISLEADING.

2. THE FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW MAKES IT UNLAWFUL TO OFFER OR SELL ANY
FRANCHISE IN THIS STATE WITHOUT FIRST PROVIDING TO THE PROSPECTIVE
FRANCHISEE, OR SUBFRANCHISOR, AT LEAST SEVEN DAYS BEFORE THE EXECUTION BY
THE PROSPECTIVE FRANCHISEE, OF ANY BINDING FRANCHISE OR OTHER AGREEMENT,
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OR AT LEAST SEVEN DAYS BEFORE THE PAYMENT OF ANY CONSIDERATION BY THE
FRANCHISEE, OR SUBFRANCHISOR, WHICHEVER OCCURS FIRST, A COPY OF THE
DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT, TOGETHER WITH A COPY OF ALL PROPOSED AGREEMENTS
RELATING TO THE SALE OF THE FRANCHISE.

3. THIS DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT CONTAINS A SUMMARY ONLY OF CERTAIN MATERIAL
PROVISIONS OF THE AREA—REPRESENTATIVEFRANCHISE AGREEMENT AND THE
CONTRACT OR AGREEMENT SHOULD BE REFERRED TO FOR A STATEMENT OF ALL
RIGHTS, CONDITIONS, RESTRICTIONS AND OBLIGATIONS OF BOTH THE FRANCHISOR AND
THE FRANCHISEE.

4. NO STATEMENT, QUESTIONNAIRE OR ACKNOWLEDGEMENT SIGNED OR AGREED TO BY
A FRANCHISEE IN CONNECTION WITH THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE FRANCHISE
RELATIONSHIP SHALL HAVE THE EFFECT OF: (I) WAITING ANY CLAIMS UNDER ANY
APPLICABLE STATE FRANCHISE LAW, INCLUDING FRAUD IN THE INDUCEMENT, OR (II)
DISCLAIMING RELIANCE ON ANY STATEMENT MADE BY ANY FRANCHISOR, FRANCHISE
SELLER, OR OTHER PERSON ACTING ON BEHALF OF THE FRANCHISOR. THIS PROVISION
SUPERSEDES ANY OTHER TERM OF ANY DOCUMENT EXECUTED IN CONNECTION WITH
THE FRANCHISE.

Illinois Area Representative FDD AddendumAmendment
Amendments to V/O-Med-Spa

the Area Representative Franchise Disclosure Document

DISCLOSURE REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF ILLINOIS

I)Ig‘ lf\CTTDE REOITTIRPENDY TIID CTATE AL T P"é

Illinois law governs the AreaRepresentative-Franchise Agreement.

In conformance with Section 4 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act, any provision in a Eranehise
Agreementfranchise agreement that designates jurisdiction and venue in a forum outside of the State of

Illinois is void. -However, a Franchise-Agreementfranchise agreement may provide for arbitration to take
place outside of Illinois.

YeurFranchisee’s rights upon Termination and Non-Renewal are set forth in Sections 19 and 20 of the
Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act.

In conformance with Section 41 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act, any condition, stipulation or
provision purporting to bind any person acquiring any franchise to waive compliance with the Illinois
Franchise Disclosure Act or any other law of Illinois is void.

No statement, questionnaire or acknowledgement signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with
the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of: (i) waivingwaiting any claims
under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on
any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the
Eranehisorfranchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection
with the franchise.
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Indiana Area Representative FDD AddendumAmendment

Amendments to V/O-Med-Spa

the Area Representative Franchise Disclosure Document

1. Item 8, “Restrictions on Sources of Products and Services,” is supplemented by the addition of the
following:

Under Indiana Code Section 23-2-2.7-1(4), the franchisor will not obtain money, goods,
services, or any other benefit from any other person with whom the franchisee does
business, on account of, or in relation to, the transaction between the franchisee and the
other person, other than for compensation for services rendered by the franchisor, unless
the benefit is promptly accounted for, and transmitted by the franchisee.

2. Item 6, “Other Fees” and Item 9, “Franchisee’s Obligations”, are supplemented, by the addition of the
following:

The franchisee will not be required to indemnify franchisor for any liability imposed upon
franchisor as a result of franchisee’s reliance upon or use of procedures or products that
were required by franchisor, if the procedures or products were utilized by franchisee in
the manner required by franchisor.

3. Item 17, “Renewal, Termination, Transfer and Dispute Resolution,” is supplemented, by the addition of
the following:

A. Indiana Code 23-2-2.7-1(7) makes unlawful unilateral termination of a franchise unless
there is a material violation of the Franchise Agreement and termination is not in bad faith.

B. Indiana Code 23-2-2.7-1(5) prohibits a prospective general release of claims subject to
the Indiana Deceptive Franchise Practices Law.

C. ITEM 17(r) is amended subject to Indiana Code 23-2-2.7-1(9) to provide that the post-

term non-competition covenant shall have a geographical limitation of the territory granted
to Franchisee.

D. ITEM 17(v) is amended to provide that Eranchiseesfranchisees will be permitted to
commence litigation in Indiana for any cause of action under Indiana Law.
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E. ITEM 17(w) is amended to provide that in the event of a conflict of law, Indiana Law
governs any
-cause of action that arises under the Indiana Disclosure Law or the Indiana Deceptive
Franchise Practices Act.

Maryland Area Representative FDD AddendumAmendment
Amendments to V/O-Med-Spa

the Area Representative Franchise Disclosure Document

Item 17, “Renewal, Termination, Transfer and Dispute Resolution,” is supplemented, by the addition of
the following:

A. The general release required as a condition of renewal, sale, and/or assignment/transfer
shall not apply to any liability under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure
Law.

B. A Franchisee may bring a lawsuit in Maryland for claims arising under the Maryland
Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.

C. Any claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law must
be brought within three years after the grant of the franchise.

D. The Arearepresentative-agreementFranchise Agreement provides for termination upon
bankruptcy. This provision may not be enforceable under federal bankruptcy law (11

U.S.C. Section 101, et seq.).

No statement, questionnaire or acknowledgement signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection
with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of: (i) waiting any claims
under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming
reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf
of the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection
with the franchise.

Michigan Area Representative FDD AddendumAmendment
Amendments to V/O-Med-Spa

the Area Representative Franchise Disclosure Document

1. THE STATE OF MICHIGAN PROHIBITS CERTAIN UNFAIR PROVISIONS THAT ARE
SOMETIMES IN FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS. IF ANY OF THE FOLLOWING PROVISIONS ARE IN
THESE FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS, THE PROVISIONS ARE VOID AND CANNOT BE ENFORCED
AGAINST YOU.

A. A prohibition of your right to join an association of Franchiseesfranchisees.
B. A requirement that you assent to a release, assignment, novation, waiver or estoppel that deprives

you of rights and protections provided in this act. This shall not preclude you, after entering into an

Arearepresentative-agreementa Franchise Agreement, from settling any and all claims.

C. A provision that permits us to terminate a franchise before the expiration of this term except for good
cause. Good cause shall include your failure to comply with any lawful provision of the Area
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representative-agreementFranchise Agreement and to cure the failure after being given written notice
of the failure and a reasonable opportunity, which in no event need be more than 30 days, to cure the

failure.

D. A provision that permits us to refuse to renew a franchise without fairly compensating you by
repurchase or other means for the fair market value at the time of expiration of your inventory, supplies,
equipment, fixtures and furnishings. Personalized materials that have no value to us and inventory,
supplies, equipment, fixtures and furnishings not reasonably required in the conduct of the franchise
business are not subject to compensation. -This subsection applies only if: (a) the term of the franchise
is less than five years, and (b) you are prohibited by the arearepresentative-agreementFranchise
Agreement or other agreement from continuing to conduct substantially the same business under
another trademark, service mark, trade name, logotype, advertising or other commercial symbol in the
same area subsequent to the expiration of the franchise or you do not receive at least six months advance
notice of our intent not to renew the franchise.

E. A provision that permits us to refuse to renew a franchise on terms generally available to other
Eranehiseesfranchisees of the same class or type under similar circumstances. This section does not
require a renewal provision.

F. A provision requiring that litigation be conducted outside this state. This shall not preclude you from
entering into an agreement, at the time of litigation, to conduct litigation at a location outside this state.

G. A provision that permits us to refuse to permit a transfer of ownership of a franchise, except for good
cause. The subdivision does not prevent us from exercising a right of first refusal to purchase the
franchise. Good cause shall include, but is not limited to:

(i) The failure of the proposed transferee to meet our then current reasonable qualifications or
standards.

(i) The fact that the proposed transferee is our or Sub-franchisor’s competitor.

(iii) The unwillingness of the proposed transferee to agree in writing to comply with all lawful
obligations.

(iv) Your or proposed transferee’s failure to pay us any sums or to cure any default in the Area

representative-agreementlFranchise Agreement existing at the time of the proposed transfer.

H. A provision that requires you to resell to us items that are not uniquely identified with us. This
subdivision does not prohibit a provision that grants us a right of first refusal to purchase the assets of
a franchise on the same terms and conditions as a bona fide third party willing and able to purchase
those assets, nor does this subdivision prohibit a provision that grants us the right to acquire the assets
of a franchise for the market or appraised value and has failed to cure the breach in the manner provided
in Item 17(g).

1. A provision that permits us to directly or indirectly convey, assign or otherwise transfer our
obligations to fulfill contractual obligations to you unless a provision has been made for providing the
required contractual services.

2. If our most recent financial statements are unaudited and show a net worth of less than $100,000-88, you
may request that we arrange for the escrow of initial investment and other funds you paid until our
obligations, if any, to provide real estate, improvements, equipment, inventory, training or other items
included in the franchise offering are fulfilled. At our option, a surety bond may be provided in place of
€SCrow.
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3. THE FACT THAT THERE IS A NOTICE OF THIS OFFERING ON FILE WITH THE ATTORNEY
GENERAL DOES NOT CONSTITUTE APPROVAL, RECOMMENDATION OR ENFORCEMENT BY
THE ATTORNEY GENERAL.

4. Any questions regarding this notice should be directed to: State of Michigan, Consumer Protection
Division, Attention: Franchise Bureau, 670 Law Building, Lansing, MI 48913; telephone number (517)
373-3800.

Minnesota Area Representative FDD AddendumAmendment
Amendments to V/O-Med-Spa

the Area Representative Franchise Disclosure Document

ADDITIONAL RISK FACTORS:

1. THESE FRANCHISES HAVE BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE MINNESOTA FRANCHISE ACT.
REGISTRATION DOES NOT CONSTITUTE APPROVAL, RECOMMENDATION OR
ENDORSEMENT BY THE COMMISSIONER OF COMMERCE OF MINNESOTA OR A FINDING BY
THE COMMISSIONER THAT THE INFORMATION PROVIDED HEREIN IS TRUE, COMPLETE
AND NOT MISLEADING.

2. THE MINNESOTA FRANCHISE ACT MAKES IT UNLAWFUL TO OFFER OR SELL ANY
FRANCHISE IN THIS STATE WHICH IS SUBJECT TO REGISTRATION WITHOUT FIRST
PROVIDING TO THE PROSPECTIVE FRANCHISEE, AT LEAST SEVEN DAYS PRIOR TO THE
EXECUTION BY THE PROSPECTIVE FRANCHISEE OF ANY BINDING FRANCHISE OR OTHER
AGREEMENT, OR AT LEAST SEVEN DAYS PRIOR TO THE PAYMENT OF ANY
CONSIDERATION, BY THE FRANCHISEE, WHICHEVER OCCURS FIRST, A COPY OF THIS
PUBLIC OFFERING STATEMENT, TOGETHER WITH A COPY OF ALL PROPOSED
AGREEMENTS RELATING TO THE FRANCHISE. THIS PUBLIC OFFERING STATEMENT
CONTAINS A SUMMARY ONLY OF CERTAIN MATERIAL PROVISIONS OF THE AREA
REPRESENTATVEFRANCHISE AGREEMENT. THE CONTRACT OR AGREEMENT SHOULD BE
REFERRED TO FOR AN UNDERSTANDING OF ALL RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF BOTH THE
FRANCHISOR AND THE FRANCHISEE.

AMENDMENT OF FDD DISCLOSURES:

A. Item 6, “Other Fees”, Not sufficient funds are governed by Minnesota Statute 604.113, which puts a cap
of $30 on service charges.

B. Item 13, “Trademarks”, Item 13 is supplemented by the addition of the following: As required by the
Minnesota Franchise Act, Minn. Stat. Sec. 80C.12(g), we will reimburse you for any costs incurred by you
in the defense of your right to use the marks, so long as you were using the marks in the manner authorized
by us, and so long as we are timely notified of the claim and given the right to manage the defense of the
claim including the right to compromise, settle or otherwise resolve the claim, and to determine whether
to appeal a final determination of the claim.
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C. Item 17, “Renewal, Termination, Transfer and Dispute Resolution,” Item 17 is supplemented by the
addition of the following: With respect to franchises governed by Minnesota law, we will comply with
Minn. Stat. Sec. 80C.14, Subds. 3, 4 and 5, which require, except in certain specified cases, that you be
given 90 days- notice of termination (with 60 days to cure) and 180 days-notice of non-renewal of the
Agreement.

D. Item 17 “Renewal, Termination, Transfer and Dispute Resolution,” Item 17 is supplemented by the
addition of the following: Item 17 shall not provide for a prospective general release of claims against us
that may be subject to the Minnesota Franchise Law. Minn. Rule 2860.4400D prohibits a franchisor from
requiring a franchisee to assent to a general release.

E. Minn. Stat. §80C.21 and Minn. Rule 2860.4400] prohibit us from requiring litigation to be conducted
outside Minnesota. In addition, nothing in the Disclosure Document or Area—representative
agreementFranchise Agreement can abrogate or reduce any of your rights as provided for in Minnesota
Statutes, Chapter 80C, or your rights to any procedure, forum or remedies provided for by the laws of the
jurisdiction.

F. No statement, questionnaire or acknowledgement signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection w1th
the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of: (i) ¥ y
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waiting any claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii

disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on

behalf of the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection
with the franchise.

NewYeork FDD-Addendum

Amendments to V/O Mced Spa

New York Area Representative FDD Amendment
Amendments to the Area Representative Franchise Disclosure Document

1.- The following information is added to the cover page of the Franchise Disclosure Document:

INFORMATION COMPARING FRANCHISORS IS AVAILABLE. CALL THE STATE
ADMINISTRATORS LISTED IN EXHIBIT A OR YOUR PUBLIC LIBRARY FOR SOURCES
OFSERVICES OR INFORMATION. REGISTRATION OF THIS FRANCHISE BY NEW
YORK STATE DOES NOT MEAN THAT NEW YORK STATE RECOMMENDS IT OR HAS
VERIFIED THE INFORMATION IN THIS FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT. IF
YOU LEARN FHAT-ANYTHING IN FHETHIS FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT IS
UNTRUE, CONTACT THE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION AND NEW—YORKTHE
APPROPRIATE STATE DEPARTMENT-OFEAW, BUREAU-OFINVESTORPROTECTION
%WWQTMWM%

OR PROVINCIAL AUTHORITY. THE FRANCHISOR MAY, IF IT CHOOSES, NEGOTIATE
WITH YOU ABOUT ITEMS COVERED IN THE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT.
HOWEVER, THE FRANCHISOR EANNOFCAN NOT USE THE NEGOTIATING PROCESS TO
PREVAIL UPON A PROSPECTIVE FRANCHISEE TO ACCEPT TERMS WHICHTHAT ARE
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LESS FAVORABLE THAN THOSE SET FORTH IN THIS FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE
DOCUMENT.

2. The following is to be added at the end of Item 3:

Exeept-as-provided-abeve;-withregard With the exception of what is stated above, the following applies to

the franchisor, its predecessor, a person identified in Item 2, or an affiliate offering franchises under the
franchisor’s principal trademark:

A. No such party has an administrative, criminal, or civil action pending against that person alleging: a
felony, a violation of a franchise, antitrust, or securities law, fraud, embezzlement, fraudulent conversion,
misappropriation of property, unfair or deceptive practices, or comparable civil or misdemeanor allegations.

B. No such party has pending actions, other than routine litigation incidental to the business, which are
significant in the context of the number of franchisees and the size, nature, or financial condition of the
franchise system or its business operations.

C. No such party has been convicted of a felony or pleaded nolo contendere to a felony charge or, within
the 10-year period immediately preceding the application for registration, has been convicted of or pleaded
nolo contendere to a misdemeanor charge or has been the subject of a civil action alleging: violation of a
franchise, antifraud, or securities law; fraud; embezzlement; fraudulent conversion or misappropriation of
property; or unfair or deceptive practices or comparable allegations.

D. No such party is subject to a currently effective injunctive or restrictive order or decree relating to the
franchise, or under a Federal, State, or Canadian franchise, securities, antitrust, trade regulation, or trade
practice law, resulting from a concluded or pending action or proceeding brought by a public agency; or is
subject to any currently effective order of any national securities association or national securities exchange,
as _defined in the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, suspending or expelling such person from
membership in such association or exchange; or is subject to a currently effective injunctive or restrictive
order relating to any other business activity as a result of an action brought by a public agency or department,
including, without limitation, actions affecting a license as a real estate broker or sales agent.
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5.3. The following is added to the end of the “Summary” sections of Item 17(c), titled “Requirements for
a franchisee to renew or extend,” and Item 17(m), entitled “Conditions for franchisor approval of
transfer”:

However, to the extent required by applicable law, all rights you enjoy and any causes of action
arising in your favor from the provisions of Article 33 of the General Business Law of the State of
New York and the regulations issued thereunder shall remain in force; it being the intent of this
proviso that the non-waiver provisions of General Business Law Sections 687-(4) and 687-(5) be
satisfied.

64. The following language replaces the “Summary” section of Item 17(d), titled “Termination by
franchisee”:_You may terminate the agreement on any grounds available by law.

5. The following is added to the end of the “Summary” sections of Item 17(v), titled “Choice of forum>;,”
and Item 17(w), titled “Choice of law”:

The foregoing choice of law should not be considered a waiver of any right conferred upon the
franchisor or upen-the franchisee by Article 33 of the General Business Law of the State of New
York-

6. Franchise Questionnaires and Acknowledgements - No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment
signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall
have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the
inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any. statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other
person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document
executed in connection with the franchise.

7. Receipts - Any sale made must be in compliance with § 683(8) of the Franchise Sale Act (N.Y. Gen.
Bus. L. § 680 et seq.), which describes the time period a Franchise Disclosure Document (offering
prospectus) must be provided to a prospective franchisee before a sale may be made. New York law
requires a franchisor to provide the Franchise Disclosure Document at the earlier of the first personal
meeting, 10 business days before the execution of the franchise or other agreement, or the payment of any
consideration that relates to the franchise relationship.

North Dakota Area Representative FDD AddendumAmendment
Amendments to V/O-Med-Spa

the Area Representative Franchise Disclosure Document

1. Item 5, “Initial fees”, Item 5 is supplemented by the addition of the following:
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Refund and cancellation provisions will be inapplicable to franchises operating under
North Dakota Law, North Dakota Century Code Annotated Chapter 51-19, Sections 51-
19-01 through 51-19-17. —If franchisor elects to cancel this Area—representative
agreementFranchise Agreement, franchisor will be entitled to a reasonable fee for its
evaluation of you and related preparatory work performed and expenses actually incurred.

2. Item 6, “Other Fees”, Item 6 is supplemented by the addition of the following:

No consent to termination or liquidated damages shall be required from franchisees in the
State of North Dakota.

3. Item 17, “Renewal, Termination, Transfer and Dispute Resolution,” Item 17 is supplemented by the
addition of the following:

A. Any provision requiring a franchisee to sign a general release upon renewal of the area
representative-agreementfranchise Agreement has been determined to be unfair, unjust and
inequitable within the intent of Section 51-19-09 of the North Dakota Franchise Investment
Law.

B. Any provision requiring a franchisee to consent to termination or liquidation damages
has been determined to be unfair, unjust and inequitable within the intent of Section 51-
19-09 of the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law.

C. Covenants restricting competition contrary to Section 9-08-06 of the North Dakota
Century Code, without further disclosing that such covenants may be subject to this statute,
are unfair, unjust -and inequitable. Covenants not to compete such as those mentioned
above are generally considered unenforceable in the State of North Dakota.

D. Any provision in the Area-representative-agreementFranchise Agreement requiring a
franchisee to agree to the arbitration or mediation of disputes at a location that is remote
from the site of the franchisee’s business has been determined to be unfair, unjust and
inequitable within the intent of Section 51-19-09 of the North Dakota Franchise Investment
Law. The site of arbitration or mediation must be agreeable to all parties and may not be
remote from the franchisee’s place of business.

E. Any provision in the Area—representative—agreementFranchise Agreement which
designates jurisdiction or venue or requires the franchisee to agree to jurisdiction or venue
in a forum outside of North Dakota is void with respect to any cause of action which is
otherwise enforceable in North Dakota.

F. Apart from civil liability as set forth in Section 51-19-12 of the N.D.C.C., which is
limited to violations of the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law (registration and
fraud), the liability of the franchisor to a franchisee is based largely on contract law. Despite
the fact that those provisions are not contained in the franchise investment law, those
provisions contain substantive rights intended to be afforded to North Dakota residents and
it is unfair to franchise investors to require them to waive their rights under North Dakota
Law.

G. Any provision in the Arearepresentative-agreementlranchise Agreement requiring that
the Arearepresentative-agreementFranchise Agreement be construed according to the laws

\/ O VIO AR FDD April 26, 2023



of a state other than North Dakota are unfair, unjust or inequitable within the intent of
Section 51-19-09 of the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law.

H. Any provision in the Area—representative—agreementFranchise Agreement which
requires a franchisee to waive his or her right to a jury trial has been determined to be
unfair, unjust and inequitable within the intent of Section 51-19-09 of the North Dakota
Franchise Investment Law.

4. No statement, questionnaire or acknowledgement signed or agreed to by a franchisee in
connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of: (i) waiting
any claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii)
disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person
acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document
executed in connection with the franchise.

Rhode Island Area Representative FDD AddendumAmendment
Amendments to V/O-Med-Spa

the Area Representative Franchise Disclosure Document

Item 17, “Renewal, Termination, Transfer and Dispute Resolution,” Item 17 is supplemented by the
addition of the following:

A. The Rhode Island Franchise Investment Act, R.I. Gen. Law Ch. 395 Sec. 19-28.1-14
provides that a provision in a Franchise Agreement restricting jurisdiction or venue to a
forum outside this state or requiring the application of the laws of another state is void with
respect to a claim otherwise enforceable under the Rhode Island Franchise Investment Act.

B. Any general release as a condition of renewal, termination or transfer will be void with
respect to claims under the Rhode Island Franchise Investment Act.

Virginia Area Representative FDD AddendumAmendment
Amendments to V/O-Med-Spa

the Area Representative Franchise Disclosure Document

Item 17, “Renewal, Termination, Transfer and Dispute Resolution,” Item 17(h) is supplemented by the
addition of the following:

Under Section 13.1-564 of the Virginia Retail Franchising Act, it is unlawful for a
franchisor to cancel a franchise without reasonable cause. If any grounds for default or
termination stated in V/O Med Spa arearepresentative-agreementFranchise Agreement do
not constitute “reasonable cause,” as that term may be defined in the Virginia Retail
Franchising Act or the laws of Virginia, that provision may not be enforceable.

Estimated Initial Investment. The franchisee will be required to make an estimated initial

investment ranging from $929.952 to $1.,245.612. This amount exceeds the franchisor's
stockholders’ equity as of March 14, 2024, which is $1227.841.

No statement, questionnaire or acknowledgement signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection
with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of: (i) waiting any
claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii)
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disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person
acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document
executed in connection with the franchise.

Washington State-Area Representative FDD AddendumAmendment
Amendments to V/O-Med-Spa

the Area Representative Franchise Disclosure Document

+-In the event ofa conﬂlct of laws the prov1s10ns of the Washmgton Franchlse Investment Protection Act,
Chapter 19.100 RCW will prevail.

2-RCW 19.100.180 may supersede the Franchise-Agreementfranchise agreement in your relationship with
the franchisor including the areas of termination and renewal of your franchise. There may also be court

decisions which may supersede the Eranehise-Agreementfranchise agreement in your relationship with the
franchisor including the areas of termination and renewal of your franchise.

3

In any arbitration or mediation involving a franchise purchased in Washington, the arbitration or mediation
site will be either in the Statestate of Washington, or in a place mutually agreed upon at the time of the
arbitration or mediation, or as determined by the arbitrator or mediator at the time of arbitration or
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th%FPaﬂehis&Agfeemeﬂ% a franchlsee may bring an actlon or proceedlng ar1s1ng out of orin connectlon w1th the sale of
franchises, or a violation of the Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act, in Washington.

4-A release or waiver of rights executed by a franchisee may not include rights under the Washington Franchise Investment
Protection Act or any rule or order thereunder except when executed pursuant to a negotiated settlement after the agreement
is in effect and where the parties are represented by independent counsel. Provisions such as those which unreasonably
restrict or limit the statute of limitations period for claims under the Act, or rights or remedies under the Act such as a right
to a jury trial, may not be enforceable.

5-Transfer fees are collectable to the extent that they reflect the franchisor’s reasonable estimated or actual costs in effecting
a transfer.

6—Pursuant to RCW 49.62.020, a noncompetition covenant is void and unenforceable against an employee, including an
employee of a franchisee, unless the employee’s earnings from the party seeking enforcement, when annualized, exceed
$100,000 per year (an amount that will be adjusted annually for inflation). In addition, a noncompetition covenant is void
and unenforceable against an independent contractor of a franchisee under RCW 49.62.030 unless the independent
contractor’s earnings from the party seeking enforcement, when annualized, exceed $250,000 per year (an amount that will
be adjusted annually for inflation). As a result, any provisions contained in the Franchise-Agreementfranchise agreement
or elsewhere that conflict with these limitations are void and unenforceable in Washington.

any employee of a franchisee of the same franchisor or (ii) soliciting or hiring any employee of the franchisor. As a result,

any such provisions contained in the franchise agreement or elsewhere are void and unenforceable in Washington.

No statement, questionnaire or acknowledgement signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the commencement
of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of: (i) waiting any claims under any applicable state franchise law.
including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or
other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in
connection with the franchise.

Wisconsin Area Representative FDD Amendment
Amendments to the Area Representative Franchise Disclosure Document

Item 17, “Renewal, Termination, Transfer and Dispute Resolution,” Item 17 is supplemented by the addition of the
following:
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The Wisconsin Fair Dealership Law Title XIV-A Ch. 135, Section 135.01-135.07 may affect the
termination provision of the Franchise Agreement.

me d
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CALIFORNIA AREA REPRESENTATIVE AGREEMENT AMENDMENT
V/O Med Spa Area Representative Agreement Amendments

No statement, questionnaire or acknowledgement signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with
the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of: (i) waiving any claims under any
applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any
statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor.
This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed and delivered this amendment to the Area
Representative Agreement on the same date as the Area Representative Agreement was executed.

Franchisor: VIO FRANCHISE GROUP, LLC Area Representative:
Signature Signature

Name and Title (please print) Name (please print)
Dated Dated
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HAWAII AREA REPRESENTATIVE AGREEMENT AMENDMENT
V/O Med Spa Area Representative Agreement Amendments

In recognition of the requirements of the Hawaii Franchise Investment Law, the undersigned agree to the
following modifications to the VIO FRANCHISE GROUP, LLC Area Representative Agreement (the
“Agreement”), as follows:

1. Under Section 10.3 of the Agreement, under the heading “Conditions for Approval of Transfer,”
subsection 10.3(f) is modified to add the following sentence at the end of subsection 10.3(f):

. provided, however, that all rights enjoyed by Franchisee and any causes of action arising in
Franchisee’s favor from the provisions of the Hawaii Franchise Investment Law, shall remain in
force; it being the intent of this provision that the non-waiver provisions of the Hawaii Franchise
Investment Law be satisfied; and

The Hawaii Franchise Investment Law provides rights to the franchisee concerning non-renewal
termination and transfer of the Area Representative Agreement. If this Sub-article contains a
provision that is inconsistent with the Hawaii Franchise Investment Law, the Hawaii Franchise
Investment Law will control.

2. Under Section 11.4 of the Agreement, under the heading “Conditions for Renewal,” subsection 11.4(d)
is modified to ass the following sentence at the end of subsection 11.4(d):

. provided, however, that all rights enjoyed by Franchisee and any causes of action arising in
Franchisee’s favor from the provisions of the Hawaii Franchise Investment Law, shall remain in
force; it being the intent of this provision that the non-waiver provisions of the Hawaii Franchise
Investment Law be satisfied; and

The Hawaii Franchise Investment Law provides rights to the franchisee concerning non-renewal
termination and transfer of the Area Representative Agreement. If this subsection contains a
provision that is inconsistent with the Hawaii Franchise Investment Law, the Hawaii Franchise
Investment Law will control.

3. Each provision of this amendment shall be effective only to the extent, with respect to such provision,

that the jurisdictional requirements of the Hawaii Franchise Investment Law are met independently
without reference to this amendment.

4. No statement, questionnaire or acknowledgement signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection
with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of: (i) waiving any claims

under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance
on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the
franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the
franchise.

[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW]
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IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the parties have executed and delivered this amendment to the Area
Representative Agreement on the same date as the Area Representative Agreement was executed.

Franchisor: VIO FRANCHISE GROUP, LLC Area Representative:
Signature Signature

Name and Title (please print) Name (please print)
Dated Dated
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ILLINOIS AREA REPRESENTATIVE AGREEMENT AMENDMENT
V/O Med Spa Area Representative Agreement Amendments

In recognition of the requirements of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act, 815 ILCS 705/1 to 705/45, and
11l. Admin. Code tit. 15, §200.100 et seq., the undersigned agree to the following modifications to the VIO

FRANCHISE GROUP, LLC Area Representative Agreement (the “Agreement”), as follows:

1. Section 14.6 of the Agreement under the heading “Governing Law” shall be amended by the addition of
the following statement added after the end of the last sentence of Section 14.6 of the Agreement:

Illinois Addendum: Illinois law governs the agreements between the parties to this franchise.

Section 4 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act Provides that any provision in an Area Representative
Agreement that designates jurisdiction or venue outside the State of Illinois is void. However, an Area
Representative Agreement may provide for arbitration in a venue outside Illinois.

Your rights upon termination and non-renewal of an Area Representative Agreement are set forth in
Sections 19 and 20 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act.

Section 41 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act Provides that any condition, stipulation or provision

purporting to bind any person acquiring any franchise to waive compliance with the Illinois Franchise
Disclosure Act, or any other law of Illinois is void

2. Section 14.7 of the Agreement under the heading “Non-Binding Mediation and Binding Arbitration”,
shall be amended by the addition of the following statement added after the end of the last sentence of

Section 14.7 of the Agreement:

Illinois Addendum: Illinois law governs the agreements between the parties to this franchise.

Section 4 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act Provides that any provision in an Area Representative
Agreement that designates jurisdiction or venue outside the State of Illinois is void. However, an Area

Representative Agreement may provide for arbitration in a venue outside Illinois.

Your rights upon termination and non-renewal of an Area Representative Agreement are set forth in
Sections 19 and 20 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act.

Section 41 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act Provides that any condition, stipulation or provision
purporting to bind any person acquiring any franchise to waive compliance with the Illinois Franchise
Disclosure Act, or any other law of Illinois is void.

3. Each provision of this amendment shall be effective only to the extent, with respect to such provision,
that the jurisdictional requirements of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act (815 ILCS 705/1 to 705/45) are

met independently without reference to this amendment.

4. No statement, questionnaire or acknowledgement signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with
the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of: (i) waiving any claims under any
applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on behalf of

the Franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the
franchise.

[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have duly executed and delivered this Illinois amendment to the VIO
FRANCHISE GROUP, LLC Area Representative Agreement on the same date as the Area Representative
Agreement was executed.

Franchisor: VIO FRANCHISE GROUP, LLC Area Representative:
Signature Signature

Name and Title (please print) Name (please print)
Dated Dated
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MARYLAND AREA REPRESENTATIVE AGREEMENT AMENDMENT
V/O Med Spa Area Representative Agreement Amendments

In recognition of the requirements of the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law, the
undersigned agree to the following modifications to the VIO FRANCHISE GROUP, LLC Area
Representative Agreement (the “Agreement”), as follows:

1. Under Section 10.3 of the Area Representative Agreement, under the heading “Conditions for Approval
of Transfer,” subsection 10.3(f) is modified to add the following sentence at the end of subsection 10.3(f)
of the Agreement:

. provided, however, that all rights and causes of action arising in favor of Area Representative from
the provisions of the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law and the regulations issued
thereunder, shall remain in force; it being the intent of this provision that the non-waiver provisions of
the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law be satisfied.

2. Under Section 11.4 of the Agreement, under the heading “Conditions for Renewal,” subsection 11.4(d)
is modified to add the following sentence at the end of subsection 11.4(d) of the Agreement:

. provided, however, that all rights enjoyed by Franchisee and any causes of action arising in
Franchisee’s favor from the provisions of the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law and
the regulations issued thereunder, shall remain in force: it being the intent of this provision that the non-
waiver provisions of the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law be satisfied;

3. The Agreement provides that disputes are resolved through arbitration. A Maryland franchise regulation
states that it is an unfair or deceptive practice to require a franchisee to waive its right to file a lawsuit in
Maryland claiming a violation of the Maryland Franchise Law. In light of the Federal Arbitration Act, there
is some dispute as to whether this forum selection requirement is legally enforceable.

4. The general release required as a condition of renewal, sale, and/or assignment/transfer shall not apply
to any liability under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.

5. Section 14.7 of the Agreement under the heading “Non-Binding Mediation and Binding Arbitration”
shall be amended by the addition of the following statement added after the end of the last sentence of
Section 14.7 of the Area Representative Agreement:

A franchisee may bring a lawsuit in Maryland for claims arising under the Maryland Franchise
Registration and Disclosure Law.

6. Section 14.9 of the Agreement, under the heading “Limitations of Claims,” shall be amended by the
addition of the following statement added to Section 14.9 of the Agreement:

Any claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law must be brought
within three years after the grant of the franchise.

A general release required as a condition of renewal, sale and/or assignment or transfer of an Area

Representative Agreement shall not apply to any liability under the Maryland Franchise Registration
and Disclosure Law

7. All representations requiring prospective franchisees to assent to a release, estoppel or waiver of liability
are not intended to nor shall they act as a release, estoppel or waiver of any liability incurred under the
Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.
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8. Each provision of this amendment shall be effective only to the extent, with respect to such provision,
that the jurisdictional requirements of the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law are met
independently without reference to this amendment.

9. No statement, questionnaire or acknowledgement signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection
with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of: (i) waiving any claims
under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance
on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the
franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the
franchise.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have duly executed and delivered this Maryland amendment to the
VIO FRANCHISE GROUP, LLC Area Representative Agreement and, if applicable, the Development

Agreement on the same date as the Area Representative Agreement and Development Agreement were,
respectively, executed.

Franchisor: VIO FRANCHISE GROUP, LLC Area Representative:
Signature Signature

Name and Title (please print) Name (please print)
Dated Dated
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MINNESOTA AREA REPRESENTATIVE AGREEMENT AMENDMENT
V/O Med Spa Area Representative Agreement Amendments

In recognition of the requirements of the Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 80C. and Minnesota Franchise Rules
Chapter 2860, the parties to the attached VIO FRANCHISE GROUP, LLC Area Representative Agreement
(the “Agreement”) agree, as follows:

1. Under Section 10.3 of the Agreement, under the heading “Conditions for Approval of Transfer,”
subsection 10.3(f) is modified to add the following sentence at the end of subsection 10.3(f) of the

Agreement:

: provided, however, that all rights enjoyed by Franchisee and any causes of action arising in
Franchisee’s favor from the provisions of the Minnesota Franchise Act, Minn. Stat. Section 80C.14 et
seq. and Minnesota Rules 2860.4400(D), shall remain in force; it being the intent of this provision that
the non-waiver provisions of the Minnesota Rules 2860.4400(D) be satisfied; and

Minnesota law provides a franchisee with certain termination and non-renewal rights. Minn. Stat. Sect.
80C.14 Subdivisions 3. 4, and 5 require, except in certain specified cases, that franchisee be given 180

days-notice of nonrenewal of this Agreement by Franchisor.

2. Under Section 11.4 of the Agreement, under the heading “Conditions for Renewal,” subsection 11.4(d)
is modified to add the following sentence at the end of subsection 11.4(d) of the Agreement:

; provided, however, that all rights enjoyed by Franchisee and any causes of action arising in
Franchisee’s favor from the provisions of the Minnesota Franchise Act, Minn. Stat. Section 80C.14 et
seq. and Minnesota Rules 2860.4400(D), shall remain in force; it being the intent of this provision that
the non-waiver provisions of the Minnesota Rules 2860.4400(D) be satisfied; and

Minnesota law provides a franchisee with certain termination and non-renewal rights. Minn. Stat. Sect.
80C.14 Subdivisions 3, 4, and 5 require, except in certain specified cases, that franchisee be given 180

days-notice of nonrenewal of this Agreement by Franchisor.

3. Section 8.3 of the Agreement, under the heading ‘“Notification of Infringement and Claims.” shall be
supplemented by the addition of the following:

Franchisor agrees to protect Area Representative, to the extent required by the Minnesota
Franchise Act, against claims of infringement or unfair competition with respect to Area

Representative’s use of the Licensed Marks when, in the opinion of Franchisor’s counsel,
Area Representative’s rights warrant protection pursuant to Section 8.3 of this Agreement.

4. Section 10.2 of the Agreement, under the heading ‘“No Transfer by Area Representative Without
Franchisor Approval,” shall be supplemented by the addition of the following:

Franchisor shall not unreasonably withhold consent to transfer the Agreement.

5. Section 12.1(b) of the Agreement, under the heading “Automatic Termination Upon Written Notice,”

shall be supplemented by the addition of the following:

Section 12.1(b) will not be enforced to the extent prohibited by applicable law.

6. Section 12.1(c) of the Agreement, under the heading “Termination After Cure Period,” shall be
supplemented by the addition of the following:

Section 12.1(c) will not be enforced to the extent prohibited by applicable law.

V/O Med Spa. AR FDD. April 18, 2024



7. Section 12.1(c) of the Agreement, under the heading “Termination After Cure Period,” is hereby

amended to replace the “30” day cure period with “60” days and the following is added:

Minnesota law provides a franchisee with certain termination rights. Minn. Stat. Sect. 80C.14
Subdivisions 3, 4, and 5 require, except in certain specified cases, that Area Representative be given

90 days’ notice of termination (with 60 days to cure) of this Agreement.

8. Section 14.6 of the Agreement, under the heading “Governing Law”, shall be amended by the addition
of the following statement added to the end of the last sentence of Section 14.6:

, except to the extent otherwise prohibited by applicable law with respect to claims arising under
the Minnesota Franchise Act.

9. Section 14.7 of the Agreement, under the heading “Non-Binding Mediation and Binding Arbitration” ,
shall be amended by the addition of the following statement added to the end of the last sentence of Section

14.7:

. except to the extent otherwise prohibited by applicable law with respect to claims arising under
the Minnesota Franchise Act.

10. Section 14.9 of the Agreement, under the heading “Limitations of Claims,” shall be amended by the
addition of the following statement added to Section 14.9:

Under the Minnesota Franchise Act, any claims between the parties must be commenced

within three years of the occurrence of the facts giving rise to such claim, or such claim
shall be barred.

11. Section 14.11 of the Agreement, under the heading “Waiver of Jury Trial,” shall be supplemented by
the addition of the following statement at the end of the sentence contained in Section 14.11:

, except that nothing in this Agreement should be considered a waiver of any right conferred upon
Area Representative by the Minnesota Franchise Act.

12. Section 14 of the Agreement is hereby supplemented by the addition of the following Section 14.28
(titled “Minnesota Franchise Act Provisions™):

14.28 MINNESOTA FRANCHISE ACT PROVISIONS
Any foregoing acknowledgments are not intended to, nor shall they act as a release, estoppel or

waiver or any liability under, the Minnesota Franchise Act.

13. Each provision of this amendment shall be effective only to the extent, with respect to such provision.

that the jurisdictional requirements of the Minnesota Franchise Act are met independently without reference
to this amendment.

14. No statement, questionnaire or acknowledgement signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection
with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of: (i) waiving any claims
under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance

on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the

franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the
franchise.

[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have duly executed and delivered this Minnesota State Amendment
to the V/O Med Spa Area Representative Agreement on the same date as the Area Representative
Agreement was executed.

Franchisor: VIO FRANCHISE GROUP, LLC Area Representative:
Signature Signature

Name and Title (please print) Name (please print)
Dated Dated
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NEW YORK AREA REPRESENTATIVE AGREEMENT AMENDMENT
V/O Med Spa Area Representative Agreement Amendments

In recognition of the requirements of the New York General Business Law, Article 33, Sections 680 through

695, and of the regulations promulgated thereunder (N.Y. Comp. Code R. & Regs., tit. 13, §§ 200.1 through
201.16), the parties to the attached V/O Med Spa Area Representative Agreement (the “Agreement”) agree

as follows:

i

1. Under Section 10.3 of the Agreement, under the heading “Conditions for Approval of Transfer,
subsection 10.3(f) is modified to add the following sentence at the end of subsection 10.3(f) of the

Agreement:

: provided, however, that all rights and causes of action arising in favor of Area Representative and
each Owner from the provisions of New York General Business Law Sections 680-695 and the
regulations issued thereunder, shall remain in force; it being the intent of this provision that the
non-waiver provisions of N.Y. Gen. Bus. Law Sections 687.4 and 687.5 be satisfied.

2. Under Section 11.4 of the Agreement, under the heading “Conditions for Renewal,” subsection 11.4(d)
is modified to add the following sentence at the end of subsection 11.4(d) of the Agreement:

: provided, however, that all rights and causes of action arising in favor of Area Representative and
each Owner from the provisions of New York General Business Law Sections 680-695 and the

regulations issued thereunder, shall remain in force; it being the intent of this provision that the
non-waiver provisions of N.Y. Gen. Bus. Law Sections 687.4 and 687.5 be satisfied.

3. Section 14 of the Agreement is hereby supplemented by the addition of the following Section 14.28
(titled “New York General Business Law Provisions”):

14.28 NEW YORK GENERAL BUSINESS LAW PROVISIONS

Nothing in this Agreement should be considered a waiver of any right conferred upon franchisee by
New York General Business Law, Sections 680-695.

4. There are circumstances in which an offering made by VIO FRANCHISE GROUP, LLC would not fall
within the scope of the New York General Business Law, Article 33, such as when the offer and acceptance
occurred outside the state of New York. However, an offer or sale is deemed made in New York if you are
domiciled in New York or the Outlet will be opening in New York. VIO FRANCHISE GROUP, LLC is
required to furnish a New York prospectus to every prospective franchisee who is protected under the New
York General Business Law, Article 33.

5. Each provision of this amendment shall be effective only to the extent, with respect to such provision,

that the jurisdictional requirements of the New York General Business Law, are met independently without
reference to this amendment.

6. No statement, questionnaire or acknowledgement signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection
with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of: (i) waiving any claims
under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance
on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the
franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the
franchise.

[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have duly executed and delivered this New York State Amendment
to the V/O Med Spa Area Representative Agreement on the same date as the Area Representative
Agreement was executed.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the parties have duly executed and delivered this New York amendment to the
VIO FRANCHISE GROUP, LLC Area Representative Agreement.

Franchisor: VIO FRANCHISE GROUP, LLC Area Representative:
Signature Signature

Name and Title (please print) Name (please print)
Dated Dated
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NORTH DAKOTA AREA REPRESENTATIVE AGREEMENT AMENDMENT
V/O Med Spa Area Representative Agreement Amendments

In recognition of the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law, Section 51-19, the parties to the attached
VIO FRANCHISE GROUP, LLC Area Representative Agreement (the “Agreement”) agree as follows:

The North Dakota Addendum is only applicable if you are a resident of North Dakota or if your Area
Representative Business will be located within the State of North Dakota.

1. Section 11.4 of the Agreement is hereby amended by the addition of the following language:

Provisions requiring North Dakota franchisees to sign a general release upon renewal of the franchise
agreement are not enforceable in North Dakota.

2. Section 7.5 of the Agreement is hereby amended by the addition of the following language:

Covenants not to compete such as those mentioned above are generally considered unenforceable in
North Dakota.

3. Section 14.7 of the Agreement is hereby amended by the addition of the following language:

Covenants requiring North Dakota franchisees to consent to the jurisdiction of courts outside of North

Dakota may not be enforceable in North Dakota.

4. Section 14.6 of the Agreement is hereby amended by the addition of the following language:

For North Dakota franchisees, North Dakota law shall apply.
5. Section 14.110f the Agreement is hereby amended by the addition of the following language:

Provisions requiring a franchisee to consent to a waiver of trial by jury are not enforceable under Section
51-19-09 of the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law.

6. Section 14.10 of the Agreement is hereby amended by the addition of the following language:

Provisions requiring a franchisee to consent to a waiver of exemplary and punitive damages are not
enforceable under Section 51-19-09 of the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law.

7. Section 14.9 of the Agreement is hereby amended by the addition of the following language:

Provisions requiring a franchisee to consent to a limitation of claims within one year have been
determined to be unfair, unjust, and inequitable within the intent of Section 51-19-09 of the North
Dakota Franchise Investment Law. Therefore, for North Dakota franchisees, the statute of limitations
under North Dakota law will apply.

8. Each provision of this amendment shall be effective only to the extent, with respect to such provision,

that the jurisdictional requirements of North Dakota law are met independently without reference to this
amendment.
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9. No statement, questionnaire or acknowledgement signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection
with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of: (i) waiving any claims
under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance
on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the
franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the
franchise.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have duly executed and delivered this North Dakota amendment to
the VIO FRANCHISE GROUP, LLC Area Representative Agreement on the same date as the Area
Representative Agreement was executed.

Franchisor: VIO FRANCHISE GROUP, LLC Area Representative:
Signature Signature

Name and Title (please print) Name (please print
Dated Dated
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WASHINGTON STATE AREA REPRESENTATIVE AGREEMENT AMENDMENT
V/O Med Spa Area Representative Agreement Amendments

In the event of a conflict of laws, the provisions of the Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act,
Chapter 19.100 RCW will prevail.

RCW 19.100.180 may supersede the franchise agreement in your relationship with the franchisor including
the areas of termination and renewal of your franchise. There may also be court decisions which may

supersede the franchise agreement in your relationship with the franchisor including the areas of termination
and renewal of your franchise.

In any arbitration or mediation involving a franchise purchased in Washington, the arbitration or mediation
site will be either in the state of Washington, or in a place mutually agreed upon at the time of the arbitration
or mediation, or as determined by the arbitrator or mediator at the time of arbitration or mediation. In
addition, if litigation is not precluded by the franchise agreement, a franchisee may bring an action or
proceeding arising out of or in connection with the sale of franchises, or a violation of the Washington

Franchise Investment Protection Act, in Washington.

A release or waiver of rights executed by a franchisee may not include rights under the Washington
Franchise Investment Protection Act or any rule or order thereunder except when executed pursuant to a
negotiated settlement after the agreement is in effect and where the parties are represented by independent
counsel. Provisions such as those which unreasonably restrict or limit the statute of limitations period for

claims under the Act, or rights or remedies under the Act such as a right to a jury trial, may not be
enforceable.

Transfer fees are collectable to the extent that they reflect the franchisor’s reasonable estimated or actual
costs in effecting a transfer.

Pursuant to RCW 49.62.020, a noncompetition covenant is void and unenforceable against an employee,
including an employee of a franchisee, unless the employee’s earnings from the party seeking enforcement,
when annualized, exceed $100,000 per year (an amount that will be adjusted annually for inflation). In
addition, a noncompetition covenant is void and unenforceable against an independent contractor of a
franchisee under RCW 49.62.030 unless the independent contractor’s earnings from the party seeking
enforcement, when annualized, exceed $250,000 per year (an amount that will be adjusted annually for

inflation). 7-As a result, any provisions contained in the franchise agreement or elsewhere that conflict
with these limitations are void and unenforceable in Washington.

RCW 49.62.060 prohibits a franchisor from restricting, restraining, or prohibiting a franchisee from (i)
soliciting or hiring any employee of a franchisee of the same franchisor or (ii) soliciting or hiring any
employee of the franchisor. As a result, any such provisions contained in the Franchise Agreementfranchise
agreement or elsewhere are void and unenforceable in Washington.

No statement, questionnaire or acknowledgement signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with

the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of: (i) waiving any claims under any

applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any

statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor.
This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have duly executed and delivered this Washington State amendment
to the VIO Eranchise-GroeupFRANCHISE GROUP, LLC Area representative-agreementRepresentative

Agreement a on the same date as the Area representative—agreementRepresentative Agreement was
executed.

Franchisor: VIO Eranchise GroupFRANCHISE GROUP, LLC————————Franechisee Area
Representative:

Signature Signature
Name and Title (please print) Name (please print)
Dated Dated
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State Effective Dates

The following states have franchise laws that require that the Franchise Disclosure Document be
registered or filed with the states, or be exempt from registration:
_California, Hawaii, Illinois, Indiana, Maryland, Michigan, Minnesota, New York, North Dakota, Rhode Island,
South Dakota, Virginia, Washington, and Wisconsin.

This document is effective and may be used in the following states, where the document is filed,
registered or exempt from registration, as of the Effective Date stated below:

Effective Dates

California
Hawaii
Illinois
Indiana
Maryland
Michigan
Minnesota
New York
North Dakota
Rhode Island
South Dakota
Virginia
Washington
Wisconsin

Other states may require registration, filing, or exemption of a franchise under other laws, such as those
that regulate the offer and sale of business opportunities or seller-assisted marketing plans.
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\///\ med yp Eranchise-GroupFRANCHISE GROUP, LLC
V U S P @ RECEIPT (AreaRepresentative- AREA REPRESENTATIVE
FDD)
This Disclosure Document summarizes certain provisions of the Eranehise-Asreement/arearepresentativefranchise

agreement and other information in plain language. Read this Disclosure Document and all the agreements carefully.
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HVIO Eranchise-Group, LLC offers you a franchise, we must provide this Disclosure Document to you 14 calendar
days before you sign a binding agreement with, or make a payment to, us or an affiliate of ours in connection with
the proposed franchise sale, efor sooner if required by applicable law.

Applicable state laws in New York and Rhode Island require that we give you this document at the earlier of the first
personal meeting or 10 business days before the execution of the franchise or other agreements or the payment of any
consideration that relates to the franchise relationship. Michigan requires that we give you this Disclosure Document
at least 10 business days before the signing of any binding franchise or other agreement, or the payment of any
consideration, whichever occurs first.

H-we-dolf VIO FRANCHISE GROUP, LLC does not deliver this Disclosure Document on time of if it contains a
false or misleading statement, or a material omission, a violation of federal law and state law may have occurred and
should be reported to the Federal Trade Commission, Washington, D.C. 20580 and the applicable state administrator

identified in Exhibit A of this Disclosure Document. We authorize the respective state agencies identified in Exhibit
B of this Disclosure Document to receive service of process for us in the particular state.

The Issuance Date of this Disclosure Document is: April 18, 2024. The franchise sellers for this offering are:

Name Principal Business Address Telephone Number
Ryan Rose, Chief 3991 North Jefferson Street, Medina, OH 44256 (440) 238-6898
Executive Officer

Ryan Rao, Chief 3991 North Jefferson Street, Medina, OH 44256 (440) 238-6898
Development Officer

I received a Disclosure Document issued on April 18, 2024 that included the following exhibits:

A. List of State Administrators F. List of Area Representative Franchisees

B. List of Agents for Service of Process G. List of Area Representative Franchisees Who Have Left the System
C. Operations Manual Table of Contents H. State Specific Addenda

D. Financial Statements 1. State Effective Dates

E. Area Representative Agreement J. Receipts

Date Print Name Signature

Date Print Name Signature

Please sign this copy of the receipt, date your signature, and return it to VIO FRANCHISE GROUP, LLC,
3991 North Jefferson Street, Medina, Ohio 44256.
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VIO FRANCHISE GROUP, LLC
RECEIPT - AREA REPRESENTATIVE FDD

This Disclosure Document summarizes certain provisions of the franchise agreement and other information in plain
language. Read this Disclosure Document and all the agreements carefully.

If VIO FRANCHISE GROUP, LLC offers you a franchise, we must provide this Disclosure Document to you 14
calendar days before you sign a binding agreement with, or make a payment to, us or an affiliate of ours in connection
with the proposed franchise sale, or sooner if required by applicable law.

Applicable state laws in New York and Rhode Island require that we give you this document at the earlier of the first
personal meeting or 10 business days before the execution of the franchise or other agreements or the payment of any
consideration that relates to the franchise relationship. Michigan requires that we give you this Disclosure Document
at least 10 business days before the signing of any binding franchise or other agreement, or the payment of any
consideration, whichever occurs first.

If VIO FRANCHISE GROUP, LLC does not deliver this Disclosure Document on time of if it contains a false or
misleading statement, or a material omission, a violation of federal law and state law may have occurred and should
be reported to the Federal Trade Commission, Washington, D.C. 20580 and the applicable state administrator
identified in Exhibit A of this Disclosure Document. We authorize the respective state agencies identified in Exhibit
B of this Disclosure Document to receive service of process for us in the particular state.

The Issuance Date of this Disclosure Document is: April 26:-2023

18, 2024. The franchise sellers for this offering are:

Name Principal Business Address Telephone Number
Ryan Rose, Chief 3991 North Jefferson Street, Medina, OH 44256 (440) 238-6898
Executive Officer

Ryan Rao, Eranchise 3991 North Jefferson Street, Medina, OH 44256 (440) 238-6898
ConsultantChief

Development Officer

I received a Disclosure Document issued on April 26:202318, 2024 that included the following exhibits:

A. List of State Administrators F. List of Area RepresentativesRepresentative Franchisees

B. List of Agents for Service of Process G. List of Area RepresentativesRepresentative Franchisees Who Have
Left the System

C. Operations Manual Table of Contents H. State Specific Addenda

D. Financial Statements 1. State Effective Dates

E. Area Representative Agreement J. Receipts

Date Print Name Signature

Date Print Name Signature

Please sign this copy of the receipt, date your signature, and return it to VIO Franchise- GroupFRANCHISE
GROUP, LLC, 3991 North Jefferson Street, Medina, Ohio 44256.
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